
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN
MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ HEARING ROOM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE
OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE
CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME
TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

- INVOCATION
 

 

2. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order
No. LL-17-01, a liquor license application
submitted by Katie Lynn Parks for a new
Series 12 Restaurant License at the Bandits
Restaurant & The Dirty Cowboy Saloon
located in Strawberry.

Adopted

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2017-01
between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and
the National Park Service for law enforcement
assistance at the Tonto National Monument for
a performance period of four years after the
date of final signature. (J. Adam
Shepherd/Duane Hubbard)

Tabled

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 092815
Document Scan Conversion for the Gila
County Recorder's Office.  (Sadie Jo
Bingham/James Menlove)

Approved

 



C.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Proclamation No. 2017-04 proclaiming April
2017 as Fair Housing Month in Gila
County.  (Malissa Buzan)

Adopted

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444
between the Pinal-Gila Council for Senior
Citizens (PGCSC), Area Agency on Aging,
Region V,and the Gila County Community
Services Division, Housing Services, whereby
PGCSC will provide funding in the amount of
$6,242 to be used for emergency minor home
repair to eligible citizens residing in Gila
County effective April 18, 2017, through June
30, 2017.  (Malissa Buzan)

Approved

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to accept or
reject a Citizen’s Petition to begin the process
to establish Forest Service Road 54A (lower
Cherry Creek) as a Primitive Road. (Steve
Sanders)

Accepted

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all
bids submitted for Invitation for Bids No.
020917-Forest Service Road No. 512-Asphalt
Patching Project; award to the lowest, most
responsive, responsible and qualified bidder;
and authorize the Chairman's signature on the
award contract for the winning bid.  (Steve
Sanders/James Menlove)

Awarded

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to formally
establish the Fair and Racing Commission as a
seven member board to assist in the
governance of the Gila County Fairgrounds;
appoint the following members:  Bill Byrne,
Chairman-April 18, 2017 through December

Approved



30, 2021; Christy Lavin, Secretary-April 18,
2017 through December 30, 2021; Melva
Enders, Treasurer-April 18, 2017 through
December 30, 2019; Andy Hetrick,
Member-April 18, 2017 through December 30,
2019; Janet Cline, Member-April 18, 2017
through December 30, 2021; Floyd Livingood,
Member- April 18, 2017 through December 30,
2021; Sherron Lavin, Past Chair-April 18,
2017 through December 30, 2019; and direct
staff to work with the newly appointed
members of the Fair and Racing Commission
for the purpose of creating bylaws and seeking
input relative to their vision for the future
management of the Gila County Fairgrounds.
(Michael Scannell)

 

H.   Information/Discussion/Action
regarding premium rates in the Arizona Local
Government Employee Benefit Trust for Gila
County's employee insurance and benefit
plans to be effective as of July 1, 2017, as
follows:  Adopt Schedule A - Employee
Insurance Contributions FY 2018 (attached to
the agenda item).  (Jacque Sanders)

Adopted

 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
sale of Assessor's tax parcel number
102-13-032-F to Gila County for $1 so that it
can be used for a public purpose related to
transportation or flood control pursuant to
Arizona Revised Statute § 42-18303 (E); and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the
related Quit Claim Deed.  (Steve Sanders)

Approved

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any  



4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of Order No. LL-14-05-RTR, which is
a Series 19-Application for a Remote Tasting
Room submitted by Ray Stephens, Jr. for
Trident Winery, whereby a remote tasting room
will be established at 6373 Ruin Hill Loop,
Pine, Arizona.

Approved

 

B.   Approval of an Application for Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit submitted by James
Martin Escobar to temporarily extend the
premises where liquor is permitted to be
served at the Mi Familia Mexican Food, located
in Pine, at an event to be held on May 5-6,
2017.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Funding
Agreement No. 203-16 between the Arizona
Department of Housing and the Gila County
Division of Community Services, Housing
Services, to amend the Budget and Request for
Payment pages whereby funding from the
Department of Energy has been decreased by a
total amount of $34,500.

Approved

 

D.   Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Request for
Qualified Vendor Agreement No. DDD 710000
between the Arizona Department of Economic
Security, Division of Developmental Disabilities
(DDD), and Gila County d/b/a Gila County
Employment and Special Training Department
to allow for the continued provision of DDD

Approved



services to eligible residents of Gila County,
and remain in compliance with federal and
state regulations and provisions of the
Qualified Vendor Agreement.

 

E.   Approval of the following precinct
committeemen appointments as submitted by
Gila County Republican Committee Chairman
Gary Morris:  Bernard George Wohlforth -
Globe #2 precinct; Greg Barsness - Globe #4
precinct; and Jim Muhr - Payson #3 precinct.

Approved

 

F.   Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly
departmental activity report submitted by the
Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe Regional
Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the February 2017
monthly activity report submitted by the
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

K.   Approval of the March 28, and April 4, 2017,
Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

L.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 Acknowledged



L.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of March 13, 2017,
through March 17, 2017; and March 27, 2017,
through March 31, 2017.

Acknowledged

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

Comments
Provided

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events.  No
action may be taken on information presented.

Presented

 

7. EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of
Supervisors may vote to go into executive
session on one or all of the items listed in
this section.  No action will be taken by the
Board while in executive session.)

 

 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go Directed Staff



A.   Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go
into executive session to receive legal advice
from its attorney regarding its position in the
United States of America V.  ASARCO Consent
Decree No. CV-15-2206-PHX-JZB, and
instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant
to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4). If the Board
does go into executive session, the County
Attorney’s Office suggests that after the
Regular Meeting has been reconvened, the
Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s
Office to proceed as directed in executive
session.

Directed Staff

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.
THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)((3)
THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   
ARF-4235   Public Hearing     2. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Order No. LL-17-01 Liquor License Application.

Background Information
Katie Lynn Parks has submitted an application to the Arizona Department
of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC) for a new Series 12 Restaurant
License at the Bandits Restaurant & The Dirty Cowboy Saloon located in
Strawberry.  Part of the statutory process is once the DLLC accepts and
processes the license, it is sent to the local governing body in which city,
town or county the establishment is located.  Upon the local governing
body's, which in Gila County is the Board of Supervisors' (Board), review
of the application, a recommendation is then issued to the DLLC to either
approve, deny or issue a "no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted
at the establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any
person residing, owning, or leasing property within a one-mile radius of
the establishment of this application.  To date, the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors has not received any objections to this application.

Evaluation
The DLLC has forwarded the application to the Clerk of the Board.  An
internal review has been conducted by the Planning and Zoning
Department, Health Department, and Treasurer's Office.  The
departments and elected office have confirmed that there are no pending
issues relevant to their area of responsibility.

Conclusion
All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this
application; no one has submitted a written objection to this application;
therefore, a public hearing should be held by the Board to entertain any
comments from the public relating to this application before the Board
takes an action to issue a recommendation to the DLLC.



Recommendation
The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue
an approval recommendation to the DLLC.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Order No. LL-17-01, a liquor
license application submitted by Katie Lynn Parks for a new Series 12
Restaurant License at the Bandits Restaurant & The Dirty Cowboy Saloon
located in Strawberry.

Attachments
Board Recommendation to State
Affidavit of Posting - Signed
Community Development Approval
Health and Emergency Department Approval
Treasurer's Approval
Bandits Restaurant Liquor Licenses Application





































   
ARF-4167   Regular Agenda Item     3. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Adam Shepherd, Sheriff 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer
Department: Sheriff's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2017-01 between the Gila County
Sheriff's Office and the National Park Service for law enforcement
assistance at the Tonto National Monument.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Office was contacted by the Superintendent of
the Tonto National Monument requesting assistance with law enforcement
services at the Tonto National Monument. Currently, the Tonto National
Monument does not have a law enforcement officer stationed at the
Monument. If an officer is needed at the Tonto National Monument,
he/she would be required to come from Montezuma Castle.

Evaluation
The Tonto National Monument is located within Gila County and has
limited resources for law enforcement, so a request for assistance from
the Gila County Sheriff's Office has been made.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office has agreed to help with law enforcement
assistance within the Tonto National Monument.

Recommendation
Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2017-01 between the Gila
County Sheriff's Office and the National Park Service for law enforcement
assistance at the Tonto National Monument for a performance period of
four years after the date of final signature.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement



Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental Agreement
No. 2017-01 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the National
Park Service for law enforcement assistance at the Tonto National
Monument for a performance period of four years after the date of final
signature. (J. Adam Shepherd/Duane Hubbard)

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2017-01



1 
 

 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 2017-01 

BETWEEN 

GILA COUNTYSHERIFF’S OFFICE 

AND 

THE NATIONAL PARK SERVICE 

 

 

This agreement is entered into by and between the National Park Service (hereinafter “NPS”), an agency of 

the United States Department of the Interior, acting through the Superintendent of Tonto National 

Monument (hereinafter “TONT” or “park”), and the Gila County Sheriff’s Office (hereinafter “GCSO”), 

Arizona, acting through the Gila County Sheriff.  Although TONT does not have a law enforcement officer 

on staff, an agreement is in place with the Superintendent and Chief Ranger of Montezuma Castle and 

Tuzigoot (hereinafter ”MOCA”) for law enforcement support at TONT. The purpose of this agreement is to 

establish the terms and conditions under which the parties will provide mutual law enforcement assistance 

in TONT within Gila County. Throughout this agreement the NPS and the GCSO may be referred to jointly 

as “the parties.”   

 

Whereas the Secretary of the Interior, acting through the NPS, administers TONT as a unit of the National 

Park System in accordance with Presidential Proclamation No. 696-(December 8, 1906), 34 Stat. 3265 and 

the laws applicable generally to units of the national park system; and 

 

Whereas 54 U.S.C. § 102701 authorizes the Secretary of the Interior “to designate . . . certain officers or 

employees of the Department of the Interior who shall maintain law and order and protect persons and 

property within areas of the National Park System”; and 

 

Whereas 54 U.S.C.§ 102711 authorizes the Secretary of the Interior to render “emergency rescue, 

firefighting, and cooperative assistance to nearby law enforcement and fire prevention agencies and for 

related purposes outside of the National Park System”; and 

 

Whereas Arizona authorizes the Sheriff of Gila County to enforce the laws of the State of Arizona and 

whereas this agreement will enhance public safety and benefit both the NPS and the GCSO; 

 

Now, therefore, the parties agree as follows: 

 

I. TERM: 
 

A. This agreement will be effective for a period of four years after the date of final 

signature, unless it is terminated earlier by one of the parties pursuant to article VIII below. At 

the conclusion of that four-year term, this agreement may be extended or renewed by written 

agreement of the parties. 

 

II. STATEMENT OF WORK: 
 

A. In-park Law Enforcement Pursuant to 54 U.S.C § 102701, and Search and Rescue 

Operations. 

 

1. In accordance with 54 U.S.C § 102701, NPS Law Enforcement Officers shall 

enforce all applicable federal laws within TONT. 

 

2. NPS Law Enforcement Officers may enforce state laws and county ordinances 

within the portion of TONT located within Gila County. 

 

 



2 
 

3. GCSO Law Enforcement Officer shall enforce state laws and county ordinances 

within the portion of TONT located within Gila County. 

 

4. Upon receiving an official request from the NPS, the GCSO shall render 

emergency law enforcement assistance to TONT whenever possible.  The NPS shall 

direct such requests to the GCSO Lieutenant or his designee, who must approve all such 

requests before any GCSO Law Enforcement Officers may render emergency assistance. 

 

5. The GCSO may render emergency law enforcement assistance inside of TONT 

in those situations where a properly appointed or otherwise legally empowered GCSO 

Law Enforcement Officer, while in the course of his/her official duties, observes an 

emergency situation, at which time the GCSO Law Enforcement Officer may take 

appropriate initial action to secure and manage the scene.  The GCSO shall immediately 

notify the NPS of the emergency.  Upon arrival of the first NPS Law Enforcement officer 

on the scene, the GCSO Law Enforcement Officer shall relinquish control to the NPS 

officer; however, upon request the GCSO Law Enforcement Officer may assist the NPS 

officer for the duration of the emergency incident.  

 

6. The GCSO shall render assistance only until such time as the NPS has enough 

resources on the scene to adequately control the emergency or until the emergency no 

longer exists, whichever comes first. 

 

7. The on-scene commanding officer of the NPS shall be in command of all 

officers, including GCSO Law Enforcement Officers who are rendering emergency 

assistance; provided that the NPS on-scene commander shall exercise command of 

GCSO Law Enforcement Officers only through the highest ranking GCSO Law 

Enforcement Officer on the scene, which individual shall be identified by the GCSO for 

incidents on TONT. 

 

8. At any time the GCSO Lieutenant or his designee may decide to withdraw 

emergency law enforcement assistance. 

 

 

III. EMPLOYEES AND REIMBURSEMENT: 
 

A. NPS Law Enforcement Officers rendering emergency assistance to the GCSO pursuant to 

this agreement shall be deemed to be acting within the scope of their federal employment.  Under 

no circumstances shall NPS Law Enforcement Officers be deemed to be “borrowed servants” of 

the GCSO. 

 

B. GCSO Law Enforcement Officers rendering emergency assistance to the NPS pursuant to 

this agreement shall be deemed to be acting within the scope of their county employment. Under 

no circumstances shall GCSO Law Enforcement Officers be deemed to be “borrowed servants” of 

the NPS.  

 

C. The parties further agree as follows: 

 

1. The parties will exercise their best efforts to perform their responsibilities under 

this agreement in a timely and professional manner.  However, nothing in this agreement 

is intended to restrict either party's lawful discretion to act (or not to act) in the manner it 

deems most appropriate in a particular situation.  

 

2. Each party will bear its own costs for furnishing services under this agreement, 

and neither party will claim reimbursement for those costs from the other. 

 

3. Nothing in this agreement will be construed to bind the NPS to expend in any 



3 
 

one fiscal year any sum in excess of funds appropriated by Congress or allocated by the 

NPS for the purposes of this agreement. 

 

4. Nothing in this agreement will be construed to bind the GCSO to expend any 

one fiscal year any sum in excess of funds approved by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors for the purposes of this agreement.  

 

5. Each party hereby waives any and all claims, demands, and causes of action 

against the other party and its employees, and releases the other party and its employees 

from any and all liability arising out of or resulting from activities under this agreement. 

Each party will be solely responsible for any and all claims, demands, and causes of 

action filed by third parties arising out of or resulting from the activities of its employees 

under this agreement, including, but not limited to, the costs of investigating and 

defending against such claims, demands, and causes of action and the costs of paying any 

compromise settlements, judgments, assessed costs, or fees (including attorney's fees). 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties will cooperate with each other, to the 

maximum extent practicable in the investigation and defense of any claim, demand, or 

cause of action filed by a third party arising out of or resulting from activities under  this 

agreement. 

 

6. The parties will coordinate all public information releases about law 

enforcement incidents, investigations, actions, or other matters involving both parties 

within TONT.  

 

7. The parties will provide radio frequencies through a Radio Frequency Use 

Agreement to assist in communications in the event of an emergency response.    

 

IV. NOTIFICATION: 

 

A. All communications and notices regarding this agreement shall be directed to the 

following key official(s) for each party: 

 

  For the NPS:       

 

  Superintendent, Duane C. Hubbard 

  Tonto National Monument 

  26260 N. AZ Hwy 188, Lot 2 

  Roosevelt, AZ  85545 

  Phone:  (928) 467-2241 x8100 

   

  For the GCSO: 

 

  Sheriff, J. Adam Shepherd- Sheriff 

  Gila County Sheriff’s Office 

  Globe: 

  PO Box 311/1100 E South St 

  Globe, AZ 85502 

  Payson: 

  108 W Main St 

  Payson, AZ 85541 

  Office: 928-425-4449 

  

V. PROPERTY UTILIZATION: 
 



4 
 

A. Unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties, any property furnished by one party 

to the other shall remain the property of the furnishing party.  Any property furnished by the NPS 

to the GCSO shall be used and disposed of as set forth in the NPS Property Management 

Regulations. 

 

VI. PRIOR APPROVAL: 
 

A. See Article II (Statement of Work) above. 

 

VII.  REPORTS AND/OR OTHER DELIVERABLES: 
 

A. Upon request and to the extent permitted by applicable law, the parties shall share with 

each other final reports of incidents involving both parties. 

 

VIII. MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION: 
 

A. Except as otherwise provided herein, each party shall have the right to terminate this IGA 

without liability to the non-terminating party  by hand-delivering  to the non-terminating party 

written notice of termination at least sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of said termination 

or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties in writing. 

 

B. In the event of early termination for any reason, any funds advanced to either party shall 

be returned to the advancing party within ten (10) days after the date of termination or upon 

receipt of notice of termination of the IGA, whichever is earlier.   

 

C. Either party has the right to terminate this IGA upon twenty-four (24) hour notice when it 

is deemed the health or welfare of the service recipients is endangered. 

 

D. Non-Availability of Funds.  If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of 

this IGA, this IGA may be terminated by either Party at the end of the period for which funds are 

available. No liability shall accrue to Parties in the event this provision is exercised. Neither Party 

shall be obligated, or liable for any future payments of, for any damages as a result of termination 

under this paragraph. 

 

E. Notice is given that pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the  Parties may cancel any IGA 

without penalty or further obligation within three years after execution of the IGA, if any person 

significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the IGA on behalf of 

the County is at any time while the IGA or any extension of the IGA is in effect, an employee or 

agent of any other party to the IGA in any capacity or consultant to any other party of the IGA 

with respect to the subject matter of the IGA. Additionally, pursuant to A.R.S §38-511 the Parties 

may recoup any fee or commission paid or due to any person significantly involved in initiating, 

negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the IGA on behalf of the County from any other party to 

the IGA arising as the result of the IGA. Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511, parties, their political 

subdivisions or any department or agency of either may, within three years after its execution, 

cancel any IGA without penalty or further obligation, made by either party political subdivisions 

or any department or agency of either if any person significantly involved in initiating, 

negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the IGA on behalf of either party, its political 

subdivisions or any department or agency of either is, at any time while the IGA or any extension 

of the IGA is in effect, an employee or agent of any other party to the IGA in any capacity or a 

consultant to any other party to the IGA with respect to the matter of the IGA. A cancellation 

made pursuant to this provision shall be effective when either party receives written notice of the 

cancellation, unless the notice specifies a later time. 

 

IX. STANDARD CLAUSES 
 



5 
 

 

A. No member of delegate to Congress, or resident Commissioner, shall be admitted to any 

share or part of this agreement, or to any benefit that may arise therefrom, but this provision shall 

not be construed to extend to this agreement if made with a corporation for its general benefit. 

 

B. This IGA is not intended to constitute, create, give rise to, or otherwise recognize a joint 

venture agreement, partnership or other formal business association or organization of any kind, 

and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be only those expressly set forth in this IGA. 

 

C. Each party shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, Executive Orders, rules, 

regulations, standards, and codes of the Federal, State, and local governments whether or not 

specifically reference herein. The Parties agree that there will be no discrimination as to race, 

color, creed, religion, ancestry, national origin, sex, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, 

disability, age, marital status or status in regard to obligations, work, and services performed under 

the terms and any IGA ensuing from this engagement. The Parties will comply with the Executive 

Order No. 11246, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity” and as amended by Executive Order 

No. 11375, as supplemented by the Department of Labor Regulations (41 CFR, Part 60). 

 

D. Each party warrants its compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that 

relate to its employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  If a party uses any subcontractors in performance 

of this contract, subcontractors shall warrant their compliance with all federal immigration laws 

and regulations that relate to their employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  A breach of this warranty 

shall be deemed a material breach of the contract subject to penalties up to and including 

termination of this contract.  Each party retains the legal right to inspect the papers of the other 

party and its subcontractors who work on the contract to ensure that it or its subcontractors are 

complying with this warranty 

 

E. The laws of the State of Arizona and the United States shall govern this IGA.  

  

F. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-214 and § 35-215, both parties shall retain and shall contractually 

require each subcontractor to retain all data, books and other records (“records”) relating to this 

Agreement for a period of five (5) years after completion of the Agreement.  All records shall be 

subject to inspection and audit by either party at reasonable times. Upon request, a party shall 

produce a legible copy of any or all such records. Notwithstanding this commitment under 

Arizona law, the United States will comply with applicable federal record retention policies and 

procedures. 

 

G. Each party is responsible to provide financing for and establish and maintain a budget for 

its respective obligations under this agreement. 

H. In accordance with A.R.S. § 35-154, every payment obligation of each party under this 

Agreement is conditioned upon the availability of funds appropriated or allocated for the payment 

of such obligation. If funds are not allocated and available for the continuance of this Agreement, 

this Agreement may be terminated by either party at the end of the period for which funds are 

available. No liability shall accrue to either party in the event this provision is exercised, and the 

parties shall not be obligated or liable for any future payments or for any damages as a result of 

termination under this paragraph. 

 

I. If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this IGA is held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall 

remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated. 

 

J. Any provision of this IGA which is determined to be invalid, void or illegal shall in no 

way affect, impair or invalidate any other provision hereof, and remaining provisions shall remain 

in full force and effect. 

 



6 
 

K. This IGA may be amended only by the mutual written consent of authorized 

representatives for all Parties and require Board approval. 

 

L. Waiver of any breach of any term, conditions or covenant herein contained shall not be 

deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of any term, covenant or condition herein. 

 

M. This IGA may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 

an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  Faxed and 

copied signatures are acceptable as original signatures. 

 

N. (Remainder of page intentionally left blank, signatures to follow)     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

X. AUTHORIZING SIGNATURES 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have entered into this IGA as of the date of the last signature 

set forth below. 

 

 

Gila County Sheriff’s Office   National Park Service 

 

 

 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 

J. Adam Shepherd       Date  Chief Ranger             Date 

Sheriff      Montezuma Castle National Monument 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

           Superintendent             Date 

      Tonto National Monument 

 

 

 

Gila County, a political subdivision   

of the State of Arizona     

 

 

BY: __________________________________  

       Tommie C. Martin          Date          

       Chairman, Board of Supervisors           

      

ATTEST:       

 

 

_____________________________________  

Marian E. Sheppard                     Date  

Clerk of the Board     

 

 

 

Approved as to form:         

 

 

_____________________________________        

Jefferson R. Dalton          Date      

Deputy Gila County Attorney 

Civil Bureau Chief 

 

 



   
ARF-4253   Regular Agenda Item     3. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: James Menlove, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017; 2017-2018 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

03-01-17 to 02-28-18 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 092815 Document Scan
Conversion for the Gila County Recorder's Office.

Background Information
On May 26, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved a request to
advertise Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 042815 Document Scan
Conversion Project for the Gila County Recorder's Office.  RFP No. 042815
was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt in the May 27, 2015 and June
03, 2015 editions of the Arizona Silver Belt.

Four proposals were received and opened in a public setting on June 25,
2015. On March 1, 2016, the Board of Supervisors awarded a contract to
the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder, which was US Imaging.
The contract annual amount was for $117,200.

Evaluation
The original contract term for Contract No. 092815 was from March 01,
2016 to February 28, 2017, with an option to renew for one additional
one-year period at an annual cost of $117,200.

Amendment No. 1 will serve to exercise the option to renew the contract
for one additional year from March 1, 2017 to February 28, 2018.

Conclusion
The Gila County Recorder's Office is pleased with the service provided by



The Gila County Recorder's Office is pleased with the service provided by
US Imaging and would like to extend the contract for another year.

Recommendation
The Recorder and the Finance Director recommend that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 092815 Document
Scan Conversion for the Gila County Recorder's Office.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract
No. 092815 Document Scan Conversion for the Gila County Recorder's
Office.  (Sadie Jo Bingham/James Menlove)

Attachments
US Imaging Amendment No. 1
Contract No. 092815-US Imaging, Inc.



Amendment No. 1 To Service Agreement no 092815/US Imaging/Document Scan Conversion Page 1 
 

 

 

 
 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  

The following amendments are hereby incorporated into the 

agreement for the below project 

 

  
 

DOCUMENT SCAN CONVERSION 
 

RECORDER’S OFFICE 
 

 
Effective March 01, 2016 Gila County and US Imaging entered into a contract whereby US Imaging 
agreed to provide Document Scan Conversion for the Recorder’s Office.   
 
 
Service Agreement No.  092815 will expire on February 28, 2017. Per Minimum Specifications –
Term and Renewal, Gila County shall have the sole option, to renew the contract for three (3) 
additional (1) year periods or portions thereof.  
 
 
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 092815, will allow for Gila County to exercise the 
option to renew the term of the Contract for one (1) additional one (1) year term, from March 01, 
2017 to February 28, 2018, for a contract amount of not to exceed One Hundred Seventeen 
Thousand Two Hundred dollars and 00/100’s ($117,200.00) without prior written approval from 
the County. 
 
Further, Amendment No. 1 will serve to add the language: Contractor hereby certifies that it is 
not currently engaged in, and will not, for the duration of this agreement engage in, a boycott of 
Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may result in 
action by County up to and including termination of this Agreement. 
 
All other terms, conditions and provisions of the original Contract, shall remain the same and 
apply during the March 01, 2017 to February 28, 2018 renewal period. 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical copies of this amendment, each which shall 
include original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been 
duly executed by the parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above 
written. 
 
 
 
 
 
 









































































































































   

ARF-4273   Regular Agenda Item     3. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of Proclamation No. 2017-04 proclaiming April as Fair Housing Month in Gila County.

Background Information
Each April, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) uses Fair Housing Month to
mark the passage of the 1968 Fair Housing Act.  The landmark law, passed shortly after the
assassination of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., prohibits housing discrimination based on race, color,
national origin, religion, sex, disability, and family status. 

Evaluation
In an effort to raise awareness regarding the Fair Housing Act, the Gila County Community Services
Division, Housing Services, would like to join the nation in proclaiming April as Fair Housing Month. 

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors adopting Proclamation No. 2017-04, Gila County will join in a national
effort proclaiming April as Fair Housing Month.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
adopt Proclamation No. 2017-04 proclaiming April as Fair Housing Month in Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2017-04 proclaiming April 2017 as Fair
Housing Month in Gila County.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Proclamation No. 2017-04



 
 

 

PROCLAMATION NO. 2017-04 

 

 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS PROCLAIMING APRIL AS FAIR HOUSING MONTH IN 

GILA COUNTY. 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (commonly known as the Federal Fair Housing Act) 

and the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988 prohibit discrimination in the sale, rental, 

leasing, and financing of housing or land to be used for the construction of housing or in the 

provision of brokerage services on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, disability, family status 

or nation origin; and  

 

WHEREAS, the 1968 and 1988 Federal Fair Housing Acts declare that it is a national policy to 

ensure equal opportunities in housing; and  

 

WHEREAS, April has traditionally been designated as Fair Housing Month in the United States. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the members of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, do hereby proclaim 
April as Fair Housing Month in Gila County and do hereby urge all citizens of this County to 

comply with the letter and spirit of the Fair Housing Law.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of April, 2017. 

 

ATTEST:     GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

 

________________________________  _________________________________________ 

Marian Sheppard, Clerk    Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 

 

 

 



   

ARF-4270   Regular Agenda Item     3. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016 - 2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

April 18, 2017 - June 30, 2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444 with Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on
Aging, Region V.

Background Information
For the past 12 years, Gila County Housing has received funding from Pinal-Gila Council for Senior
Citizens Area Agency on Aging to provide emergency minor home repairs to eligible citizens residing in
Gila County.

On July 16, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract No. 014-0444 for the period July 1,
2013, through June 30, 2014.

On July 15, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444 for
the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

On August 4, 2015, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 014-0444 for
the period July 1, 2015, through June 30, 2016.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 3 will amend the contract dated July 1, 2013, to render services from April 18, 2017,
through June 30, 2017.

The contract amount is $6,242, which will be used to provide emergency minor home repair to eligible
citizens residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By approving Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444, Gila County Housing Services will receive
funding to assist eligible citizens with emergency minor home repairs.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Amendment.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444 between the



Information/Discussion/Action to approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444 between the
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens (PGCSC), Area Agency on Aging, Region V,and the Gila County
Community Services Division, Housing Services, whereby PGCSC will provide funding in the amount of
$6,242 to be used for emergency minor home repair to eligible citizens residing in Gila County effective
April 18, 2017, through June 30, 2017.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444
Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 014-0444
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444
Contract No. 014-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging





























































































































































































































































































































   
ARF-4269   Regular Agenda Item     3. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Executive Administrative Asst.
Department: Public Works

Information
Request/Subject
Accept or reject a Citizen’s Petition to begin the process to designate
Forest Service Road 54A (lower Cherry Creek) as a Primitive Road.

Background Information
Gila County Public Works received a citizen’s petition to establish Forest
Service Road 54A (lower Cherry Creek) as a Primitive Road. The road is
located in the community of Young.

Evaluation
The petition and the road meet the requirements of Public Works Policy
#ENG03-03 “Guidelines to Primitive Roads” which was approved by the
Board of Supervisors on October 3, 2003, and revised on December 1,
2004.

Conclusion
Easements from property owners will need to be granted to Gila County.
Once the easements are accepted by the County, providing maintenance
as described in the Primitive Road Policy will consist of grading the road a
few times a year. Providing maintenance on this road will not reduce the
level of service to other roads in the Gila County Maintained Roadway
System.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director recommends that the Board accept
the Citizen’s Petition to begin the process to establish Forest Service Road
54A (lower Cherry Creek) as a Primitive Road.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a Citizen’s Petition to



Information/Discussion/Action to accept or reject a Citizen’s Petition to
begin the process to establish Forest Service Road 54A (lower Cherry
Creek) as a Primitive Road. (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Citizen's Petition
Map 54A Road





N AZ HIGHWAY 288

S RANGER
STATION RD S FOREST SERVICE RD 54

FOREST SERVICE RD 54A

Copyright:© 2013 National Geographic Society, i-cubed, Sources: Esri,
DeLorme, USGS, NPS

Legend
Propsed Sections
N AZ HIGHWAY 288 
Other Roads
Parcels

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 10.1
Miles

/



   
ARF-4260   Regular Agenda Item     3. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

30 Calendar Days from
Notice to Proceed

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Award Contract No. 020917-Forest Service Road No. 512-Asphalt
Patching Project.

Background Information
At the February 21, 2017, Board of Supervisors' Regular Meeting, the
Board approved a Request to Advertise for the Forest Service Road No.
512-Asphalt Patching Project.

The proposed work is located in the northern part of Gila County. The
work consists of removing the existing asphalt and base material and
replacing the removed section with a new three inch asphalt concrete
section on top of a twelve inch aggregate base course at various locations
on Forest Service Road No. 512 (near the Cherry Creek Bridge and in the
Cherry Creek Hill Area). The total estimated quantity of area to be
repaired is 915 square yards.

The road is identified in the Gila County Transportation Study as in need
of pavement maintenance. The road is scheduled for a chip seal treatment
in the upcoming chip seal season.

Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 020917-Forest Service Road No. 512-Asphalt
Patching Project was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper
on March 1, 2017, and March 8, 2017, with a bid due date of March 16,
2017.

Six Bids were received. Bid responses were opened on March 16, 2017, at



Six Bids were received. Bid responses were opened on March 16, 2017, at
4:00 P.M., and evaluated in accordance with A.R.S. §41-2533,
Competitive Sealed Bidding.

Evaluation
Select areas of Forest Service Road No. 512 have complete pavement
failure and are in need of repair. This repair work needs to be done prior
to the scheduled chip seal application.

IFB No. 020917 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt, the County
approved newspaper. It was also emailed out to forty-four contractors,
two construction publications (see attached Plan Holder List) and posted
on the County website. Six bids were received.

Per the Time of Completion provision in the IFB, work shall be completed
within thirty calendar days from the commencement date on the Notice to
Proceed.

Conclusion
It is in the best interest of Gila County to repair the areas identified in
this request prior to the chip seal application.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Public Works and Finance Department
Directors that the Board of Supervisors award a contract to
Intermountain West for a bid amount of $69,540 in response to IFB No.
020917-Forest Service Road No. 512- Asphalt Patching
Project.  Intermountain West Civil Constructors, Inc. was the low bidder
on IFB No. 020917.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation
for Bids No. 020917-Forest Service Road No. 512-Asphalt Patching
Project; award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified
bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the award contract for
the winning bid.  (Steve Sanders/James Menlove)

Attachments
Invitation for Bids No. 020917 - Forest Service Road No. 512 Asphalt
Patching Project
Plan Holder List



Addendum No. 1
As Read Bid Results
Contract No. 020917-InterMountain West Civil Constructors, Inc.
Cactus Asphalt-Sealed Bid
Hatch Construction-Sealed Bid
Magnum Civil Constructors-Sealed Bid
Pima Paving-Sealed Bid
Roy Haught Excavating-Sealed Bid



 

Page 1 of 81 
 

 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR INVITATION FOR BIDS 

 
FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 

 
BID CALL 020917 

 
 

BIDDER'S INFORMATION  
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 

Timothy Humphry, Vice Chairman 
Woody Cline, Member 

 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
John Nelson 

 
 

*PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR* 

Steve Sanders 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 2 of 81 
 

 

                                           INVITATION FOR BIDS 
       BID CALL NO.   020917  

Sealed bids will be received by Gila County Procurement, in the Copper Building Conference Room, 
1400 East Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501, until 4:00 P.M. (AZ Time), Thursday, March 16, 2017 for the Forest 
Service Rd No. 512 Asphalt Patching Project, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, BID NO. 020917 in strict 
accordance with the rules and regulations of Board approved Policies BOS-FIN-002, BOS-FIN-003 and the 
Gila County Procurement Group Statement of Operating Procedures.  No bids will be accepted after 
4:00 P.M.  The Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at 4:00 P.M., Arizona time, at the location 
and date listed above. 

   
All Bids shall be made on the Invitation for Bids forms included in the Contract Documents and shall 
include all applicable taxes.  
 

Each Bid submitted, either by hand, United States Postal Service, or other carrier, shall be sealed and 
plainly marked "FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, 
BID CALL NO. 020917”.  All Bids shall be mailed or delivered to the Gila County Procurement 
Department, Attention: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator, 1400 East Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501. Gila 
County Engineering Services and the Board of Supervisors of Gila County will not be responsible for 
those bids submitted that are not marked appropriately or sent to the wrong address.  The prevailing 
clock shall be the atomic clock in the Contracts Administrator’s office. 
 

Contractors are invited to be present at the opening of bids but absence will not be considered cause for 
disqualification. 
 

Contractors shall be responsible for any licenses or permits required by the regulatory agency of the 
State of Arizona that apply to the performance of this contract. 
 

After the Contractor who is determined to be most advantageous to the county has been selected 
through the source selection process, negotiations may be conducted for the purpose of developing a 
recommended Contract for Award. 
 

The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject all bids, or to waive any informality in 
any bid. All procurement activities conducted by Gila County are in conformance with the rules and 
regulations of the Gila County Clerk of the Board’s office.  A copy of the Code is available for review in 
the Clerk of the Board’s office, Globe, AZ. 
 

Dates advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt: March 01, 2017 and March 08, 2017 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Tommie C. Martin, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
  for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 
  

 
 
 



 

Page 3 of 81 
 

  

 

  
 NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS 
 
 
BIDDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED: 
 
1. The bidder must supply all the information required by the bidding documents and 

specifications.  All proposals shall be made on the bid proposal forms prepared by Gila 
County as part of the Contract Documents.  The proposal must include the entire bid 
packet, in triplicate, and the following forms, all with original signatures, must 
accompany the bidders proposal: 

 
 Bid Proposal (pages 58 to 61) 
 Price Sheet (page 63) 
 Surety (Bid) Bond (page 64) 
 Qualification & Certification Form (pages 65 to 66) 
 Reference List (pages 67) 
 Affidavit of Non-Collusion (page 68) 
 Subcontracting Certification (page 69) 
 Check List & Addenda Acknowledgment (page 70) 
 Contract (pages 71 to 78) 
 Contract Performance Bond (page 79) 
 Labor and Materials Bond (page 80) 
 Contract Performance Warranty (page 81) 
 IRS W-9 Form (W-9)  

 
Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate 
the bid.  Prices shall include all applicable taxes.   

 
2. Proposal Guaranty -Proposals shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check 

or bid bond for 10 percent (10%) of the total contract price bid. 
 
3. Delivery of Proposal - Each bid shall be sealed and plainly marked "Bid No. 020917 – 

FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT", on the outer most 
envelope or label.  If courier is used, bidder shall instruct the courier to deliver the 
package by Thursday, March 16, 2017, 4:00 P.M. on the date specified herein, to the 
Gila County Procurement Department, Attention: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator, 
at 1400 East Ash, Globe, Arizona 85501.  No bids will be accepted after 4:00 P.M. AZ 
Time, Thursday, March 16, 2017.  Bids will be opened at 4:00 P.M., Thursday, March 
16, 2017.  

  
4. Rejection of Bids -The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, and to waive 

all or any informalities in the bids. 
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 81 
 

Notification to Bidders continued… 
 
 

5. Arizona Contractor's License - Prior to submission of bids, bidders must have a valid 
Arizona Contractor's License of a type which meets all criteria and requirements to 
perform the work as specified in the contract documents in accordance with the Arizona 
State Registrar of Contractors. 

 
6. Bid Opening Information – “As Read” Bid Results will be available, when requested, 

once the bids have been opened, however, information regarding the bid award will not 
be available until after the Gila County Board of Supervisors has issued a decision 
regarding the submitted project bids.  

 
7. Request for Clarifications 

Requests for clarification shall be made to Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator at 
bhurst@gilacountyaz.gov in writing (phone: 928-402-4355, fax: 928-402-4386) 
submitted no later than 4:00 P.M., AZ time, on Thursday, March 09, 2017.  A response 
will be issued to all plan holders no later than 4:00 P.M., AZ time, on Monday March 13, 
2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:jsgroi@gilacountyaz.gov


 

Page 5 of 81 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

SPECIFICATIONS…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….8 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS……………………………………………………………………………………………………..8 

 

SECTION 101    DEFINITIONS AND TERMS ..................................................................................... 9 

101-02    DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................ 9-13 

 

SECTION 102    BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS .................................................... 13 

102-04     CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS ............................................................................ 13 

102-05     ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS .............................................................................. 13 

102-06     INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED PROPOSAL QUANTITIES ...................................... 13 

102-07     EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE OF WORK ............................ 14 
102-08     PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL .................................................................................... 14 

102-10     IRREGULAR PROPOSALS ............................................................................................ 15 

102-11     DELIVERY OF PROPOSALS .......................................................................................... 15 

102-12     PROPOSAL GUARANTY .............................................................................................. 15 

102-13     WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS ........................................................... 15 

102-15     PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS ............................................................................. 15 

102-GC1  DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS ............................................................................... 16 

102-GC2  PROTESTS .................................................................................................................. 16 

 

SECTION 103    AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT ........................................................... 16 

103-01     CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS .............................................................................. 16 

103-04     AWARD OF CONTRACT .............................................................................................. 17 

103-05     CANCELLATION OF AWARD....................................................................................... 17 

103-06     RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY .......................................................................... 17 

103-07     REQUIREMENT OF CONTRACT BONDS ..................................................................... 17 
103-08     EXECUTION OF CONTRACT ........................................................................................ 17 

103-GC1  APPROVAL OF CONTRACT ......................................................................................... 18 

103-09     FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT ............................................................................. 18 
 

SECTION 104    SCOPE OF WORK .................................................................................................. 18 

104-01    INTENT OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................... 18 

104-02(A)    ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES ............................................................ 18 

104-02(B)    OMITTED ITEMS .................................................................................................... 19 

104-02(C)    EXTRA WORK ......................................................................................................... 19 

104-03    DISPUTE AND RESOLUTION……………………………………………………………………………………19 
104-04    MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC ....................................................................................... 20 

104-05    RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK ...................................... 21 

 
104-08    PREVENTION OF AIR AND NOISE POLLUTION ............................................................ 22 
104-09    PREVENTION OF LANDSCAPE DEFACEMENT; PROTECTION OF STREAMS, LAKES AND 
RESERVOIRS .............................................................................................................................. 22 



 

Page 6 of 81 
 

104-10    CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK………………………………………………………….22 
104-14    FINAL CLEAN UP…………………………………………………………………………………………………....22 
 

SECTION 105    CONTROL OF WORK ............................................................................................ 22 

105-01     AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER'S ENGINEER ................................................................. 22 

105-04     CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.................................................... 23 

105-06     COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ................................ 23 

105-07     COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR.............................................................................. 24 

105-08     COOPERATION WITH UTILITY COMPANIES ............................................................... 24 

105-09     COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS ................................................................ 24 

105-10     CONSTRUCTION STAKES, LINES AND GRADES .......................................................... 24 

105-11     AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS ................................................................ 24 

105-12     INSPECTION OF THE WORK ....................................................................................... 24 

105-13     REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK ................................... 24 

105-14     LOAD RESTRICTIONS ................................................................................................. 25 

105-15     MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION ................................................................ 25 

105-16     FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK ........................................................................... 25 

105-18     OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK TO TRAFFIC ....................................................... 26 

105-20     ACCEPTANCE ............................................................................................................. 26 
105-20(A)    PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE……………………………………………………………………………………….26 
105-20(B)    FINAL ACCEPTANCE…………………………………………………………………………………………..26 

105-GC1  CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE....................................................................................... 27 
105-GC2  NEGOTIATIONS .......................................................................................................... 27 
105-21     CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES ............................................................... 28 

 

SECTION 106    CONTROL OF MATERIAL ................................................................................ 28-31 

 

SECTION 107    LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC ......................................... 31 

107-01    LAWS TO BE OBSERVED ............................................................................................. 31 

107-02    PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES ................................................................................ 32 

107-03    PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES ................................................... 32 

107-07    SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS .......................................................... 32 

107-08    PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY .......................................................................... 33 

107-09    BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS ........................................ 33 

107-11    PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY AND LANDSCAPE .......................... 33 

107-13    RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS ..................................................................... 33 
107-14    CONTRACTORS INSURANCE ....................................................................................... 34 
107-15    CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY PROPERTY AND SERVICES……………….35 
107-GC1  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE .......................................................................... 35 

107-16    PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS ............................................................... 42 

107-17    NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS ................................................................................... 42 
 

SECTION 108    PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS .......................................................................... 42 

108-01     SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT…………………………………………………………………………………..42 
108-02     NOTICE TO PROCEED ................................................................................................. 43 

108-04     PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS ................................................................................. 43 

108-05     LIMITATION OF OPERATIONS .................................................................................... 44 



 

Page 7 of 81 
 

108-06     CHARACTER OF WORKERS ........................................................................................ 44 

108-07     METHODS AND EQUIPMENT..................................................................................... 44 

108-GC1  TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK ................................................................ 44 
108-08     DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME ......................................... 44 

108-09     FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME.............................................................................. 46 

108-10     DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT ........................................................... 47 

108-GC2  TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES ................................. 47  
 

SECTION 109    MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT ........................................................................ 48 

109-01    MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES ............................................................................... 49 

109-02    SCOPE OF PAYMENT .................................................................................................. 49 

109-03    COMPENSATION FOR ALTERED QUANTITIES ............................................................. 49 

109-04    PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK ................................................ 49 

109-05    PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS ................................................................................ 51 

109-09    ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT .......................................................................... 51 

 

SECTION 202    REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS…………………………………………..52 
SECTION 205    GRADING FOR ROADWAY FOR PAVEMENT…………………………………………………….52 
SECTION 303    AGGREGATE SUBBASES AND AGGREGATE BASES…………………………………………..53 
SECTION 404    BITUMINOUS TREATMENTS…………………………………………………………………………….53 
SECTION 409    ASPHALT CONCRETE (MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURAL)……………………………………54 
SECTION 701    MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF TRAFFIC..…..………………………………………..57 
SECTION 923    PLACEMENT OF PORTLAND CEMENT…………………………………………………………….57 
 

 
 

CONTRACT FORMS 

PROPOSAL ……………………………………………………………………………………………….…………….……….58-61  
PRICE SHEET………….…………………………………………….………………………..…………………….............61-63 
SURETY (BID) BOND ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..64 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION …………………………..………………………………………………….65-66 
REFERENCE LIST ………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………..67 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION ……………………………………………………………………………………..……68 
SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION ……………………………………………………………………………………….69 

CHECKLIST AND ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT ………………………….……………….……………………..70 
CONTRACT ………………………………………………………………….………………………………………….……….71-78 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE BOND ……………………………………………………………………………….….…..79 
LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND …………………………….……….……………………………….………………......80 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY ………..………………………………………………………………....…81 
IRS W-9 FORM 

   APPENDIX A - PATCHING LOCATIONS 
   APPENDIX B - PATCHING LOCATION MAP 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 8 of 81 
 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS  
FOR 

FOREST SERVICE ROAD NO. 512 
 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 

 
The proposed work is located in the northern part of Gila County.  The work consists of 
removing existing asphalt, aggregate base and subgrade material and replacing the removed 
section with a new 3 inch asphalt concrete section on top of a 12 inch aggregate base course at 
various locations on Forest Service Road No. 512 - Cherry Creek Hill Area (see APPENDIX A & B).  
The total estimated quantity of area to be repaired is 915 square yards.   
 

SPECIFICATIONS: 
Reference is made to certain Standard Specifications developed by the Maricopa Association of 
Governments (MAG) and the Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT).  The following 
separate documents shall be used accordingly:  

 

Arizona Department of Transportation, Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge 
Construction, Edition of 2008 and current revisions.  
Maricopa Association of Governments, Uniform Standard Specifications for Public 
Works Construction, 2015 Edition. 
 

Wherever reference in the above cited Standard Specifications is made to ADOT it shall refer to 
Owner as defined in Section 101-02 herein these Special Provisions. 

 
In the event of any conflict between these Special Provisions and the Standard Specifications, 
these Special Provisions shall prevail. 
 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 

Fire Prevention: 

If during the project fire restrictions are implemented the contractor shall be responsible for 
compliance with Tonto National Forest and Gila County fire prevention measures. 
 
Contract Time: 

Contractor shall complete all project work within 30 calendar days from the date the Contractor 
receives the Notice to Proceed from the County. 
 
Construction Water 
The Contractor shall obtain an adequate water supply and furnish all construction water for the 
work specified herein.  There will be no separate measurement or direct payment for obtaining, 
furnishing and applying construction water.  The cost being considered as included in the total 
cost of the contract.   
 
SECTION 101    DEFINITIONS AND TERMS: 
 
101-01    BLANK 
 



 

Page 9 of 81 
 

101-02    DEFINITIONS: 
 
Whenever the following terms are used in these specifications, in the contract, in any 
documents or other instruments pertaining to construction where these specifications govern, 
the intent and meaning shall be interpreted as follows: 
 
MAG.  Maricopa Association of Governments. 
 
ADOT.  Arizona Department of Transportation 
 
ADOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.  Arizona Department of Transportation Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Edition of 2008. 
 
ADVERTISEMENT.  A public announcement, as required by local law, inviting bids for work to be 
performed and materials to be furnished. 
 
ASTM.  The American Society for Testing and Materials. 
 
AASHTO.  The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials. 
 
AWARD.  The acceptance, by the Owner, of the successful bidder's proposal. 
 
BIDDER.  Any individual, partnership, firm, or corporation, acting directly or through a duly 
authorized representative, who submits a proposal for the work contemplated. 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS.  The Gila County Board of Supervisors acting under the authority of 
the laws of the State of Arizona. 
 
CALENDAR DAY.  Every day shown on the calendar. 
 
CERTIFIED FLAGGER.  An individual who has been trained and certified by the Arizona 
Department of Transportation, an Arizona County or Municipal agency, the Federal Highway 
Administration, or the Highway agency of another state, to control traffic in a construction 
zone.  Individuals certified outside Arizona must also exhibit familiarity with Arizona laws. 
 
CHANGE ORDER.  A written order by the Engineer or Owner to the Contractor covering changes 
in the plans, specifications, or proposal quantities and establishing the basis of payment and 
contract time adjustment, if any, for the work affected by such changes.  The work, covered by 
a change order, shall be within the scope of the contract. 
 
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS.  Construction limits shall be defined as that area of the public right-of-
way, easement or area shown on the construction plans to be disturbed as a part of the 
contract for this project. 
 
CONTRACT.  The written agreement covering the work to be performed.  The awarded contract 
shall include, but is not limited to:  the Advertisement; the Contract form; the Proposal; the 
Performance Bond; the Payment Bond; any required insurance certificates; the Specifications; 
the Plans; and any addenda issued to bidders. 
 



 

Page 10 of 81 
 

CONTRACT ITEM (PAY ITEM).  A specific unit of work for which a price is provided in the 
contract.  All pay items on this contract will be measured in English units. 
 
CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar days or working days, stated in the proposal, 
allowed for completion of the contract, including authorized time extensions.  If a calendar date 
of completion is stated in the proposal, in lieu of a number of calendar or working days, the 
contract shall be completed by that date. 
 
CONTRACTOR.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation primarily liable for the 
acceptable performance of the work contracted and for the payment of all legal debts 
pertaining to the work who acts directly or through lawful agents or employees to complete the 
contract work. 
 
CONTRACTOR'S ENGINEER.  The Arizona Registered Professional Civil Engineer, individual, 
partnership, firm, or corporation, duly authorized by Contractor to be responsible for 
engineering supervision, quality control and certification of the Contract work. 
 
DEPARTMENT.   The term Department in the ADOT Standard Specifications and supplements 
references the Arizona Department of Transportation.  Department shall reference OWNER for 
this contract work.   
 
ENGINEER.   See OWNER. 
 
EQUIPMENT.  All machinery, together with the necessary fuel and supplies for upkeep and 
maintenance including, but not limited to, all tools and apparatus necessary for the proper 
construction and acceptable completion of the work. 
 
EXTRA WORK.  An item of work not provided for in the awarded contract as previously 
modified by change order or supplemental agreement, but which is found by the Owner's 
Engineer to be necessary to complete the work within the intended scope of the contract as 
previously modified. 
 
INSPECTOR.  An authorized representative of the Owner's Engineer assigned to make all 
necessary quality assurance inspections and/or tests of the work performed or being 
performed, or of the materials furnished or being furnished by the Contractor. 
 

INTENTION OF TERMS.  Whenever, in these specifications or on the plans, the words 
"directed," "required," "permitted," "ordered," "designated," "prescribed," or words of like 
import are used, it shall be understood that the direction, requirement, permission, order, 
designation, or prescription of the Owner's Engineer is intended; and similarly, the words, 
"approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory," or words of like import, shall mean approved by, or 
acceptable to, or satisfactory to the Owner's Engineer, subject in each case to the final 
determination of the Owner. 
 
Any reference to a specific requirement of a numbered paragraph of the contract specifications 
or a cited standard shall be interpreted to include all general requirements of the entire 
section, specification item, or cited standard that may be pertinent to such specific reference. 
 



 

Page 11 of 81 
 

LABORATORY.  A testing laboratory as may be designated or approved by the Owner’s Engineer 
to test construction materials and products. 
 
LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor 
and his surety as a guaranty that he will pay in full all bills and accounts for materials and labor 
used in the construction of the work.  Also known as Payment Bond. 
 
MAJOR AND MINOR CONTRACT ITEMS.  A major contract item shall be any item that is listed in 
the proposal, the total cost of which is equal to or greater than 10 percent of the total amount 
of the awarded contract.  All other items shall be considered minor contract items. 
 
MATERIALS.  Any substance specified for use in the construction of the contract work. 
 
MUTCD.  The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways, U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, 2003 Edition, with current 
revisions. 
 
NOTICE TO PROCEED.  A written notice to the Contractor to begin the actual contract work on a 
previously agreed to date.  If applicable, the Notice to Proceed shall state the date on which the 
contract time begins. 
 
OWNER.  The term Owner shall mean the contracting agency signatory to the contract being 
Gila County or the “County”. 
 
OWNER'S ENGINEER.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation duly authorized by the 
Owner to be responsible for engineering supervision of the contract work and acting directly or 
through an authorized representative.   
 
PAVEMENT.  The combined surface, base course, and sub base course, if any, considered as a 
single unit. 
 
PERFORMANCE BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and his 
surety as a guaranty that the Contractor will complete the work in accordance with the terms of 
the contract. 
 
PLANS.  The official drawings or exact reproductions, approved by the Owner's Engineer, which 
show the location, character, dimensions and details of the work to be done and which are to 
be considered as a part of the contract, supplementary to the specifications. 
 
PROJECT.  The agreed scope of work for accomplishing specific tasks. 
 
PROPOSAL (BID, BID PROPOSAL).  The written offer of the bidder (when submitted on the 
approved proposal form) to perform the contemplated work and furnish the necessary 
materials in accordance with the provisions of the plans and specifications. 
 
PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  The security furnished with a proposal to guarantee that the bidder 
will enter into a contract if his proposal is accepted by the Owner. 
 



 

Page 12 of 81 
 

SPECIFICATIONS.  A part of the contract containing the written directions and requirements for 
completing the contract work.  Standards for specifying materials or testing which are cited in 
the contract specifications by reference shall have the same force and effect as if included in 
the contract physically. 
 
STRUCTURES.  Facilities such as bridges, culverts, catch basins, inlets, retaining walls, cribbing, 
storm and sanitary sewer lines, water lines, underdrains, electrical ducts, manholes, handholes, 
lighting fixtures and bases, transformers, flexible and rigid pavements, navigational aids, 
buildings, vaults, and other manmade features that may be encountered in the work and not 
otherwise classified herein. 
 
SUBGRADE.  The soil that forms the pavement foundation. 
 
SUPERINTENDENT.  The Contractor's authorized representative who is present on the work site 
during progress, and is authorized to receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner's Engineer, 
and who shall supervise and direct the construction. 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT.  A written agreement between the Contractor and the Owner 
covering: 1) work that would increase or decrease the total dollar amount of the awarded 
contract, or any major contract item, by more than 25 percent, such increased or decreased 
work being within the scope of the originally awarded contract, or 2) work that is not within the 
scope of the originally awarded contract. 
 
SURETY.  The corporation, partnership, or individual, other than the Contractor, executing 
payment or performance bonds which are furnished to the Owner by the Contractor. 
 
WORK.  The furnishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary or 
convenient to the Contractor's performance of all duties and obligations imposed by the 
contract, plans, and specifications. 
 
WORK DAY (WORKING DAY).  A work day shall be any day other than a legal holiday, Saturday, 
or Sunday on which the normal working forces of the Contractor may proceed with regular 
work for at least 6 hours toward completion of the contract, unless work is suspended for 
causes beyond the Contractor's control.  Saturdays, Sundays and holidays on which the 
Contractor's forces engage in regular work, after obtaining written permission from the Owners 
Engineer, which requires the presence of an inspector, will be considered and applied as 
working days.   
 
WORK WEEK.  A work week shall consist of forty (40) hours beginning on Sunday and ending on 
Saturday.  Should the Contractor engage in work exceeding the forty (40) hour work week 
which requires the presence of an inspector, as determined by the Owners Engineer, the 
Contractor shall reimburse the County for all overtime hours. 
 
OVERTIME HOURS.  Any and all hours worked which are other than a normal work week.  
Contractor must give prior written notification to the Owners Engineer, for any and all overtime 
hours to be worked.  It shall be at the Owner's discretion to provide an inspector at the 
worksite to ensure compliance during any and all overtime hours worked.  
 



 

Page 13 of 81 
 

OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay resulting from overtime hours worked.  
 
OWNER'S INSPECTOR'S OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay to the Owner's Inspector for overtime 
hours worked resulting from the Contractor having received approval for overtime hours.  The 
inspector's overtime pay shall be the actual monies paid by the County and shall be reimbursed 
by the Contractor to the County.  Certified payrolls for the Owner's Inspector's Overtime will be 
submitted to the Contractor.  The cost for the Owner's Inspector's Overtime Pay will be 
deducted from the Contractor's billing. 
 
SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION.  Per Section 105.19 of the ADOT Standard Specifications unless 
modified herein. 
 
 
SECTION 102    BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS: 

  
102-01 THRU 102-03     BLANK 
 
102-04 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS: 
The Owner shall furnish bidders with proposal forms.  All papers bound with or attached to the 
proposal forms are necessary parts of the proposal. The proposal submitted by the bidder must 
include the entire bid packet. 
 
The plans, specifications, and other documents designated in the proposal whether attached or 
not to the proposal are considered as a part of and included with the proposal. 
 
102-05  ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS: 
The Owner reserves the right to refuse to issue a proposal form to a prospective bidder should 
such bidder be in default for any of the following reasons:  
 

(a) Failure to comply with any prequalification regulations of the Owner, if such 
regulations are cited, or otherwise included, in the proposal as a requirement for 
bidding. 

(b) Failure to pay, or satisfactorily settle, all bills due for labor and materials on former 
contracts in force (with the Owner) at the time the Owner issues the proposal to a 
prospective bidder. 

(c) Contractor default under previous contracts with the Owner. 
(d) Unsatisfactory work on previous contracts with the Owner. 
 
 

 
102-06    INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED PROPOSAL QUANTITIES: 
An estimate of quantities of work to be done and materials to be furnished under these 
specifications is given in the proposal.  It is the result of careful calculations and is believed to 
be correct.  It is given only as a basis for comparison of proposals and the award of the contract.  
The Owner does not expressly or by implication agree that the actual quantities involved will 
correspond exactly therewith; nor shall the bidder plead misunderstanding or deception 
because of such estimates of quantities, or of the character, location, or other conditions 
pertaining to the work.  Payment to the Contractor will be made only for the actual quantities 



 

Page 14 of 81 
 

of work performed or materials furnished in accordance with the plans and specifications.  It 
is understood that the quantities may be increased or decreased as hereinafter provided in the 
subsection titled ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES of Section 104-02(A) without in any 
way invalidating the unit bid prices. 
 
102-07    EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE OF WORK: 
The bidder is expected to carefully examine the site of the proposed work, the proposal, plans, 
specifications, and contract forms.  He shall satisfy himself as to the character, quality, and 
quantities of work to be performed, materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements of 
the proposed contract.  The submission of a proposal shall be prima facie evidence that the 
bidder has made such examination and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in 
performing the work and as to the requirements of the proposed contract, plans and 
specifications. 
 
If any person contemplating submitting a bid for the proposed contract is in doubt as to the 
true meaning of any part of the plans, specifications, or other proposed contract documents, or 
finds discrepancies in, or omissions from the drawings or specifications, he may submit to the 
Owner's Engineer a written request for an interpretation or correction thereof.  The person 
submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery.  Any interpretation or 
correction of the contract documents will be made only by addendum duly issued and a copy of 
such addendum will be made or delivered to each person having received a set of such 
documents.  The Owner will not be responsible for any other explanations or interpretations of 
the contract documents. 
 
Any addenda or bulletins issued during the time of bid preparations, forming a part of the 
contract documents furnished the bidder for the preparation of his bid, shall be covered in the 
bid, and shall be made a part of the contract. 
 
102-08 PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL: 
The bidder shall submit his proposal on the forms furnished by the Owner.  No forms shall be 
detached from the bid packet.  The proposal must include the entire bid packet.  All blank 
spaces in the proposal forms must be correctly filled in where indicated for each and every item 
for which a quantity is given.  The bidder shall state the price (written in ink or typed) in 
NUMERALS for which he proposes to do each pay item furnished in the proposal.  The TOTAL 
AGGREGATE AMOUNT bid shall be stated in both WORDS and NUMERALS.  A minimum of one 
(1) original and two (2) copies all with original signatures shall be submitted. 
 
The bidder shall sign his proposal correctly and in ink.  If the proposal is made by an individual, 
his name and mailing address must be shown.  If made by a partnership, the name and mailing 
address of each member of the partnership must be shown.  If made by a corporation, the 
person signing the proposal shall give the name of the state under which the laws of the 
corporation were chartered and the name, titles, and business address of the president, 
secretary, and the treasurer.  Anyone signing a proposal as an agent shall file evidence of his 
authority to do so and that the signature is binding upon the firm or corporation. 
 
102-09    BLANK 
 
 



 

Page 15 of 81 
 

102-10  IRREGULAR PROPOSALS: 
Proposals shall be considered irregular for the following reasons: 
 

(a) If the proposal is on a form other than that furnished by the Owner, or if the Owner's 
form is altered, or if any part of the proposal form is detached. 

(b) If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities 
of any kind which make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous. 

(c) If the proposal does not contain a unit price for each pay item listed in the proposal, 
except in the case of authorized alternate pay items, for which the bidder is not 
required to furnish a unit price. 

(d) If the proposal contains unit prices that are obviously unbalanced. 
(e) If the proposal is not accompanied by the proposal guaranty specified by the Owner. 

 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any irregular proposal and the right to waive 
technicalities if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and conforms to local laws and 
ordinances pertaining to the letting of construction contracts. 
 
102-11  DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL: 
Each proposal submitted shall be placed in a sealed envelope plainly marked with the project 
number, name of project, and name and business address of the bidder on the outside.  When 
sent by mail, preferably registered, or courier, the sealed proposal, marked as indicated above, 
should be enclosed in an additional envelope.  No proposal will be considered unless received 
at the place specified in the advertisement before the time specified.  Proposals received after 
the specified time shall be returned to the bidder unopened. 
 
102-12  PROPOSAL GUARANTY: 
Each proposal shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier’s check or surety bond for ten 
percent (10%) of the amount of the bid included in the proposal as a guarantee that the 
Contractor will enter into a contract to perform the proposed work in accordance with the 
plans and specifications. 
 
102-13  WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS: 
A bidder may withdraw or revise (by withdrawal of one proposal and submission of another) a 
proposal provided that the bidder's request for withdrawal is received by the Owner in writing 
or by telegram before the time specified for receipt of bids.  Revised proposals must be 
received at the place specified in the advertisement before the time specified for receipt of 
bids.   
 
102-14    BLANK 
 
102-15  PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS: 
Proposals shall be opened and read publicly at the time and place specified in the 
advertisement.  Bidders, their authorized agents, and other interested persons are invited to 
attend. 
 
Proposals that have been withdrawn (by written or telegraphic request) or received after the 
time specified shall be returned to the bidder unopened. 
 



 

Page 16 of 81 
 

This will be the only time, until bid award, this information will be revealed. 
 
102-GC1  DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS: 
A bidder shall be considered disqualified for any of the following reasons: 
 

(a) Submitting more than one proposal from the same partnership, firm, or corporation 
under the same or different name. 

(b) Evidence of collusion among bidders.  Bidders participating in such collusion shall be 
disqualified as bidders for any future work of the Owner until any such participating 
bidder has been reinstated by the Owner as a qualified bidder. 

(c) If the bidder is considered to be in "default" for any reason specified in the subsection 
titled ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS of Section 102-05. 

(d)  Failure to submit all required official bid forms. 
 

102-GC2  PROTESTS: 
Only other bidders have the right to protest.  A protest of a proposed award or of an award 
must be filed within ten (10) days after the bid award by the Gila County Board of Supervisors 
and must be sent to the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and must include: 
 

(a) Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
(b) Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
(c) Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
(d) Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of 

relevant documents. 
(e) The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 E. Ash 
Street, Globe, Arizona  85501. 
 
 
SECTION 103    AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT: 
 
103-01 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS: 
After the proposals are publicly opened and read, they will be compared on the basis of the 
summation of the products obtained by multiplying the estimated quantities shown in the 
proposal by the unit bid prices.  If a bidder's proposal contains a discrepancy between unit bid 
prices written in words and unit bid prices written in numbers, the unit price written in words, 
unless obviously incorrect, shall govern. 
 
Until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject a bidder's proposal 
for any of the following reasons: 
 

(a) If the proposal is irregular as specified in the subsection titled IRREGULAR PROPOSALS of 
Section 102-10. 

(b) If the bidder is disqualified for any of the reasons specified in the subsection titled 
DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS of Section 102-GC1. 

 



 

Page 17 of 81 
 

In addition, until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject any or 
all proposals; waive technicalities, if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and is in 
conformance with applicable state and local laws or regulations pertaining to the letting of 
construction contracts; advertise for new proposals; or proceed with the work otherwise.  All 
such actions shall promote the Owner's best interests. 
 
103-02 THRU 103-03    BLANK 
 
103-04  AWARD OF CONTRACT: 
The award of contract, if it is to be awarded, shall be made within sixty (60) calendar days of the 
date specified for publicly opening proposals, unless otherwise specified herein. 
 
This contract will be awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid conforms to the invitation 
and whose bid is the most advantageous to the Owner concerning price, conformity to the 
specifications and other factors. 
 
103-05  CANCELLATION OF AWARD: 
The Owner reserves the right to cancel the award without liability to the bidder, except return 
of proposal guaranty, at any time before a contract has been fully executed by all parties and is 
approved by the Owner in accordance with the subsection titled APPROVAL OF CONTRACT of 
Section 103-GC1. 
 
103-06  RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY: 
All proposal guaranties, except those of the two (2) lowest bidders, will be returned 
immediately after the Owner has made a comparison of bids as hereinbefore specified in the 
subsection titled CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS of Section 103-01.  Proposal guaranties of the 
two lowest bidders will be retained by the Owner until such time as an award is made, at which 
time the unsuccessful bidder's proposal guaranty will be returned as soon as the Owner 
receives the contract bonds as specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT 
BONDS of Section 103-07. 
 
103-07  REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS: 
At the time of the execution of the contract, the successful bidder shall furnish the Owner 
surety bond or bonds which have been fully executed by the bidder and his surety guaranteeing 
the performance of the work and the payment of all legal debts that may be incurred by reason 
of the Contractor's performance of the work.  The surety and the form of the bond or bonds 
shall be acceptable to the Owner.  Unless otherwise specified in this subsection, the surety 
bond or bonds shall be in a sum equal to the full amount of the contract.  All bonds shall 
conform to the requirements of A.R.S. §34-222 and §34-223. § 
 
103-08  EXECUTION OF CONTRACT: 
The successful bidder shall sign (execute) the necessary agreements for entering into the 
contract and return such signed contract to the Owner, along with the fully executed surety 
bond or bonds specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of 
Section 103-07, the Contractor’s Statement of Insurance and an original Certificate of Insurance 
conforming with the requirements of Section 107-14, within 10 calendar days from the date 
mailed or otherwise delivered to the successful bidder.  If the contract is mailed, special 
handling is recommended. 



 

Page 18 of 81 
 

103-GC1  APPROVAL OF CONTRACT: 
Upon receipt of the contract and contract bond or bonds that have been executed by the 
successful bidder, the Owner shall complete the execution of the contract in accordance with 
local laws or ordinances, and return the fully executed contract to the Contractor.  Delivery of 
the fully executed contract to the Contractor shall constitute the Owner's approval to be bound 
by the successful bidder's proposal and the terms of the contract.   
 
 
103-09  FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT: 
Failure of the successful bidder to execute the contract as specified in the subsection titled 
EXECUTION OF CONTRACT of Section 103-08 and furnish an acceptable surety bond or bonds 
within the 10-calendar-day period specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF 
CONTRACT BONDS of Section 103-07 shall be just cause for cancellation of the award and 
forfeiture of the proposal guaranty, not as a penalty, but as liquidation of damages to the 
Owner. 
 
This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511.   
 
SECTION 104     SCOPE OF WORK: 
 
104-01    INTENT OF CONTRACT: 
The intent of the contract is to provide for construction and completion, in every detail, of the 
work described.  It is further intended that the Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, 
equipment, tools, and supplies required to complete the work in accordance with the plans, 
specifications, and terms of the contract. 
 
104-02(A)    ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES:   
The Owner reserves and shall have the right to make such alterations in the work as may be 
necessary or desirable to complete the work originally intended in an acceptable manner.  
Unless otherwise specified herein, the Owner's Engineer shall be and is hereby authorized to 
make such alterations in the work as may increase or decrease the originally awarded contract 
quantities, provided that the aggregate of such alterations does not change the total contract 
cost or the total cost of any major contract item by more than twenty-five percent (25%) (total 
cost being based on the unit prices and estimated quantities in the awarded contract). 
Alterations which do not exceed the twenty-five percent (25%) limitation shall not invalidate 
the contract nor release the surety, and the Contractor agrees to accept payment for such 
alterations as if the altered work had been a part of the original contract.  These alterations 
which are for work within the general scope of the contract shall be covered by "Change 
Orders" issued by the Owner's Engineer.  Change order for altered work shall include 
extensions of contract time where, in the Owner's Engineer's opinion, such extensions are 
commensurate with the amount and difficulty of added work. 
 
Should the aggregate amount of altered work exceed the twenty-five percent (25%) limitation 
hereinbefore specified, such excess altered work shall be covered by supplemental agreement.  
If the Owner and the Contractor are unable to agree on a unit adjustment for any contract item 
that requires a supplemental agreement, the Owner reserves the right to terminate the 
contract with respect to the item and make other arrangements for its completion. 
 



 

Page 19 of 81 
 

All supplemental agreements shall require consent of the Contractor's surety and separate 
performance and payment bonds. 
 
104-02(B)    OMITTED ITEMS: 
The Owner's Engineer may, in the Owner's best interest, omit from the work any contract item, 
except major contract items.  Major contract items may be omitted by a supplemental 
agreement.  Such omission of contract items shall not invalidate any other contract provision or 
requirement. 
 
Should a contract item be omitted or otherwise ordered to be non-performed, the Contractor 
shall be paid for all work performed toward completion of such item prior to the date of the 
order to omit such item.  Payment for work performed shall be in accordance with the 
subsection titled PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS of Section 109-05. 
 

104-02(C)    EXTRA WORK: 
Should acceptable completion of the contract require the Contractor to perform an item of 
work for which no basis of payment has been provided in the original contract or previously 
issued change orders or supplemental agreements, the same shall be called EXTRA WORK.  
Extra work that is within the general scope of the contract shall be covered by written change 
order.  Change orders for such extra work shall contain agreed unit prices for performing the 
change order work in accordance with the requirements specified in the order, and shall 
contain any adjustment to the contract time that, in the Owner's Engineer's opinion, is 
necessary for completion of such extra work. 
 
When determined by the Owner's Engineer to be in the Owner's best interest, he may order the 
Contractor to proceed with extra work by force account as provided in the subsection titled 
PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK of Section 109-04. 
 
Extra work that is necessary for acceptable completion of the project, but is not within the 
general scope of the work covered by the original contract, shall be covered by an agreement 
as hereinbefore defined as a SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT. 
 
Any claim for payment of extra work that is not covered by written agreement (change order or 
supplemental agreement) shall be rejected by the Owner. 
 
 

104-03    DISPUTE & RESOLUTION: 

 Initial Notification & Dispute of Resolution:  As required by these Specifications or any 
time the Contractor believes the action or decision of the County, lack of action by the 
County, or for some other reason will result in or necessitate the revision of the 
Contract, the County Engineer must be notified immediately.  If within two (2) working 
days the identified issue has not been resolved between the Contractor and the County, 
the Contractor shall provide a written notice.  At a minimum, the written notice shall 
provide a description of the nature of the issue, the time and date the problem was 
discovered, and if appropriate, the location of the issue.  After initial written notice has 
been provided, the County Engineer will proceed in accordance with MAG Uniform 
Standard Specifications Subsection 104.2.  In addition to proceeding in accordance with 



 

Page 20 of 81 
 

Subsection 104.2, the Contractor and the County must make every effort to resolve the 
issue identified in the initial notice. Only if the issue cannot be quickly resolved will it be 
necessary to proceed to the next step in accordance with MAG Specs Subsection 110.2.2 
Dispute Resolution. 

 Process for Dispute Resolution:  If the Contractor rejects the decision of the County 
according to Subsection 110.2.2(B), the Contractor may begin the Administration 
Process to resolve the dispute.  All dispute resolutions shall be handled in accordance 
with MAG Spec’s Subsection 110.3, Administrative Process for Dispute Resolution. 

 
The administrative process for the resolution of disputes is sequential in nature and is 
composed of the following levels:  Level I (County Project Manager), Level II (County Engineer, 
Level III (Public Works Director). 
 
The provision set forth in Subsection 110.2 is a contractual obligation assumed by the 
Contractor in executing the Contract.  It is understood that the Contractor will be forever 
barred from recovering against the County if the Contractor fails to give notice of any act or 
failure to act, by the County, or the happening of any event, thing, or occurrence, in accordance 
with Subsection 104.2, Alteration of Work. 
 
Dispute Review Board:   If the Dispute Review Board is utilized as prescribed in Subsection 
110.3.3, the County Engineer shall be notified within thirty (30) days after the Level III 
Representative decision.  The Dispute Review Board is a three (3) member board independent 
of the parties involved in the issue.  The County and Contractor shall each select a member for 
this board.  The third (3rd) member shall be a mutually agreed upon independent member.  This 
Review Board must be selected within fourteen (14) calendar days after notice to the Level III 
Representative.  Each member shall agree to impartially serve the County and Contractor.  Fees 
and expenses of the Board Members are to be shared equally by the County and the 
Contractor.  The Dispute Review Board shall meet within thirty (30) days of the selection of the 
board, unless, by mutual agreement, another date is selected.  The scope of the Dispute Review 
Board shall be restricted and limited to the matters originally presented to the Level III 
Representative for decision or determination and shall include no other matters.  The Board 
shall consider and evaluate the dispute and render a written decision that assigns financial 
responsibilities and allocates adjustments in the contact time, if applicable, within seven (7) 
calendar days after the meeting.  The decision of the Dispute Review Board will be final. 
 
104-04    MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC: 
It is the explicit intention of the contract that the safety of all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian, 
as well as the Contractor's equipment and personnel, is the most important consideration. 
 
With respect to his own operations and the operations of all his subcontractors, the Contractor 
shall provide marking, lighting, and other acceptable means of identifying personnel, 
equipment, vehicles, storage areas, and any work area or condition that may be hazardous to 
the operation of all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian. 
 
When the contract requires the maintenance of vehicular traffic on an existing road, street, or 
highway during the Contractor's performance of work that is otherwise provided for in the 
contract, plans, and specifications, the Contractor shall keep such road, street, or highway open 
to all traffic and shall provide such maintenance as may be required to accommodate traffic.  



 

Page 21 of 81 
 

The Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, warning signs, flaggers, and other 
traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the MUTCD, unless otherwise specified 
herein.  The Contractor shall also construct and maintain in a safe condition any temporary 
connections necessary for ingress to and egress from abutting property or intersecting roads, 
streets or highways.  Unless otherwise specified herein, the Contractor will not be required to 
furnish snow removal for such existing road, street, or highway. 
 
The Contractor shall make his own estimate of all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals 
necessary for providing the maintenance of pedestrian and vehicular traffic as specified in this 
subsection. 
 
104-05    RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK: 
Should the Contractor encounter any materials such as (but not restricted to) sand, stone, 
gravel, slag, or concrete slabs within the established lines, grades, or grading sections, the use 
of which is intended by the terms of the contract to be either embankment or waste, he may at 
his option either: 
 

(a) Use such material in another contract item, providing such use is approved by the 
Owner's Engineer and is in conformance with the contract specifications applicable to 
such use; or,  

(b) Remove such material from the site, upon written approval of the Owner's Engineer; 
or,  

(c) Use such material for his own temporary construction on site; or,  
(d) Use such material as intended by the terms of the contract. 

 
Should the Contractor wish to exercise option (a), (b), or (c), he shall request the Owner's 
Engineer's approval in advance of such use.  Should the Owner's Engineer approve the 
Contractor's request to exercise option (a), (b), or (c), the Contractor shall be paid for the 
excavation or removal of such material at the applicable contract price.  The Contractor shall 
replace, at his own expense, such removed or excavated material with an agreed equal volume 
of material that is acceptable for use in constructing embankment, backfills, or otherwise to the 
extent that such replacement material is needed to complete the contract work.  The 
Contractor shall not be charged for his use of such material so used in the work or removed 
from the site. 
 
Should the Owner's Engineer approve the Contractor's exercise of option (a), the Contractor 
shall be paid, at the applicable contract price, for furnishing and installing such material in 
accordance with requirements of the contract item in which the material is used. 
 
It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall make no claim for delays by reason of his 
exercise of option (a), (b), or (c). 
 
The Contractor shall not excavate, remove, or otherwise disturb any materials, structure, or 
part of a structure which is located outside the lines, grades, or grading sections established for 
the work, except where such excavation or removal is provided for in the contract, plans, or 
specifications. 
 
104-06 THRU 104-07    BLANK 



 

Page 22 of 81 
 

 
104-08    PREVENTION OF AIR AND NOISE POLLUTION:    Per Section 104.08 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
104-09    PROTECTION OF LANDSCAPE DEFACEMENT; PROTECTION OF STREAMS, LAKES AND 
RESERVOIRS:    Per Section 104.09 of the ADOT Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 

104-10    CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK: 
Until the Owner's Engineer's final written acceptance of the entire completed work, excepting 
only those portions of the work accepted in accordance with the subsection titled PARTIAL 
ACCEPTANCE of Section 105-20(A), the Contractor shall have the charge and care thereof and 
shall take every precaution against injury or damage to any part due to the action of the 
elements or from any other cause, whether arising from the execution or from the non-
execution of the work.  The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore, and make good all injuries 
or damages to any portion of the work occasioned by any of the above causes before final 
acceptance and shall bear the expense thereof except damage to the work due to 
unforeseeable causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence of the 
Contractor, including but not restricted to acts of God such as earthquake, tidal wave, tornado, 
hurricane or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature, or acts of the public enemy or of 
governmental authorities. 
 
If the work is suspended for any cause whatever, the Contractor shall be responsible for the 
work and shall take such precautions necessary to prevent damage to the work.  The Contractor 
shall provide for normal drainage and shall erect necessary temporary structures, signs, or 
other facilities at his expense. 
 
104-11 thru 104-13    BLANK 
 
104-14    FINAL CLEAN UP:     
Before final acceptance, all private or public property and grounds occupied by the Contractor 
in connection with the work shall be cleaned of all rubbish, excess materials, temporary 
structures and equipment, and all parts of the work shall be left in a condition acceptable to the 
Owner’s Engineer. 
 

 
SECTION 105    CONTROL OF WORK: 
 
105-01    AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER'S ENGINEER:   
The Owner shall decide any and all questions which may arise as to the quality and acceptability 
of materials furnished, based upon the Contractor's Engineer's certification for the quality and 
acceptability work performed, and as to the manner of performance and rate of progress of the 
work.  He shall decide all questions which may arise as to the interpretation of the 
specifications or plans relating to the work, the fulfillment of the contract on the part of the 
Contractor, and the rights of different contractors on the project.  The Owner shall review and 
determine, based upon the Contractor's Engineer's certifications on amounts, quality of work 
and materials furnished, the amount and quality of the several kinds of work performed and 
materials furnished which are to be paid for under contract. 
 



 

Page 23 of 81 
 

105-02 THRU 105-03    BLANK 
 
105-04    CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS: 
All work and materials furnished shall be the full responsibility of the Contractor and shall be in 
reasonably close conformity with the lines, grades, grading section, cross sections, dimensions, 
material requirements, and testing requirements that are specified (including specified 
tolerances) in the contract, plans, or specifications, and shall be certified by the Contractor's 
Engineer. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product not within 
reasonably close conformity with the plans and specifications, but that the portion of the work 
affected will, in his opinion, result in a finished product having a level of safety, economy, 
durability and workmanship acceptable to the Owner, he will advise the Contractor of his 
determination that the affected work be accepted and remain in place.  In this event, the 
Owner will document his determination and recommend to the Contractor a basis of 
acceptance which will provide for an adjustment in the contract price for the affected portion 
of the work.  The Owner's determination and recommended contract price adjustments will be 
based on good engineering judgment and on such tests or retests by the Contractor's Engineer, 
and at the Contractor's expense, of the affected work as are, in his opinion, needed.  Changes in 
the contract price shall be covered by contract modifications (change order or supplemental 
agreement) as applicable. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product are not in 
reasonably close conformity with the plans and specifications and have resulted in an 
unacceptable finished product, the affected work or materials shall be removed and replaced or 
otherwise corrected by and at the expense of the Contractor in accordance with the Owner’s 
written orders. 
 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" shall not be 
construed as waiving the Contractor's responsibility to complete the work in accordance with 
the contract, plans and specifications.  The terms shall not be construed as waiving the Owner's 
right to insist on strict compliance with the requirements of the contract, plans, and 
specifications during the Contractor's prosecution of the work, when, in the Owner's opinion, 
such compliance is essential to provide an acceptable finished portion of the work. 
 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" is also intended to 
provide the Owner with the authority to use good engineering judgment in his determinations 
as to acceptance of work that is not in strict conformity but will provide a finished product 
equal to or better than that intended by the requirements of the contract, plans and 
specifications. 
 
105-05    BLANK 
 
105-06    COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS: 
The contract, plans, specifications, and all referenced standards cited are essential parts of the 
contract requirements.  A requirement occurring in one is as binding as though occurring in all.  
They are intended to be complementary and to describe and provide for a complete work.  In 
case of discrepancy or conflict, the order in which they govern shall be as follows: 



 

Page 24 of 81 
 

 
(A) Supplemental Agreements 
(B) Special Provisions 
(C) Project Plans 
(D) Standard Drawings 
(E) Standard Specifications 

 
The Contractor shall not take advantage of any apparent error or omission on the plans or 
specifications.  In the event the Contractor discovers any apparent error or discrepancy, he shall 
immediately call upon the Owner for his interpretation and decision, and such decision shall be 
final. 
 
105-07    COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR:    Per Section 105.07 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
105-08    COOPERATION WITH UTILITY COMPANIES:    Per Section 105.08 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
105-09    COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS:    Per Section 105.09 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 

105-10    CONSTRUCTION STAKES, LINES AND GRADES:    Per Section 105.10 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
105-11    AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS: 
Inspectors employed by the Owner shall be authorized to inspect all work done and all material 
furnished.  Such inspection may extend to all or any part of the work and to the preparation, 
fabrication, or manufacture of the materials to be used.  Inspectors are not authorized to 
revoke, alter, or waive any provision of the contract.  Inspectors are not authorized to issue 
instructions contrary to the plans and specifications or to act as foreman for the Contractor. 
 
Inspectors employed by the Owner are authorized to notify the Contractor or his representative 
of any failure of the work or materials to conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, or 
specifications and to reject such nonconforming materials in question until such issues can be 
referred to the Owner's Engineer for his decision. 
 
105-12    INSPECTION OF WORK:    Per Section 105.12 of the ADOT Standard Specifications 
unless modified herein. 
 
105-13    REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK: 
All work which does not conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications 
will be considered unacceptable, unless otherwise determined acceptable by the Owner as 
provided in the subsection titled CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS of Section 
105-04. 
 
Unacceptable work, whether the result of poor workmanship, use of defective materials, 
damage through carelessness, or any other cause found to exist prior to the final acceptance of 
the work, shall be removed immediately and replaced in an acceptable manner in accordance 



 

Page 25 of 81 
 

with the provisions of the subsection titled CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK of 
Section 104-10. 
 
No work shall be done without lines and grades having been given by the Contractor's Engineer 
and authorized by the Owner.  Work done contrary to the instructions of the Owner, work done 
beyond the lines shown on the plans or as given, except as herein specified, or any extra work 
done without authority will be considered as unauthorized and will not be paid for under the 
provisions of the contract.  Work so done may be ordered removed or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense. 
 
Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply as soon as possible with any order of the 
Owner made under the provisions of this subsection, the Owner will have authority to cause 
unacceptable work to be remedied or removed and replaced and unauthorized work to be 
removed and to deduct the costs (incurred by the Owner) from any monies due or to become 
due the Contractor. 
 
105-14    LOAD RESTRICTIONS:    Per Section 105.14 of the ADOT Standard Specifications unless 
modified herein. 
 
105-15    MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION: 
The Contractor shall maintain the work during construction and until the work is accepted.  This 
maintenance shall constitute continuous and effective work prosecuted day by day, with 
adequate equipment and forces so that the work is maintained in satisfactory condition at all 
times. 
 
In the case of a contract for the placing of a course upon a course or subgrade previously 
constructed, the Contractor shall maintain the previous course or subgrade during all 
construction operations. 
 
All costs of maintenance work during construction and before the project is accepted shall be 
included in the unit prices bid on the various contract items, and the Contractor will not be paid 
an additional amount for such work. 
 
105-16    FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK: 
Should the Contractor at any time fail to maintain the work as provided in the subsection titled 
MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION of Section 105-15, the Owner shall immediately notify 
the Contractor of such noncompliance.  Such notification shall specify a reasonable time within 
which the Contractor shall be required to remedy such unsatisfactory maintenance conditions.  
The time specified will give due consideration to the emergency that exists. 
 
Should the Contractor fail to respond to the Owner’s notification, the Owner may suspend any 
work necessary for the Owner to correct such unsatisfactory maintenance condition, depending 
on the emergency that exists.  Any maintenance cost incurred by the Owner shall be deducted 
from monies due or to become due the Contractor. 
 
105-17    BLANK 
 
 



 

Page 26 of 81 
 

105-18    OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK TO TRAFFIC: 
Should it be necessary for the Contractor to complete portions of the contract work for the 
beneficial occupancy of the Owner prior to completion of the entire contract, such "phasing" of 
the work shall be specified herein and indicated on the plans.  When so specified, the 
Contractor shall complete such portions of the work on or before the date specified or as 
otherwise specified.  The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the difficulties involved in 
arranging his work to permit such beneficial occupancy by the Owner as described below: 
 
Upon completion of any portion of the work listed above, with certification of the work by the 
Contractor's Engineer, such portion shall be accepted by the Owner in accordance with the 
subsection titled PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 105-20(A). 
 
No portion of the work may be opened by the Contractor for public use until ordered by the 
Owner's Engineer in writing.  Should it become necessary to open a portion of the work to 
public traffic on a temporary or intermittent basis, such openings shall be made when, in the 
opinion of the Owner's Engineer, such portion of the work is in an acceptable condition to 
support the intended traffic.  Temporary or intermittent openings are considered to be 
inherent in the work and shall not constitute either acceptance of the portion of the work so 
opened or a waiver of any provision of the contract.  Any damage to the portion of the work so 
opened that is not attributable to traffic which is permitted by the Owner shall be repaired by 
the Contractor at his expense. 
 
The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the inherent difficulties involved in completing 
the work under the conditions herein described and shall not claim any added compensation by 
reason of delay or increased cost due to opening a portion of the contract work. 
 
105-19    BLANK 
 
105-20    ACCEPTANCE: 
 
     (A)    PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE: 
If at any time during the prosecution of the project the Contractor substantially completes a 
usable unit or portion of the work, the occupancy of which will benefit the Owner, he may 
request the Owner to make final inspection of that unit.  If the Owner finds upon inspection 
that the unit has been satisfactorily completed in compliance with the contract, and certified to 
be in compliance by the Contractor's Engineer, he may accept it as being completed, and the 
Contractor may be relieved of further responsibility for that unit, subject to stated guarantees.  
Such partial acceptance and beneficial occupancy by the Owner shall not void or alter any 
provision of the contract. 
 
     (B)    FINAL ACCEPTANCE: 
Upon due notice from the Contractor of presumptive completion of the entire project, and 
certification of completion and compliance to the approved plans by the Contractor's Engineer, 
the Owner will make an inspection.  If all construction provided for and contemplated by the 
contract is found to be completed in accordance with the contract, plans, and specifications, 
such inspection shall constitute the final inspection.  The Owner shall notify the Contractor in 
writing of final acceptance as of the date of the final inspection. 
 



 

Page 27 of 81 
 

If, however, the inspection discloses any work, in whole or in part, as being unsatisfactory, the 
Owner will give the Contractor the necessary instructions for correction of same, and the 
Contractor shall immediately comply with and execute such instructions.  Upon correction of 
the work, and recertification by the Contractor's Engineer, another inspection will be made 
which shall constitute the final inspection, provided the work has been satisfactorily completed.  
In such event, the Owner will make the final acceptance and notify the Contractor in writing of 
this acceptance as of the date of final inspection. 
 
105-GC1  CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE: 
Prior to commencement of the work the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Owner for 
review, a written schedule covering the general sequence of the work to be performed on a bi-
weekly basis.  The work schedule, after review and acceptance by the Owner, shall not be 
changed without the written consent of the Owner.  The Contractor shall assume the full 
responsibility for performing the work in an orderly procedure under the Contract. 
 
105-GC2  NEGOTIATIONS: 
It is the intent of the County to award a Contract to the lowest responsible Bidder provided the 
Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bid Documents, is judged 
reasonable, and does not exceed the funds available. 
 

(a)    The County shall have the authority to negotiate with the lowest bidder to reduce the 
scope of the Project in the event that all responsive bids exceed the Project budget. 

 
Bids shall be made available for public inspection by appointment only after the award has 
been made by the Board of Supervisors.  The Board of Supervisors has the sole authority to 
award bids and any statement by any employee of the County is not binding on the Board. 
 
The following criteria will be considered a part of the evaluation process: 
 

(a)   Competence and responsibility of Bidder. 
(b)   Qualifications and experience of Bidder. 
(c)   Past performance of Bidder. 
(d)   Conformity with bidding requirements and general considerations. 
(e)   Record of timely completion of punch lists on past projects. 

 
Negotiations With Individual Contractors:  Gila County Public Works Division shall establish 
procedures and schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of one (1) Contractor’s Price 
or any information derived from competing Bid Prices or any information derived from 
competing Bids is prohibited. 
 

(a)    Any response to a request for clarification of a bid shall be in writing. 
(b)    The Public Works Division shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 
following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 
 

(a) Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with 
responsible Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or 



 

Page 28 of 81 
 

Contract Award. 
(b) Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Public Works Director to 

enter into exclusive negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose bid is 
determined in the selection process to be the most Advantageous to Gila County. 

 
Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may be 
conducted without requiring previous concurrent Negotiations. 
 

(a) A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract 
Award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful bidder. 

If exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County may enter 
into exclusive Negotiations with the next highest ranked Contractor without the need to repeat 
the formal Solicitation process. 
 
105-21    CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES: 
If for any reason the Contractor deems that additional compensation is due him for work or 
materials not clearly provided for in the contract, plans, or specifications or previously 
authorized as extra work, he shall notify the Owner in writing of his intention to claim such 
additional compensation before he begins the work on which he bases the claim.  If such 
notification is not given or the Owner is not afforded proper opportunity by the Contractor for 
keeping strict account of actual cost as required, then the Contractor hereby agrees to waive 
any claim for such additional compensation.  Such notice by the Contractor and the fact that 
the Owner has kept account of the cost of the work shall not in any way be construed as 
proving or substantiating the validity of the claim.  When the work on which the claim for 
additional compensation is based has been completed, the Contractor shall, within 10 calendar 
days, submit his written claim, along with certification by the Contractor's Engineer, to the 
Owner for consideration in accordance with local laws or ordinances. 
 
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as a waiver of the Contractor's right to dispute 
final payment based on differences in measurements or computations. 
 
SECTION 106    CONTROL OF MATERIAL:    Per Section 106 of the ADOT Standard Specifications 
unless modified herein. 
 

106.04(A)  General:  the fourth and fifth paragraphs of the Standard Specifications are revised 
to read: 
The sampling, testing, and acceptance of materials shall be in accordance with the 
requirements of the specifications, in conjunction with the following: 

 The ADOT Materials Testing Manual. 

 The ADOT Materials Policy and Procedure Directives Manual. 

 Applicable Federal, AASHTO, or ASTM specifications or test designations. 

 Applicable specifications or test designations of other nationally recognized 
organizations. 

 
Unless otherwise specified, whenever a reference is made to an Arizona Test Method or an 
ADOT Materials Policy and Procedure Directive, it shall mean the test method or policy and 
procedure directive in effect on the bid opening date. 
 



 

Page 29 of 81 
 

106.04(C)(2)   Quality Control Laboratory:  the first paragraph is revised to read: 
All field and laboratory sampling and testing shall be performed by a laboratory or laboratories 
approved by the Department.  The requirements for approval of laboratories are specified in 
ADOT Materials Policy and Procedure Directive No. 19, “ADOT System for the Evaluation of 
Testing Laboratories”.  Approved laboratories, and the test methods for which they are 
approved to perform, are listed in the “ADOT Directory of Approved Materials Testing 
Laboratories”.  Approved test methods listed in the “ADOT Directory of Approved Materials 
Testing Laboratories” do not include field sampling and testing procedures.  When field 
sampling and testing procedures are performed, the appropriate valid Arizona Technical Testing 
Institute (ATTI) and/or American Concrete Institute (ACI) certification(s) are required.  ADOT 
Materials Policy and Procedure Directive No. 19, “ADOT System for the Evaluation of Testing 
Laboratories” and the “ADOT Directory of Approved Materials Testing Laboratories” may be 
obtained on the internet from the ADOT Materials Quality Assurance Section website. 
 
106.04(C)(6)  Weekly Quality Control Reports:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
The contractor shall submit Weekly Quality Control Reports to the Engineer.  The weekly 
reports shall be complete and accurate, and shall state the types of work which have been 
performed during the report period.  The report shall also include the process control measures 
taken to assure quality.  The report shall provide sample identification information for materials 
tested during the report period, including sample number, date sampled, sample location, first 
and last name of person obtaining sample, and original source of material.  The report shall also 
provide the results for all required tests and any retests, corrective actions, and other 
information relevant to quality control.  The report shall include daily diaries for each day of 
testing, a weekly summary, the ADOT TRACS number, and the testing laboratory’s project 
identification number. 
 
Except as stated in the following paragraph, the weekly quality control report shall be prepared 
using standard forms provided by the Department.  The standard forms are available on the 
Department's website at www.azdot.gov.  After accessing the Department’s website, select 
“Business”, “Engineering and Construction”, “Construction”, “Contractors’ Information”, 
“Forms and Documents”, and then “Weekly Quality Control Forms”.  Except for the daily 
diaries, all documentation and information required on the forms shall be typed.  Daily diaries 
may be hand-written if acceptable to the Engineer.  The weekly report shall be submitted to the 
Engineer in paper form with a transmittal letter signed by the contractor’s quality control 
manager. 
 
In lieu of using the standard weekly quality control forms available on the Department’s 
website, the contractor or testing laboratory may prepare the weekly report using proprietary 
or other software, if acceptable to the Engineer, provided that all required information is 
included, the format is comparable to the Department’s standard format, and the report is 
submitted in paper form with the required transmittal letter. 
 
The report period shall end at midnight of each Friday, and the report shall be submitted to the 
Engineer no later than 5:00 p.m. of the following Wednesday.  The Engineer will verify that the 
report is timely, complete and accurate. 
 
Reports that are not submitted by the above-referenced deadline shall be considered 
delinquent.  Reports that are submitted by the above-referenced deadline, but are not 



 

Page 30 of 81 
 

complete and accurate, shall also be considered delinquent.  In either case monies shall be 
deducted from the contractor’s monthly estimate in accordance with the requirements for 
Contractor Quality Control, as specified in these special provisions. 
 
106.05    Certificates:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
(A)    General: 
The contractor shall submit to the Engineer an original or copy of either a Certificate of 
Compliance or a Certificate of Analysis, as required, prior to the use of any materials or 
manufactured assemblies for which the specifications require that such a certificate be 
furnished. 
 
Certificates shall be specifically identified as either a "Certificate of Compliance" or a 
"Certificate of Analysis". 
 
The Engineer may permit the use of certain materials or manufactured assemblies prior to, or 
without, sampling and testing if accompanied by a Certificate of Compliance or Certificate of 
Analysis, as herein specified.  Materials or manufactured assemblies for which a certificate is 
furnished may be sampled and tested at any time, and, if found not in conformity with the 
requirements of the plans and the specifications, will be subject to rejection, whether in place 
or not. 
 
Certificates of Compliance and Certificates of Analysis shall comply with the requirements 
specified herein, the ADOT Materials Testing Manual, and applicable ADOT Materials Policy and 
Procedure Directives. 
 
(B)     Certificate of Compliance: 
A Certificate of Compliance shall be submitted on the manufacturers or suppliers official 
letterhead, and shall contain the following information: 
 
(1)  The current name, address, and phone number of the manufacturer or supplier of the 
material. 
(2)  A description of the material supplied. 
(3)  Quantity of material represented by the certificate. 
(4)  Means of material identification, such as label, lot number, or marking. 
(5)  A statement that the material complies in all respects with the requirements of the cited 
specifications.  Certificates shall state compliance with the cited specification, such as AASHTO 
M 320, ASTM C 494; or specific table or subsection of the Arizona Department of 
Transportation Standard Specifications or Special Provisions.  Certificates may cite both, if 
applicable. 
(6)  A statement that the individual identified in item seven below has the legal authority to 
bind the manufacturer or the supplier of the material. 
(7)  The name, title, and signature of the responsible individual.  The date of the signature shall 
also be given. 
 
Each of the first six items specified above shall be completed prior to the signing of the 
certificate as defined in item seven.  No certificate will be accepted that has been altered, 
added to, or changed in any way after the authorized signature has been affixed to the original 
certificate.  However, notations of a clarifying nature, such as project number, contractor, or 



 

Page 31 of 81 
 

quantity shipped are acceptable, provided the basic requirements of the certificate are not 
affected. 
 
A copy or facsimile reproduction of the original certificate will be acceptable; however, the 
original certificate shall be made available upon request. 
 
(C)     Certificate of Analysis: 
A Certificate of Analysis shall include all the information required for a Certificate of Compliance 
and, in addition, shall include the results of all tests required by the specifications. 
 
106.15     Domestic Materials and Products: 
Steel and iron materials and products used on all projects shall comply with the current “Buy 
America” requirements of 23 CFR 635.410. 
 
All manufacturing processes to produce steel and iron products used on this project shall occur 
in the United States.  Raw materials used in manufacturing the steel and iron products may be 
foreign or domestic.  Steel or iron not meeting these requirements may be used in products on 
this project provided that the invoiced cost to the contractor for such steel products 
incorporated into the work does not exceed either one-tenth of one percent of the total (final) 
contract cost or $2,500, whichever is greater. 
 
Any process which involves the application of a coating to iron or steel shall occur in the United 
States.  These processes include epoxy coating, galvanizing, painting, or any other coating which 
protects or enhances the value of covered material. 
 
The requirements specified herein shall only apply to steel and iron products permanently 
incorporated into the project.  “Buy America” provisions do not apply to temporary steel items, 
such as sheet piling, temporary bridges, steel scaffolding and falsework, or to materials which 
remain in place at the contractor’s convenience. 
 
The contractor shall furnish the Engineer with Certificates of Compliance, conforming to the 
requirements of Subsection 106.05, which state that steel or iron products incorporated in the 
project meet the requirements specified.  Certificates of Compliance shall also certify that all 
manufacturing processes to produce steel or iron products, and any application of a coating to 
iron or steel, occurred in the United States. 
 
Convict-produced materials may not be used unless the materials were produced prior to July 
1, 1991 at a prison facility specifically producing convict-made materials for Federal-aid 
construction projects. 
 

SECTION 107    LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC: 
 
107-01  LAWS TO BE OBSERVED: 
The Contractor shall keep fully informed of all Federal and State laws, all local laws, ordinances, 
and regulations and all orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or 
authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on the work, or which in any 
way affect the conduct of the work.  He shall at all times observe and comply with all such laws, 
ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees; and shall protect and indemnify the Owner and all 



 

Page 32 of 81 
 

his officers, agents, or servants against any claim or liability arising from or based on the 
violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, whether by himself or his 
employees. 
 
Laws and Ordinances:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona 
and Gila County.  The Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local 
licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  
The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the 
Act. 
 
107-02    PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES:    Per Section 107.02 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
Before the Contractor or any subcontractor begins work the Contractor must apply for and 
obtain a Right of Way (ROW) use permit from the Gila County Public Works Engineering 
Department.  A ROW permit application can be obtained at either the Globe or Payson Public 
Works office or from the Gila County website at the following link 
http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/public_works/engineering/index.php.  A traffic 
control plan applicable to the work being performed and in accordance with MUTCD standards 
must be attached to the permit application when submitted.  Gila County will waive the fee for 
the ROW permit. 
 
107-03    PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES:    Per Section 107.03 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
107-04 THRU 107-06    BLANK 
 
107-07    SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS: 
The Contractor shall provide and maintain in a neat, sanitary condition such accommodations 
for the use of his employees as required to comply with the requirements of the State and local 
boards of health, or of other bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction.  Contractor is responsible 
for supplying toilet and hand washing facilities at work site. 
 
Attention is directed to Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations concerning 
construction safety and health standards.  The Contractor shall not require any worker to work 
in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his 
health or safety as determined under the Arizona Occupational Safety and Health Standards for 
Construction, adopted by the Industrial Commission of Arizona pursuant to the Authority in 
A.R.S. §23-410. 
 
Before the Contractor or any subcontractor begins work on the project they must read the Gila 
County Public Works Division Safety & Loss Control booklet and sign an acknowledgement 
form. 
 
Contractor Safety Tailgate Meetings:  Contractor shall conduct tailgate safety meetings 
regularly to ensure that safety on the job is given priority.  
 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/government/public_works/engineering/index.php


 

Page 33 of 81 
 

Accident/Injury Procedure:  Contractor shall contact the Owner and the Gila County Risk 
Management Division within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence of an accident or injury 
arising out of the Contractor’s work under this contract. 
 
Unsafe Acts:  Contractor employees are encouraged to abate or remedy any unsafe act or 
condition which may arise in the course of Contractor’s work under this contract. 
 
Safety Audits:  The County reserves the right to conduct safety audits at the job site and stop 
unsafe acts at any time.  In addition, the County shall be notified should any OSHA inspection 
occur at a County job site. 
 
107-08    PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY: 
The Contractor shall control his operations and those of his subcontractors and all suppliers, to 
assure the least inconvenience to the traveling public.  Under all circumstances, safety shall be 
the most important consideration. 
 

All work shall be performed by Federal OSHA Standards. 

 
The Contractor shall maintain the free and unobstructed movement of vehicular traffic with 
respect to his own operations and those of his subcontractor and all suppliers in accordance 
with the subsection titled MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC of Section 104-04 hereinbefore specified. 
 
107-09    BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS: 
The Contractor shall furnish, erect and maintain all barricades, warning signs, and markings for 
hazards necessary to protect the public and the work.  When used during periods of darkness, 
such barricades, warning signs and hazard markings shall be suitably illuminated. 
 
For vehicular and pedestrian traffic, the Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, 
warning signs, lights and other traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the 
MUTCD. 
 
The Contractor shall furnish and erect all barricades, warning signs and markings for hazards 
prior to commencing work which required such erection and shall maintain the barricades, 
warning signs, and markings for hazards until their dismantling is directed by the Owner's 
Engineer. 
 
107-10    BLANK 
 
 
107-11    PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY AND LANDSCAPE:    Per Section 
107.11 of the ADOT Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 

107-12    BLANK 
 
107-13    RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS: 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
Gila County and their respective agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and 
employees from and against any and all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, 



 

Page 34 of 81 
 

or losses relating to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from the 
performance of the Work.  Contractor’s duty to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
indemnitee and their respective agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and 
employees shall arise in connection with any and all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, 
claims, workers compensation claims, unemployment claims, damages, losses or expenses 
(including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court costs and the cost of appellate proceedings) 
that are attributable to personal or bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, 
impairment or destruction of property including the loss of use resulting thereon, caused by 
any act or omission of the Contractor, a subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed 
by them or for whose acts they may be liable.  The amount and type of insurance coverage 
requirements set forth in the Contract shall in no way be construed as limiting the scope of this 
indemnity. 
 
107-14    CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE: 
Prior to the execution of the contract, the Contractor shall file with the Owner's Engineer a 
certificate or certificates of insurance executed by an insurance company doing business in the 
State of Arizona and acceptable to the Owner's Engineer.  The certificate of insurance shall 
state that, with respect to the contract awarded the Contractor; the Contractor carries 
insurance in accordance with the requirements of this subsection. 
 
On all policies Gila County shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
All insurance policies or certificates shall include an endorsement providing for thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the Owner's Engineer of any cancellation or reduction of coverage.  The 
Contractor shall cease operations on the occurrence of any such cancellation or reduction and 
shall not resume operations until the required insurance is in force and new certificates of 
insurance have been filed with the Owner's Engineer.  The insurance policy or policies provided 
by the Contractor may contain deductibles not to exceed $500 for any one accident or 
occurrence excluding bodily injury. 
 
In addition to statutory Worker's Compensation insurance, the Contractor, with respect to all 
operations performed by himself or his subcontractors, shall have in force regular public liability 
insurance in not less than the following amount:  $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability 
per Occurrence. 
 
Such insurance shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for underground damage to 
facilities because of drilling and excavating with mechanical equipment, and for collapse of or 
structural injury to structures or utilities because of blasting or explosion, excavation, tunneling, 
pile driving, cofferdam work or demolition. 
 

With respect to the operation of all motor vehicles, including those hired or borrowed, used in 
connection with the contract, the Contractor shall have in force automobile liability insurance 
in not less than the following amount:  $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability per 
Occurrence. 
 
107-GC1   THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE: 
It is specifically agreed between the parties executing the contract that it is not intended by any 
of the provisions of any part of the contract to create to the public or any member thereof a 



 

Page 35 of 81 
 

third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the contract to maintain a suit for 
personal injuries or property damage pursuant to the terms or provisions of the contract. 
 
107-15    CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY PROPERTY AND SERVICES:     
 
(A)  General: 
The contractor's attention is directed to the requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes Section 
40-360.21 through .29 requiring all parties excavating in public streets, alleys or utility 
easements to first secure the location of all underground facilities in the vicinity of the 
excavation. 
 
The contractor shall contact the owners of the various utilities prior to the start of construction 
and shall obtain from them any information pertaining to existing utilities that will either 
supplement information shown on the project plans or will correct any such information that 
may be incorrect.  The contractor shall furnish the Engineer with evidence that the contractor 
has contacted the utility companies.  Such evidence shall be submitted at the preconstruction 
conference, and shall include a copy of the information received from each utility as a result of 
such contacts. 
 
If the contractor learns from either the owner of the utility or from any other source of the 
existence and location of properties of railway, telegraph, telephone, fiber optics cable, water, 
sewer, septic tanks or systems, electric, gas and cable television companies either omitted from 
or shown incorrectly on the project plans, the contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer 
and shall not disturb the utilities.  Relocation or adjustment of such utilities, if deemed 
necessary, will be either performed by others or shall be performed by the contractor in 
accordance with the provisions of Subsection 104-02(C). 
 
The contractor shall cooperate with the owners of any underground or overhead utility lines in 
their removal and rearrangement operations in order that these operations may progress in a 
reasonable manner, that duplication of rearrangement work may be reduced to a minimum and 
that services rendered by these parties will not be unnecessarily interrupted. 
 
Temporary or permanent relocation or adjustment of any utility line or service connection 
desired by the contractor for its convenience shall be its responsibility.  The contractor shall 
obtain the approval of both the Engineer and the utility company and upon approval shall make 
all necessary arrangements with the utility company and shall bear all costs in connection with 
such relocation or adjustment.  The contractor shall also submit a Sewer Discharge Prevention 
Plan, as specified in Subsection 107-15(C)(1), describing each anticipated relocation or 
adjustment involving existing sanitary sewer lines.  No work on a particular facility shall begin 
until all approvals for that facility have been received. 
 
(B)  Contractor Qualifications for Water and Sewer Lines: 
Breakage of active sanitary sewer lines may result in the potential spread of disease, 
contamination of the site and any adjacent bodies of water, and other hazards to the public.  
Substantial cleanup costs may be associated with such breakage, as well as possible major civil 
and/or criminal penalties.  Therefore, the Engineer will closely consider the qualifications of any 
personnel proposed by the contractor to oversee or perform work involving active sanitary 
sewer lines.  The contractor shall not assume that the personnel assigned to perform such work 



 

Page 36 of 81 
 

will be acceptable to the Department merely because they meet the experience requirements 
listed herein. 
 
The contractor, or the subcontracting firm assigned to perform the water and sewer work, shall 
have a minimum of five years of experience in the installation and construction of underground 
large diameter (18-inch or above) water and sewer improvements. 
 
In addition, the key personnel assigned by the contractor to perform any work on water or 
sewer lines, whether from the prime contractor or a subcontracting firm, shall also have at least 
five years of experience in the installation and construction of underground large diameter (18-
inch or above) water and sewer improvements.  A minimum of two such people shall be 
designated by the contractor.  The designated personnel may have the title of foreman or 
superintendent; however, at least one of these people shall be present at all times at the 
location of any work being performed at or near an active sanitary sewer line. 
 
For both the firm and the key personnel, the experience shall include working with and around 
water and sewer utility lines that are in service.  The contractor shall submit the following 
documentation to the Engineer for review and approval: 
 

(1)  A list indicating that the designated key project personnel have at least five years of 
applicable experience, as specified above.  The list shall be accompanied with resumes 
for each of the key people.  The resumes shall include the following information, and 
demonstrate compliance with the specified requirements: 

 
(a)  Detailed relevant experience for a minimum of two projects, including 
project description, date of work, actual work performed by the individual, and 
references (a minimum of one for each project). 

 
(b)  Level of applicable formal training. 

 
(c)  Number of years of relevant experience in performing like construction. 

 
(2)  A list of water and sewer construction projects completed by the firm performing 
the water or sewer work, as specified above, indicating a minimum of five years of 
applicable experience.  Include the dates of work, type of work, description of the 
project, amount of work performed by the contractor/subcontractor, and the name and 
phone number of a contact with the owning company or agency for which the work was 
completed. 

 
(3)  List of equipment that will be used for this project.  The list shall include, as a 
minimum, equipment type, date of manufacture, and if contractor-owned or rented. 

 
(4)  A list of all violations and citations in the past five years of applicable water and 
wastewater laws and statutes for both the prime contractor and the subcontractor 
responsible for the utility work. 
 



 

Page 37 of 81 
 

The contractor shall submit this documentation to the Engineer for approval at least 21 
calendar days prior to any anticipated work involving active sanitary sewer lines, whether new 
or existing. 
 
(C)  Protection of Existing Utility Lines: 
At points where the contractor's operations are adjacent to right-of-way properties or 
easements for railway, telegraph, telephone, water, sewer, electric, gas and cable television 
companies, hereinafter referred to as utilities, or are adjacent to other facilities and property, 
damage to which might result in considerable expense, loss, inconvenience, injury or death, 
work shall not be commenced until all arrangements necessary for the protection thereof have 
been made. 
 
The exact locations and depths of all utilities that are underground or the location of those on 
or near the surface of the ground which are not readily visible shall be determined.  Such 
locations shall be marked in such a manner so that all workmen or equipment operators will be 
thoroughly apprised of their existence and location.  It will be the contractor's responsibility to 
see that every effort possible has been made to acquaint those actually involved in working 
near utilities not only with the type, size, location and depth, but with the consequences that 
might follow any disturbance.  No trenching or similar operation shall be commenced until the 
Engineer is satisfied that every possible effort has been taken by the contractor to protect 
utilities.  
 
The contractor shall coordinate with others working near new or existing sewer lines or other 
utilities on the procedures to be followed to prevent damaging of these utilities. 
 
(1)  Sewage Discharge Prevention Plan (SDPP): 
For any work which may impact active sanitary sewer pipes, whether new or existing, the 
contractor shall prepare a Sewage Discharge Prevention Plan (SDPP) which shall describe the 
contractor's procedures and work plan for such lines.  The Sewage Discharge Prevention Plan 
shall also describe the precautions that the contractor shall take to prevent unplanned 
breakage or spills, and the procedure which the contractor shall follow if breakage or a spill 
occurs. 
 
The contractor's method of work described in the SDPP shall ensure that any work done in or 
near any active sewer line is performed in a safe and controlled manner resulting in no 
accidental discharges.  As a minimum, the contractor's equipment and procedures shall be 
appropriate for the intended work, and shall conform to standard industry practices. 
 
The SDPP shall include information, as specified below, for all portions of the project which 
involve the following work activities, and for any other element of work which may involve 
contact with an active sanitary sewer line: 
 

 Interrupt, divert, relocate, plug, or abandon a sewer line or service connection, or 
 

 Brace, or tie into a sewer line or service connection. 
 
Construction activities in the vicinity of active sanitary sewer lines or service connections shall 
also be included in the SDPP if any of the following conditions exist: 



 

Page 38 of 81 
 

 
(1)  Any work crossing beneath the pipe, at any angle, regardless of vertical separation.  

 
(2)  Any work crossing over the pipe, at any angle, within two feet of the top of pipe.  

 
(3)  Work located parallel to the pipe within the following areas:  

 
(a) For the area from the bottom of the pipe to two feet above the top of the 

pipe, any work within two feet horizontally of the pipe wall. 
 

(b) For the area below the bottom of the pipe, any work located below an 
imaginary line beginning at the pipe spring line and progressing downward 
at a slope of 1.5 feet vertically to 1.0 feet horizontally. 

 
The contractor’s Sewage Discharge Prevention Plan shall address each of the items tabulated 
below, as applicable, for every location where construction activity will involve an active 
sanitary sewer line. 
 
(2)  Required Elements of the Sewage Discharge Prevention Plan: 
The following elements shall be addressed in the SDPP: 
 

(a) Describe the proposed work in general, including the reasons for the work, 
scope, objectives, locations, dates, and estimated times the work will be 
conducted.  Include project plan sheets detailing the proposed work, and 
indicating the peak flowrates of active sewer lines, determined as specified.  

 
(b) For all existing sanitary sewer pipes, determine whether the lines are active or 

abandoned, and the peak flowrates of lines in service, as provided by the owner 
of the utility. 

 
(c) List the key personnel (crew foreman, superintendent, and manager) and field 

office that are proposed to perform the work (include phone numbers).  
 

(d) Describe the work in step-by-step detail for each location, including excavation 
plans and how both the new and existing structures and utilities will be 
identified and protected.  

 
(e) Provide a detailed listing of any hardware, fittings, pipe plugs, flex couplings, 

tools, and materials needed to accomplish the work, and note the status of these 
items (on-hand, to-be-fabricated, on-order with expected delivery date, etc.).  
Include any manufacturer’s specifications or recommendations, especially for 
any pipe plugs, sewer line fittings, and patching materials.  

 
(f) List all major equipment to be used to perform the work.  Include in this item 

any pumps that will be used to perform the work and the rated capacity of the 
pumps at the anticipated suction head.  

 



 

Page 39 of 81 
 

(g) List all equipment to be used in the event of an unplanned release and specify 
how the equipment will be used.  The locations of standby pumps shall be 
specified in this item.  The plan shall indicate that all standby equipment to be 
used in the event of an unplanned discharge can be delivered to the site and put 
into service within two hours of identification of any unplanned flow.  

 
(h) List the safety equipment to be used, and describe any unique safety 

procedures.  Cite the applicable OSHA standards covering the work.  
 

(i) Describe any contingency plans the contractor will implement in the event of 
unplanned releases and/or damage to existing facilities.  List all personnel and 
subcontractors that will be responsible for responding to unplanned releases or 
damaged lines.  Provide qualifications for all such personnel and subcontractors, 
including education, formal training, and relevant experience.  

 
(j) Describe how the public will be protected during the work, and include or cite 

any applicable traffic control plans.  
 

(k) Describe the quality control procedures that will be used in the field.  
 

(l) Discuss how temporary plugs or flow control devices will be secured, monitored, 
and removed.  

 
The SDPP shall be in written form, and shall include any diagrams or sketches necessary for 
clarity.  When possible, diagrams and sketches should be shown using the applicable project 
plan sheets. 
 
The contractor shall modify the SDPP as necessary throughout the project to include any new or 
revised information relevant to the items listed above.  The contractor shall resubmit the 
revised SDPP to the Engineer for approval in each case. 
 
(3)  Sewage Discharge Prevention Plan Approval: 
The SDPP shall be submitted to the Engineer at least 21 calendar days before any work 
involving an active sewer line is to be done.  The Engineer will review the plan, solicit comments 
from the owner/operator of the sewer line, and return the plan to the contractor within 14 
calendar days from original submittal. 
 
No work involving active sanitary sewer lines shall be done until a final SDPP meeting all the 
requirements specified in Subsection 107-15(C)(2) has been approved by the Engineer. 
 
Approval of the contractor's Sewage Discharge Prevention Plans, personnel, or construction 
methods and operation shall not relieve the contractor from its responsibility to safely perform 
the work included in this contract, nor from its liability for damage resulting, either directly or 
indirectly, from its work performed under this contract. 
 
(D)  Service Connections: 
 
 (1)  General: 



 

Page 40 of 81 
 

In the event of interruption to water, sewer, or utility services as a result of accidental breakage 
or as a result of lines being exposed or unsupported, the contractor shall promptly notify the 
proper authority and shall cooperate with the said authority in the restoration of service.  
When service is interrupted, repair work shall be continuous until the service is restored.  No 
work shall be undertaken around fire hydrants until provisions for continued service have been 
approved by the local fire authority. 
 
 (2)  Unidentified Water and Sewer Connections: 
The contractor shall protect unidentified, undamaged water or sewer service connections 
encountered during excavation.  The contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer when an 
unidentified service connection is encountered. 
 
The contractor shall immediately repair unidentified water or sewer service connections that 
are damaged during excavation.  Any damaged service connections shall be reported to the 
Engineer, including all remedial actions taken. 
 
(E)  Repairing Damaged Lines: 
When the operations of the contractor result in damage to any utility line or service 
connection, the location of which has been brought to the contractor's attention, the 
contractor shall assume full responsibility for such damage. 
 
Should an unplanned breakage occur in an active sewer line as a result of the contractor's 
operations, the contractor shall immediately notify the Engineer, and begin repairs to halt any 
flows and restore normal service, in accordance with the procedures described in the approved 
Sewage Discharge Prevention Plan.  The contractor shall also immediately notify the affected 
utility company and the appropriate regulatory agencies.  The contractor shall be responsible 
for repairing the damaged pipe, restoring any interruptions in service, and cleaning up the 
affected areas within 24 hours of the beginning of the spill.  Sewage discharge damage 
assessments, as specified in Subsection 107-15(F), will be charged to the contractor for any 
unplanned breakage which results in a discharge. 
 
The contractor shall be responsible to repair any breakage, in accordance with requirements of 
the broken line's owner/operator, and clean up the site per applicable codes and regulations of 
the Environmental Protection Agency, OSHA, Arizona Department of Environmental Quality 
(ADEQ), and all other agencies' specifications, at no additional cost to the Department. 
 
 
(F)  Sewage Discharge Damage Assessments: 
The Department will assess liquidated damages in accordance with the Table 1 below for each 
24-hour period, or portion thereof, for each unplanned breakage that occurs in an active 
sanitary sewer line as a result of the contractor's operation.  The rate of liquidated damages 
assessed is based on the type and quantity of effluent discharged as determined by the 
Engineer. 
 
These liquidated damages do not relieve the contractor from any of its responsibilities under 
the contract, including any liquidated damages that may be assessed under Subsection 108.09 
for late completion of the project. 
 



 

Page 41 of 81 
 

Liquidated damages assessed by the Department will be independent of any penalties imposed 
by others. 
 
The contractor acknowledges that Regulatory agencies may assess or impose civil or criminal 
penalties on the contractor resulting from sewer discharges. 
 
The Department will not be responsible for any civil or criminal penalties, fines, damages, or 
other charges imposed on the contractor by any regulatory agency or court for sewage 
discharges that are a result, directly or indirectly, of the contractor’s work performed under this 
contract. 
 
 

Table 1 

Liquidated Damages 
(each 24 hour period, or portion thereof) 

Volume of Discharge Raw Sewage or Industrial 
Wastewater 

Treated 
Effluent 

Less than 10,000 
gallons 

$5,000.00 $1,000.00 

10,000-99,999 
gallons 

$10,000.00 $2,000.00 

100,000-1 million 
gallons 

$25,000.00 $3,000.00 

Greater than 1 
million gallons 

$40,000.00 $5,000.00 

 
Liquidated damages shall be assessed for each 24 hour period, or portion thereof, until the 
contractor has completed all of the following tasks: 
 
 (A) Stopped the discharge. 
 
 (B) Repaired the damaged pipe. 
 
 (C) Restored normal service. 
 

(D) Fully cleaned and disinfected the site to the satisfaction of the Engineer. 
 
REDUCTION OF LIQUIDATED DAMAGES:  Upon completion of tasks A, B, and C above, and prior 
to completion of Task D, the liquidated damages assessed for the current 24-hour period shall 
be at the rate shown in Table 1.  However, for each subsequent 24-hour period, the assessment 
will be one half of the rate shown in Table 1. 
 
Damages will continue at the reduced rate until the site has been fully cleaned and disinfected 
to the satisfaction of the Engineer. 
 
As an example, the amounts assessed each 24-hour period for an unplanned discharge of 
20,000 gallons of raw sewage, in which the contractor completes tasks A, B, and C within the 



 

Page 42 of 81 
 

second 24-hour period but does not complete full cleanup until the third 24-hour period, will be 
as follows: 
 First 24-hour period: $10,000.00 
 
 Second 24-hour period: $10,000.00 
 
 Third 24-hour period:  $5,000.00 
For this example, the total liquidated damage assessment will be $25,000.00 ($10,000 + 
$10,000 + $5,000). 
 
107-16    PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS: 
In carrying out any of the contractor provisions or in exercising any power or authority granted 
to him by this contract, there shall be no liability upon the Owner's Engineer, his authorized 
representatives, or any official of the Owner either personally or as an official of the Owner.  It 
is understood that in such matters they act solely as agents and representatives of the Owner. 
 

107-17    NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS: 
Upon completion of the work, the Owner will expeditiously make final inspection and notify the 
Contractor of final acceptance.  Such final acceptance, however, shall not preclude or stop the 
Owner from correcting any measurement, estimate, or certificate made before or after 
completion of the work, nor shall the Owner be precluded or stopped from recovering from the 
Contractor or his surety, or both, such overpayment as may be sustained, or by failure on the 
part of the Contractor to fulfill his obligations under the contract.  A waiver on the part of the 
Owner of any breach of any part of the contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other or 
subsequent breach. 
The Contractor, without prejudice to the terms of the contract, shall be liable to the Owner for 
latent defects, fraud, or such gross mistakes as may amount to fraud, or as regards the Owner's 
rights under any warranty or guaranty. 
 
 
SECTION 108    PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS: 
 
108-01  SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT: 
The Contractor shall not sublet, sell, transfer, assign or otherwise dispose of the contract or 
contracts or any portion thereof or of his right, title or interest therein without written consent 
of the Owner's Engineer.  In case such consent is given, the Contractor will be permitted to 
sublet a portion thereof, but shall perform with his own organization work amounting to not 
less than 50 percent of the total contract amount, except that any items designated in the 
contract as "Specialty Items" may be performed by subcontract and the cost of any such 
specialty items so performed by subcontract may be deducted from the total cost before 
computing the amount of work required to be performed by the Contractor with his own 
organization.  No subcontracts or transfer of contract shall release the Contractor of his liability 
under the contract and bond. 
 
"His own organization" shall be construed to include only workmen employed and paid directly 
by the prime contractor and equipment owned or rented by him, with or without operators. 
 



 

Page 43 of 81 
 

"Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized 
knowledge, craftsmanship or equipment not ordinarily available in contracting organizations 
qualified to bid on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor 
components of the overall contract. 
 
The contract amount upon which the 50 percent requirement is computed includes the cost of 
materials and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the Contractor 
under the contract provisions. 
 
Any items that have been selected as "Specialty Items" for the contract will be listed as such in 
the special provisions, bidding schedule, or elsewhere in the contract documents. 
 
The Owner will not recognize any subcontractor on the work.  The Contractor shall at all times 
when work is in progress be represented either in person, by a qualified superintendent, or by 
other designated, qualified representative who is duly authorized to receive and execute the 
orders of the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Should the Contractor elect to assign his contract, said assignment shall be concurred in by the 
surety, shall be presented for the consideration and approval of the Owner, and shall be 
consummated only on the written approval of the Owner.  In case of approval, the Contractor 
shall file copies of all subcontracts with the Owner's Engineer 
 
108-02    NOTICE TO PROCEED: 
The notice to proceed shall state the date on which it is expected the Contractor will begin the 
construction and from which date contract time will be charged.  The Contractor shall begin the 
work to be performed under the contract within ten (10) calendar days of the date set by the 
Owner's Engineer in the written notice to proceed, but in any event, the Contractor shall notify 
the Owner's Engineer at least two (2) work days in advance of the time actual construction 
operations will begin. 
 
108-03    BLANK 
 
108-04    PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS: 
The Contractor shall submit his progress schedule for the Owner's Engineer’s approval within 
10 days after the effective date of the notice to proceed.  The Contractor's progress schedule, 
when approved by the Owner's Engineer, may be used to establish major construction 
operations and to check on the progress of the work.  The Contractor shall provide sufficient 
materials, equipment, and labor to guarantee the completion of the project in accordance with 
the plans and specifications within the time set forth in the proposal. 
 
If the Contractor falls significantly behind the submitted schedule, the Contractor shall, upon 
the Owner's Engineer's request, submit a revised schedule for completion of the work within 
the contract time and modify his operations to provide such additional materials, equipment, 
and labor necessary to meet the revised schedule.  Should the prosecution of the work be 
discontinued for any reason, the Contractor shall notify the Owner's Engineer at least twenty-
four (24) hours in advance of resuming operations. 
 
The Contractor shall not commence any actual construction prior to the date on which the 
notice to proceed is issued by the Owner. 



 

Page 44 of 81 
 

 
108-05    LIMITATION OF OPERATIONS:    Per Section 108.05 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
108-06    CHARACTER OF WORKERS:    Per Section 108.06 of the ADOT Standard Specifications 
unless modified herein.  
 
108-07    METHODS AND EQUIPMENT:    Per Section 108.07 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
108-GC1 TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK: 
The Owner's Engineer shall have the authority to suspend the work wholly, or in part, for such 
period or periods as he may deem necessary, due to unsuitable weather, or such other 
conditions as are considered unfavorable for the prosecution of the work, or for such time as is 
necessary due to the failure on the part of the Contractor to carry out orders given or perform 
any or all provisions of the contract. 
 
In the event that the Contractor is ordered by the Owner's Engineer, in writing, to suspend 
work for some unforeseen cause not otherwise provided for in the contract and over which the 
Contractor has no control, the Contractor may be reimbursed for actual money expended on 
the work during the period of shutdown.  No allowance will be made for anticipated profits.  
The period of shutdown shall be computed from the effective date of the Owner's Engineer's 
order to suspend work to the effective date of the Owner's Engineer's order to resume the 
work.  Claims for such compensation shall be filed with the Owner's Engineer within the time 
period stated in the Owner's Engineer's order to resume work.  The Contractor shall submit 
with his claim information substantiating the amount shown on the claim.  The Owner's 
Engineer will forward the Contractor's claim to the Owner for consideration in accordance with 
local laws or ordinances.  No provision of this article shall be construed as entitling the 
Contractor to compensation for delays due to inclement weather, for suspensions made at the 
request of the Contractor, or for any other delay provided for in the contract, plans or 
specifications. 
 
If it should become necessary to suspend work for an indefinite period, the Contractor shall 
store all materials in such manner that they will not become an obstruction nor become 
damaged in any way. He shall take every precaution to prevent damage or deterioration of the 
work performed and provide for normal drainage of the work.  The Contractor shall erect 
temporary structures where necessary to provide for the continuous flow of traffic. 
  
108-08    DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME: 
The number of calendar or working days allowed for completion of the work shall be stated in 
the proposal and contract and shall be known as the CONTRACT TIME. 
 
Should the contract time require extension for reasons beyond the Contractor's control, it shall 
be adjusted as follows: 
 

(a) CONTRACT TIME based on WORKING DAYS shall be calculated weekly by the Owner's 
Engineer.  The Owner's Engineer will furnish the Contractor a copy of his weekly 
statement of the number of working days charged against the contract time during 



 

Page 45 of 81 
 

the week and the number of working days currently specified for completion of the 
contract (the original contract time plus the number of working days, if any, that have 
been included in approved CHANGE ORDERS or SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS 
covering EXTRA WORK (104-02(C)). 

 
The Owner's Engineer shall base his weekly statement of contract time charged on the 
following considerations: 

 
(1) No time shall be charged for days on which the Contractor is unable to proceed 

with the principal item of work under construction at the time for at least 6 
hours with the normal work force employed on such principal item.  Should the 
normal work force be on a double-shift, 12 hours shall be used.  Should the 
normal work force be on a triple-shift, 18 hours shall apply.  Conditions beyond 
the Contractor's control such as strikes, lockouts, unusual delays in 
transportation, temporary suspension of the principal items of work under 
construction or temporary suspension of the entire work which have been 
ordered by the Owner's Engineer for reasons not the fault of the Contractor, 
shall not be charged against the contract time. 

(2) The Owner's Engineer will not make charges against the contract time prior to 
the effective date of the notice to proceed. 

(3) The Owner's Engineer will begin charges against the contract time on the first 
working day after the effective date of the notice to proceed. 

(4) The Owner's Engineer will not make charges against the contract time after the 
date of final acceptance as defined in the subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of 
Section 105-20(B). 

(5) The Contractor will be allowed one week in which to file a written protest setting 
forth his objections to the Owner's Engineer's weekly statement.  If no objection 
is filed within such specified time, the weekly statement shall be considered as 
acceptable to the Contractor. 

 
The contract time (stated in the proposal) is based on the originally estimated 
quantities as described in the subsection titled INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED 
PROPOSAL QUANTITIES of Section 102-06. 

 
Should the satisfactory completion of the contract require performance of work in 
greater quantities than those estimated in the proposal, the contract time shall be 
increased in the same proportion as the cost of the actually completed quantities 
bears to the cost of the originally estimated quantities in the proposal.  Such increase 
in contract time shall not consider either the cost of work or the extension of contract 
time that has been covered by change order or supplemental agreement and shall be 
made at the time of final payment. 

 
(b) CONTRACT TIME based on CALENDAR DAYS shall consist of the number of calendar 

days stated in the contract counting from the effective date of the notice to proceed 
and including all Saturdays, Sundays, holidays, and non-work days.  All calendar days 
elapsing between the effective dates of the Owner's Engineer's orders to suspend and 
resume all work, due to causes not the fault of the Contractor, shall be excluded. 

 



 

Page 46 of 81 
 

At the time of final payment, the contract time shall be increased in the same 
proportion as the final cost bears to the estimated cost in the proposal.  Such increase 
in the contract time shall not consider either the cost of work or the extension of 
contract time that has been covered by a change order or supplemental agreement.  
Charges against the contract time will cease as of the date of final acceptance.   

 
(c) When the contract time is a specified completion date, it shall be the date on which all 

contract work shall be substantially completed. 
 

If the Contractor finds it impossible for reasons beyond his control to complete the 
work within the contract time as specified, or as extended in accordance with the 
provisions of this subsection, he may, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
contract time as extended, make a written request to the Owner's Engineer for an 
extension of time setting forth the reasons which he believes will justify the granting 
of his request.  The Contractor's plea that insufficient time was specified is not a valid 
reason for extension of time.  If the Owner's Engineer finds that the work was delayed 
because of conditions beyond the control and without the fault of the Contractor, he 
may extend the time for completion in such amount as the conditions justify.  The 
extended time for completion shall then be in full force and effect, the same as though 
it were the original time for completion. 

 
108-09    FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME: 
For each calendar day or working day, as specified in the contract, that any work remains 
uncompleted after the contract time (including all extensions and adjustments as provided in 
the subsection titled DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME of Section 108-08 
the sum specified in the contract and proposal as liquidated damages will be deducted from 
any money due or to become due the Contractor or his surety.  Such deducted sums shall not 
be deducted as a penalty but shall be considered as liquidation of a reasonable portion of 
damages that will be incurred by the Owner should the Contractor fail to complete the work in 
the time provided in his contract. 
 

Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the time fixed 
for its completion, or after the date to which the time for completion may have been extended, 
will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the Owner of any of its rights under the 
contract. 
 
 
 

108-10  DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT: 
The Contractor shall be considered in default of his contract and such default will be considered 
as cause for the Owner to terminate the contract for any of the following reasons if the 
Contractor: 
 

(a) Fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified in the "Notice to 
Proceed (108-02)"; or 

(b) Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or materials 
to assure completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 



 

Page 47 of 81 
 

(c) Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to perform 
anew such work as may be rejected as unacceptable and unsuitable; or  

(d) Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 
(e) Fails to resume work which has been discontinued within a reasonable time after 

notice to do so; or 
(f) Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or 

insolvency; or 
(g) Allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of 10 days; or 
(h) Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or  
(i) For any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner. 

 
Should the Owner's Engineer consider the Contractor in default of the contract for any reason 
hereinbefore, he shall immediately give written notice to the Contractor and the Contractor's 
surety as to the reasons for considering the Contractor in default and the Owner's intentions to 
terminate the contract. 
 
If the Contractor or surety, within a period of 10 calendar days after such notice, does not 
proceed in accordance therewith, then the Owner will, upon written notification from the 
Owner's Engineer of the facts of such delay, neglect, or default and the Contractor's failure to 
comply with such notice, have full power and authority without violating the contract, to take 
the prosecution of the work out of the hands of the Contractor.  The Owner may appropriate or 
use any or all materials and equipment that have been mobilized for use in the work and are 
acceptable and may enter into an agreement for the completion of said contract according to 
the terms and provisions thereof, or use such other methods as in the opinion of the Owner's 
Engineer will be required for the completion of said contract in an acceptable manner. 
 
All costs and charges incurred by the Owner, together with the cost of completing the work 
under contract, will be deducted from any monies due or which may become due the 
Contractor.  If such expense exceeds the sum which would have been payable under the 
contract, then the Contractor and the surety shall be liable and shall pay to the Owner the 
amount of such excess. 
 
 

108-GC2 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES: 
The Owner shall terminate the contract or portion thereof by written notice when the 
Contractor is prevented from proceeding with the construction contract as a direct result of an 
Executive Order of the President with respect to the prosecution of war or in the interest of 
national defense. 
 
When the contract, or any portion thereof, is terminated before completion of all items of work 
in the contract, payment will be made for the actual number of units or items of work 
completed at the contract price or as mutually agreed for items of work partially completed or 
not started.  No claims or loss of anticipated profits shall be considered. 
 
Reimbursement for organization of the work, and other overhead expenses, (when not 
otherwise included in the contract) and moving equipment and materials to and from the job 
will be considered, the intent being that an equitable settlement will be made with the 
Contractor. 



 

Page 48 of 81 
 

Acceptable materials, obtained or ordered by the Contractor for the work and that are not 
incorporated in the work shall, at the option of the Contractor, be purchased from the 
Contractor at actual cost as shown by receipted bills and actual cost records at such points of 
delivery as may be designated by the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Termination of the contract or a portion thereof shall neither relieve the Contractor of his 
responsibilities for the completed work nor shall it relieve his surety of its obligation for and 
concerning any just claim arising out of the work performed. 
 
 

SECTION 109    MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT: 
Measurement will be in place for the completed work, with no allowance for waste, and as may 
be more particularly described in the description of the various items set forth in the Standard 
Specifications and as shown on the plans.   
 
No additional payments will be made for work related to any item unless specifically noted and 
called for in the Proposal.  Payment will be made at the unit price or lump sum price bid in the 
Proposal. 
 
In addition to the requirements set forth in the ADOT Standard Specifications, no measurement 
or direct payment will be made for the following work.  The cost for such work shall be 
considered as included in the price of other contract items. 
 

A. Removal and salvage items as called for on the plans, in the Standard 
Specifications, or these Special Provisions. 

B. Removal, salvage and/or re-installation of existing fence lines. 
C. Sampling, testing, certification, and other quality control actions. 
D. Disposal of surplus, waste or non-salvageable materials. 
E. Grading of drainage ditches and drainage excavation not called out on the plans. 
F. Preparation and submittal of operation, traffic control, and storm water 

pollution prevention plans, whether specified herein or required by the other 
agencies. 

G. Obtaining and maintaining any required environmental and/or other permits and 
licenses. 

 
The quantities set forth in the Proposal are used for the purpose of determining the basis of the 
award of the Contract, and may be increased or decreased 10% or less by the Owner to 
conform to the requirements of the work as set forth on the plans, and the Contractor shall 
agree to perform the work on the basis of the prices bid for the items contained in the Proposal 
regardless of whether or not the items or units are decreased or increased. 

 
The Owner’s Engineer shall have the right to order omitted from the Contract any minor item 
found unnecessary to the work without violating the Contract or Performance Bond, and 
without any compensation to the Contractor. 
 
To ensure the Contractor's satisfactory performance of the Contract, progress payments shall 
be subject to retainage pursuant to A.R.S. §34-221 in the amount of 10% of the approved 
estimate of the Work performed in the preceding calendar month.  When the Work is 50% 
complete, the retainage shall be reduced to 5% so long as the Contractor is making satisfactory 



 

Page 49 of 81 
 

progress.  If the Owner determines in writing that the Contractor is not making satisfactory 
progress at any time, the 10% retainage may be reinstated.  In lieu of retainage, the Contractor 
may post substitute security meeting the requirements of A.R.S. §34-221. 
 
109-01    MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES:    Per Section 109.01 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
109-02    SCOPE OF PAYMENT: 
The Contractor shall receive and accept compensation provided for in the contract as full 
payment for furnishing all materials, for performing all work under the contract in a complete 
and acceptable manner, and for all risk, loss, damage, or expense of whatever character arising 
out of the nature of the work or the prosecution thereof, subject to the provisions of the 
subsection titled NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS of Section 107-17. 
 
When the "basis of payment" subsection of a specification requires that the contract price 
(price bid) include compensation for certain work or material essential to the item, this same 
work or material will not also be measured for payment under any other contract item which 
may appear elsewhere in the contract, plans or specifications. 
 
Periodic progress payments shall be in accordance with A.R.S. §34-221. 
 
109-03    COMPENSATION FOR ALTERED QUANTITIES: 
When the accepted quantities of work vary from the quantities in the proposal, the Contractor 
shall accept as payment in full, so far as contract items are concerned, payment at the original 
contract price for the accepted quantities of work actually completed and accepted.  No 
allowance, except as provided for in the subsection titled ALTERATION OF WORK AND 
QUANTITIES of Section 104-02(A) will be made for any increased expense, loss of expected 
reimbursement, or loss of anticipated profits suffered or claimed by the Contractor which 
results directly from such alterations or indirectly from his unbalanced allocation of overhead 
and profit among the contract items, or from any other cause. 
 
109-04    PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK: 
Extra work, performed in accordance with the subsection titled EXTRA WORK of Section 104-
02(C), will be paid for at the contract prices or agreed prices specified in the change order or 
supplemental agreement authorizing the extra work requiring that it be done by force account, 
such force account shall be measured and paid for as follows: 
 

(a) Labor.  For all labor (skilled and unskilled) and foremen in direct charge of a specific 
force account item, the Contractor shall receive the rate of wage (or scale) for every 
hour that such labor or foreman is actually engaged in the specified force account 
work.  Such wage (or scale) shall be agreed upon in writing before beginning the work. 

 
The Contractor shall receive the actual costs paid to, or in behalf of, workers by reason 
of subsistence and travel allowances, health and welfare benefits, pension fund 
benefits or other benefits, when such amounts are required by collective bargaining 
agreement or other employment contract generally applicable to the classes of labor 
employed on the work.  An amount equal to 15 percent of the sum of the above items 
will also be paid the Contractor. 



 

Page 50 of 81 
 

 
(b) Insurance and Taxes.  For property damage, liability and workmen's compensation 

insurance premiums, unemployment insurance contributions, and social security taxes 
on the force account work the Contractor shall receive the actual cost, to which cost 
(sum) 5 percent will be added.  The Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence of 
the rate or rates paid for such insurance and taxes. 

 
(c) Materials.  For materials accepted by the Owner's Engineer and used, the Contractor 

shall receive the actual cost of such materials delivered on the work, including 
transportation charges paid by him (exclusive of machinery rentals as hereinafter set 
forth), to which cost (sum) 15 percent will be added. 

 
(d) Equipment.  For any machinery or special equipment (other than small tools) including 

fuel and lubricants, plus transportation costs, the use of which has been authorized by 
the Owner's Engineer, the Contractor shall receive the rental rates in the current "Blue 
Book for Construction Equipment". 

 
(e) Miscellaneous.  No additional allowance will be made for general superintendence, 

the use of small tools, or other costs for which no specific allowance is herein 
provided. 

 
(f) Comparison of Records.  The Contractor and the Owner's Engineer shall compare 

records of the cost of force account work at the end of each day.  Agreement shall be 
indicated by signature of the Contractor and Owner's Engineer or their duly authorized 
representatives. 

 
(g) Statements.  No payment will be made for work performed on a force account basis 

until the Contractor has furnished the Owner's Engineer with duplicate itemized 
statements of the cost of such force account work detailed as follows: 

 
(1)   Name, classification, date, daily hours, total hours, rate and extension for each 

laborer and foreman. 
(2)   Designation, dates, daily hours, total hours, rental rate and extension for each 

unit of machinery and equipment. 
(3)   Quantities of material, prices, and extensions. 
(4)   Transportation of materials. 
(5)   Cost of property damage, liability and workmen's compensation insurance 

premiums, unemployment insurance contribution and social security tax. 
 

Statements shall be accompanied and supported by receipted invoice for all materials 
used and transportation charges.  However, if materials used on the force account 
work are not specifically purchased for such work but are taken from the Contractor's 
stock, then in lieu of the invoices the Contractor shall furnish an affidavit certifying 
that such materials were taken from his stock, that the quantity claimed, was actually 
used, and that the price and transportation claimed represent the actual cost to the 
Contractor. 
 



 

Page 51 of 81 
 

The additional payment, based on the percentages specified above, shall constitute 
full compensation for all items of expense not specifically provided for in the force 
account work.  The total payment made as provided above shall constitute full 
compensation for such work. 

 
109-05    PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS: 
As specified in the subsection titled OMITTED ITEMS of Section 104-02(B), the Owner's Engineer 
shall have the right to omit from the work (order nonperformance) any contract item, except 
major contract items, in the best interest of the Owner. 
 
Should the Owner's Engineer omit to order nonperformance of a contract item or portion of 
such item from the work, the Contractor shall accept payment in full at the contract prices for 
any work actually completed and acceptable prior to the Owner's Engineer's order to omit or 
non-perform such contract item. 
 
Acceptable materials ordered by the contract or delivered on the work prior to the date of the 
Owner's Engineer's order will be paid for at the actual cost to the Contractor and shall 
thereupon become the property of the Owner. 
 
In addition to the reimbursement hereinbefore provided, the Contractor shall be reimbursed 
for all actual costs incurred for the purpose of performing the omitted contract item prior to 
the date of the Owner's Engineer's order.  Such additional costs incurred by the Contractor 
must be directly related to the deleted contract item and shall be supported by certified 
statements by the Contractor as to the nature and amount of such costs. 
 
109-06 THRU 109-08     BLANK 
 
109-09    ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT: 
When the contract work has been accepted in accordance with the requirements of the 
subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 105-20(B), the Owner's Engineer will prepare 
the final estimate of the items of work actually performed.  The Contractor shall approve the 
Owner's Engineer's final estimate or advise the Owner's Engineer of his objections to the final 
estimate which are based on disputes in measurements or computations of the final quantities 
to be paid under the contract as amended by change order or supplemental agreement. The 
Contractor and Owner's Engineer shall resolve all disputes (if any) in the measurement and 
computation of final quantities to be paid within 30 calendar days of the Contractor's receipt of 
the Owner's Engineer's final estimate.  If, after such 30-day period, a dispute still exists, the 
Contractor may approve the Owner's Engineer's estimate under protest of the quantities in 
dispute and such disputed quantities shall be considered by the Owner as a claim in accordance 
with the subsection titled CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES of Section 105-21. 
 
After the Contractor has approved, or approved under protest, the Owner's Engineer's final 
estimate, final payment will be processed based on the entire sum, or the undisputed sum in 
case of approval under protest, determined to be due the Contractor less all previous payments 
and all amounts to be deducted under the provisions of the contract.  All prior partial estimates 
and payments shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment. 
 



 

Page 52 of 81 
 

Contractor shall provide an executed Affidavit of Release of Liens and an Affidavit of Payment 
to the Owners Engineer prior to the release of the final payment. 
 
If the Contractor has filed a claim for additional compensation under the provisions of the 
subsection titled CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENTS AND DISPUTES of Section 105-21 or under the 
provisions of this subsection, such claims will be considered by the Owner in accordance with 
local laws or ordinances.  Upon final adjudication of such claims, any additional payment 
determined to be due the Contractor will be paid pursuant to a supplemental, final estimate. 
 
 
SECTION 202    REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS: 
Removal of Structures and Obstructions shall be in accordance with Section 202 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
202-4    Method of Measurement:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
No separate measurement will be made for the removal of structures and obstructions. 
 
202-5    Basis of Payment:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Payment for the removal of structures and obstructions shall be considered as included in the 
total contract cost. 
 
Full compensation for any saw cutting necessary to perform the construction operations 
specified herein shall be considered as included in the total contract cost. 
 
 
SECTION 205    GRADING ROADWAY FOR PAVEMENT: 
Grading roadway for pavement shall be in accordance with Section 205 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
205-4    Method of Measurement:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
No separate measurement will be made for grading roadway for pavement. 
 
205-5    Basis of Payment:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Payment for grading roadway for pavement shall be considered as included in the total contract 
cost. 
 
 
SECTION 303     AGGREGATE SUBBASES AND AGGREGATE BASES: 
Aggregate Base Course shall be Class II in accordance with Section 303 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
See APPENDIX A for aggregate base course placement locations 
 
303-4    Method of Measurement:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
No separate measurement will be made for aggregate base course. 
 
303-5    Basis of Payment:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Payment for aggregate base course shall be considered as included in the total contract cost. 



 

Page 53 of 81 
 

 
 
SECTION 404    BITUMINOUS TREATMENTS: 
Bituminous Treatments shall be in accordance with Section 404 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
404-3.12    Tack Coat:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Tack coat shall be applied prior to placing a bituminous mixture on a primed surface, an existing 
bituminous surface, or an existing Portland cement concrete pavement surface.  Tack coat shall 
also be applied between layers of bituminous mixtures.  A light coat of bituminous material 
shall also be applied to edges or vertical surfaces against which a bituminous mixture is to be 
placed. 
 
The contractor shall choose the bituminous material to be used for tack coat.  The Engineer 
must approve the contractor's choice of bituminous material prior to its use. 
 
The bituminous material used for tack coat shall conform to the requirements of Section 1005. 
 
The rate of application for the specific usage will be specified by the Engineer.  The following 
table shows approximate tack coat application rates: 
 

Type of 
Bituminous Material 

Approximate Tack Coat  
Application Rates: 
Gallons / Square Yard Payment 

Factor 

 

Prior to Placing ACFC or 
AR-ACFC 

All Other Tack Coats 
 

Emulsified Asphalt 
(Special Type) – See Note 
Below. 

Not Allowed 0.12 0.7 
 

Emulsified Asphalt (Other than 
Special Type) 

0.08 0.08 1.0 
 

Asphalt Cement 0.06 to 0.08 0.06 to 0.08 1.0 
 

Note:  Emulsified Asphalt (Special Type) shall consist of Type SS-1 or CSS-1  
           emulsified asphalt diluted with water to provide an asphalt content of not  
           less than 26 percent. 

 

 
If emulsified asphalt of any type is used, it shall have broken before the bituminous mixture is 
placed. 
 
If emulsified asphalt of any type is held overnight, it shall be reheated and agitated prior to 
further application. 
 
The Engineer may either adjust the application rate or, except as specified below, eliminate the 
use of tack coat in any part of the work if, in the Engineer's judgment, the bituminous mixture 
to be placed will be effectively bonded to the underlying surface.  For asphaltic concrete friction 
course, asphaltic concrete friction course (asphalt-rubber), or asphaltic concrete 



 

Page 54 of 81 
 

(asphalt-rubber), application of the tack coat immediately prior to placing such pavements shall 
not be eliminated, although the Engineer may adjust the application rate. 
 
Tack coat shall be applied only as far in advance of the placement of the bituminous mixture as 
is necessary to obtain the proper condition of tackiness.  In no event shall more tack coat be 
applied in one day than will be covered by the bituminous mixture during that same day. 
 
404-4    Method of Measurement:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
No separate measurement will be made for bituminous treatments. 
 
404-5    Basis of Payment:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Payment for bituminous treatments shall be considered as included in the total contract cost. 
 
 
SECTION 409    ASPHALT CONCRETE (MISCELLANEOUS STRUCTURAL): 
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement shall be in accordance with Section 409 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications except as modified herein. 
 
409-1    Description:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
The work under this section shall consist of constructing Asphaltic Concrete (Miscellaneous 
Structural), hereinafter asphaltic concrete, by furnishing all materials, mixing at a plant, hauling 
and placing a mixture of aggregate materials, mineral admixture, and bituminous material 
(asphalt cement) to form a pavement course or to be used for other specified purposes, in 
accordance with the requirements of these specifications, and as directed by the Engineer. 
 
The contractor shall acquire and make all arrangements for a source or sources of material, 
furnish a mix design which will meet the design criteria specified hereinafter, and provide all 
the equipment, materials, and labor necessary to complete the work. 
 
See APPENDIX A for asphalt concrete placement locations. 
 
409-2.02    Bituminous Material:  the first paragraph of the Standard Specifications is revised to 
read: 
Asphalt cement shall be a performance grade (PG) asphalt binder, conforming to the 
requirements of Section 1005.  The type of asphalt binder shall be PG 64-22. 
 
409-2.03    Mineral Admixture:  the last paragraph of the Standard Specifications is revised to 
read: 
The certification and acceptance of Portland cement, blended hydraulic cement, and hydrated 
lime shall be in accordance with Materials Policy and Procedure Directive No. 13, "Certification 
and Acceptance of Hydraulic Cement, Fly Ash, Natural Pozzolan, Silica Fume, and Lime". 
 
409-2.04    Mix Design:  the third and fourth paragraphs of the Standard Specifications are 
revised to read: 
The mix design shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer 
experienced in the development of mix designs and mix design testing.  The mix design shall be 
provided in a format that clearly indicates all the mix design requirements and shall be sealed, 
signed, and dated by the mix design engineer. 



 

Page 55 of 81 
 

 
The mix design shall be prepared by a mix design laboratory that has met the requirements of 
the Materials Policy and Procedure Directive No. 19, “ADOT System for the Evaluation of 
Testing Laboratories”. 
 
The contractor may propose the use of a mix design that has been developed for a previous 
project.  The proposed mix design shall meet the requirements of these specifications.  The 
contractor shall provide evidence that the type and source of bituminous material, the type of 
mineral admixture, and the source and methods of producing mineral aggregate have not 
changed since the formulation of the previous mix design.  The contractor shall also provide 
current test results for all specified characteristics of the mineral aggregate proposed for use.  
The Engineer will determine if the previously used mix design is suitable for the intended use 
and if the previous use of the mix design was satisfactory to the Department.  The Engineer will 
either approve or disapprove the proposed mix design.  Should the Engineer disapprove the use 
of the previously used mix design, the contractor shall prepare and submit a new mix design 
proposal in accordance with the requirements of these specifications. 
 
A previously used mix design older than two years from the date it was formulated, sealed, 
signed, and dated shall not be allowed for use.  Once approved for use on a project, a 
previously used mix design may be used for the duration of that project. 
 
409-2.04    Mix Design:  the last two paragraphs of the Standard Specifications are revised to 
read: 
 
The mix design shall meet the following criteria when tested in accordance with the 
requirements of the following test methods: 
 
 
 
 
 

Criteria Requirement 
Arizona Test 
Method 

1. Voids in Mineral Aggregate: %, Range 14.5 – 18.5  815  

2. Effective Voids: %, Range 5.3 – 5.7 815  

3. Absorbed Asphalt: %, Range 0 – 1.0 815  

 
The Engineer reserves the right to adjust the asphalt content during production from the mix 
design value without additional compensation to the contractor in order to obtain desirable 
effective voids. 
 
409-2.05    Sampling and Testing: of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Sampling and testing the materials and mixture for quality control purposes shall be the 
contractor's responsibility.  The Engineer reserves the right to sample and test the materials 
and mixture when necessary to determine that they reasonably conform to the requirements 
specified herein. 
 



 

Page 56 of 81 
 

409-3.01    General:  the ninth, tenth, eleventh, and twelfth paragraphs of the Standard 
Specifications are revised to read: 
All wheels and tires of compactors and other equipment surfaces shall be treated when 
necessary with a release agent approved by the Engineer in order to prevent the sticking of 
asphaltic concrete.  Release agents which degrade, dissolve, or in any way damage the 
bituminous material shall not be used.  Diesel fuel shall not be used as a release agent. 
 
Asphaltic concrete immediately behind the laydown machine shall be in a thoroughly mixed, 
free-flowing, and workable condition, be free of lumps and crusts, and have a minimum 
temperature of 275 degrees F. 
 
All courses of asphaltic concrete shall be placed and finished by means of self-propelled paving 
machines except under certain conditions or at certain locations where the Engineer deems the 
use of self-propelled paving machines impractical. 
 
The speed of the paving machine shall be coordinated with the production of the plant and an 
adequate number of trucks for hauling asphaltic concrete shall be available in order to achieve, 
as far as practical, a continuous operation. 
 
Self-propelled paving machines shall spread the mixture within the specified tolerances, 
without segregation or tearing, true to the line, grade, and crown indicated on the project 
plans.  Pavers shall be equipped with hoppers and augers which will distribute the mixture 
uniformly in front of adjustable screeds. 
 
409-3.01    General:  the seventeenth paragraph of the Standard Specifications is revised to 
read: 
Before asphaltic concrete is placed, the surface to be paved shall be cleaned of all objectionable 
material and tacked with bituminous material in accordance with the requirements of Section 
404. 
 
409-4    Method of Measurement:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
 
No separate measurement will be made for asphaltic concrete (miscellaneous structural). 
 
409-5    Basis of Payment:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Payment for the accepted quantities of asphaltic concrete, complete in place, shall be 
considered as included in the total contract cost.   
 
No direct payment will be made for the bituminous material and mineral admixture in the 
asphaltic concrete, or the bituminous material for the tack coat and application of the tack 
coat, the price being considered as included in the total contract cost. 
 
 
SECTION 701    MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF TRAFFIC: 
Maintenance and Protection of Traffic shall be in accordance with Section 701 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications, except as modified herein. 
  
701-4    Method of Measurement:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 



 

Page 57 of 81 
 

No separate measurement shall be made for Maintenance and Protection of Traffic.  
  
701-5    Basis of Payment:  of the Standard Specifications is revised to read: 
Payment for all work necessary to provide Maintenance and Protection of Traffic shall be 
considered as included in the total contract cost. 
 
 
SECTION 923    PLACEMENT OF PORTLAND CEMENT 
 
923-1    Description:  The work under this section shall consist of furnishing and applying 
Portland cement onto the finished subgrade surface just prior to the placement of the 
aggregate base course. 
 
923-2    Materials:  Portland cement shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C 150 for Type 
II, III, or V. 
 
923-3    Application:  Portland cement shall be spread evenly onto the subgrade surface just 
prior to the placement of the aggregate base course at a rate of approximately 1 pound per 
square foot. 
Care should be taken not to allow the cement powder to drift beyond the limits of placement. 
 
923-4     Method of Measurement: 
No separate measurement shall be made for placement of Portland cement. 
 
 
923-5     Basis of Payment: 
Payment for placement of Portland cement shall be considered as included in the total contract 
cost. 
 
No direct payment will be made for the Portland cement, the price being considered as 
included in the total contract cost. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page 58 of 81 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Contract Forms are a binding part of  
Informal Bid Documents and Awarded Contract.* 

 

 

CONTRACT FORMS 
    

  Proposal      P-1 to P-3 
  Price Sheet      PS-1 to PS-2 

  Bid Bond      BB-1 

  Qualification & Certification   QC-1 to QC-2 

  Reference List     RL-1 

  Affidavit of Non-Collusion   ANC-1 

  Subcontractor Certification   SC-1 

  Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment CK-1 

  Contract      C-1 to C-7 

  Contract Performance Bond   CPB-1 

  Labor and Materials Bond   LMB-1 

  Contract Performance Warranty  CPW-1 

IRS W-9 Form     W-9 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 59 of 81 
 

PROPOSAL (P-1 to P-3) 
 
TO THE GILA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION: 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
The following Proposal is made for BID NO. 020917 Forest Service Rd No. 512 Asphalt Patching 
Project, Gila County, ARIZONA, in the County of Gila in the State of Arizona. 
 
The following Proposal is made on behalf of 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
and no others.  The Proposal is in all respects fair and is made without collusion on the part of 
any person, firm or corporation mentioned above, and no member or employee of Gila County 
is personally or financially interested, directly or indirectly, in the Proposal, or in any purchase 
or sale of any materials or supplies for the work to which it relates, or in any portion of the 
profits thereof. 
 

The undersigned certifies that the approved Plans, Technical Specifications, General and 
Special Provisions and forms of Contract and Bond authorized by Gila County and constituting 
essential parts of this Proposal, have been carefully examined, and also that the site of the work 
has been personally inspected.  The undersigned declares that the amount and nature of the 
work to be done is understood and that at no time will misunderstanding of the Plans, 
Technical Specifications, General Provisions, Special Provisions, or conditions to be overcome, 
be plead.  On the basis of Plans, Technical Specifications, General and Special Provisions, each 
Addendum (if any) and the forms of Contract and Bond proposed for use, the undersigned 
proposes to furnish all the necessary equipment, materials, machinery, tools, apparatus, and 
other means of construction, and labor, to do all the work in the manner specified and to finish 
the entire project within the time hereinafter proposed, and to accept, as full compensation 
therefore, the sum of the various products obtained by multiplying each unit price, herein bid 
for the work or materials on the attached Price Sheet, by the quantity thereof actually 
incorporated in the complete project, as determined by the Public Works Director.  The 
undersigned understands that the quantities mentioned herein are approximate only and are 
subject to increase or decrease and hereby proposes to perform all quantities of work as either 
increased or decreased, in accordance with the provisions of the Specifications, at the unit price 
bid in the attached Price Sheet. 
 
The undersigned further proposes to perform all extra work that may be required on the basis 
provided in the Specifications and to give such work personal attention and to secure 
economical performance. 

 

 

 



 

Page 60 of 81 
 

Proposal  continued… 
 

The undersigned further proposes to execute the Contract Agreement and furnish 
satisfactory Bonds within ten (10) calendar days from the date of Notice of Award, time being 
of the essence.  The undersigned further proposes to begin work as specified in the contract 
attached hereto, and to complete the work within thirty (30) Calendar Days from the 
commencement date as specified on the Notice to Proceed, and maintain at all times a 
Payment Bond and Performance, Labor and Material Bonds, approved by the Public Works 
Director, in an amount equal to one hundred (100) percent of the total bid.  These bonds shall 
serve not only to guarantee the completion of the work on the part of the undersigned, but also 
to guarantee the excellence of both workmanship and material and the payment of all 
obligations incurred, until the work is finally accepted and the provisions of the Plans, Standard 
Specifications and Special Provisions fulfilled. 
 

A Proposal Guaranty in the amount and character named in the Call for Bids is enclosed 
amounting to not less than ten (10) percent of the total bid, which Proposal Guaranty is 
submitted as a guaranty of the good faith of the bidder and that the bidder will enter into 
written contract, as provided, to do the work, if successful in securing the award thereof, and it 
is hereby agreed that if at any time other than as provided in the Proposal requirements and 
conditions the undersigned should withdraw this Proposal, or if the Proposal is accepted and 
there should be failure on the part of the undersigned to execute the Contract and furnish 
satisfactory Bond as herein provided, Gila County, in either of such events, shall be entitled and 
is hereby given the right to retain the said Proposal Guaranty as liquidated damages. 
 
If by a Corporation: 
 
(SEAL) 
 
Corporate Name:             
 
Corporate Address:             
 
Incorporated under the laws of the State of :         
 
By (Signature):         Date:      
 
President:              
 
Secretary:               
 
Treasurer:              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 61 of 81 
 

Proposal  continued… 

 
 
If by a Firm or Partnership: 
 
 
Firm or Partnership Name:            
 
Firm or Partnership Address:           
 
By (Signature):         Date:      
 
Name and Address of Each Member:           
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
 
If by an Individual: 
 
Signature:          Date:       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 62 of 81 
 

 

PRICE SHEET (PS-1 to PS-2) 
 

FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
 
We agree to provide all work and material necessary to complete the project as shown on the 
plans and specifications for the following Contract Price: 
   
 
Firm Name:   _____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE, for the sum of $ _____________________________________ 
 
 
WRITTEN TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE 
 
_______________________________________________________________________Dollars  
 
and __________________________ Cents. 
 
 
This Contract Price is based upon the Bidder’s quantities and unit prices tabulated on Page PS-1 
of the Proposal. The Bidder agrees that the Contract Price will be payment in full for all work 
shown on the plans and described in the Contract Documents. 
 
Any authorized increases or decreases to the work shall be authorized by Change Order. The 
Contract Price shall be increased or decreased by the amount of work or material increased or 
decreased at the following Bid Unit Prices. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 63 of 81 
 

PRICE SHEET (PS-1) 
 
 

 

FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 
Bid 020917 

 
  Quantity      Unit         Description                           Unit Price                 Extension 
 
   915          SQ. YD.    Asphaltic Concrete Patch      $________               $_____________               
 
                                  TOTAL BID IN WORDS $ ________________________________  
 
*Price to include all applicable taxes and required fees. 
               No tax shall be levied against labor.  Payment will be made based on actual 

quantities.    

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 64 of 81 
 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

 SURETY (BID) BOND (BB-1) 
 (Penalty of this bond must not be less than 10% of the bid amount) 

 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned  , 
 
as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and     _____________________________________________, 
            
a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of  , 
 
as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in this State 
issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County as Obligee, 
hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of ten percent (10%) of the amount bid, submitted by Principal to Gila 
County for the work described below, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal 
and the said Surety bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and 
severally, firmly by these presents. 
 
WHEREAS, the Principal is herewith submitting its proposal for: 
 
 BID NO. 020917, FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 
 
NOW THEREFORE, if the Obligee, acting by and through its Public Works Director, accepts the proposal of the 
Principal and the Principal shall enter into contract with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such proposal, 
and give such bonds and certificates of insurance as may be specified in the contract documents with good and 
sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such contract and for the prompt payment of labor and material 
furnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter into such contract and 
give such bonds and certificates of insurance, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed 
the penalty of the bond between the amount specified in the proposal and such larger amount for which the 
Obligee may in good faith contract with another party to perform the work covered by the proposal then this 
obligation is void.  Otherwise, it remains in full force and effect provided, however, that this bond is executed 
pursuant to the provisions of ARS '34-201, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with 
the provisions of the section to the extent as if it were copied at length herein. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals: 
 
 

 
Principal Surety 
 

 
By By Attorney-in-Fact 
 

 
Title Address, Attorney-in-Fact 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this ____ day of __________, 20____ 

 
My commission expires: __________ 

 
 

Notary Public 

 



 

Page 65 of 81 
 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORM (QC-1 TO QC-2) 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the 
qualifications of Contractors under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
Contract Number 020917-FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 
 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a 

contract? 
________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting 
agency, and the reasons Contractor failed to perform, in the narrative part of this 
Contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or 

prohibited from competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give 
details, including the date, the contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors 
disqualification, and whether this disqualification remains in effect, in the narrative part 
of this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract for cause with Contractor (under 

your firm’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give 
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was 
terminated, in the narrative part of this Contract.  

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractors Firm. 
b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and 

made a full part of this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or 

similar to the Scope of Work described herein; shall be submitted on the 
Reference List, attached hereon and made a full part of this contract by this 
reference. 



 

Page 66 of 81 
 

 
d. List of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must 

accompany the Proposal.  The subcontractors Arizona ROC, contact name and phone # 

must be included. 

e. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified 
services. 

f. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 
6.  Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona: _______________________ 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a 
business’ computed loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by 
premium, can reward policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a 
determining factor in bid award. 
 

7. Current Arizona Contractor License Number:  __________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 

     
 _______________________________________________ 

      Printed Name 
 
 

     _______________________________________________ 
      Title 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 67 of 81 
 

 

 

 

GILA COUNTY 

REFERENCE LIST (RL-1) 
 
These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the 
Contractor under consideration for final award.  The information may be a determining factor in award. 
 
References 
Please list a minimum of four (4) references for projects of similar size and scope as this Invitation for 
Bids during the past twelve (12) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible. 

 

1. Company:           

Contact:           

Phone:            

Address:           
 

2. Company:           

Contact:           

Phone:           

Address:           
 

3. Company:           

Contact:           

Phone:           

Address:           
 

4. Company:           

Contact:           

Phone:           

Address:           

 
 

________________________________________ 
           Name of Business 
 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

________________________________________ 



 

Page 68 of 81 
 

            

AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR (ANC-1) 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                          
(Name of Individual) 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he is ____________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                  (Title)  
of_______________________________________________________________________________  and 
                                           (Name of Business) 
 
That he is properly prequalified by Gila County for bidding on BID NO. 020917, FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 
512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA and, 
 

That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he certifies as follows: 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________  
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                 (Name of Business) 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken 
any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________________ 

Name of Business 
 

____________________________________________  
By 

 
____________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ___________ day of ________________________, 20_______. 
 
______________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public 
 
 
 



 

Page 69 of 81 
 

 

GILA COUNTY 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING (SC-1) 

 
 
At the time of the submission of Invitation for Bid No. 020917, FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 
ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, my intention concerning subcontracting a portion of the work is 
as indicated below.   
 
In indicating that it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work, this will acknowledge 
that such subcontractors will be identified and approved by the County prior to award of 
contract; and that documentation, such as copies of letters, requests for quotations, etc., 
substantiating the actions taken and the responses to such actions is on file and available for 
review. 
 

 

 

 Yes     it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 

 No       it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________ 

       Name of Business 

 

_________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

_________________________________________ 

       Title 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

Page 70 of 81 
 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST (CK-1) 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and executed and 
submitted with this bid. If bidder fails to complete and execute any portion of the Bid 
Documents, this bid will be determined to be "non-responsive" and rejected. 
 
    CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT COMPLETED AND EXECUTED 

   Proposal ____________ 

   Price Sheet ____________ 

   Surety (Bid) Bond ____________  

   Qualification & Certification Form ____________ 

   Reference List ____________ 

   Affidavit of Non-Collusion ____________ 

   Subcontractor Certification ____________ 

   Contract ____________ 

   Bidders Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ____________   

      

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
   
  ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 
 

              #1    #2    #3    #4    #5  
          Initials and 
                  Date                          
 
 
          Signed and dated this ____________ day of____________________, 2017. 
 

                                       
__________________________________________ 

                                       CONTRACTOR: 
                                       
__________________________________________ 

                                       BY: 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to Gila County Procurement Department and 
bearing the following statement on the outside of the envelope: Proposal to Construct: FOREST 
SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, Gila County, Arizona, Bid No. 020917. All proposals 
shall be filed at Gila County Procurement, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501, on or before Thursday, 
March 16, 2017. 
 
 



 

Page 71 of 81 
 

GILA COUNTY 
CONTRACT NO. 020917 (C-1 TO C-7) 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _______ day of _________________, 
2017, by and between Gila County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, party of the 
first part, hereinafter designated the OWNER, and ______________________ of the City of 
________________, County of _________________, State of Arizona, party of the second part, 
hereinafter designated the CONTRACTOR.   
 
 

WITNESSETH:  That the said Contractor, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid 
him by the said Owner, in the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other 
covenants and agreements herein contained, and under the penalties expressed in the bond 
hereto attached, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as 
follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF WORK:  The Contractor shall furnish any and all materials, labor, 
equipment and services required for performing all work for Bid No. 020917, FOREST SERVICE 
RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA in accordance with the 
plans and these specifications, and to completely and totally construct the same and install the 
material herein for the Owner, in a good and workmanlike and substantial manner and to the 
satisfaction of the Owner through its Engineers and under the direction and supervision of the 
Engineer, or his properly authorized agents and strictly pursuant to and in conformity with the 
Specifications prepared by the Engineers for the Owner, and with such modifications of the 
same and other documents that may be made by the Owner through the Engineer, or his 
properly authorized agents, as provided herein. Once the Bid has been awarded the bid number 
020917 will become the Contract Number. 
 
 

ARTICLE II - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The attached “Call for Bids”, “Special Provisions”, 
“Proposal”, “Price Sheet”, “Bid Bond”, “Qualification & Certification Forms”, “Reference List”, 
“Affidavit of Non-Collusion”, “Subcontractor Certification”, “Employment Laws 
Acknowledgment”, “Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment”, “Performance Bond”, “Labor and 
Materials Bond”, “Contract Performance Bond”, and Plans thereto, if any, are by this reference 
made a part of this Contract to the same extent as if set forth herein in full.  In the event of any 
conflict or any inconsistency in the documents, controlling weight shall be assigned in the 
following order: the Contract; the Special Provisions; all other documents.  The Contract is 
considered invalid unless signed by the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 
 

ARTICLE III – SAFETY AND LOSS CONTROL:  The Gila County Safety and Loss Control booklet 
must be read and signed by all working at the job site. 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 72 of 81 
 

Contract continued… 

 
ARTICLE IV – INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE:  The Contractor agrees to indemnify and save 

harmless the County of Gila, its officers, agents and employees, and any jurisdiction or agency 
issuing permits for any work included in the project, their officers, agents and employees, 
hereinafter referred to as indemnitee, from all suits and claims, including attorney's fees and 
cost of litigation, actions, loss, damage, expense, cost or claims of any character or any nature 
arising out of the work done in fulfillment of the terms of this Contract or on account of any act, 
claim or amount arising or recovered under workers' compensation law or arising out of the 
failure of the Contractor to conform to any statutes, ordinances, regulation, law or court 
decree.  It is agreed that the Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, 
defense and judgment costs where this contract of indemnity applies.  In consideration of the 
award of this contract, the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the 
County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed 
by the Contractor for the County. 

 
ARTICLE V – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor and subcontractors shall procure 

and maintain until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods 
under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder 
by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. 
 
The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to 
protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work 
under this Contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees, or 
subcontractors.  Contractor is free to purchase such additional insurance as may be determined 
necessary. 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE - Contractor shall provide coverage with 

limits of liability not less than those stated below: 
 

 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, broad form contractual liability 
and XCU coverage. 

 General Aggregate                                                                          $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate                           $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury                                                   $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence                                                                             $1,000,000 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 73 of 81 
 

Contract continued… 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 
language: "The County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with 
respect to liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the 
Contractor". 

 
2. Automobile Liability 

Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in the 
performance of this Contract. 

  Combined Single Limit (CSL)                                                              $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: 
"The County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to 
liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, 
including automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor". 

 
3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of 
Gila. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to 

include, the following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the 
County of Gila shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by 
the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this 
Contract. 

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory 
with respect to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed 
under the indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of 

this Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, 
canceled, reduced in coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days 
prior written notice has been given to the County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to 
Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501 and shall be sent 
by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
 

 

 



 

Page 74 of 81 
 

Contract continued… 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or 

approved unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of 
not less than B+ VI.  The County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum 
insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of 

insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this 
Contract.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person 
authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before 

work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or 
prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration 
of the project.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to 
provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Betty Hurst, Contracts 

Administrator, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501.  The County project and contract 
number and project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County 
reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required 
by this Contract at any time.  

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as 

additional insureds under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate 
certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors 
shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this 

Contract shall be made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action 
will not require a formal Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
ARTICLE VI - TIME OF COMPLETION:  The Contractor further covenants and agrees, at 

his own proper cost and expense, to do all work and furnish all materials, labor, construction 
equipment, and services for performing all of the work for construction of said improvements 
and to completely construct the same and install the material therein, as called for by this 
agreement free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever, in the manner and under 
the conditions specified within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal. 
 
Work on this project shall start within no later than ten (10) Days of the commencement date 
on the Notice To Proceed, and shall be completed within the following limits: 
 
 

 

 

 



 

Page 75 of 81 
 

Contract continued… 

 

SCHEDULE: 

For construction in the contract documents, the project shall be completed within 30 Calendar 
Days of the commencement date as specified on the Notice To Proceed. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed that in case of failure on the part of the Contractor, for 
any reason, except with the written consent of the Engineer, to complete the work to the 
satisfaction of the Engineer and within the aforesaid time limits, the Owner may deduct from 
any money due, or which may become due the Contractor, as liquidated damages, an amount 
as fixed by the following schedule: 
 

  WORK ITEM                DAILY CHARGE PER CALENDAR DAY 

All work not complete within the                            $350.00 
above specified time after start of 
work. 
 
If no money shall be due the Contractor, the Owner shall have a cause of action to recover 
against the Contractor in a court of competent jurisdiction, liquidated damages as fixed by the 
above schedule; said deduction to be made, or said sum to be recovered, not as a penalty, but 
as liquidated damages; provided, however, that upon receipt of written notice from the 
Contractor, of the existence of causes, as herein provided, over which said Contractor has no 
control and which must delay the completion of the said work or any delay occasioned by the 
Owner, the Engineer may extend the period hereinafter specified for the completion of said 
work in accordance with the specifications and in such case, the Contractor shall become liable 
for said liquidated damages for delays commencing from date said extension period shall 
expire. 
 

ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION:  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to 
A.R.S. §38-511 and GENERAL PROVISION 108-10 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII - PAYMENTS:  The Contractor shall make an estimate of the work 
performed during the preceding month and submit the same to the Engineer for checking.  On 
or before thirty (30) days after the certified and approved estimate of the work is received by 
the Owner, the Owner shall pay to the Contractor ninety percent (90%) of the value of said 
work in place, as approved by the Engineer.  The balance of ten percent (10%) of the estimate 
shall be retained by the Owner until the time of final payment and acceptance of said work, as 
per A.R.S. §34-221(A)(2). 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 76 of 81 
 

Contract continued… 

 

ARTICLE IX – LAWS AND ORDINANCES:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the 
State of Arizona.  The Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and Local 
licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.   
 
The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable Federal regulations under the 
Act. 
 
 

ARTICLE X – LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE:  Contractor hereby warrants 
that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 
23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further 
ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract 
likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any 
subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration 
Laws.   

 
Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a 
material breach of this Contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including 
suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be required to take such 
steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided 
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to County approval if 
MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project completion.   
  
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s 
obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the 
following form: 
  
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply 
with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. §23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the 
Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these 
requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material 
breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
 
 
 

 

 



 

Page 77 of 81 
 

Contract continued… 

 
 Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall 
be the responsibility of Contractor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results 
in delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of Contractor’s approved construction or 
critical milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay for which 
Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 
 

ARTICLE XI – ISRAEL BOYCOTT CERTIFICATION: Contractor hereby certifies that it is not 
currently engaged in and will not, for the duration of this agreement, engage in a boycott of 
Israel as defined by A.R.S. § 35-393.01. Violation of this certification by Contractor may result in 
action by County up to and including termination of this agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical copies of this contract, each of which shall for all 
purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties hereinabove 
named, on the date and year first above written.  
 
In return for the performance of this Contract by the Contractor, the Owner agrees to pay the 
amount of _$______________________ INCLUDING ALL APPLICABLE TAXES through a 
payment schedule as described in the Contract documents and as may be modified and 
executed by change orders and by final quantities. 

The Contractor agrees that this contract, as awarded, is for the following work, and 
understands that payment for the total work will be made on the basis of the indicated 
amount(s), as bid in the Proposal and attached Price Sheet for: Forest Service Rd. No. 512 
Asphalt Patching Project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 78 of 81 
 

 

FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 
CONTRACT NO. 020917 

 
 

 
OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
__________________________________________         _______________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman, Board of Supervisors         Contractor Signature 
 

     
_______________________________________ 

     Print Name 
                                 

ATTEST:                                                                                       _______________________________________ 
                                                                           Witness (If Contractor is Individual) 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________________ 
Jefferson R. Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief 
for Bradley D. Beauchamp, County Attorney 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 79 of 81 
 

STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND (CPB-1) 

PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 
THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 
 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
That, 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  
  
and 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  
 
_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of 
___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by 
the Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter 
called the Obligee) in the amount of (100% OF CONTRACT 
AMOUNT)____________________________________________ dollars ($_________________), for the payment 
whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, successors, and 
assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: FOREST SERVICE 
RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, which contract is hereby referred to and 
made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully 
perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the 
original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of 
any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be 
made, notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, 
otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 
2, of the Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the 
provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable 
attorneys' fees as may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 
Witness our hands this __________ day of __________________________, 2017. 

 
          
Principal      Seal  
  
              
Surety       Seal  By: 
 
              
Agency of Record       By: 
 
              
Arizona Countersignature       Agency Address 
 
         
Address 
         
Phone Number 



 

Page 80 of 81 
 

STATUTORY LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND (LMB-1) 

PURSANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 
THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 

(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
That, 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  
 and 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  
 
_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of 
___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by 
the Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter 
called the Obligee) in the amount of (100% of Contract Amount)______________________________________ 
dollars ($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their 
heirs, administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: FOREST SERVICE 
RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, which contract is hereby referred to and 
made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully 
perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the 
original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of 
any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, 
conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be 
made, notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, 
otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 
2, of the Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the 
provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable 
attorneys' fees as may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 
Witness our hands this __________ day of __________________________, 2017. 

 
          
Principal      Seal  
  
              
Surety       Seal  By: 
 
              
Agency of Record       By: 
 
              
Arizona Countersignature       Agency Address 
 
         
Address 
 
         
Phone Number 



 

Page 81 of 81 
 

GILA COUNTY 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY (CPW-1) 

 
 
 
 
I, _______________________________________________________, representing 
 
_____________________________________________________ (company name) 
 
do hereby warranty the work performed for the:  
 
 
 
FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA,  
 
for a period of two (2) years from completion of said work.   
 
Said work shall be free from defects which would cause the work not to perform in its intended 
manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
(Officer, Partner, Owner)                             Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

APPENDIX A 
(PATCHING LOCATIONS) 



FS ROAD 512 ASPHALT PATCHING LOCATIONS

LENGTH WIDTH AREA
LOCATION (FT) (FT) (SQ YD)
FS512 RD - A 15 25 41.67
FS512 RD - B 17 38 71.78
FS512 RD - C1 13 44 63.56
FS512 RD - C2 12 52 69.33
FS512 RD - C3 12 68 90.67
FS512 RD - C4 19 40 84.44
FS512 RD - C5 10 67 74.44
FS512 RD - C6 12 30 40.00
FS512 RD - F 11 30 36.67
FS512 RD - G 17 25 47.22
FS512 RD - H 12 28 37.33
FS512 RD - I 10 50 55.56
FS512 RD - J 8 15 13.33
FS512 RD - K 11 23 28.11
FS512 RD - L 10 15 16.67
FS512 RD - M 8 23 20.44
FS512 RD - N 8 45 40.00

SUBTOTAL 831.22
10% OF TOTAL 83.12

TOTAL 914.34



 

 

APPENDIX B 
(PATCHING LOCATION MAP) 



_̂

_̂

M311

M311.90 (At Chamberlain Tr)

AZ
 HI

GH
WA

Y 2
88

µ0 0.5 10.25
Miles

1 in = 0.5 miles

Project Location

Legend
_̂ Mile Markers

Project Location
Other Streets
State Highway

FS 512

FS 512
Bridge

Patching Location

Patching Location

End of
Pavement



PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

03-02-17  Issued Addendum No. 1

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

GILA COUNTY

Roy Haught Excavating

FIRM NAME

Intermountain West

PLAN HOLDER LIST

haughtroy@yahoo.com

bids@imwcc.net 

ccherry@sunlandasphalt.comSunland Asphalt

Due Date: 03/16/17

020917

MAILING ADDRESS

Arizona Pavement Profiling

Midstate Asphalt Services, LLC

RD Sanders Construction

midstateasphalt@yahoo.com

rsanders@msn.com

Western States Profiling bgallimore@wspinc.net

jacks@nesbitts.com

480-745-5456

602-323-2800

Randy SullivanSullivan Paving sulpave@cableone.net

Payson Concrete & Materials pcmpsn@gmail.com

CONTACT NAME

Robert

Chance Cherry

Debbie

Tony McDaniel

928-474-2454

3/11/2016

480-966-6094

928-474-2231

Forest Service Rd No. 512-Asphalt 

Patching Project

602-809-3152

928-425-4430

Randy Sanders

Bryan Gallimore

928-978-5728

602-920-9304

Jack Sawyer

Paul Randall

DATE ADDENDUMTELEPHONE

3/2/2017

PLANS

mailto:haughtroy@yahoo.com
mailto:bids@imwcc.net
mailto:ccherry@sunlandasphalt.com
mailto:midstateasphalt@yahoo.com
mailto:rsanders@msn.com
mailto:bgallimore@wspinc.net
mailto:jacks@nesbitts.com
mailto:sulpave@cableone.net
mailto:pcmpsn@gmail.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

 

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

 

NGU Contracting ngucontracting@gmail.com 602-694-3301 Jimmy Johnson 3/11/2016

Regional Pavement Maintenance justin@regionalaz.com 602-677-4870 Justin Kloszewski

Hatch Construction & Paving robin@hatchmaterials.com 928-457-6564 Robin Hargrave

Blue Book aphillips@thebluebook.com 855-805-2560  ext 3096Anglea Phillips

Alliance Street Works ed.alliance@yahoo.com 928-567-8696 Ed Riddell 3/11/2016

Cactus Asphalt jabram@cactusasphalt.com 602-377-5651 Jeff Abram 3/11/2016

Dodge Data & Analytics Breanna.treto@construction.com 626-737-7447 Breanna Treto

Waltz Construction jeff@waltzconstruction.com 480-759-9622 Jeff Baer

GILA COUNTY

State Constructors brpave1@hotmail.com

GILA COUNTY

Due Date: 03/16/2017

PLAN HOLDER LIST 020917

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS PLANS ADDENDUM

3/11/2016

DATE

928-978-0440 Buddy Randall

Forest Service Road No. 512-

Asphalt Patching Project

TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME

mailto:ngucontracting@gmail.com
mailto:justin@regionalaz.com
mailto:robin@hatchmaterials.com
mailto:aphillips@thebluebook.com
mailto:ed.alliance@yahoo.com
mailto:jabram@cactusasphalt.com
mailto:Breanna.treto@construction.com
mailto:jeff@waltzconstruction.com
mailto:brpave1@hotmail.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

  

Title

      

 

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFBBlack Mountain Excavating blackmountainexcavating@hotmail.com 928-474-5322 Lori

Oddonetto Construction moddonetto@oddonetto.net 928-425-3605 Michael Oddonetto

Stodghill Excavating office2@stodghilltrucking.com 928-476-3554

5D Mining and Construction dusty@live.com 928-200-8697 Ben Dalmolin 3/11/2016

Dalmolin Excavating dalmolinexc@cableone.com 928-425-2256

EW Parker Enterpises wparkerenterprises@hotmail.com 928-978-0902 EW Parker

DATE PLANS ADDENDUM

3/11/2016

Gold Horizon Contracting goldhorizoncontracting@gmail.com 602-413-2013 Steve Green

Mangum Civil Constructors l.plante@mangumgroup.com 928-970-1286 Luke Plante

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME

Due Date: 03/16/2017

Forest Service Rd No. 512-Asphalt 

Patching Project

PLAN HOLDER LIST Bid No:  020917

mailto:blackmountainexcavating@hotmail.com
mailto:moddonetto@oddonetto.net
mailto:office2@stodghilltrucking.com
mailto:dusty@live.com
mailto:dalmolinexc@cableone.com
mailto:wparkerenterprises@hotmail.com
mailto:goldhorizoncontracting@gmail.com
mailto:l.plante@mangumgroup.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

 

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

Earth Resources Corp.

Combs Construction Company patrick@combsaz.com 480-381-1747 Patrick Waters 3/11/2016

D J Company djsco50@hotmail.com 928-425-0602 Daniel

Perkins Cinders pci@citlink.net 928-537-2008 Brandon

Jane Wood505-243-9793jane@constructionreporter.comConstruction Reporter

Wyatt W. Orr928-775-2795wwo5th@yahoo.com

DD Haught Construction dd.haught@yahoo.com 928-472-8846 Hooter 3/11/2016

Rodriguez Constructions art@rodriguez-az.com 928-425-7244 Art

DATE PLANS ADDENDUM

Visus Engineering Construction jkerr@visusinc.com 480-833-8268 Robert Smith 3/11/2016

J4 Excavating j4excavating@yahoo.com 928-978-8837 Estimating 3/11/2016

GILA COUNTY

Due Date: 03/16/2017

Forest Service Rd No. 512-Asphalt 

Patching Project

PLAN HOLDER LIST 020917

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME

mailto:djsco50@hotmail.com
mailto:pci@citlink.net
mailto:wwo5th@yahoo.com
mailto:dd.haught@yahoo.com
mailto:art@rodriguez-az.com
mailto:jkerr@visusinc.com
mailto:j4excavating@yahoo.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

 

  

Title

      

 

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

GILA COUNTY

Due Date: 03/16/2017

Forest Service Rd No. 512-Asphalt 

Patching Project

PLAN HOLDER LIST 020917

 

FIRM NAME MAILING ADDRESS TELEPHONE CONTACT NAME DATE PLANS ADDENDUM

Rummel Construction agribler@rummelconstruction.com 480-222-9922  ext 222 Amber Gribler

NGU Contracting john@ngucontracting.com 480-738-9758 John Johnson 3/11/2016

Ricor, Inc. bryan@ricorinc.com 602-437-0202 Bryan Normand 3/11/2016

ACE Asphalt harraht@aceasphalt.com 602-304-4068 Tim Harrah 3/11/2016

ABC Asphalt erica@abcasphalt.com 602-377-1282 Dave McKelvie 3/11/2016

Tiffany Construction jtiffany@tiffanyconst.com 928-322-4447 Boomer Schlesever 3/11/2016

Pima Paving howie@pimapaving.com 520-404-1323 Howard Stough 3/11/2016

Meadow Valley Construction jorci@accbuilt.com 623-330-9352 Jesus Orci 3/11/2016

mailto:agribler@rummelconstruction.com
mailto:john@ngucontracting.com
mailto:bryan@ricorinc.com
mailto:harraht@aceasphalt.com
mailto:erica@abcasphalt.com
mailto:jtiffany@tiffanyconst.com
mailto:howie@pimapaving.com
mailto:jorci@accbuilt.com


PLAN HOLDER LIST

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

3/1/2017 IFB

Rock Country Contracting rocky@frontier.net 928-368-8227 Rob Carlson 3/11/2016

Cholla Pavement rocky@frontier.net 928-368-8227 Rob Carlson 3/11/2016

 Bear Ridge Industries bearrodgeomd@gmail.com 928-363-1323 Liz Cardenez 3/11/2016

mailto:rocky@frontier.net
mailto:rocky@frontier.net
mailto:bearrodgeomd@gmail.com


INVITATION FOR BID NO. 020917 
ADDENDUM #1 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 

FOREST SERVICE RD NO. 512 ASPHALT PATCHING PROJECT 

INVITATION FOR BID NO. 020917 

 

ADDENDUM #1:   

DATE: 03/02/17 

 

CLARIFICATIONS: 

 

1. QUESTION:  What is the anticipated award date? 

ANSWER:  April 18th Board of Supervisors meeting. 

 

2. QUESTION:  What is the anticipated NTP date for this project? 

 ANSWER:  Anticipated NTP date will likely be May 8, 2017. The County would have to discuss any 

changes to these anticipated dates with the winning bidder. Prospective bidders should assume this 

date as most probable for the NTP.  

 

3. QUESTION:  What is the Engineer’s estimate? 

 ANSWER:  This information can be found on the County website under the 2-21-17 Regular BOS 

Meeting.  

 

4. QUESTION: Nearest fire hydrant, water source? 

 ANSWER: Contractor shall secure their own water source per the Construction Water section of the 

General Requirements – see page 8 of 81 of the bid documents. 

 

5. QUESTION: Available staging area? 

 ANSWER: No staging area have been designated for this project. Contractor shall secure their own 

staging locations as deemed necessary. Some of the larger pullouts within the project limits and in close 

proximity may be used for temporary staging as approved by the Engineer. 

 

 

 

This concludes Addendum No. 1 to Invitation for Bid No. 020917 



      BID  

TITLE:

      BID              DUE

      NO.: DATE:
 

1

2

3

4

5

6

Magnum Civil Constructors $98,576.19

Cactus Asphalt $183,915.00

GILA COUNTY

Roy Haught Excavating $88,572.00  

$69,540.00

BID RESULTS

R

A

N

K

I

N

G

Pima Paving $102,983.25

Forest Service Rd No 512 Asphalt Patching Project

020917 03/30/17-3:00 P.M.

COMMENTSBIDDER FIRM NAME BID AMOUNT

Intermountain West

 Hatch Construction $79,605.00

















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































   
ARF-4278   Regular Agenda Item     3. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager 
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Appoint members to the Gila County Fair and Racing Commission to
serve as lead governance structure at the Gila County Fairgrounds.

Background Information
The Gila County Fair and Racing Commission was established 50 years
ago by the Board of Supervisors to assist with the governance of the Gila
County Fairgrounds.  The last formal action by the Board of Supervisors
to appoint individuals to this Commission appears to have been in March
2002, according to a recent search of the official minutes of the Board of
Supervisors.  Given that it has been 15 years since appointments were
last made, those terms have long since expired; however, those dedicated
volunteers have continued in their appointed roles.  In order to bring this
Commission into compliance with current Gila County rules and
standards regarding Board-appointed commissions, the Fair and Racing
Commission members need to be formally re-appointed.

Evaluation
The Fairgrounds is a valuable asset in the community and the formal
governance structure needs to be re-established and maintained in order
to manage the Fairgrounds in a manner that results in the Fairgrounds
becoming an economic development asset and one that showcases the
facility to the residents and visitors to Gila County. 

Conclusion
Re-appointing the Fair and Racing Commission helps preserve the
community involvement in the Fairgrounds and will help to re-establish
the formal organizational structure.

Recommendation
Staff recommends re-establishing the Fair and Racing Commission as the



Staff recommends re-establishing the Fair and Racing Commission as the
Board appointed Commission to coordinate activities and events that are
important to the local area and preserve the purpose and mission of the
Gila County Fairgrounds. Staff further recommends that this Commission
agrees to comply with various requirements including meeting at least
annually with the Board of Supervisors to report on their various
activities and events, and create bylaws and work to become a legally
recognized entity. State law requires that all official appointed committees
and commissions conduct their meetings in accordance with the Open
Meeting Law.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to formally establish the Fair and Racing
Commission as a seven member board to assist in the governance of the
Gila County Fairgrounds; appoint the following members:  Bill Byrne,
Chairman-April 18, 2017 through December 30, 2021; Christy Lavin,
Secretary-April 18, 2017 through December 30, 2021; Melva Enders,
Treasurer-April 18, 2017 through December 30, 2019; Andy Hetrick,
Member-April 18, 2017 through December 30, 2019; Janet Cline,
Member-April 18, 2017 through December 30, 2021; Floyd Livingood,
Member- April 18, 2017 through December 30, 2021; Sherron Lavin, Past
Chair-April 18, 2017 through December 30, 2019; and direct staff to work
with the newly appointed members of the Fair and Racing Commission for
the purpose of creating bylaws and seeking input relative to their vision
for the future management of the Gila County Fairgrounds. (Michael
Scannell)

Attachments
GC Fair and Racing Commission-List of Board of Directors



 

 

GILA COUNTY FAIR AND RACING COMMISSION 

(Proposed to the BOS on 4/18/17) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Bill Byrne (Chairman) D A (04/18/17)  04/18/17-12/31/21 04/18/17-12/31/21* 

Christy Lavin (Secretary) D A (04/18/17))  04/18/17-12/31/21 04/18/17-12/31/21* 

Melva Enders (Treasurer) D A (04/18/17)  04/18/17-12/31/19 04/18/17-12/31/19* 

Andy Hetrick D A (04/18/17)  04/18/17-12/31/19 04/18/17-12/31/19* 

Janet Cline D A (04/18/17)  04/18/17-12/31/21 04/18/17-12/31/21* 

Floyd Livingood D A (04/18/17)  04/18/17-12/31/21 04/18/17-12/31/21* 

Sherron Lavin (Past Chair) D A (04/18/17)  04/18/17-12/31/19 04/18/17-12/31/19* 

*All subsequent terms of office will be for 4 years. 

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  March 3, 1969, the Board of Supervisors unanimously voted to combine the Fair Commission and the Racing Commission to be called the Gila County Fair and Racing 
Commission. 

B. The Commission shall consist of 7 members who shall be qualified electors of the county.  The terms of the members of the Commission shall be for four years except for those initially 
appointed (to have staggered terms.) 
 

2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

 
3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 

 

 



   
ARF-4297   Regular Agenda Item     3. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County Manager/Librarian
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District
Fiscal Year: 2018 Budgeted?: Yes
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2017-June 30,
2018

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Establish employee contribution rates and benefit changes for employee
and family coverage for FY 2018 for Arizona Local Government Employee
Benefit Trust  (AZLGEBT) plans.

Background Information
Gila County joined AZLGEBT on July 1, 1999.  AZLGEBT provides
medical, prescription, dental, vision, disability and life insurance
coverage, as well as a wellness program for eligible Gila County employees
and dependents.  Over the past 18 years there have been various changes
and modifications to the plan and to the County’s responsibility for
administering of the plan.  New and future changes mandated with Health
Care Reform will continue to add layers of complexity to our
administration of our self-insured trust. 

In FY 2015, the AZLGEBT added a High Deductible Health Plan (HDHP),
Health Savings Accounts (HSAs), and a buy-up dental plan.  Additionally,
Gila County established one contribution rate for all employees, with the
exception of freezing the lowest of the old rates (Tier I) for
the ten employees at that rate at that time. It was determined that
those ten employees would automatically move to the standard rate when
their pay exceeded $21,611.20 per year. There is currently one employee
left in this closed group. In FY 2016 AZLGEBT added a Flexible Spending
Account (FSA) option to the plan.

In FY 2017, the total cost of the health insurance
premiums increased approximately 5.66%, or $29.19 per month



premiums increased approximately 5.66%, or $29.19 per month
for employee only coverage and 4.81% or  $59.77 per month for family
coverage, and the county and employees shared this increase, which
resulted in an increase in premiums to employees of $3.50 per month for
employee coverage and $14.50 per month for family coverage. There was
an increase of $5.00 in the prescription co-pay and no increase to
deductibles or medical co-pays.

For FY 2018, there is a $0.37 cent increase to employee premiums and a
$1.47 increase in family coverage. These represent less than a 1%
increase in total premium costs.  

Evaluation
For FY18 there will be an increase to deductibles, co-pays and out of
pocket maximums as follows:
PPO Plan
• Increase In-Network Deductible from $400 to $500 - per participant
• Increase Out-of-Network Deductible from $1,000 to $1,500 - per
participant
• Increase In-Network Out-of-Pocket Maximum from $5,000 to $5,500 –
Employee
• Increase In-Network Out-of-Pocket Maximum from $13,700 to $14,300 –
Family
• Increase Copay from $25 to $30 

 PCP Office Visits
Chiropractic Visits
Out-Patient Lab Costs Under $500
In-Office Lab Costs by PCP
Out-Patient X-Rays
In-Office X-Rays by PCP
Hearing Exams & Testing

•  Increase Copay from $35 to $45 

Specialist Office Visits
In-Office Lab Costs by Specialist
X-Rays by Specialist

HDHP
• Increase In-Network Deductible from $3,500 to $3,750- Employee
• Increase In-Network Deductible from $7,000 to $7,500- Family

PRESCRIPTION DRUGS - No Changes
DENTAL - No Changes



VISION - No Changes
LIFE- No Changes

There are two new added benefits for employees; adding an Employee
Assistance Program (EAP) 3 visits per issue, and adding Teladoc for a $25
copay for PPO, and $45/visit until deductible is reached for the HDHP.
These two new benefits will be introduced and discussed in a presentation
to the Board of Supervisors in May, during Open Enrollment.

Once again, Open Enrollment for the AZLGEBT plan will take place in
May and will be a ''passive enrollment" utilizing the SmartBen web portal.
 Employees who wish to change their benefit selections or add other
options will be able to make those changes during Open Enrollment. The
Human Resources Department will be providing information to all benefit
eligible employees about Open Enrollment.  Staff from Erin Collins and
Associates (ECA) and Gilsbar will be on site in Gila County on May 9 and
10, 2017 during open enrollment to meet with employees and answer
questions. Staff from ECA and staff from Holman Frazier (Employee
Assistance Program) will be on site in Gila County on May 22, 2017, for
further training and support.

Conclusion
As health care continues to become more complex, AZLGEBT has
continued to strategically expand options for members, while continuing
the commitment to provide an affordable benefit package to Gila County
employees and their families.

To remain fair and consistent with the health insurance plan, and since
employees who use the insurance plan will be paying additional
for deductibles and office visits, staff believes that the small increase in
premiums should be absorbed by the County as a prudent financial step
for the County. While other government employers in the area have
experienced 15% increases year over year, the average 5.24% increase in
AZLGEBT speaks to how well the plan is managed. One of the
cornerstones of a well managed plan is the shared cost between
employers and employees.

Recommendation
Staff recommend the following for FY 2018: 

No increase to premium rates for employees.  Combined rates
will remain at $68.50 per month for employee only coverage, and
$320.50 per month for family coverage, with a continuation of
the $20 per month discount for all employees who participate in
the annual Health Risk Assessment (HRA).



the annual Health Risk Assessment (HRA).
Reconfirm the Gila County base contribution rates for the Health
Savings Account (HSA) system at $10 per month for single
coverage and $25 per month for family coverage.
Reconfirm the dollar-for-dollar matching contribution into the
HSA system up to an additional $40 per month for single
employee coverage, and $75 per month for family coverage.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action regarding premium rates in the Arizona
Local Government Employee Benefit Trust for Gila County's employee
insurance and benefit plans to be effective as of July 1, 2017, as follows: 
Adopt Schedule A - Employee Insurance Contributions FY 2018 (attached
to the agenda item).  (Jacque Sanders)

Attachments
Schedule A.
AZLGEBT Plan changes FY18



Schedule A: Employee Insurance Contributions FY 2018 

 

Gila County Employee Insurance Contributions FY 2018 

Effective 07-01-17 

Single Coverage PPO and HDHP 
 Monthly Premium without 

HRA discount 
Pay period premium 
without 
HRA  discount 

Medical          62.50       31.25 
Vision            2.00         1.00 
Ameritas Dental Network            4.00         2.00 
TOTAL          68.50       34.25 
   
ANY Dental Network            7.10         3.55 

 

Family Coverage 
 Monthly Premium without 

HRA discount 
Pay period premium 
without 
HRA  discount 

Medical        299.50     149.75 
Vision            5.00         2.50 
Ameritas Dental Network          16.00         8.00 
TOTAL        320.50     160.25 
   
ANY Dental Network           23.40        11.70 

 

Health Risk Assessment participation results in a $20 per month ($10 per pay period) earned premium reduction. 

INFORMATION REGARDING HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNTS – H.S.A.’S (WITH HDHP ONLY) 

Single Coverage: Gila County will put $10 per month in an H.S.A account. 
   Gila County will match up to an additional $40 per month 

Total possible contribution from Gila County per year - $600 
Total new contribution limit into H.S.A. for 2017- $3,400 (additional carryover allowed) 

 
Family Coverage: Gila County will put $25 per month into an H.S.A account 
   Gila County will match up to an additional $75 per month 
   Total possible contribution from Gila County per year- $1200 
   Total new contribution limit into H.S.A. for 2017 -$6,750 (additional carryover allowed) 



 

AZLGEBT – 2017-2018 Plan Year Changes 
All of the changes below are effective July 1, 2017 

 
MEDICAL 
Both Plans – PPO and HDHP 

• Add Employee Assistance Program (EAP)-3 Visits Per Issue 
 

PPO Plan 
• Increase In-Network Deductible from $400 to $500 – Per Participant 
• Increase Out-of-Network Deductible from $1,000 to $1,500 – Per Participant 

 
• Increase In-Network Out-of-Pocket Maximum from $5,000 to $5,500 – Employee 
• Increase Out-of-Network Out-of-Pocket Maximum from $13,700 to $14,300 – Family  
 
• Increase Copay from $25 to $30 

o PCP Office Visits 
o Chiropractic Visits 
o Out-Patient Lab Costs Under $500 
o In-Office Lab Costs by PCP 
o Out-Patient X-Rays 
o In-Office X-Rays by PCP 
o Hearing Exams & Testing 

 
• Increase Copay from $35 to $45 

o Specialist Office Visits 
o Urgent Care 
o In-Office Lab Costs by Specialist 
o X-Rays by Specialist 

 
• Add Teladoc at a $25 Copay 

 
HDHP  

• Increase In-Network Deductible/Out-of-Pocket from $3,500 to $3,750- Employee 
• Increase In-Network Deductible/Out-of-Pocket from $7,000 to $7,500- Family 

 
• Add Teladoc- $45 Per Visit until Deductible is met and then Plan pays 100% 

 
PRESCRIPTION DRUG 

• No Changes 
 

DENTAL 
• No Changes 

 
VISION 

• No Changes 
 
LIFE 

• No Changes 



   
ARF-4266   Regular Agenda Item     3. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Director 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Public Works
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: No
Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

N/A Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County's Purchase of State-owned Tax Parcel Number 102-13-032-F

Background Information
A.R.S. § 42-18303 (E) states, "The board of supervisors may accept an
offer from, and sell real property held by this state by tax deed to, the
county or a city, town or special taxing district in the county for a
public purchase related to transportation or flood control.  The board
of supervisors shall convey the deed and apportion the monies
received in the transaction prescribed by this action."  The Board of
Supervisors is statutorily authorized to sell these properties under the
following statute:

In 2013, Assessor's parcel number 102-13-032-F was deeded to the State
of Arizona c/o Board of Supervisors.  An auction was held that year and it
did not sell at the auction; therefore, it was added to a list of properties
that are available for purchase year-round.

Evaluation
This parcel is a road called Coles Way and it is located off of Pinal View
Drive, Ice House Canyon, Globe, Arizona.  Steve Sanders, Public Works
Division Director, would like the County to purchase the parcel as it can
be used for a public purpose for transportation or flood control.  The
Board of Supervisors previously adopted a policy regarding the sale of any
State-owned land that is in the care of the Board of Supervisors.  The lien
amount on this property is $1,538.64; however, it meets the requirement



amount on this property is $1,538.64; however, it meets the requirement
to sell the property for a lesser amount.

Conclusion
It would be advantageous to sell the subject parcel to Gila County for $1
as it will be used for a public purpose for transportation or flood control.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider selling the
subject property to Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the sale of Assessor's tax
parcel number 102-13-032-F to Gila County for $1 so that it can be used
for a public purpose related to transportation or flood control pursuant to
Arizona Revised Statute § 42-18303 (E); and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the related Quit Claim Deed.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments
Quit Claim Deed-Parcel No. 102-13-032-F
Information for Parcel No. 102-13-032-F



QCD-102-13-032-F   Page 1 of 2 

When recorded return to:     
Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 
 

 GILA COUNTY QUIT-CLAIM DEED 
                                                                                                                                                   

THIS QUIT CLAIM DEED, made this 18th day of April 2017, between the State of Arizona, by and 
through the Gila County Board of Supervisors, Grantor, and Gila County, Grantee.  

 
Address of Grantee:  1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona  85501 
 
 RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the real property hereinafter described was conveyed to the State of Arizona by 

Treasurer's Deed for the non-payment of taxes, which taxes had been legally assessed against, and 
became a lien upon, said property according to law; and 
 

WHEREAS, in accordance with A.R.S. §42-18303(E), the Board of Supervisors may accept an offer 
from, and sell real property held by the State of Arizona by tax deed to, the county or a city, town or 
special taxing district in the county for a public purpose related to transportation or flood control; and  

 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the citizens of Gila County would benefit from the 

purchase of a parcel of land to be used for a public purpose related to transportation or flood control that 
was previously deeded to the State of Arizona by the County Treasurer; and  
 

WHEREAS, on the 18th day of April 2017, Grantee did purchase said property for the sum of One 
Dollar ($1.00); 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, Grantor does hereby quit-claim to Grantee 
the following described real property situated in the County of Gila, State of Arizona. 

  
 Assessor’s Tax Parcel Number:  102-13-032-F 
  
 Legal Description:   
  

PARCEL OF LAND USED AS EASEMENT FOR INGRESS AND EGRESS AND PUBLIC UTILITIES PER ROS 1123 
NW1/4 SEC25 T2S R15E; 0.79AC (OUT OF 102-13-032B) 

   
 Exempt from Affidavit of Property Value pursuant to A.R.S. §11-1134 (A) (3) 

 
Grantor:            Attest: 

  
 
_________________________________   ______________________________ 

 Tommie C. Martin, Chairman       Marian Sheppard, Clerk 
Gila County Board of Supervisors      Gila County Board of Supervisors 

             
 
 
 
 



QCD-102-13-032-F   Page 2 of 2 

 
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
     ) SS      ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
COUNTY OF GILA    )       

  
 
Before me, Melissa Henderson, a Notary Public in and for the County of Gila, State of Arizona, on this 18th 
day of April 2016, personally appeared Tommie C. Martin, Chairman, Board of Supervisors, Gila County, 
Arizona, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein expressed. 

 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Notary Public 

                 My Commission Expires:                    















   
ARF-4288   Consent Agenda Item     4. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Order No. LL-14-05-RTR - Trident Winery's Series 19 Remote Tasting
Room Application

Background Information
On July 1, 2014, the Board of Supervisors unanimously voted to
recommend the Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control's
(DLLC) approval of a Series 13 Domestic Farm Winery license for Trident
Winery, which was later approved by the DLLC.  Ray Stephens, Jr. is the
owner and applicant.

Mr. Stephens has a remote tasting room for Trident Winery that is located
at 6261 Hardscrabble Mesa Road, Pine, Arizona.  He has submitted an
application to the DLLC to establish a remote tasting room at 6373 Ruin
Hill Loop, Pine, Arizona, as he intends on closing the current location. 
When the initial remote tasting room application was submitted to Gila
County, this liquor license series was fairly new so the DLLC had not
established the local governing body's requirements.  Since that time,
there have been very few such applications submitted in the state.  On
February 9, 2015, the initial application was reviewed and approved by
Robert Gould, former Gila County Community Development Division
Director and currently the Gila County Planner, and forwarded to the
DLLC for final approval.  Mr. Gould's review was strictly with regard to
ensuring that the remote tasting room fit in with the proper zoning of the
area.  The DLLC did not send that application to the Board of Supervisors.

On March 28, 2017, the Clerk of the Board received Mr. Stephens'
application from the DLLC.  Mr. Gould also received the application.

Evaluation
The DLLC requires that remote tasting rooms must be owned and



The DLLC requires that remote tasting rooms must be owned and
operated by a licensee that concurrently owns on of these four Arizona
liquor licenses:  1) Out-of-state Farm Winery-Series 2W; 2) Out-of-state
Craft Distillery-Series 2D; 3) In-state Farm Winery Application Kit-Series
13; or 4) In-state Craft Distiller Application Kit-Series 18.  Mr. Stephens is
the licensee of an In-State Farm Winery for Trident Winery.  

The application has been reviewed by Planning and Zoning Division and
it has been verified that the proposed location of the remote tasting room
is not within 300 feet of a church or school.  On March 20, 2017, Robert
Gould, Planner for the Gila County Community Development Division,
verified that the proposed location of the remote tasting room is within the
proper zoning.  application.  The application has also been reviewed by
the Gila County Health Department to ensure there are no other
permitting requirements needs from that department. 

Conclusion
The application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision.  This is the only Arizona liquor license application which first is 
approved by the local government.  (All other liquor license applications
receive a recommendation from the local governing body for the DLLC's
approval of disapproval.)

Recommendation
An internal review of the application has been concluded resulting in no
concerns; therefore, staff recommends the Board of Supervisors' approval
of the application.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Order No. LL-14-05-RTR, which is a Series 19-Application for
a Remote Tasting Room submitted by Ray Stephens, Jr. for Trident
Winery, whereby a remote tasting room will be established at 6373 Ruin
Hill Loop, Pine, Arizona.

Attachments
Order No. LL-14-05-RTR
Trident Winery - CDD Approval
Trident Winery - H&EMD Approval
Trident Winery - Gila County Planner Approval
Trident Winery Application
Additional Information



Additional Information

























   
ARF-4289   Consent Agenda Item     4. B.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Mi Familia Mexican Food Application for a Temporary Extension of
Premises/Patio Permit.

Background Information
Any establishment that has been issued a liquor license must submit an
Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit to the local governing
body of the city, town or county where the establishment is located.  The
application can be submitted to temporarily or permanently extend the
premises/patio where serving liquor is permitted by the Arizona
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (DLLC).  The local governing
body usually has established internal procedures for review and approval
of the application.  The DLLC has final approval of all recommendations
submitted by the local governing body. 

James Martin Escobar has submitted an application to temporarily
extend the premises/patio of the Mi Familia Mexican Food for an event to
be held on May 5th and the 6th, 2017.  Mi Familia Mexican Food is
located in Pine, Arizona.

Evaluation
The application has been reviewed by the Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors Department, and Community Development Division Chief
Building Official, Scott Buzan, who is familiar with the premises, and
there are no objections with regard to this application. 

Conclusion
The application is ready to be presented to the Board of Supervisors for a
decision.  The Board's recommendation will then be sent to the DLLC for
a final decision.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval



It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors issue an approval
recommendation to the DLLC. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Application for Extension of Premises/Patio Permit
submitted by James Martin Escobar to temporarily extend the premises
where liquor is permitted to be served at the Mi Familia Mexican Food,
located in Pine, at an event to be held on May 5-6, 2017.

Attachments
Community Approval - Mi Familia
Mi Familia Application













   

ARF-4276   Consent Agenda Item     4. C.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.
Fiscal Year: 2016-2017 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to Funding Agreement No. 203-16 with the Arizona Department of Housing (ADOH)
for the Weatherization Assistance Program.

Background Information
The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Funding Agreement No. 203-16 on July 5, 2016.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 1 on August 15, 2016.

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved Amendment No. 2 on January 10, 2017.

Evaluation
Funding Agreement No. 203-16 has been amended to include a decrease in Department of Energy (DOE)
Administrative Funding from $3,474 to $974; a decrease in DOE Program Operations Funding from
$28,339 to $1,339; and a decrease in DOE Health and Safety Funding from $5,001 to $1 for a total
DOE funding decrease of $34,500.

The Request for Payment form is amended to include a decrease in DOE Administrative Funding from
$3,474 to $974; a decrease in DOE Program Operations Funding from $28,339 to $1,339; and a
decrease in DOE Health and Safety Funding from $5,001 to $1 for a total DOE budget of $9,047.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 3 to Funding Agreement No. 203-16, the Budget
will decrease for Department of Energy (DOE) Administrative Funding, DOE Program Operations
Funding, and DOE Health and Safety Funding; the Request for Payment form will include a decrease in
DOE Program Operations Funding, and DOE Health and Safety Funding.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this
Amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Funding Agreement No. 203-16 between the Arizona Department of
Housing and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Housing Services, to amend the Budget
and Request for Payment pages whereby funding from the Department of Energy has been decreased by
a total amount of $34,500.



Attachments
Amendment No. 3 to Agreement No. 203-16
Amendment No. 2 to Agreement No. 203-16
Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. 203-16
Agreement No. 203-16



















































































































































   
ARF-4275   Consent Agenda Item     4. D.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Allison Torres, Case Manager
Department: Community Services Division: GEST Department

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 2 to Request for Qualified Vendor Agreement (RFQVA) No.
DDD 710000 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security,
Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD), and Gila County d/b/a Gila
Employment and Special Training (GEST).

Background Information
On September 16, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Amendment
No. 1 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000.  Upon receipt of Amendment No. 1, the
Arizona Department of Economic Security (ADES) notified the Gila County
GEST Department that the amendment needed to be corrected and
returned to ADES as soon as possible.  Former Chairman Pastor signed
the corrected Amendment No. 1 on October 6, 2014, and it was then
resubmitted to ADES.

Evaluation
This Amendment contains the following documents; RFQVA Amendment
No. 2; Attachment - J, Business Associate Agreement; and Attachment -
L, Boycott of Israel, in order to continue to provide and be reimbursed for
services.  The submittal of said documents will allow the GEST
Department to maintain a Qualified Vendor Agreement with the DDD.

Conclusion
Amendment No. 2 to the RFQVA No. DDD 710000, will allow the GEST
Department to continue to provide DDD services to residents of Gila
County, and remain in compliance with federal and state regulations and
provisions of the RFQVA.

Recommendation
The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of



The Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve Amendment No. 2 to the RFQVA No. DDD 710000 in
order for the GEST Department to continue to provide services to eligible
residents of Gila County.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Request for Qualified Vendor Agreement
No. DDD 710000 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security,
Division of Developmental Disabilities (DDD), and Gila County d/b/a Gila
County Employment and Special Training Department to allow for the
continued provision of DDD services to eligible residents of Gila County,
and remain in compliance with federal and state regulations and
provisions of the Qualified Vendor Agreement.

Attachments
Amendment No. 2 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
DDD Approved Amendment Application 10-21-14
DDD Amendment Application 10-6-14
DDD Approved Application 9-16-14
Approved Data Sharing Request
Amendment to Extend Terms
RFQVA No. DDD 710000



































































































ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract#:

FEI#:

Contract Status:

866000444 Gila Employment and Special Training

05785 MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Contract: 05785 as Amended through Number: 5102

1

2

3

3.1

4

4.1

5

5.1

6

6.1

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

No

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor agree to maintain and comply with any license(s), 

certification(s), and/or registration(s) set forth under federal or Arizona law, rules, or policy for 

the provision of each developmental disability service applied for?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor understand that payment will not be made for services 

delivered prior to the effective date of any licensure, certification(s), and/or registration(s) 

required by federal or Arizona law, rules, or policy?

Has the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel had a community 

developmental disability service or similar service license(s), certification(s) and/or 

registration(s) revoked, denied, or suspended in Arizona or in any other state within the past 

five (5) years? (For the purposes of these Assurances and Submittals, “Key Personnel” shall 

include the Applicant/Qualified Vendor if an individual, or if the Applicant/Qualified Vendor is a 

corporation or other entity, any partner, manager, director, officer, or person directly or 

indirectly controlling 10% or more of the outstanding voting shares or other ownership interest 

of the Applicant/Qualified Vendor)

If “yes”, submit an explanation and current status.

Has the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel been a party to any contract 

terminated for cause relating to community developmental disability services or similar services 

in Arizona or in any other state within the past five (5) years?

If “yes”, submit a detailed description of such terminations.

Has the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel been a party to any litigation 

relating to community developmental disability services or similar services in Arizona or in any 

other state within the past five (5) years?

If “yes”, submit a detailed description of such terminations.

Are there any court actions or judgments pending or entered within the last five (5) years 

against the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel related to the provision of 

community developmental disability services or similar services in Arizona or in any other 

state?

If “yes”, submit a summary of those suits or judgments and describe actions the 

Applicant/Qualified Vendor has taken to prevent future suits or judgments.

INSTRUCTIONS:

The Applicant must respond to each of the following items, then print and sign the document 

and attach hardcopies of the applicable submittals. The submittals shall indicate the item 

number to which it corresponds and also include  the Applicant’s Federal Employer 

Identification Number (FEIN).

Section 3: ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS 8/13/2014Page 1 of 6



ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract#:

FEI#:

Contract Status:

866000444 Gila Employment and Special Training

05785 MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Contract: 05785 as Amended through Number: 5102

Has the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel been debarred, suspended, or 

otherwise lawfully prohibited from any public procurement activity, or does the 

Applicant/Qualified Vendor employ, consult, subcontract with, or otherwise reimburse for 

services any person substantially involved in the management of another entity that is now 

debarred, suspended, or otherwise lawfully prohibited from any public procurement activity?

7

7.1

8

8.1

9

9.1

10

10.1

10.2

10.2.1

11

11.1

12

12.1

No

No

No

No

No

No

Has the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel been convicted of a criminal 

offense related to Medicare, Medicaid, or the State Children’s Health Insurance Program?

If “yes”, submit a summary of those suits or judgments and describe actions the 

Applicant/Qualified Vendor has taken to prevent future suits or judgments.

Has the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel been convicted of a felony?

If “yes”, submit information on the Key Personnel and the conviction.

Has any federal or state agency ever made a finding of noncompliance with any civil rights 

requirements with respect to the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel?

If “yes”, submit an explanation.

If “yes”, submit an explanation.

Is a suspension or debarment currently pending?

If “yes” to Assurance 10.2, submit an explanation.

Are there any judgments, tax deficiencies or claims pending or entered against the 

Applicant/Qualified Vendor or against any entity affiliated by common ownership or directorship 

with the Applicant/Qualified Vendor that would require disclosure in an audited financial 

statement or that would affect the financial stability of the Applicant/ Qualified Vendor? (For 

purposes of these Assurances and Submittals, “common ownership” means that persons 

owning over 25% of the Applicant/Qualified Vendor’s outstanding voting shares or other 

ownership interests also own over 25% of another corporation or entity’s outstanding voting 

shares or other ownership interests; “common directorship” means that a majority of the 

persons comprising the directors or Applicant/ Qualified Vendor, or performing similar 

management and oversight functions if the Applicant/Qualified Vendor is limited liability 

company or other non-corporate entity, also comprise the majority of the directors of another 

corporation or persons performing similar management and oversight functions with respect to 

a limited liability company or other non-corporate entity.)

If “yes”, submit a disclosure statement.

Has the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel declared bankruptcy within the 

last seven (7) years?

If “yes”, submit the most recent or the final court-approved order disposing of the case, 

including any court-approved plans.

Section 3: ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS 8/13/2014Page 2 of 6



ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract#:

FEI#:

Contract Status:

866000444 Gila Employment and Special Training

05785 MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Contract: 05785 as Amended through Number: 5102

13

13.1

14

14.1

15

15.1

16

17

18

18.1

18.2

18.3

No

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Is the Applicant/Qualified Vendor a corporation or other entity that is affiliated with another 

corporation or entity?

If “yes”, submit an organizational chart that demonstrates ownership and/or corporate 

affiliations.

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor or any of its Key Personnel or administrative staff have a 

relative, as defined in Arizona Revised Statutes (“A.R.S.”) § 38-502, who is an employee of the 

Division with direct or indirect responsibility for the purchasing, authorizing, monitoring, or 

evaluating of community developmental disability services or vendors?

If “yes”, submit a statement disclosing the conflict or potential conflict of interest. 

Is the Applicant/Qualified Vendor required to make a full written disclosure pursuant to the 

provision of Section 6.4.9 (Substantial Interest Disclosure) of the DES/DDD Standard Terms 

and Conditions for Qualified Vendors?

If “yes”, submit a full written disclosure of the proposed payments and amount.

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that it did not engage in collusion or other 

anti-competitive practices in connection with the preparation or submission of the Application or 

any Amendment to the QVA?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that it will comply with Section 6.3.3 (Audit) of the 

DES/DDD Standard Terms and Conditions for Qualified Vendors and prepare and submit to the 

Division the required financial reports according to the timeframe specified?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that it will submit the Certificates of Insurance, 

required by Section 6.7.6 (Indemnification and Insurance) of the DES/DDD Standard Terms 

and Conditions for Qualified Vendors, prior to accepting a referral or providing a service?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor understand that service authorizations and 

payments may be withheld unless the Applicant/Qualified Vendor has provided 

acceptable proof of insurance coverage as required by Section 6.7.6 (Indemnification and 

Insurance) of the DES/DDD Standard Terms and Conditions for Qualified Vendors?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that it will submit any renewal or change to the 

Certificates of Insurance to the Division’s Contract Management Unit within ten (10) 

business days of renewal or change?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that the Applicant’s/Qualified Vendor’s Insurer 

or the Applicant/Qualified Vendor will provide the Division’s Contract Management Unit 

with a copy of all notices of insurance cancellation (including, but not limited to, notices 

issued prior to the effective date of cancellation) immediately upon issuance or receipt?

Section 3: ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS 8/13/2014Page 3 of 6



ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract#:

FEI#:

Contract Status:

866000444 Gila Employment and Special Training

05785 MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Contract: 05785 as Amended through Number: 5102

19

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

20

20.1

20.1.1

20.1.2

21

No

Yes

No

Yes

Will the Applicant/Qualified Vendor use a subcontractor(s) to provide QVA services?

If “yes” to Assurance 19, submit information about each subcontract as required in 

Section 6.6.3 (Subcontracts) of the DES/DDD Standard Terms and Conditions for 

Qualified Vendors.

If “yes” to Assurance 19, will the Applicant/Qualified Vendor provide all the required 

insurance for the subcontractor(s)?

If “no” to Assurance 19.2, does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that it will obtain the 

required Certificates of Insurance from the subcontractor(s) and submit the certificates to 

the Division’s Contract Management Unit?

If “yes” to Assurance 19, does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that its subcontracts 

incorporate by reference the entirety of the QVA and the Arizona Health Care Cost 

Containment System’s (“AHCCCS”) Minimum Subcontract Provisions?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor warrant compliance with the Federal Immigration and 

Nationality Act (FINA) and all other federal immigration laws and regulations related to the 

immigration status of its employees and Key Personnel?

Is the Applicant/Qualified Vendor providing services through subcontractors?

If “yes” to Assurance 20.1, does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor agree to obtain 

statements from its subcontractors certifying compliance and furnish the statements 

to the Division upon request? These warranties shall remain in effect through the 

term of the QVA. The Applicant/ Qualified Vendor and its subcontractors shall also 

maintain Employment Eligibility Verification forms (I-9) as required by the U.S. 

Department of Labor’s Immigration and Control Act for all employees performing 

work under the QVA. I-9 forms are available at www.USCIS.gov.

The State may request verification of compliance for any Qualified Vendor or 

subcontractor performing work under the QVA. All costs necessary to verify 

compliance are the responsibility of the Qualified Vendor. Does the 

Applicant/Qualified Vendor understand this potential provision?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor warrant compliance with all Federal immigration laws and 

regulations relating to employees and warrant its compliance with A.R.S. § 23-214, subsection 

A? (That subsection reads: “After December 31, 2007, every employer, after hiring an 

employee, shall verify the employment eligibility of the employee through the E-Verify program 

and shall keep a record of the verification for the duration of the employee's employment or at 

least three years, whichever is longer.”)

Section 3: ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS 8/13/2014Page 4 of 6



ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract#:

FEI#:

Contract Status:

866000444 Gila Employment and Special Training

05785 MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Contract: 05785 as Amended through Number: 5102

22

22.1

22.2

22.3

23

23.1

23.2

24

25

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that background checks for employment through 

the ADES Child Protective Services (“CPS”) Central Registry shall be conducted for each 

existing employee and subcontractors, including volunteers, who provide direct services to 

children or vulnerable adults? By answering “yes”, the Applicant/ Qualified Vendor certifies that 

background checks for each subsequent employee, subcontractor, and volunteer will be done 

as required by law, regulation, and contract. The Applicant/Qualified Vendor may utilize Section 

9, Attachment G, Request for Search of Central Registry for Background Check, of the RFQVA 

# DDD 710000 for this purpose.

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that before being employed or volunteering in 

a position that provides direct service to children or vulnerable adults, (1) persons shall 

certify on forms that are provided by the ADES whether an allegation of abuse or neglect 

was made against them and was substantiated, and (2), the completed forms shall be 

maintained as confidential?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that a person awaiting receipt of the CPS 

Central Registry Background Check will be permitted to provide direct service to ADES 

clients only if the person has first completed and submitted the Direct Service Position 

certification and: (1) the person is not currently the subject of an investigation of child 

abuse or neglect in Arizona or any other state or jurisdiction, and (2) the person has not 

been the subject of an investigation of child abuse or neglect in Arizona, or another state 

or jurisdiction, which resulted in a substantiated finding?

Does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that if the Central Registry Background Check 

specifies any disqualifying act and the person does not have a Central Registry exception, 

the person shall be prohibited from providing direct services to ADES clients?

As a registered provider with the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System Administration 

(“AHCCCSA”), does the Applicant/Qualified Vendor certify that it will screen all employees, 

contractors, and/or subcontractors no less frequently than monthly to determine whether any of 

them have been excluded from participation in federally-funded health care programs by 

checking the following databases and any other such databases that may be prescribed?

The List of Excluded Individuals and Entities (“LEIE”), which may be accessed at 

http://www.oig.hhs.gov/fraud/exclusions.asp?

The System for Award Management (“SAM”), which may be accessed at 

https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/?

Will all solicitation amendments to RFQVA # DDD 710000 issued by the Division be 

acknowledged by an authorized signature and will the signature page(s) of the Amendment(s) 

be submitted with the hardcopy Application?

Did a consultant assist the Applicant in completing the Application or assist the Qualified 

Vendor in preparing an amendment to the awarded QVA?

Section 3: ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS 8/13/2014Page 5 of 6



ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract#:

FEI#:

Contract Status:

866000444 Gila Employment and Special Training

05785 MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Contract: 05785 as Amended through Number: 5102

25.1

26

26.1

27

No

Yes

I have the authority and responsibility to submit this Application and to act as a representative of the Applicant 

in all phases of the Application process or the Qualified Vendor in all phases of amending as awarded QVA.

The information provided in the Application or any subsequent Amendment, including information entered into 

the QVADS and any attachments and submittals, is true, correct, and accurate to the best of my knowledge. I 

understand that any false statements may disqualify this Application from further consideration or be cause for 

termination of the QVA.

I agree to notify the Division within ten (10) business days of any changes to the information provided in this 

Application or in any subsequent amendment Amendment of an awarded QVA.

Authorized Signature

FAILURE TO COMPLETE, SIGN, SUBMIT, AND UPDATE AS NECESSARY THIS FORM MAY BE CAUSE 

FOR REJECTION OF THE APPLICATION OR TERMINATION OF AN AWARDED QVA.

The Division may contact any source available to verify the information submitted in the Application 

or any subsequent Amendment proposed to an awarded QVA and may use this information and any 

additional information obtained from the source(s) in evaluating the Application or any subsequent 

Amendment to an awarded QVA.

If “yes”, submit a list of the name(s) and affiliation(s) (i.e., company/business name) of 

each consultant.

Did the Applicant/Qualified Vendor use another Application for a QVA and/or an awarded QVA 

as a resource in preparing this Application or an amendment to the QVA?

If “yes”, submit a list of the name(s) of each Applicant that submitted an Application 

and/or the name(s) of each awarded QVA that was used as a resource.

Is the hardcopy of the Qualified Vendor Application package or the QVA Amendment a true 

copy of the information submitted in electronic form in the QVADS and does it contain all 

required attachments and submittals?

Federal Employer Identification Number

Date

Section 3: ASSURANCES AND SUBMITTALS 8/13/2014Page 6 of 6

clopez
Typewritten Text
86-6000444

clopez
Typewritten Text
9-16-14

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
Michael A. Pastor, ChairmanGila County Board of Supervisors

clopez
Typewritten Text



 J-119 DSA  (02/2013)                                          ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY 

 Information Security Administration,  

1720 W. Madison St., Site 820Z 

 Phoenix, AZ 85007 

Phone: (602) 771-2670 · Fax: (602) 364-0481 

 

 

 

 

 

DATA-SHARING REQUEST/AGREEMENT 
 

 
BETWEEN 

 

 

 

REQUESTING ENTITY:  

 

 

Division of Developmental Disabilities 
(DES Division/Administration/Program/Office Name or External Organization Name) 

 

 

 

AND 

 

 

DATA MANAGER:  ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY 

 

       

Donna Schneider 
 

(Division/Administration/Program/Office Name) 

 

      
 

(Division/Administration/Program/Office Name) 
 

      
 

(Division/Administration/Program/Office Name) 

 

      
 

(Division/Administration/Program/Office Name) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Effective Date:                                                                                               

 

 

Agreement No.:        

 

 

 

 
Equal Opportunity Employer/Program 

This document available in alternative formats by contacting: (602) 771-2670. 

clopez
Typewritten Text



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 2   Agreement No.:       
 

 

SECTION I.   REQUEST (Completed by Requesting Entity) 

Use attachment if necessary  

1a.   PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST (What information is being requested and why?  How will it be used? Give details/specifics.) 

In order to provide the services agreed upon in the Qualified Vendor Agreement, the Division of 

Developmental Disabilities may provide to the Qualified Vendor information relating to persons receiving 

services through the Division including, but not limited to information contained in planning documents, 

medical records, and service related reports. 

 

1b.  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND CONNECTIVITY   

 

The requester describes the information technology (IT) environment that will connect to DES. (be explicit – consult your 

IT personnel for assistance.    

Data is sent by the Division via secure email.Data can be retrieved via the Division secure FTP site.   
 

The requester enters all information required for successful communication between the requesting entity and the DES IT 

Staff. 

Contact Name (1):          Phone: (   )    -      

Contact Name (2):          Phone: (   )    -      

Contact Address:         

Contact (1) E-Mail Address:         Contact (2) E-Mail Address:       

Contact Fax No: (   )    -      

 

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
Helene Lopez

clopez
Typewritten Text
928

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
Malissa Buzan

clopez
Typewritten Text
928

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
425  7631

clopez
Typewritten Text
425  7631, Ex. 8664

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
5515 S. Apache Ave. Suite 200, Globe, Arizona 85501

clopez
Typewritten Text
hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

clopez
Typewritten Text
mbuzan@gilacountyaz.gov

clopez
Typewritten Text
928  425  9468

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 3   Agreement No.:       
 

 

SECTION I. (cont.)  REQUEST (Completed by Requesting Entity) 
Use attachment if necessary 

2. CITE LAW, REGULATION, DIRECTIVE OR OTHER BASIS FOR THIS REQUEST 

The Qualified Vendor uses Division data to provide services as contemplated by A.R.S. § 36-557; the 

vendor shall safeguard confidential information in accordance with Federal and State laws and 

regulations, including but not limited to, A.R.S. §§ 36-568.01, 36-2932, and 41-1959, the Health 

Information Portability and Accountability Act (45 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 160 and 164), and 

Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System/Arizona Long Term Care System rules. 

 

3. WILL OTHER ENTITIES INTERFACE WITH YOUR AGENCY?   

Yes    No            If  Yes, identify entity and reason(s): PLEASE COMPLETE 

 
4. WILL IINFORMATION BE DISCLOSED/SHARED WITH ANOTHER ENTITY?   

 Yes   No          If Yes, identify entity and reason(s) for disclosure: PLEASE COMPLETE 
 

 
5. WILL DES DATA BE REPACKAGED/INCLUDED IN OTHER DATA BASES, FILES, TAPES, ETC.    

Yes   No          If Yes, identify entity and reason(s): PLEASE COMPLETE 
 

 
6. DESIRED OUTPUT (Printout, tape, terminal access/display, etc.)  

Secure email  

 

 
7. DESCRIBE SAFEGUARDS IN PLACE TO GUARD AGAINST UNAUTHORIZED ACCESS/DISCLOSURE OF THE INFORMATION  

 PLEASE COMPLETE 

 

 

PRINT NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED CONTACT 

      

      

PHONE NO.  (   )    -       

FAX               (   )    -      

E-MAIL       

DATE 

      

MAILING ADDRESS/SITE CODE 

      

      

CITY 

      
STATE 

   
ZIP CODE 

     -     

 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
x

clopez
Typewritten Text
x

clopez
Typewritten Text
x

clopez
Typewritten Text
Helene Lopez, Program Manager

clopez
Typewritten Text
928 425  7631, Ext. 8664

clopez
Typewritten Text
928  425  9468

clopez
Typewritten Text
hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

clopez
Typewritten Text
5515 S. Apache Ave., Ste 200

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
Globe

clopez
Typewritten Text
AZ

clopez
Typewritten Text
85501

clopez
Typewritten Text
8-13-14



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 4   Agreement No.:       
 

 

SECTION II.  STIPULATIONS REGARDING THE USE OF INFORMATION 
 

 
STIPULATIONS APPLICABLE TO THE REQUESTING ENTITY: 

 

1. Disclosure of the data provided to the Requesting Entity is not permitted unless specifically authorized. 

 

2. Repackaging or redistribution of data or screens, or creation of separate files will not be permitted unless specifically authorized. 

 

3. The data shall be used only to assist in valid administrative needs as stated in Section I, item 1 of this Agreement. 

 

4. All data shall be stored in a physically secure facility. 

 

5. All data in electronic format shall be stored or processed so that unauthorized persons cannot retrieve the information by means of a 

computer, remote access, or other means. 

 

6. Only authorized staff will be given access needed to accomplish the purpose(s) specified in Section I, item 1 of this Agreement. 

 

7. All staff shall attend an authorized data security awareness training class, where they will be instructed on confidentiality, privacy 

laws and penalties imposed when compliance is breached.  All staff with access to DES systems and/or applications must complete 

an annual recertification security awareness training class as scheduled by DES. 

 

8. A Request for Terminal Access and Other Activity (J-125) shall be used to request specific access for each authorized staff 

member and must be signed by the staff supervisor or designee. 

 

9. All authorized staff is required to sign a User Affirmation Statement (J-129), as a condition for using requested data.  This 

affirmation statement must be resigned at three (3) year intervals as scheduled by DES. 

 

10. Any personnel changes requiring change or removal of access as described in Section I, item 1 of this Agreement, shall be reported 

promptly to the respective data security analyst. 

 

11. Federal and state audit and data security personnel may have access to offices and records of the requesting entity to monitor or 

verify compliance with this agreement. 

 

12. This Data-Sharing Agreement will remain in effect for 10 years from the effective date unless otherwise stipulated in Section III 

or overridden by the Contract, a Memorandum Of Understanding or an InterAgency Agreement. If length is overridden by another 

document, please reference the document in Section III. 

 

13. Upon Contract Termination, Media Sanitization procedures shall be adhered to in accordance to Arizona Statewide Policy – P8250 

v 1.0 - The Business Unit shall sanitize digital and non-digital information system media containing Confidential information prior 

to disposal, release of organizational control, or release for reuse using defined sanitization techniques and procedures in accordance 

with the Media Protection Standard S8250. [NIST 800-53 MP-6] [HIPAA 164.310(d)(2)(i)] [HIPAA 164.310(d)(2)(ii)] [IRS Pub 

1075] 

 

14. All DES Contracts retention terms and conditions will be adhered to as written on the said contract unless otherwise stated and DES 

Retention Policy ((DES 1-37-12-(01)(02)(03)) is applicable. 

 

STIPULATIONS APPLICABLE TO PROVIDER: 

 

1.    DES will use the Requesting Entity employee identifying information solely for the purpose of establishing on-line access. 

 

2. Only authorized DES employees will have access to requesting agency employee data. 

 

3. In accordance with applicable federal, state, and/or local privacy regulations, DES will protect all information collected from the 

Requesting Entity.  

 

STIPULATIONS APPLICABLE TO HIPAA – HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY & ACCOUNTABILITY ACT: 

 

1. All staff shall attend an authorized HIPAA awareness training class, where they will be instructed on confidentiality, privacy,            

information safeguards and penalties imposed when compliance is breached. 

 

2. If applicable, there is a “Business Associate Contract” [45 CFR 164.502(e), 154.504(e). 164.532(d) & (e)] on file and will be  

attached to this data sharing agreement as an addendum. 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 5a   Agreement No.:       
 

 
 

SECTION III (1).  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

1.0  This data sharing agreement shall have the same term as the Qualified Vendor Agreement.  
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

Print Name       
 

Signature  ___________________________________________ 
 

PHONE NO. 

 

(   )    -      

DATE 

 

      

 

SECTION IV (1-A).  RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the data managing program) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

SECTION IV (1-B).  HIPAA RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the HIPAA DIVISION PRIVACY OFFICER) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886

clopez
Typewritten Text
928 425  7631

clopez
Typewritten Text
Helene Lopez



  

J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 5b   Agreement No.:       
 

 
 

SECTION III (2).  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

Print Name       
 

Signature  ___________________________________________ 
 

PHONE NO. 

 

(   )    -      

DATE 

 

      

 

SECTION IV (2-A).  RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the data managing program) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

SECTION IV (2-B).  HIPAA RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the HIPAA DIVISION PRIVACY OFFICER) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886

clopez
Typewritten Text



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 5c   Agreement No.:       
 

 
 

SECTION III (3).  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

Print Name       
 

Signature  ___________________________________________ 
 

PHONE NO. 

 

(   )    -      

DATE 

 

      

 

SECTION IV (3-A).  RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the data managing program) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

SECTION IV (3-B).  HIPAA RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the HIPAA DIVISION PRIVACY OFFICER) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 5d   Agreement No.:       
 

 
 

SECTION III (4).  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

Print Name       
 

Signature  ___________________________________________ 
 

PHONE NO. 

 

(   )    -      

DATE 

 

      

 

SECTION IV (4-A).  RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the data managing program) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

SECTION IV (4-B).  HIPAA RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the HIPAA DIVISION PRIVACY OFFICER) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 5e  Agreement No.:       
 

 
 

SECTION III (5).  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

      
 

Print Name       
 

Signature  ___________________________________________ 
 

PHONE NO. 

 

(   )    -      

DATE 

 

      

 

SECTION IV (5-A).  RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the data managing program) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

SECTION IV (5-B).  HIPAA RECOMMENDATIONS (Completed by the HIPAA DIVISION PRIVACY OFFICER) 
 

 

 
 

Recommend APPROVAL 
 

 
 

Request is not recommended for approval. 

       

Print Name       
 

Signature  
_______________________________________ 
 

SITE CODE 

      
PHONE NO.  

(   )    -      

DATE 

      

 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 6   Agreement No.:       
 

 
 

SECTION V.  APPROVAL (Completed by the requesting entity and the data managing program) 
 

 
I attest to the correctness of the information provided in Section I and agree to the stipulations and costs listed in 
Section II and III.  I agree to comply with all provisions of the DES Data Security Policy.  Should any violations of the 
DES Data Security Policy occur, this Agreement may be terminated.  I further understand that DES will periodically 
review the terms of the Agreement to ensure it conforms with DES Policies and Procedures.  In the event changes in 
either federal or state law or regulations occur that conflict with the terms of the Agreement or render the terms of the 
Agreement void, impracticable, or otherwise impossible, this Agreement will terminate immediately.  A new Agreement 
or an amendment to the existing Agreement will be initiated to provide for any changes, which cannot be 
accommodated within the provisions of the existing Agreement. The Requesting Entity shall hold harmless and 
indemnify the State of Arizona and its Department of Economic Security for any liability resulting from acts or 
ommissions attributable to the Requesting Entity.  
 
IN WITNESS HERETO, the PARTIES have executed this Agreement by signature of their duly authorized officials: 
For the Requesting Entity: 
Entity Name       

Print  Signatory Name 
       

Title       

Signature 

____________________________________ 
Date       

For the Department of Economic Security: 
Entity Name Donna Schneider 

Print  Signatory Name 
 Donna Schneider 
 

Title FOCUS Manager 

Signature 

____________________________________ 
Date 7/24/2014 

For the Department of Economic Security: 
Entity Name       

Print  Signatory Name 
       

Title       

Signature 

____________________________________ 
Date       

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886

clopez
Typewritten Text
Gila County dba Gila Employment and Special Training

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text
Michael A. Pastor

clopez
Typewritten Text
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors

clopez
Typewritten Text

clopez
Typewritten Text



J-119  DSA (02/2013) - PAGE 7   Agreement No.:       
 

 

For the Department of Economic Security: 
Entity Name       

Print  Signatory Name 
       

Title       

Signature 

____________________________________ 
Date       

For the Department of Economic Security: 
Entity Name       

Print  Signatory Name 
       

Title       

Signature 

____________________________________ 
Date       

For the Department of Economic Security: 
Entity Name       

Print  Signatory Name 
       

Title       

Signature 

____________________________________ 
Date       

 

 

SECTION VI.  APPROVAL (Completed by the Information Security Administration) 
 This signed Agreement meets all requirements necessary to permit the controlled sharing of the DES data while 

simultaneously providing for the protection of the data.  I certify that: 
 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT CONFORMS to DES Information Security Policy. 
 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT DOES NOT CONFORM to the DES Information Security Policy.  Implementation of 
this Agreement cannot proceed until the following action is taken: 

       
 

 
 

(Signature) 

Carl Carpenter 
DES Chief Information Security Officer 

(Tit le) 

 

      
(DATE) 

 

clopez
Typewritten Text
925886





DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Contract #:

Vendor: Gila Employment and Special Training

05785

Vendor Contract Information

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

FEI# or SSN:

AHCCCS ID:

Principal Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Notice Contact Information 

Vendor Street Address

Executive/Owner 

Organization Type:

FAX:

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

Telephone:
FAX:

Vendor Mailing Address

Billing/Payment Information

FAX:

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Name:

Title:

Authorized Signatory

Gila County Gila County

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

Michael Pastor

Globe,  ARIZONA    85501 Globe,  ARIZONA    85501

Agency

925886

866000444

hlopez@co.gila.az.us

hlopez@co.gila.az.us

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200 5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

hlopez@co.gila.az.us

Chairman, Gila Cnty

(928)  4257631
(928)  4259468

(928)  4257631 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4259468

(928)  4257631
(928)  4259468

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

Globe,   ARIZONA    85501

2nd Authorized Signatory

Title:

Name:  

Section 2: Vendor Contract Information 8/26/2014Page 1 of 1



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

Helene Lopez

Helen Lopez

Helene Lopez

(928)  2001462 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4257631 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Globe, ARIZONA  85501

Gila Employment and Special Training

District East Site Code:

5515 S. Apache Ave. Suite 200 Globe, Az  85501

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

Office Type: SERVICE

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             ATTENDANT CARE 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 1 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Approved             EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE 01/01/2011

Approved             GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY 01/01/2011

Approved             INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 2 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

David Caddell

Leona Bowman

David Caddell

(928)  8123791 (928)  4259468

(928)  4028664

(928)  4741759 (928)  4688056

(928)  4741759

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Payson, ARIZONA  85541

Gila Employment and Special Training/Payson

District North Site Code:

107 West Frontier Street, Suite C

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Office Type: ADMINISTRATION

lbowman@co.gila.az.us

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             ATTENDANT CARE 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 3 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Approved             EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE 01/01/2011

Approved             GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY 01/01/2011

Approved             INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT 01/01/2011

Approved             RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 4 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

David Caddell

Leona Bowman

David Caddell

(928)  8123791 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4741759 (928)  4688056

(928)  4741759

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Payson, ARIZONA  85541

Gila Employment and Special Training

DISTRICT 1 Site Code:

107 West Frontier Street, Suite C

dcaddell@cableone.net

Office Type: SERVICE

lbowman@co.gila.az.us

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 5 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

David Caddell

David Caddell

David Caddell

(928)  8123791 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

(928)  4257631 (928)  4259468

(928)  4257631

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Globe, ARIZONA  85501

Gila Employment and Special Training

District East Site Code: GL

5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

Office Type: SERVICE

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

dcaddell@co.gila.az.us

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

08:00AM 05:00PM

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM 01/01/2011

Approved             HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 6 of 7



Contract #:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Vendor Sites 

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

Staff Approved

Telephone:

Primary Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

Site Scheduler Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

After Hours Contact Information 

Name:

Telephone:

Email Address:

FAX:

FAX:

Sunday To

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Saturday

To

To

To

To

To

To

Site Name:

Services At This Site

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

Helene Lopez

(928)  4028664 (928)  4259468

(928)  4028664

(928)  4028664 (928)  4259468

(928)  4258701

Service Status Start Date

Service Status

Globe, ARIZONA  85501

GEST D.T.A. Globe

District ATPC Site Code:

250 East Cedar Street

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

Office Type: SERVICE

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

hlopez@gilacountyaz.gov

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

08:00AM 04:00PM

Approved             DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT 01/01/2011

Approved             TRANSPORTATION 01/01/2011

8/26/2014Section 5: Vendor Administrative Sites Page 7 of 7



Service Status
Service Status

Start Date

MANAGEMENT APPROVED
866000444

Contract Status :
FEI #:

RFQVA

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training
DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Vendor:

Contract #:

Services

Contract Status Start Date: 01/01/2011 Contract Status Code:

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011ATTENDANT CARE - Agency with Choice

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING 

ARRANGEMENT - Agency with Choice

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY - Agency with 

Choice

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011TRANSPORTATION

DDD710000 Approved             01/01/2011TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Section 7:  Services 8/26/2014Page 1 of 1



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 1 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 2 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 3 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
ATTENDANT CARE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 4 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan. The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP teams attention. 

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP tean and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed,documented and forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 5 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 6 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 7 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - ADULT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 8 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan. The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP teams attention. 

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP tean and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed,documented and forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 9 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 10 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 11 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
DAY TREATMENT & TRAINING - CHILDREN SUMMER PROGRAM

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 12 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 13 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 14 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 15 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Since GEST staff are all Gila County employees, the hiring and evaluation of direct service staff is done 

internally, however, all input from clients, families, representatives is considered by the Program Manager in 

the evaluation of direct service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 16 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
EMPLOYMENT SUPPORT AIDE

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 17 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 18 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 19 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 20 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 21 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
GROUP SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 22 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 23 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 24 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 25 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 26 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - INDIVIDUALLY DESIGNED LIVING ARRANGEMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 27 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff will review the documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and 

assign the appropriate staff person to meet the needs of the client.  GEST direct service staff will work with the 

ISP team in the formulation of the plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods 

of instruction.  Services will be provided based on the ISP plan, and staff will, when appropriate or as part of 

the plan, coordinate with other community services.  Ongoing assessment will be done by staff to ensure that 

any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team attention.  Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP 

team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP objectives will be reviewed, documented and 

forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  Staff will provide ongoing evaluation to provide the 

documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals and objectives.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program ha a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicle insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 28 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 29 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 30 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
HABILITATION SERVICES - SUPPORT - HOURLY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 31 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 32 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 33 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 34 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 35 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
INDIVIDUAL SUPPORTED EMPLOYMENT

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 36 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan. The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP teams attention. 

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP tean and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed,documented and forwarded to the disignated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 37 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services 

department,and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff have 

completed training through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair 

accommodated, and staff participate in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 38 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 39 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
RESPITE CARE HOURLY & DAILY

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 40 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated  Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have ben achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calender of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintainance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete check over prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services Department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 41 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff who transport clients are required to have a clean driving record.  Criminal background 

checks are done every three yers when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff are required to 

produce a copy of their drivers license yearly to review expiration dates.  Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff have completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the top driver manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting.  Staff have completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and staff 

participate in the annual inspection completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 42 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 43 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 44 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Program Description

Briefly describe your program for this service from referral through service delivery.

Upon referral the GEST staff review documents provided by the Division Support Coordinator and assign the 

appropriate staff to meet the client's needs.  GEST staff will work with the ISP team in the formulation of the 

plan.  The plan shall include specific written training strategies and methods of instruction.  Ongoing 

assessment will be done by staff to ensure that any changes in needs be brought to the ISP team's attention.  

Transportation needs will be assessed by the ISP team and documented in the plan.  Each month the ISP 

objectives will be reviewed, documented and forwarded to the designated Division representative.  The ISP 

team will determine when the individual's goals have been achieved in accordance with the ISP.  Staff will 

provide ongoing evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in determining new goals 

and objectives.  Through activities provided by GEST individuals will develop methods of starting and/or 

developing friendships, social skills, problem solving, appropriate leisure activities according to age.  Planning 

activities will include input from the clients, and a calendar of events will be posted on site and each client will 

be advised of the events.

Community Access

When community access is required to meet the ISP, how do you support direct service staff for community 

access?

Transportation in an individual/staff owned vehicle

Transportation in an agency owned, leased or contracted 

Reimbursement for public transportation

Describe methods used to ensure that all provider and agency supplied vehicles are properly maintained.

NO

YES

NO

The GEST Program has a fleet of 7 vehicles including two full sized vans.  The vehicles are regularly 

maintained and serviced by the mechanics at the Gila County Shop.  Other vehicles from our Division Pool are 

also available to us should the need arise, this also ensures our ability to provide services should one of our 

vehicles be out of service for any length of time.  Regular maintenance needs reports are forwarded to our 

department from the County Shop Office to alert us as to the need for servicing.  Prior to any out of town 

activity trips, the GEST staff schedule the vehicle to be utilized in the shop for a complete "check over" prior to 

traveling out of town.

Describe methods used to ensure that all individual and staff owned and agency supplied vehicles maintain state 

minimum insurance requirements.

All GEST Program vehicles are insured annually through the Arizona Counties Insurance.  Vehicles insurance 

policies are housed at the Gila County Courthouse, Emergency Services department.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 45 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Describe any special requirements that the vendor and employees must meet to transport individuals.  Include an 

explanation of how often driving records of employees are reviewed.

All direct service staff that transport clients are required to have a clean driving record. Criminal background 

checks are done every three years when recertifying for fingerprint clearance.  All GEST staff is required to 

produce a copy of their driver’s license yearly to review expiration dates.   Driving records of all GEST 

employees are reviewed annually by the Program Manager.  All GEST staff has completed a "Top Driver" 

class, facilitated by the National Safety Council, offered through the County Emergency Services department, 

and a review of the "Top Driver" manual is reviewed yearly in a staff meeting. Staff has completed training 

through ADOT on the operation of the GEST handicap van that is wheelchair accommodated, and all staff 

participates in the annual inspection, completed by CAAG personnel, on that van.  The GEST Program applied 

for and was awarded a new van with a lift and a 15 passenger van from ADOT.  Delivery of these new 

vehicles should take place in mid October, 2005.

In number of days, how often are driving records reviewed by the vendor?

365

Recruitment and Training Policies

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed 

to the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is 

posted.   Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are 

reviewed.  When the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be 

separated according to applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants 

to be considered for the position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The 

interviewing panel which consists of at least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a 

decision based on the information, qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff 

is required to attend a Gila County "New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are 

displayed at the Courthouse location and are published in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends 

on the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, 

and work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions 

Policies and Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of 

service provision.  All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct 

service staff person have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does 

not experience much turn over in staff.  GEST staff stays in compliance with the Division regarding required 

recertification in CPR, First Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 46 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff 

are available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled 

services.  All direct staff is cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service 

staff has weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a 

small rural service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff 

and clients, participate in client activities.  Direct staff is aware of all the client’s individual behaviors, meds, 

and specific disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and 

formulate a "plan of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

No written policies and procedures regarding reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation currently 

exist, however, GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the 

Division's policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  

GEST staff utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurrence.  The GEST 

Program Manager is notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  

The Program Manager then within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's 

family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manual. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff is mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed 

to a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and 

what appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A 

discussion is facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those 

actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 47 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair 

and equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 

85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct service staff 

and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, another 

meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative (if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the 

second meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of 

Economic Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all interested parties and input 

is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

out periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings and  reconvenes as well as all annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/family/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on 

going" clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings 

to better and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff is very active in the community and they network on a continuing 

basis to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Since GEST staff are all Gila County employees, the hiring and evaluation of direct service staff is done 

internally, however, all input from clients, families, representatives is considered by the Program Manager in 

the evaluation of direct service staff.

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumer’s 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a 

least quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be 

recorded daily and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. 

Progress will be documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 48 of 49 8/26/2014



DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

FEI #:

Contract #: Contract Status:

Vendor:866000444

05785

Gila Employment and Special Training

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

Service Level Detail
TRANSPORTATION, EMPLOYMENT RELATED

Start Date

Service Status

Service Status
Approved             01/01/2011

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and 

input is always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an 

effort to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calendar is posted on site and flyers are sent 

our periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent 

relationship with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also 

shared at all client staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona 

Advisory Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and apprised of any changes in the 

program that may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department 

within our Division also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff will develop an evaluation form specific to the individual's ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided 

based on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the 

ISP objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with 

the ISP, the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going 

evaluation to provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  

Progress reports will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize 

a customer satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order 

to establish improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and 

that services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff is continually striving to improve methods and 

techniques of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and 

knowledge to assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate  on behalf of the 

client/client representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all 

needs are met.  Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

Section 8: Service Level Detail Page 49 of 49 8/26/2014



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

Recruitment and Training Policies  

Describe briefly the recruitment and initial training plan for direct service staff.

All GEST staff are Gila County Employees, therefore recruitment for direct service staff is done following Gila 

County policy.

When a position for direct service staff becomes available, a "Request To Post" form is completed and routed to 

the Personnel Department.  A Job description containing all the necessary qualifications and experience is posted.   

Applications are forwarded to GEST Department from the Personnel Department, where they are reviewed.  When 

the posting end date is reached, all the applications that have been reviewed will be seperated according to 

applicable qualifications and/or experience necessary for the position.  The applicants to be considered for the 

position (usually not more than seven) will be called in for an interview.  The interviewing panel which consists of at 

least three staff will then interview the qualified candidates, and make a decision based on the the information, 

qualifications, and experience given by the applicants.  All newly hired staff are required to attend a Gila County 

"New Employee" (four hours) orientation.  All Gila County Job postings are displayed at the Courthouse location 

and are  published  in the local newspaper.

Describe briefly the ongoing training plan for direct service staff.

Training of direct service staff is done in an "On The Job" manner and the length of the training time depends on 

the experience and expertise of the trainee. ( All newly hired staff are required to complete a six month 

probationary time. )  A current experienced and seasoned direct service staff person will conduct the training, and 

work along side of the trainee to ensure that services are provided in compliance with the Divisions Policies and 

Procedures and that the client's needs are being met and the trainee understands all aspects of service provision.  

All current GEST staff, with the exception of a newly hired Mobile Crew Coordinator/direct service staff person 

have longevity, (at least seven years plus) with the GEST program and the program does not experience much 

trunover in staff.  GEST staff stay in compliance with the Division regarding required recertification in CPR, First 

Aid, CIT and Fingerprint clearance.

Describe briefly the backup plan for direct service staff absences (preplanned and emergency absence).

In the event that a direct service staff member has an unplanned absence, all other GEST direct service staff are 

available and can flex their individual schedules to accommodate the client in providing scheduled services.  All 

direct staff are cross trained and adaptable to provide and care for all clients.  GEST direct service staff have 

weekly meetings in which they discuss all client issues, problems needs or concerns.  GEST is a small rural 

service provider therefore all direct service staff are acquainted with all our clients and they all, staff and clients, 

praticipate in client activities.  Direct staff are aware of all the clients individual behaviors, meds, and specific 

disability needs.  If a direct service staff plans leave time, the entire staff will meet to discuss and formulate a "plan 

of action" for service provision to the clients so that no gap in services will occur.

Incident Reporting

8/26/2014Page 1 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

Who is the person within the vendor's organization for reviewing incident reports?

Who is the person within the vendor's organization for notifying a consumer's family/represenative of incidents?

David Caddell

Do you have written policies and procedures regarding the reporting of incidents of abuse, neglect and exploitation?

Are reporting protocols shared with consumers/families/consumer representatives?

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported internally?

David Caddell

YES

YES

GEST follows the policy and procedure in reporting the above stated incidents according to the Division's 

policies and procedures manual in reporting all incidents of abuse neglect, exploitation or injury.  GEST staff 

utilizes the DD-191 form which is completed within one hour of the occurance.  The GEST Program Manager is 

notified by the direct service staff person within one hour of any incident via telephone.  The Program Manager 

then ,within one hour, notifies a Division representative and the client's family/representative.

How are incidents of abuse, neglect, exploitation or injury reported externally?

The GEST Program complies with the reporting procedures outlined in the DES/DDD Policies and Procedures 

manuel. As a service provider for persons with disabilities, GEST staff are mandated by law to be reporters of 

abuse, neglect, or exploitation if reasonable basis to suspect such abuse has occurred.  GEST staff will 

immediately report to a peace Officer or Protective Services worker any incident of abuse of any kind.  After 

reporting any incident of abuse, GEST staff will complete a DD-191 incident report which is immediately routed to 

a Division representative.  A copy of the DD-191 is also kept in the clients file on site.

Describe the internal review process for incident reports and how corrective action is implemented.

The GEST Program Manager and the direct service staff who generated the Incident Report, review the report 

and coordinate with the Division representative to ascertain if a staffing is in order, who should attend and what 

appropriate corrective action will be needed and how the corrective action will be completed.  A discussion is 

facilitated to decide the best possible corrective action to take and how to implement those actions.

Complaint/Grievance Process

Who is the person within the vendor's organization responsible for resolving the complaint/grievance?

Dave Fletcher

8/26/2014Page 2 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

Is there a complaint/grievance form?

Do you have written policies and procedures regarding the submission of complaints/grievances?

Are complaints/grievances shared with consumers/families/consumer representatives?

Who can file a complaint/grievance?

What is the complaint/grievance handling timeline?

Describe the complaints/grievances process.

All clients have the right to fair and equal treatment.  Complaints that allege violation of a client's rights to fair and 

equal treatment shall be filed with GEST and mailed to the GEST office at 5515 South Apache Ave. Suite 200., 

Globe, AZ 85501.  Initially the Program Manager will schedule a meeting with the client, the assigned direct 

service staff and other appropriate staff members.  If the grievance cannot be resolved during this meeting, 

another meeting will be held with the client's Division Support Coordinator/Representative(if the Support 

Coordinator/Representative was not present at the initial meeting).  If the grievance is not resolved at the second 

meeting, the written appeal and all accompanying documents will be forwarded to the Department of Economic 

Security/DDD.  Clients will not be denied services by exercising their grievance rights.

YES

Varies according to the type of complaint, usually  not more that 10 working days.

Any client

YES

YES

How is input from consumers, families and/or consumer representatives encouraged?

Program Feedback Process

The GEST Program maintains an "open door/open line of communication" with all intersted parties and input is 

always encouraged and welcome.  All GEST staff network and coordinate regularly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an effort 

to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calender is posted on site and flyers are sent out 

periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent relationship 

with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also shared at all client 

staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

Describe the process used to measure consumer/familly/consumer representative satisfaction with services.

8/26/2014Page 3 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

The GEST program provides a "customer satisfaction survey" to all clients who exit the program and to "on going" 

clients on a quarterly basis.  The information from these surveys is discussed in regular staff meetings to better 

and more efficiently serve and meet the needs of our clients.

Since GEST provides services in a small rural community, program feedback is received through a variety of 

ways.  Feedback is gleaned through staffings, networking of direct service staff in the community, and through 

linkages with other agencies.  GEST staff are very active in the community and they network on a continuing basis 

to establish improved consumer/contractor communications.

Describe how are consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the hiring and/or evalution of direct 

service staff.

Since GEST staff are all Gila County employees, the hiring and evaluation of direct service staff is done internally, 

however, all input from clients, famalies, representatives is considered by the Program Manager in the evaluation 

of direct service staff.

Who is feedback forwarded to within the agency?

Describe how consumers/families/consumer representatives are involved in the evaluation process for the 

improvement of services.

David Caddell

GEST staff will facilitate collective participation by consumers and families in identifying barriers to consumers 

satisfaction and to obtain feedback and input to establish improved consumer/provider communications a least 

quarterly.  Documentation of services and activities will be maintained in agency's files and will be recorded daily 

and weekly.  A monthly progress report will be forwarded to the Division representative. Progress will be 

documented and reported to the ISP team and input solicited from the members.

 Is past feedback available to consumers/families/consumer representatives when considering a vendor?

YES

Consumer Involvement

Describe all of the other methods used by your organization to provide opportunities for 

consumers/families/consumer representatives to be actively involved in your organization's operations (i.e., advisory 

groups, staff recruitment, staff training and development, monitoring, social events, etc.).

As stated before, GEST maintains an "open door/open line of communication will all interested parties and input is 

aloways encouraged and welcome.  All GEST network and coordinate regualrly with clients, families, 

representatives and they provide their personal pager and cell phone numbers to all interested parties in an effort 

to ensure continued communication.  A "Special Events" calender is posted on site and flyers are sent our 

periodically inviting all interested parties to attend any of our events.  GEST maintains an excellent relationship 

with the Division, clients, families, representatives and other community agencies.  Input is also shared at all client 

staffings, reconvenes and annuals.

8/26/2014Page 4 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



Vendor Policies

Vendor:

DDD QUALIFIED VENDOR APPLICATION

Gila Employment and Special Training

05785Contract #:

FEI #:

Contract Status :

866000444

MANAGEMENT APPROVED

01/01/2011Contract Status Start Date:

GEST staff network and coordinate with consumers, representatives who serve on the Central Arizona Advisory 

Council on Developmental Disabilities, in an effort to stay current and aprised of any changes in the program that 

may impact our program in any way, specifically services to our clients.  The WIB department within our Division 

also has a "Youth Advisory Board".

Please indicate if there are any active community advisory groups.

Internal Quality Efforts

Describe the process used by the vendor to monitor and evaluate the services provided as they relate to the ISP 

objectives.

GEST staff hasl developed an evaluation form specific to the individual`s ISP objectives to obtain feedback from 

clients/client representatives in order to monitor and evaluate services provided.  Services will be provided based 

on the plan and staff will, when appropriate, coordinate with other community services.  Each month the ISP 

objectives are reviewed, documented and forwarded to the Division representative.  In conjunction with the ISP, 

the ISP team will determine when the clients goals have been achieved.  Staff will complete on going evaluation to 

provide the documentation for the team and will assist in formulating new goals and objectives .  Progress reports 

will be forwarded to a Division representative at the end of each month.  Staff will also utilize a customer 

satisfaction survey form to obtain feedback and input from clients/families/representatives, in order to establish 

improved consumer services.

Describe the overall vendor approach toward the improvement of the quality and appropriateness of services  

provided.

GEST staff work many hours with our clients on a one to one basis to ensure that needs are being met and that 

services are appropriate, and in line with the ISP.  Staff are continually striving to improve methods and techniques 

of service delivery.  Training for staff is provided regularly to improve and enhance their skills and knowledge to 

assist clients in achieving self sufficiency.  When required, staff coordinate, on behalf of the client/client 

representative with community services, health professionals, and other contractors to ensure all needs are met.  

Staff provides on going assessment to ensure appropriate and quality services are delivered.

8/26/2014Page 5 of 5Section 4:  Vendor Policies



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-1                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

SECTION 6 

DES/DDD STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR QUALIFIED VENDORS 

 

 

6.1 Definition of Terms 

 

 As used in this Request for Qualified Vendor Applications (“RFQVA”) and any 

resulting Agreement, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 

 

6.1.1 “Agency” means an organization that has a Federal Employer Identification 

Number (“FEIN”) and employs one or more direct service staff other than the 

owner.   

 

6.1.2    “Agreement” means the Qualified Vendor Agreement which is a legally binding 

contract to provide community developmental disability services and includes the 

following: the Request for Qualified Vendor Applications (“Solicitation”) 

including all solicitation amendments and the Qualified Vendor’s approved 

application (“Application”).  The Request for Qualified Vendor Applications 

includes service requirements/scope of work, terms and conditions, and services 

specifications.  The approved Application includes vendor specific descriptions, 

policies, assurances, and financial information.   

 

6.1.3 “Agreement Amendment” means either a solicitation amendment or a Division- 

approved amendment to an application.  

 

6.1.4 “Agreement Services” means the services to be delivered by the Qualified Vendor 

under this Agreement. 

 

6.1.5 “AHCCCS” means the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System as 

established by Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) § 36-2901 et seq., and defined 

by Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.) R9-22-101.B. 

 

6.1.6 “AHCCCSA” or “Administration” means the Arizona Health Care Cost 

Containment System Administration.  

 

6.1.7 “AHCCCS Minimum Subcontract Provisions” means the AHCCCS minimum 

requirements for the Division’s contractors and subcontractors providing services 

to members eligible for DD/ALTCS and/or receiving Title XIX (ALTCS) funds.  

 

6.1.8 “ALTCS” means the Arizona Long Term Care System as defined by A.A.C. R9-

28-101.B.2.  

 

6.1.9 “Applicant” means a vendor who submits an application in response to the 

Request for Qualified Vendor Applications. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-2                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.10 “Application” means a completed copy of the Application and Qualified Vendor 

Agreement Award form submitted in hardcopy to the Division; the required 

information in the Qualified Vendor Application and Directory System submitted 

electronically to the Division via the Division’s website, and approved by the 

Division; a hardcopy of the required information entered into the Qualified 

Vendor Application and Directory System submitted to and approved by the 

Division; and all applicable submittals required in the Qualified Vendor 

Application Assurances and Submittals form submitted to and approved by the 

Division.  

 

6.1.11 “Arizona Administrative Code (A.A.C.)” means State regulations established 

pursuant to relevant statutes.   

 

6.1.12 “Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.)” means Laws of the State of Arizona. 

 

6.1.13 “Business Day” means between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Arizona time 

any day of the week other than Saturday, Sunday,  a legal holiday, or a day on 

which the Division is authorized or obligated by law or executive order to close.     

 

6.1.14 “Clean Claim” means claims that may be processed without obtaining additional 

information from the provider of service or from a third party but does not include 

claims under investigation for fraud and abuse or claims under review for medical 

necessity (A.R.S. § 36-2904.G.1).  

 

6.1.15 “Client,” “Member,” “DD/ALTCS Member,” “Consumer,” or “Individual” means 

a person who is authorized to receive services through the Division.  

 

6.1.16 “Code of Federal Regulations or “C.R.F.” means the general and permanent rules 

published in the Federal Register by the departments and agencies of the Federal 

Government.  

 

6.1.17 “Community Developmental Disability Services” means any service or support 

the Division is authorized to purchase on behalf of individuals with 

developmental disabilities and their families or guardians. 

 

6.1.18 “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 

 

6.1.19  “Department” or “ADES” means the Arizona Department of Economic Security, 

unless otherwise indicated.  

 

6.1.20 “Division” or “DDD” means the Division of Developmental Disabilities within 

the Department of Economic Security.  References to rules, policies, or 

procedures of the Division shall be deemed to include all rules, policies, and 

procedures of the Department. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-3                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.21 “Effective Date” means the date that the Procurement Officer signs the Qualified 

Vendor Agreement Award, unless another date is specifically stated in the 

Agreement. 

 

6.1.22 “Encounter” means the record of a service submitted to or by the Division and 

processed by AHCCCS that is rendered by a provider registered with AHCCCS to 

a member who is enrolled with the Division on the date of service for which the 

Division incurs a financial liability (A.A.C. R9-22-701). 

 

6.1.23  “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, 

services, or anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless 

consideration of substantially equal or greater value is received. 

 

6.1.24 “Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act “or “HIPAA” means the 

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act [Public Law (P. L.) 104-191]; 

also known as the Kennedy-Kassebaum Act, signed August 21, 1996 that 

addresses issues regarding the privacy and security of member confidential 

information. 

 

6.1.25 “Individual Independent Provider” as referenced in this document means a person 

who is qualified to provide the service, does not have any employees, has a 

provider identification number, and has an individual service agreement with the 

Division to provide one or more of the following services:  Attendant Care; 

Habilitation, Hourly Support; Homemaker; Respite; or Habilitation, Individually 

Designed Living Arrangement.    

 

6.1.26 “Individual Support Plan” or “ISP” means a written statement of services to be 

provided to a Division member with developmental disabilities including 

habilitation goals and objectives and a listing of the services, if any, the member is 

authorized to receive.  The ISP incorporates and replaces the Individual Program 

Plan, the placement evaluation, the individualized service program plan and the 

service program plan used in A.R.S. § 36-557 (as may be amended).  ISP 

incorporates the Individual Family Service Plan (“IFSP”) as defined in Section 

809.1 of the Division’s Policy and Procedures Manual as well as a Person 

Centered Plan, which describes the type, frequency, and duration of the services 

and supports needed to achieve the appropriate outcomes for a member.  The ISP 

or IFSP is also referred to as the “planning document”. 

 

6.1.27 “Individual Support Plan Team” or “ISP Team” means a group of persons 

including the member, the member’s representative, and other persons selected by 

the member, assembled by the Division and coordinated by the member’s Support 

Coordinator to develop the member’s planning document [e.g., Individual Support 

Plan (ISP)]. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-4                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.28 “Material Event”  is an event that could prevent or impede the vendor’s ability or 

legal authority to perform its duties under this Agreement, including but not 

limited to the duty to render services in a manner that protects the health and 

safety of DDD members. The following are deemed to be material events: (but the 

following are not intended to include every possible material event): (i) any 

regulatory enforcement action is brought against the vendor, including but not 

limited to actions relating to any license, permit, or certification held by the 

vendor; (ii) the vendor is the subject of a filing in bankruptcy (either by the vendor 

or another party); (iii) the vendor is a party to litigation  or other legal action 

where damages or other remedies are sought from the vendor, including but is not 

limited to actions alleging the vendor’s default on payment of wages, 

indebtedness, or taxes; (iv) the vendor’s assets are subject to a court-ordered 

restriction on transfer, including but not limited to attachment or garnishment 

(however, an order to garnish the wages of an employee of the vendor is not 

considered to be a restriction on the transfer of the vendor’s assets, for purposes of 

this Agreement); (v) any officer, director, or other management official of the 

vendor, or any person owning or controlling over 25% of any class of securities 

issued by the vendor, is the subject of regulatory enforcement action, criminal 

prosecution, or an action alleging dishonesty or fraud. 

 

6.1.29 “May” indicates something that is not mandatory but permissible. 

 

6.1.30 “Member/Member Representative” means with respect to the Client, either the 

Client or the Responsible Person, as appropriate. 

 

6.1.31 “Procurement Officer” means the person duly authorized to enter into and 

administer Agreements and make written determinations with respect to the 

Agreement or his/her designee.  

 

6.1.32 “Professional Independent Provider” means a person who is licensed or certified 

under Title 32, A.R.S., who provides services for members as a Qualified Vendor 

and is not an employee or a subcontractor of a provider agency. 

 

6.1.33 “Qualified Vendor” means any person or entity that has an Agreement with the 

Division of Developmental Disabilities. 

 

6.1.34 “Record” means any data in any form that is required to be created and/or 

maintained to document performance of the Agreement. 

 

6.1.35 "Responsible person" means the parent or guardian of a developmentally disabled 

minor, the guardian of a developmentally disabled adult or a developmentally 

disabled adult who is a member (client) for whom no guardian has been 

appointed. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-5                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.1.36 “Shall” or “Must” indicates a mandatory requirement.  Failure to meet these 

mandatory requirements may result in the rejection of an Application or 

termination of the Agreement, in whole or in part.  

 

6.1.37 “Should” indicates something that is recommended but not mandatory.  If the 

Applicant fails to provide recommended information, the State may, at its sole 

option, ask the Applicant to provide the information or evaluate the Application 

without the information.  

 

6.1.38 “Subcontract” means any arrangement, expressed or implied, between the 

Qualified Vendor and another party or between a subcontractor and another party 

delegating or assigning, in whole or in part, the making or furnishing of any 

material or any service required for the performance of this Agreement. 

 

6.1.39 “State” means the State of Arizona and the Department or Agency of the State 

that executes the Agreement. 

 

6.1.40 “Third Party Liability” means the resources available from a person or entity that 

is or may be, by Agreement, circumstances, or otherwise, liable to pay all or part 

of the medical expenses incurred by a Division client (A.A.C. R6-6-101.71 and 

A.A.C. Title 9, Chapter 22, Article 10). 

 

6.1.41 “Third Party Payor” means any individual, entity or program that is or may be 

liable to pay all or part of the medical cost of injury, disease or disability of a 

Division client (A.A.C. R6-6-101.72). 

 

6.1.42 “Vendor Call” means a notice from the Division inviting Qualified Vendors and 

individual independent providers to submit a response indicating their availability 

to provide services for a specific member or specific group of members, based on 

the requirements defined in the member’s planning document. 

 

6.2 Agreement Interpretation  

 

6.2.1 Arizona Law.  

 

 Arizona law applies to this Agreement.  

 

6.2.2 Implied Agreement Terms.  

 

 Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in this Agreement are a 

part of this Agreement as if fully stated in it. 

 

6.2.3 Agreement Order of Precedence.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-6                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Agreement, as accepted by the 

State and as they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set 

forth below:  

 

6.2.3.1 Qualified Vendor Award; 

 

6.2.3.2 DES/DDD Standard Terms and Conditions for Qualified Vendors; 

 

6.2.3.3 Service Requirements/Scope of Work; 

 

6.2.3.4 Service Specifications; 

 

6.2.3.5 Rates; 

 

6.2.3.6 Information entered into the Qualified Vendor Application and Directory System 

(“QVADS”) (most recently approved); and 

 

6.2.3.7 Attachments to information entered into QVADS (most recently approved). 

 

6.2.4 Relationship of Parties.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor under this Agreement is an independent contractor.  Neither 

party to this Agreement shall be deemed to be the employee or agent of the other 

party to the Agreement.  In the event that the Qualified Vendor or its personnel is 

sued or prosecuted for conduct arising from this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor 

or its personnel will not be represented by the Department or the Arizona Attorney 

General.  In addition, taxes or Social Security payments will not be withheld from 

a State payment issued hereunder and the Qualified Vendor shall make 

arrangements to directly pay such expenses. 

 

6.2.5 Severability.  

 

 The provisions of this Agreement and any amendments to the Agreement are 

severable.  Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid shall not affect any 

other term or condition of the Agreement or the amendment. 

 

6.2.6 No Parol Evidence. 

 

 This Agreement is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of 

their Agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of 

the trade shall supplement or explain any terms used in this document and no 

other understanding, either oral or in writing, shall be binding. 

 

6.2.7 No Waiver.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-7                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the 

Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the 

party accepting or acquiescing in the nonconforming performance knows of the 

nature of the performance and fails to object to it. 

 

6.2.8 Headings.  

 

 The section headings used in the Agreement are for reference and convenience 

only and shall not enter into any interpretation of the Agreement. 

 

6.3 Agreement Administration and Operation 

 

6.3.1 Records.  

 

6.3.1.1 Under A.R.S. §§ 35-214 and 35-215, the Qualified Vendor shall retain and shall 

contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other records 

(“records”) relating to the acquisition and performance of the Agreement for a 

period of five (5) years after the date of final payment under the Agreement.  In 

compliance with A.R.S. § 12-2297, the Qualified Vendor shall retain records as 

follows: (i) if the member is an adult, for a period of six (6) years from the date of 

final payment; (ii) if the member is a child, either for at least three (3) years after 

the child’s eighteenth (18
th

) birthday or for at least six (6) years after the date of 

final payment, whichever occurs later.  All records shall be subject to inspection 

and audit by the State at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Qualified Vendor 

shall produce a legible copy of any or all such records. 

 

6.3.1.2 Records that relate to grievances, disputes, litigation or the settlement of claims 

arising out of the performance of this Agreement, or costs and expenses of this 

Agreement as to which exception has been taken by the State, shall be retained by 

the Qualified Vendor until such grievances, disputes, litigation, claims or 

exceptions have been resolved.  

 

6.3.1.3 The Qualified Vendor shall provide at no charge all records requested by the 

Department or its attorneys (which may include, but is not limited to, requests 

relating to Adult Protective Services, Child Support Enforcement, or Child 

Protective Services), and/or the AHCCCS and all information from its records 

relating to the performance of this Agreement that the Department or the 

AHCCCS may reasonably require.  The Qualified Vendor reporting requirements 

hereunder may include, but are not limited to, timely and detailed utilization 

statistics, information and reports.  Unless otherwise agreed to by the Department, 

records requested by the Department or its attorneys are to be provided prior to or 

on the date set forth in the request. If the Qualified Vendor receives the request 

less than seven (7) business days prior to the response date specified, the 

Qualified Vendor shall make diligent efforts to comply with the request, and 

notify the Department of the status of its efforts to comply. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-8                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.3.1.4 The Qualified Vendor shall follow all policies and procedures of the Division for 

the acceptance, retention, disposition, and accounting for member (client) funds.  

The Qualified Vendor also shall develop and maintain internal policies and 

procedures for the administration of such funds.  All Division policies are posted 

on the Division’s website at www.azdes.gov/ddd. 

 

6.3.1.5 The Division is responsible for submission of accurate Encounters to AHCCCS 

for all Agreement services rendered to eligible members by the Qualified Vendor 

and any subcontractor.  Claims filed by the Qualified Vendor are the basis of the 

encounter submission by the Division.  Qualified Vendors shall work with the 

Division to ensure that Encounters effectively occur.  This shall include adhering 

to Division Billing Requirements.  Billing Requirements are posted on the 

Division website at www.azdes.gov/ddd.  

 

6.3.1.6 Agreement service records will be maintained in accordance with this Agreement.  

Records shall, as applicable, meet the following standards: 

 

6.3.1.6.1 Adequately identify the service provided; 

 

6.3.1.6.2 Include personnel records, which contain applications for employment, job titles 

and descriptions, hire and termination dates, copies of the fingerprint clearance 

cards, wage rates, and effective dates of personnel actions affecting any of these 

items; 

 

6.3.1.6.3 Include time and attendance records for individual employees to support all 

salaries and wages paid and claims for payment from the Division; 

 

6.3.1.6.4 Include records of the source of all receipts and the deposit of all funds received 

by the Qualified Vendor; 

 

6.3.1.6.5 Include original copies of billing or other records relating to disbursements 

including but not limited to invoices, statements, sales tickets, billings for 

services, deposit slips, etc., and a cash disbursement journal and cancelled checks 

to reflect all disbursements applicable to the Agreement; 

 

6.3.1.6.6 Include a complete general ledger with accounts for the collection of all costs 

and/or fees applicable to the Agreement; and 

 

6.3.1.6.7 Include copies of lease/rental contracts, mortgages and/or any other contracts, 

which in any way may affect Qualified Vendor expenditures.  

 

6.3.1.7 Any such records not maintained shall mandate an audit exception in the amount 

of the inadequately documented expenditures. 

 

http://www.azdes.gov/ddd
http://www.azdes.gov/ddd


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-9                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.3.1.8 If this Agreement is completely or partially terminated, the records relating to the 

work terminated shall be preserved and made available for a period of five (5) 

years from the date of final payment under the Agreement.  In compliance with 

A.R.S. § 12-2297, the Qualified Vendor shall retain records as follows; (i) if the 

member is an adult, for a period of six (6) years from the date of final payment; 

(ii) if the member is a child, either for at least three (3) years after the child’s 

eighteenth (18
th

) birthday or for at least six (6) years after the date of final 

payment, whichever occurs later.  Records which related to disputes, litigation or 

the settlement of claims arising out of the performance of this Agreement, or costs 

and expenses of this Agreement to which exception has been taken by the state, 

shall be retained by the Qualified Vendor until such disputes, litigations, claims or 

exceptions are resolved by way of a binding agreement, the rendering of a final 

judgment, or the claims have otherwise been dismissed. 

 

6.3.2 Non-Discrimination. 

 

 In accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1461 et seq. and Executive Order 2009-09, the 

Qualified Vendor shall provide equal employment opportunities for all persons, 

regardless of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, disability or 

political affiliation.   

 

6.3.2.1 Unless exempt under Federal law, the Qualified Vendor shall comply with Title 

VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in 

Employment Act, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Fair Labor Standards Act of 

1938, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the Arizona Disability Act.  

 

6.3.2.2 If Qualified Vendor is an Indian Tribal Government, Qualified Vendor shall 

comply with the Indian Civil Rights Act of 1968.  It shall be permissible for an 

Indian Tribal Qualified Vendor to engage in Indian preference in hiring. 

 

6.3.2.3 Unless expressly waived by the Division, the following shall be included in all 

publications, forms, flyers, etc. that are distributed to recipients of Agreement 

services:    

  

 Under Titles VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (respectively “Title VI” 

and “Title VII”) and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) Section 

504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 

insert Qualified Vendor name here) prohibits discrimination in admissions, 

programs, services, activities or employment based on race, color, religion, sex, 

national origin, age, and disability.  The (insert Qualified Vendor name here) must 

make a reasonable accommodation to allow a person with a disability to take part 

in a program, service, or activity.  Auxiliary aids and services are available upon 

request to individuals with disabilities.  For example, this means that if necessary, 

the (insert Qualified Vendor name here) must provide sign language interpreters 

for people who are deaf, a wheelchair accessible location, or enlarged print 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-10                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

materials.  It also means that the (insert Qualified Vendor name here) will take 

any other reasonable action that allows you to take part in and understand a 

program or activity, including making reasonable changes to an activity.  If you 

believe that you will not be able to understand or take part in a program or activity 

because of your disability, please let us know of your disability needs in advance 

if at all possible.  To request this document in alternative format or for further 

information about this policy please contact: (insert Qualified Vendor contact 

person and phone number here) Para obtener este documento en otro formato u 

obtener información adicional sobre esta política, (insert Qualified Vendor contact 

person and phone number here)”. 

 

6.3.3  Audit.  

 

6.3.3.1  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 35-214, at any time during the term of this Agreement and 

five (5) years, or in compliance with A.R.S. § 12-2297, the Qualified Vendor shall 

retain records as follows; (i) if the member is an adult, for a period of six (6) years 

from the date of final payment; (ii) if the member is a child, either for at least 

three (3) years after the child’s eighteenth (18
th

) birthday or for at least six (6) 

years after the date of final payment, whichever occurs later, the Qualified 

Vendor’s and/or any subcontractor’s books and records shall be subject to audit by 

the State and, where applicable, the Federal Government, to the extent that the 

books and records relate to the performance of the Agreement or subcontract.  

 

6.3.3.2  All Qualified Vendors are subject to the programmatic and fiscal monitoring 

requirements of each Department program to ensure accountability of the delivery 

of all goods and services.  

 

6.3.3.2.1 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the AHCCCS financial viability 

standards.  AHCCCS’ current financial viability standards include: current assets 

divided by current liabilities must be equal to or greater than a ratio of 1.00.  

Current assets may include any long-term investments that can be converted to 

cash within twenty-four (24) hours without significant penalty [(i.e., greater than 

twenty (20) percent].  If current assets include a receivable from a parent 

company, the parent company must have liquid assets that support the amount of 

the inter-company loan.   

 

6.3.3.3  The Qualified Vendor must prepare financial reports in accordance with Generally 

Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”).  Annual financial audit reports must 

be conducted in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

(“GAAS”) audited by an independent Certified Public Accountant.   The 

completed audited Financial Statement Report package must be submitted to the 

Division person designated to receive notices within thirty (30) days after 

completion of the audit unless a different time is requested and approved by the 

Division.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-11                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.3.3.3.1  Audits of non-profit corporations receiving Federal or State monies required 

pursuant to Federal or State law must be conducted as provided in 31 United 

States Code (“U.S.C.”) Section 7501 et seq. and A.R.S. §35-181.03 and any other 

applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and standards.  

 

6.3.3.4  A Qualified Vendor receiving five million dollars ($5,000,000) or more in 

payments from the Department for Qualified Vendor services in any state fiscal 

year shall provide the Department the following: (a) Quarterly financial 

statements no later than sixty (60) days following the end of the quarter, and (b) 

Annual audited financial statements no later than thirty (30) days after the 

completion of the audit unless a different time has been requested and approved 

by the Division.    

 

6.3.3.5  A Qualified Vendor receiving payments from the Department for Qualified 

Vendor services in any state fiscal year in the amount of at least two million 

dollars ($2,000,000) but less than five-million dollars ($5,000,000) shall provide 

the Department the following: (a) Semi-annual financial statements no later than 

sixty (60) days following the end of the second quarter; and (b) Annual financial 

statements that have been reviewed by an independent Certified Public 

Accountant.  Review report must consist of at least a Balance Sheet, Income 

Statement and Statement of Cash Flows.  Annual financial statements shall be 

submitted to the Division no later than thirty (30) days after the completion of the 

review unless a different time has been requested and approved by the Division.  

 

6.3.3.6   A Qualified Vendor receiving payments from the Department for Qualified 

Vendor services in any state fiscal year in the amount of at least one million 

dollars ($1,000,000) to less than two-million dollars ($2,000,000) shall provide 

the Department an annual financial compilation that has been compiled by an 

independent Certified Public Accountant.  A compilation must consist of at least a 

Balance Sheet, Income Statement and Statement of Cash Flows.  Annual financial 

statements shall be submitted to the Division no later than thirty (30) days after 

the completion of the compilation unless a different time has been requested and 

approved by the Division.  

 

6.3.3.7  A Qualified Vendor receiving payments from the Department for Qualified 

Vendor services in any state fiscal year less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) 

shall provide the Department an annual financial statement that consists of a 

Balance Sheet, Income Statement, and Statement of Cash Flows within one 

hundred twenty (120) days after fiscal year end.   

 

6.3.4 Notices. 

 

 All Notices from the Division to Qualified Vendors shall reference the 

Solicitation RFQVA.  Notices from Qualified Vendors to the Division shall 

reference the Agreement Number.  Notices to the Qualified Vendor required by 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-12                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

this Agreement may be made by the State via email to the email contact indicated 

on the Qualified Vendor Application form submitted by the Qualified Vendor.  

Notices to the Qualified Vendor by the State may be made solely via email.  

Therefore, the Qualified Vendor is required to keep their Qualified Vendor 

Agreement email contact and address updated at all times to ensure receipt of 

notices from the State.  Notices to the State required by the Agreement shall be 

mailed by the Qualified Vendor to the Division’s Contract Manager at the 

following address: 

                  

  Contract Management Unit 

                   Business Operations – Site Code 791A 

                   Arizona Department of Economic Security 

                   Division of Developmental Disabilities 

  P.O. Box 6123  

                   Phoenix, Arizona 85005-6123  

 

 or e-mailed to DDDContractsManager@azdes.gov unless a hardcopy signature or 

original document is required.  All notices or other documentation supplied to the 

Division by the Qualified Vendor shall contain the Qualified Vendor number, 

Agreement number, and name of the entity.     

 

6.3.5 Advertising and Promotion of Agreement. 

 

6.3.5.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not advertise or publish information for commercial 

benefit concerning this Agreement without the prior written approval of the 

Division. 

 

6.3.5.2 The Qualified Vendor shall provide to the Division for review and approval all 

reports or publications (written, visual, and/or audio) which are intended for  

Division members or applicants regarding services funded or partially funded 

under the Qualified Vendor Agreement a minimum of thirty (30) calendar days 

prior to delivery or publication.  The preceding sentence does not apply to 

communications directed to the general public.  The Qualified Vendor shall refer 

to the Division’s Provider Manual for guidance on submitting and processing 

materials pursuant to this subsection.   

 

6.3.5.2.1 All reports and publications, whether written, visual, and/or audio, shall contain 

the following statement:  “The program described in this publication is funded 

through a contract with the Arizona Department of Economic Security (the 

“Department”).  Points of view are those of the author and do not necessarily 

represent the official position or policies of the Department.” 

 

6.3.6 Property of the State. 

 

mailto:DDDContractsManager@azdes.gov


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-13                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.3.6.1 Any materials, including reports, computer programs and other deliverables, 

created under this Agreement are the sole property of the State.  The Qualified 

Vendor is not entitled to a patent or copyright on those materials and may not 

transfer the patent or copyright to anyone else.  The Qualified Vendor shall not 

use or release these materials without the prior written consent of the State. 

 

6.3.6.2 The Federal and State governments reserve a royalty-free, nonexclusive and 

irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use and to authorize others 

to use for Federal or State government purposes such materials, reports, data or 

information system, software, documentation and manuals. 

 

6.3.6.3 At the termination of the Agreement, in whole or in part, the Qualified Vendor 

shall make available all such relevant materials, reports, data and information to 

the Division within thirty (30) days following termination of the Agreement or 

such longer period as approved by the Division.  

 

6.3.7 Confidentiality. 

 

6.3.7.1 The Qualified Vendor shall observe and abide by all applicable State and Federal 

statutes, rules and regulations regarding the use or disclosure of information 

including, but not limited to, information concerning applicants for and recipients 

of Agreement services.  To the extent permitted by law, the Qualified Vendor 

shall release information to the Department and the Attorney General’s Office as 

required by the terms of this Agreement, by law or upon their request. 

 

6.3.7.2 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements of the Arizona Address 

Confidentiality Program, A.R.S. § 41-161 et seq.    

 

6.3.8 Agreement Term. 

  

 The term of this Agreement shall be the period of time from the date of signing by 

the Department to the Agreement termination date as awarded or extended, or 

such earlier date as provided under Section 6.10.  The Qualified Vendor will not 

be paid or reimbursed for Agreement services provided prior to the date services 

are authorized to begin.     

 

6.3.9               Agreement Extension. 

 

 The maximum term for this Agreement is six (6) years from January 1, 2011.  

This Agreement will expire no later than December 31, 2017.  The Agreement can 

be terminated as specified in Section 6.10 et seq. of these terms and conditions.  

The Procurement Officer may exercise the Division’s option to extend or renew 

the Agreement by unilateral Agreement amendment; a written amendment signed 

by both parties shall not be necessary.  The Division has no obligation to extend 

or renew this Agreement. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-14                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.3.10 Cooperation. 

 

6.3.10.1 The Department may undertake or award other Agreements or Contracts for 

additional work related to the work performed by the Qualified Vendor, and the 

Qualified Vendor must fully cooperate with such other Qualified Vendors, 

Contractors, and State employees, and carefully fit its own work to such other 

work.  The Qualified Vendor may not commit or permit any act that will interfere 

with the performance of work by any other Qualified Vendor, Contractor, or by 

State employees.  The Qualified Vendor shall cooperate with the State in the 

transfer of work, services, case records or files from the Qualified Vendor to any 

other Qualified Vendor(s), Contractor(s), or State employee(s) that the State 

deems appropriate for the other Qualified Vendor(s), Contractor(s), or State 

employee(s) to perform work under their Agreement, Contract, or duties as a State 

employee.  

 

6.3.11 Technical Assistance. 

 

 The Division may, but shall not be obligated to, provide technical assistance to the 

Qualified Vendor in the administration of Agreement services, or relating to the 

terms and conditions, policies and procedures governing this Agreement.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Qualified Vendor shall not be relieved of full 

responsibility and accountability for the provision of Agreement services in 

accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein.  

 

6.3.12 Enrollment; Disenrollment. 

 

 Procedures for enrollment of a member in Qualified Vendor services and 

termination of enrollment with the Qualified Vendor shall be in accordance with 

the Agreement and all applicable Division and/or AHCCCS rules and policies.  

AHCCCS rules and policies may be found at www.azahcccs.gov/default.aspx. 

 

6.3.13 Offshore Performance of Work Prohibited. 

 

 Due to security and identity protection concerns, direct services under this 

Agreement shall be performed within the borders of the United States.  Any 

services that are described in the specifications or scope of work that directly 

serve the State of Arizona or Members and may involve access to or transmission 

of secure or sensitive data or personal information or development or modification 

of software for the State shall be performed within the borders of the United 

States.  Unless specifically stated otherwise in the specifications or scope of work, 

this definition does not apply to indirect or “overhead” services, redundant back-

up services or services that are incidental to the performance of the Agreement.  

This provision applies to work performed by subcontractors at all tiers.  

 

file:///C:/Users/d047160/AppData/Common/1%20SHERRY%20AV/FINAL%20SOLICITATION/DRAFT%20TRK/www.azahcccs.gov/default.aspx


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-15                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4 Costs and Payments 

 

6.4.1 Payments.  

 

6.4.1.1 Upon delivery of goods or services, the Qualified Vendor shall submit a claim.  

Submission of the claim constitutes an affirmation by the Qualified Vendor that 

the claim is accurate.  Nothing in this Agreement requires the State to pay claims 

any sooner than thirty (30) days after receipt of an accurate claim.  

 

6.4.1.2 The Qualified Vendor is paid a specified amount for each unit of service or 

deliverable as designated in the service specification and RateBook or negotiated 

rate, not to exceed the maximum number of units indicated by the authorization 

for each Agreement service/deliverable. 

 

6.4.1.3 The Qualified Vendor shall report Agreement expenditures to the Division in the 

manner prescribed by the “Records,” “Audits,” and “Reporting Requirements” 

sections of these terms and conditions.  Upon receipt of applicable, accurate and 

complete reports, the Division shall authorize payment or reimbursement in 

accordance with the method(s) prescribed by this Agreement.  

 

6.4.1.4 If the Qualified Vendor is in any manner in default in the performance of any 

obligation under this Agreement, or if audit exceptions are identified, the Division 

may, at its option and in addition to other available remedies, either offset the 

amount of payment or withhold payment until satisfactory resolution of the 

default or exception. 

 

6.4.1.5 The Division will not pay the Qualified Vendor: 

 

6.4.1.5.1 For services that exceed the authorization.   

 

6.4.1.5.2 For services performed prior to or after the term of the Agreement.   

 

6.4.1.5.3 For services delivered prior to licensing if licensing is required.   

 

6.4.1.5.4 For services delivered prior to required certification including but not limited to 

certification as a Home and Community Based Service provider.   

 

6.4.1.5.5 For services delivered prior to AHCCCS registration. 

 

6.4.1.6 Claims by the Qualified Vendor shall be submitted to the Division on the 

Division’s approved Billing Documents and in the format required by the 

Division, AHCCCS or the Federal government under the electronic submission 

requirements of the HIPAA of 1996.    

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-16                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.1.7 The Division is not obligated to pay for services provided without prior 

authorization. Claims for services delivered must be initially received by the 

Division not later than nine (9) months after the last date of service shown on the 

claim.  A resubmitted claim shall not be considered for payment unless it is 

received by the Division as a clean claim not later than twelve (12) months after 

the last date of service shown originally on the claim.  

 

6.4.1.8 For the purpose of determining the date of receipt of a claim, the date of receipt is 

the date the Division receives the claim.  Only claims received by the Division in 

accordance with the provisions of this section will be considered for payment. 

 

6.4.1.9 The Qualified Vendor must obtain any necessary authorization from the Division 

or AHCCCS for services provided to members and shall comply with encounter 

reporting and claims submission requirements of the Division and AHCCCS.  

 

6.4.1.10 Corrections to claims submitted to the Division in which an underpayment was 

made due to either billing errors or an error on the part of the Division when 

paying must be made within a twelve (12) month period of time following 

delivery of service.  Underpayment billing corrections will not be considered 

beyond twelve (12) months from service delivery. 

 

6.4.2 Applicable Taxes. 

 

6.4.2.1 Payment of Taxes 

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall be responsible for paying all applicable taxes. 

 

6.4.2.2 State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes 

 

 The State of Arizona is subject to all applicable state and local transaction 

privilege taxes.  Transaction privilege taxes apply to the sale and are the 

responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to collect taxes from the buyer does 

not relieve the seller from its obligation to remit taxes. 

 

6.4.2.3 Tax Indemnification 

 

 The Qualified Vendor and all subcontractors shall pay all Federal, State and local 

taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Qualified 

Vendor.  The Qualified Vendor shall, and require all subcontractors to, hold the 

State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages and interest, if 

applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or State and local laws and 

regulations and any other costs including transaction privilege taxes, 

unemployment compensation insurance, Social Security and Worker’s 

Compensation. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-17                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.2.4 Arizona Substitute W-9 Form 

 

 In order to receive payment under the Agreement, the Qualified Vendor shall have 

a current Arizona Substitute W-9 Form on file with the State of Arizona and shall 

submit an Arizona Substitute W-9 upon request by the Division.  An Arizona 

Substitute W-9 will need to be submitted if there are any changes to the Qualified 

Vendor’s address, name, telephone number or other information.  A copy of this 

Arizona Substitute W-9 form can be found at the Arizona Department of 

Administration’s General Accounting Office website at www.gao.az.gov.  

 

6.4.3 Availability of Funds. 

 
 The Department may adjust payment authorizations, adjust prior service 

authorizations, or terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, without further 

recourse, obligation, or penalty in the event that insufficient funds are 

appropriated or allocated.  The Director of the Department shall have the sole and 

unfettered discretion in determining the availability of funds.   

 

6.4.3.1 Reduction in Appropriations.   

 

 If the State Legislature reduces the appropriations to the Department or Division 

resulting directly or indirectly in a decrease in funding for goods and service that 

are subject to this Agreement the State may take any appropriate action, including 

but not limited to the following actions: 

 Post revised rates in the RateBook; 

 Cancel the Agreement; 

 Cancel the Agreement and re-solicit the requirements.  

 

 6.4.4            Certification of Cost or Pricing Data. 

 

 By signing the Qualified Vendor Application, Agreement, Agreement 

Amendment or other official form, the Qualified Vendor is certifying that, to the 

best of the Qualified Vendor’s knowledge and belief, any cost or pricing data 

submitted is accurate, complete and current as of the date submitted or other 

mutually agreed upon date.  Furthermore, the price to the State shall be adjusted to 

exclude any significant amounts by which the State finds the price was increased 

because the Qualified Vendor-furnished cost or pricing data was inaccurate, 

incomplete or not current as of the date of certification.  Such adjustment by the 

State may include overhead, profit or fees.  The certifying of cost or pricing data 

does not apply when Agreement rates are set by law or regulation.  

 

6.4.5 Fees and Program Income.  

 

6.4.5.1 The Qualified Vendor shall impose no fees or charges of any kind upon members 

for services authorized under this Agreement; this prohibition includes but is not 

http://www.gao.az.gov/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-18                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

limited to seeking indemnification, release, or other contract rights from the 

member.  

 

6.4.5.2 The Qualified Vendor shall not submit a claim, demand, or otherwise collect 

payment from a member for ALTCS services in excess of the amount paid to the 

Qualified Vendor by the AHCCCS or the Division.  The Qualified Vendor shall 

not bill or attempt to collect payment directly or through a collection agency from 

a member claiming to be ALTCS eligible without first receiving verification from 

the AHCCCS that the member was ineligible for ALTCS on the date of service or 

that services provided were not ALTCS covered services (A.A.C. R9-22-702).  

 

6.4.5.3 The Division shall collect Client Share of Cost as described in A.A.C. R6-6-1201 

et seq.  The Qualified Vendor may not collect this amount from members.  

 

6.4.5.4 Members may be assessed a cost sharing requirement in the form of a co-payment 

for certain medical services (A.A.C. R9-22-711).  Residential Qualified Vendors 

may need to facilitate payment of this charge from client trust fund accounts.  

 

6.4.6 Levels of Service.     

 

6.4.6.1 The Department makes no guarantee to purchase specific quantities of goods or 

services, or to refer members as may be identified or specified herein.  Further, it 

is understood and agreed that this Agreement is for the sole convenience of the 

Department and that the Department reserves the right to obtain like goods or 

services from other sources.  

 

6.4.6.2 Any administration within the Department may obtain services under this 

Agreement.   

 

6.4.6.3 The Division makes no guarantee to purchase all of the service capacity or to 

provide any number of referrals.  

 

6.4.6.4 Any change in member residential placement requires approval by the appropriate 

Division District Administration.  The Division reserves the authority to make any 

and all determinations regarding member need.  Except in an emergency need 

situation, changes in residential placement require sixty (60) day written prior 

notification by either the Qualified Vendor or the Division of Developmental 

Disabilities.  

 

6.4.7 Payment Recoupment. 

 

6.4.7.1 The Qualified Vendor shall reimburse the Division upon demand or the Division 

may deduct from future payments the following:  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-19                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.7.1.1 Any amounts received by the Qualified Vendor from the Division for Agreement 

services that have been inaccurately reported or fail to meet payment 

requirements;  

 

6.4.7.1.2 Any amounts paid by the Qualified Vendor to a subcontractor if the Qualified 

Vendor entered into the subcontract without advance notice to the Division;  

 

6.4.7.1.3 Any amount or benefit paid directly or indirectly to an individual or organization 

not in accordance with the “Substantial Interest Disclosure” section of these terms 

and conditions;  

 

6.4.7.1.4 Any amounts paid by the Division for services that duplicate services covered or 

reimbursed by other specific grants, contracts, or payments;  

 

6.4.7.1.5 Any amounts paid to the Qualified Vendor or reimbursed in excess of the 

Agreement or service reimbursement ceiling;  

 

6.4.7.1.6 Any amounts paid to the Qualified Vendor that are subsequently determined to be 

defective pursuant to the “Certification of Cost or Pricing Data” section of these 

terms and conditions; 

 

6.4.7.1.7 Any payments made for services rendered before the Agreement date or after the 

Agreement termination date (whether in whole or in part); and 

 

6.4.7.1.8 Any amount paid to the Qualified Vendor by the Division that is identified as a 

financial audit exception.  

 

6.4.8 Reporting Requirements. 

 

6.4.8.1 Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, reporting shall adhere to the 

following schedule: no later than the thirtieth (30
th

) day following the end of each 

month during the Agreement term, the Qualified Vendor shall submit required 

programmatic and financial reports to the Division in the form set forth in the 

Agreement or as required by the Division.  Failure to submit accurate and 

complete reports by the thirtieth (30
th

) day following the end of a month may 

result, at the option of the Division, in delay of payment.  Failure to provide such 

report within forty-five (45) days following the end of a month may result, at the 

option of the Division, in a termination of the Agreement. 

 

6.4.8.2 No later than the forty-fifth (45
th

) day following the termination of this 

Agreement, in whole or in part, the Qualified Vendor shall submit to the Division 

a final program and fiscal report.  Failure to submit the final program and fiscal 

report within the above time period may result, at the option of the Division, in 

forfeiture of final payment.  Following the end of each Agreement term, the 

Qualified Vendor shall submit programmatic and financial reports to the Division 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-20                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

in the form set forth in the contract no later than the forty-fifth (45
th

) day 

following the end of the each Agreement term.  The final fiscal report for the 

Agreement term shall include all adjustment to prior financial reports submitted 

for the Agreement term. 

 

6.4.8.3 All records or other documentation supplied to the Division by the Qualified 

Vendor shall contain the Qualified Vendor number, Agreement number, name of 

the entity, and be submitted to the person designated by the Division.  

 

6.4.8.4 Earned income reports for employment-related services shall be submitted to the 

Division by the Qualified Vendor no later than the fifteen (15
th

) day of each 

month following the service.  This also applies to Qualified Vendors who contract 

with another division to provide employment-related services to the Division’s 

members.  

 

6.4.8.5 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with any other reporting requirements as 

specified in the Agreement or as required by the Division.  

 

6.4.9 Substantial Interest Disclosure. 

 

6.4.9.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not make any payments, either directly or indirectly, 

to any person, partnership, corporation, trust, or any other organization that has a 

substantial interest in the Qualified Vendor’s organization or with which the 

Qualified Vendor (or one of its directors, officers, owners, trust certificate holders 

or a relative thereof) has a substantial interest, unless the Qualified Vendor has 

made a full written disclosure of the proposed payments, including amounts, to 

the Division.  

 

6.4.9.2 Leases or rental contracts or purchase of real property that would be covered by 

item 6.4.9.1 of this section shall be in writing and accompanied by an independent 

commercial appraisal of fair market rental, lease, or purchase value, as 

appropriate.  

 

6.4.9.3 For the purpose of this section, “relative” shall have the same meaning as in 

A.R.S. § 38-502, including the definition therein as it may be amended. 

 

6.4.10 Coordination of Benefits; Third Party Liability Determination. 

 

6.4.10.1 When applicable, the Qualified Vendor shall establish and maintain a third party 

payor identification process.   

 

6.4.10.1.1 The Qualified Vendor shall report to the Division any updates to the member-

specific third party liability information within ten (10) business days of learning 

of the new information.   

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-21                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.4.10.2 When applicable, the Qualified Vendor shall seek payment from the third party 

utilizing the AHCCCS-approved Current Procedural Terminology codes (CPT) or 

Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (“HCPCS”) for the service 

provider’s category of service, up to the amount of liability before submitting a 

claim to the Division.   

 

6.4.10.3 When submitting a claim to the Division, the Qualified Vendor shall also provide 

information acceptable to the Division showing the rejection or nonpayment of the 

claim by the third party.  Acceptable information includes, but is not limited to, an 

“explanation of benefits” form when the third party is an insurance company 

whose potential liability for the claim arises out of a contract of insurance.   

 

6.4.10.4 In the event the Qualified Vendor receives payment from a third party payor in an 

amount that meets or exceeds the published rate, the Qualified Vendor shall report 

the provision of service on the claim document showing no amount due from the 

Division.    

 

6.4.10.5 To the extent the Division pays all or a portion of a claim of the Qualified Vendor, 

the Qualified Vendor hereby assigns to the Division all rights it would otherwise 

have had from the third party or from any other source. 

 

6.4.10.6 AHCCCS rules apply to the coordination of benefits under this Agreement.  

 

6.5 Accountability  

 

6.5.1 Professional Standards. 

  

 The Qualified Vendor shall deliver services in a humane and respectful manner 

and in accordance with any and all applicable professional accreditation standards.  

Levels of staff qualifications, professionalism, numbers of staff and individuals 

identified by name must be maintained as presented in the Agreement.  

 

6.5.2 Qualified Vendor Code of Conduct. 

 

6.5.2.1 The Qualified Vendor shall subcontract with or utilize only those individuals or 

organizations that are culturally sensitive, who meet accessibility standards for the 

disabled, and who do not discriminate based on ethnicity, gender, age, race, 

religion, marital status, sexual orientation or socioeconomic status.  

Subcontractors and their credentials shall meet all the requirements that apply to 

the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.5.2.2 The Qualified Vendor must ensure that its personnel, subcontractors and any other 

individual utilized by the Qualified Vendor for this Agreement: 

 Represent themselves, their credentials, and their relationship to Qualified 

Vendor accurately to members and others in the community. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-22                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 Participate as appropriate in the planning (e.g., ISP) process, including the 

implementation of plan objectives. 

 Maintain consumer privacy and confidential information in conformity with 

federal and state law, rule, and policy. 

 Ensure that all individuals who participate in this Agreement have been 

trained and have affirmed their understanding of federal and state law, rule, 

and policy regarding confidential information. 

 Ensure that members receiving service are safely supervised and accounted 

for. 

 Act in a professional manner, honor commitments, and treat members and 

families with dignity and respect. 

 Display a positive attitude. 

 Absolute zero tolerance for the following:  sexual activity with members and 

family members; employ authority or influence with members and families for 

the benefit of a third party; exploit the member’s trust in the Contractor; or 

accept any commission, rebates, or any other form of remuneration except for 

payment by the Contractor. 

 

6.5.2.3 The Qualified Vendor shall avoid any action that might create or result in the 

appearance of: 

 

6.5.2.3.1 Inappropriate use or divulging of information gathered or discovered pursuant to 

the performance of its duties under the Agreement; 

 

6.5.2.3.2 Acting on behalf of the State without appropriate authorization; 

 

6.5.2.3.3 Providing favorable or unfavorable treatment to anyone; 

 

6.5.2.3.4 Making a decision on behalf of the State that exceeded its authority, could result 

in partiality, or have a political consequence for the State; 

 

6.5.2.3.5 Misrepresenting or otherwise impeding the efficiency, authority, actions, policies, 

or adversely affecting the confidence of the public or integrity of the State; or, 

 

6.5.2.3.6 Loss of impartiality when advising the State. 

 

6.5.3 Personnel. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor’s personnel must satisfy all qualifications, carry out all 

duties, work the hours and receive the compensation set forth in this Agreement.  

 

6.5.4 Fingerprinting.    

 

6.5.4.1 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with, and shall ensure that all of the Qualified 

Vendor’s employees, independent contractors, subcontractors, volunteers and 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-23                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

other agents comply with, all applicable (current and future) legal requirements 

relating to fingerprinting, fingerprint clearance cards, certifications regarding 

pending or past criminal matters, and criminal records checks that relate to 

Agreement performance. 

 

6.5.4.2 Applicable legal requirements relating to fingerprinting, certification, and criminal 

background checks may include, but are not limited to the following:  A.R.S. §§ 

36-594.01, 36-3008, 41-1964, and 46-141.  All applicable legal requirements 

relating to fingerprinting, fingerprint clearance cards, certifications regarding 

pending or past criminal matters, and criminal records checks are hereby 

incorporated in their entirety as provisions of this Agreement.  The Qualified 

Vendor is responsible for knowing which legal requirements relating to 

fingerprinting, fingerprint clearance cards, certifications regarding pending or past 

criminal matters, and criminal records checks relate to Agreement performance.  

The reference to “juvenile” in A.R.S. § 46-141 shall include “vulnerable adult” as 

defined in A.R.S. § 13-3623.  

  

6.5.4.3 Personnel who are employed by the Qualified Vendor, whether paid or not, and 

who are required or allowed to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable 

adults shall submit a full set of fingerprints to the Department of Public Safety for 

the purposes of obtaining a state and federal criminal records check pursuant to 

A.R.S. § 41-1750 and P. L. 92-544 or shall apply for fingerprint clearance card 

within seven (7) working days of employment.  

 

6.5.4.4 The Qualified Vendor shall assume the costs of fingerprint checks and may charge 

these costs to its fingerprinted personnel.  The Department may allow all or part of 

the costs of fingerprint checks to be included as an allowable cost in the 

Agreement.  

 

6.5.4.5       The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the Division’s Criminal Acts/ 

Fingerprinting Standards. 

 

6.5.4.6 Except as provided in A.R.S. § 46-141, this Agreement may be cancelled or 

terminated immediately if a person employed by the Qualified Vendor and who 

has contact with juveniles or vulnerable adults certifies pursuant to the provisions 

of A.R.S. § 46-141 (as may be amended) that the person is awaiting trial or has 

been convicted of any of the offenses listed therein in this State, or of acts 

committed in another state that would be offenses in this State, or if the person 

does not possess or is denied issuance of a valid fingerprint clearance card.  

 

6.5.4.7 Personnel who are employed by any Qualified Vendor, whether paid or not, and 

who are required or allowed to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable 

adults shall certify on forms provided by the Department and notarized whether 

they are awaiting trial on or have ever been convicted of any of the offenses 

described in A.R.S. § 46-141 (F) (as may be amended).  



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-24                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.5.4.8 Personnel who are employed by any Qualified Vendor, whether paid or not, and 

who are required or allowed to provide services directly to juveniles or vulnerable 

adults shall certify on forms provided by the Department and notarized whether 

they have ever committed any act of sexual abuse of a child, including sexual 

exploitation and commercial sexual exploitation, or any act of child abuse or any 

act of abuse against a vulnerable adult as defined in A.R.S. § 13-3623.  

 

6.5.5                Federally Recognized Native American Tribes or Military Bases Certifications.    

 

                      Federally recognized Native American tribes or military bases may submit and the 

Department shall accept certifications that state that no personnel who are 

employed or who will be employed during the Agreement term have been 

convicted of, have admitted committing or are awaiting trial on any offense as 

described in A.R.S. § 46-141 (F) (as may be amended). 

 

6.5.6 Background Checks for Employment through the ADES Central Registry.   

 

If providing direct services to children or vulnerable adults, the following shall 

apply: 

 

6.5.6.1 The provisions of A.R.S. § 8-804 (as may be amended) are hereby incorporated in 

its entirety as provisions of this Agreement.   

 

6.5.6.2 The Department will conduct Central Registry Background Checks and will use 

the information contained in the Central Registry as a factor to determine 

qualifications for positions that provide direct service to children or vulnerable 

adults for:        

1. Any person who applies for a contract with this State and that person’s 

employees; 

2. All employees of a contractor; 

3. A subcontractor  (subcontracting to provide member direct services) of a 

contractor and the subcontractor’s employees; and 

4. Prospective employees of the contractor or subcontractor at the request of the 

prospective employer. 

 

6.5.6.3  Volunteers who provide direct services to children or vulnerable adults shall have 

a Central Registry Background Check which is to be used as a factor to determine 

qualifications for volunteer positions. 

 

6.5.6.4 1.   A person who is disqualified because of a Central Registry Background Check 

may apply to the Board of Fingerprinting for a Central Registry exception 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-619.57.  A person who is granted a Central Registry 

exception pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-619.57 is not entitled to a contract, 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-25                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

employment, licensure, certification or other benefit because the person has 

been granted a Central Registry exception.  

 

2. Before being employed or volunteering in a position that provides direct 

services to children or vulnerable adults, persons shall certify on forms that are 

provided by the Department whether an allegation of abuse or neglect was 

made against them and was substantiated.  The completed forms are to be 

maintained as confidential.  

 

6.5.6.5 A person awaiting receipt of the Central Registry Background Check may provide 

direct services to ADES members (clients) after completion and submittal of the 

Direct Service Position certification if: 

 

1. The person is not currently the subject of an investigation of child abuse or 

neglect in Arizona or another state or jurisdiction; and 

 

2. The person has not been the subject of an investigation of child abuse or 

neglect in Arizona, or another state or jurisdiction, which resulted in a 

substantiated finding. 

 

             The Certification for Direct Service Position is located at:  

http://www.azdes.gov/InternetFiles/InternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-

1287AFORFF.doc. 

 

6.5.6.6 If the Central Registry Background Check specifies any disqualifying act and the 

person does not have a Central Registry exception, the person shall be prohibited 

from providing direct services to ADES members (clients).  

 

6.5.6.7             The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the provisions of A.R.S. § 8-804 (as may 

be amended) and submit the names of each employee, subcontractor, and 

subcontractor employee, including volunteers, providing direct service to Division 

members for the Central Registry Background Check.  The form for submitting 

the request is in Section 9, Attachment G of this Agreement located 

https://www.azdes.gov/main.aspx?menu=96&id=4792  .   

 

6.5.6.7.1 The Qualified Vendor shall maintain the Central Registry Background Check 

results and any related forms or documents in a confidential file for five (5) years 

after termination of the Agreement.  

 

6.5.6.7.2 For purposes of this Agreement, references to “juvenile” in A.R.S. § 8-804 shall 

also include “vulnerable adult” as defined in A.R.S. § 13-3623.  

 

6.5.7 Evaluation. 

 

http://www.azdes.gov/InternetFiles/InternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-1287AFORFF.doc
http://www.azdes.gov/InternetFiles/InternetProgrammaticForms/doc/ACY-1287AFORFF.doc
https://www.azdes.gov/main.aspx?menu=96&id=4792


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-26                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 The Department or third parties may evaluate, and the Qualified Vendor shall 

cooperate in the evaluation of, Agreement services.  Evaluation may assess the 

quality and impact of services, either in isolation or in comparison with other 

similar services, and assess the Qualified Vendor’s progress and/or success in 

achieving the goals, objectives and deliverables set forth in this Agreement. 

 

6.5.8 Visitation, Inspection and Copying. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor’s or any subcontractor’s facilities, services, members 

served, books and records pertaining to the Agreement shall be available for 

visitation, inspection and copying by the Division and any other appropriate agent 

of the State or Federal Government.  At the discretion of the Division, visitation, 

inspection and copying may be at any time during regular business hours, 

announced or unannounced.  If the Division deems it to be an emergency 

situation, it may at any time visit and inspect the Qualified Vendor’s or any 

subcontractor’s facilities, services, and members served, as well as inspect and 

copy their Agreement-related books and records.  

 

6.5.9 Supporting Documents and Information. 

 

 In addition to any documents, reports or information required by any other section 

of this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor shall furnish the Division with any 

further documents and information deemed necessary by the Division in the form 

requested by the Division to demonstrate that the Qualified Vendor is in 

compliance with programmatic and Agreement requirements.  Upon receipt of a 

request for information from the Department, the Qualified Vendor shall provide 

complete and accurate information no later than fifteen (15) days after the receipt 

of the request. 

 

6.5.10 Monitoring. 

 

6.5.10.1 The Department may monitor the Qualified Vendor or any subcontractor and each 

shall cooperate in the monitoring of services delivered, facilities and records 

maintained and fiscal practices.  

 

6.5.10.2 The Division will monitor the Qualified Vendor’s compliance with the Agreement 

as deemed necessary by the Division.  Monitoring may also be conducted, at 

reasonable times, by members, parents, member representatives,  representatives 

of the Developmental Disabilities Advisory Council, and  other recognized, on-

going advocacy groups for persons with developmental disabilities.  The Qualified 

Vendor shall adhere to all related policies and procedures the Division deems 

appropriate to adequately evaluate the quality and impact of services and to 

establish on-going monitoring of service performance.  The Division reserves the 

right to monitor the actual provision of services for compliance with the Division 

Programmatic Standards and to conduct investigations in accordance with the 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-27                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

Division Investigation Standards and to verify staffing levels as authorized by the 

Division District Administration. 

 

6.5.10.3 If the Division requires the Qualified Vendor to implement a corrective action 

plan, and the approved plan requires it, the Qualified Vendor shall notify all 

current and prospective members that they are operating under a corrective action 

plan.      

 

6.5.11 Utilization Control/Quality Assurance.  

 

6.5.11.1 The Qualified Vendor shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, 

maintain an internal quality assurance system in accordance with current 

applicable AHCCCS rules and policies and Federal rules as specified in the 

current 42 C.F.R. Part 456, as implemented by AHCCCS and the Division.  

Qualified Vendor requirements shall include, but are not limited to:  

 

6.5.11.1.1 Completing statistical or program reports as requested by the Division; 

 

6.5.11.1.2 Complying with any recommendations made by the Division’s Statewide Quality 

Management Committee; 

 

6.5.11.1.3 Making records available upon request; 

 

6.5.11.1.4 Allowing persons authorized by the Division access to program areas at any hours 

of the day or night as deemed appropriate by the Division; and 

 

6.5.11.1.5 Providing program information, upon request, to the Division. 

 

6.5.11.2 The Qualified Vendor shall cooperate with the Division and AHCCCS quality 

assurance programs and reviews. 

 

6.5.12 Sanctions Against the Division as a Result of Qualified Vendor Action or 

Inaction. 

 

6.5.12.1 Sanctions imposed against the Division by AHCCCS for noncompliance with 

requirements for encounter data reporting, referenced in “Records” of these Terms 

and Conditions, that would not have been imposed but for the action or inaction of 

one or more Qualified Vendors, will be assessed against the Qualified Vendor 

based on the percentage of the Qualified Vendor’s contribution to the sanction 

imposed against the Division. 

 

6.5.12.2 Any other sanctions imposed against the Division by AHCCCS in accordance 

with applicable AHCCCS rules, policies, and procedures that would not have 

been imposed but for the action or inaction of one or more Qualified Vendors will 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-28                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

be assessed against the Qualified Vendor based on the percentage of the Qualified 

Vendor’s contribution to the sanction imposed against the Division. 

 

6.5.12.3 Sanctions imposed against the Division by AHCCCS for failure of one or more 

Qualified Vendors or any subcontractor to submit requested disclosure statements 

will be assessed against the Qualified Vendor based on the percentage of the 

Qualified Vendor’s contribution to the sanction imposed against the Division. 

 

6.5.13 Fair Hearings and Members’ Grievances. 

 

6.5.13.1 The Qualified Vendor shall advise all members who receive services of their right, 

at any time and for any reason, to present to the Qualified Vendor and to the 

Division any grievances arising from the delivery of services, including, but not 

limited to, ineligibility determination, reduction of services, suspension or 

termination of services, or quality of services.  The Division may assert its 

jurisdiction to hear the grievance or refer the matter to the appropriate authority. 

 

6.5.13.2 If required by the Division, the Qualified Vendor shall maintain a system, subject 

to review upon request by the Division, for reviewing and adjudicating grievances 

by members or subcontractors concerning the actual provision of services and 

payment for same by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor.  This system shall 

follow the grievance procedure agreed to by AHCCCS and the Division in the 

current AHCCCS/Division intergovernmental Agreement and the Division rules 

and policies. 

 

6.5.14 Merger or Acquisition. 

 

6.5.14.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not change ownership and/or taxpayer identification 

number without the prior written consent of the Division during the term of this 

Agreement.  Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

 

6.5.14.2 A proposed merger, reorganization, affiliation, or change in ownership of the 

Qualified Vendor shall require prior approval of the Division.  In some cases, a 

new Application may be required. 

 

6.5.15 Disclosure of Bankruptcy Filing and other Material Event. 

 

 Qualified Vendors shall immediately notify the Division of any and all filings 

made under the bankruptcy laws and regulations and promptly provide a copy of 

the court filing and any subsequent non-procedural Court orders to the Division, 

including the final order disposing of the bankruptcy.  In addition, the Qualified 

Vendor shall immediately submit an amended Assurances and Submittals, to the 

Division’s Contract Management Unit. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-29                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.5.15.1 The Qualified Vendor shall notify the Division within twenty-four (24) hours, in 

writing, if the Qualified Vendor: (i) fails to so maintain any representation, 

comply with any covenant, or perform any duty as provided in this Agreement; (ii) 

receives notice or becomes aware of a claim or cause of action that would, if valid 

and enforceable against the Qualified Vendor, violate any provision in this 

Agreement; or (iii) becomes aware of any Material Event. The notice to the 

Division shall describe the event or facts that triggered the delivery of the notice.  

 

6.5.16 Federal Database Checks. 

 

6.5.16.1 The Division will not and the Qualified Vendor shall not employ or contract with 

any individual who has been debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully prohibited 

from participating in any public procurement activity or from participating in non-

procurement activities under regulations issued under Executive Order 12549 or 

under guidelines implementing Executive Order 12549 [42 Code of Federal 

Regulations (“C.F.R.”) § 438.610(a) and (b), 42 C.F.R. § 1001. 1901(b), 42 

C.F.R. § 1003. 102(a)(2)]. The Division is obligated under 42 C.F.R. § 455.436 to 

screen all Qualified Vendors and the Qualified Vendor is obligated to screen all 

employees, contractors, and/or subcontractor employees providing Agreement 

services to determine whether any of them have been excluded from participation 

in Federal health care programs by checking the following Federal databases: 

 

1. The List of Excluded Individuals/Entities (“LEIE”) no less frequently than 

monthly (http://oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/)  

 

2. The System for Award Management (“SAM”) no less frequently than monthly 

(https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/), 

 

3. And any other such databases that may be prescribed. 

 

6.5.16.2 The Qualified Vendor shall maintain the Federal Database Check results and any 

related forms or documents in a confidential file for five (5) years after 

termination of the Agreement. 

 

6.5.17 Fraud and Abuse.   

 

6.5.17.1 If the Qualified Vendor discovers, or is made aware, that an act of suspected fraud 

or abuse has occurred or been alleged, the Qualified Vendor shall immediately 

report the incident or allegation to the Division as well as to the AHCCCS, Office 

of the Inspector General.  The Qualified Vendor shall refer to the Division’s 

Provider Manual for guidance. 

 

 

 

6.6                 Agreement Changes 

http://oig.hhs.gov/exclusions/
https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-30                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

                        The Division may change the Agreement by posting a proposed amendment for 

thirty (30) days of review and comment.  The amendment then requires signature 

by both parties in order for the Agreement to continue; however, amendments 

reflecting changes in law or generally applicable policies and procedures shall 

become a part of this Agreement without signature by the parties.  If an 

amendment requires the signature of the Qualified Vendor, and the Qualified 

Vendor fails to sign and return the amendment in the form and within the 

timeframe specified by the Division, the Division may terminate the Agreement, 

in whole or in part.  The Qualified Vendor may request a change to its Application 

and, upon approval by the Division; the change will become part of the ongoing 

Agreement. 

 

6.6.1 Unauthorized Amendments.  

 

 Changes to the Agreement, including the addition of work or materials, the 

revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work or materials, directed by an 

unauthorized State employee or made unilaterally by the Qualified Vendor are 

violations of the Agreement and of applicable law.  Such changes, including 

unauthorized written Agreement amendments, shall be void and without effect, 

and the Qualified Vendor shall not be entitled to any claim under this Agreement 

based on those changes.   

 

6.6.1.1 The Division may withdraw a proposed amendment, in whole or in part, before it 

becomes effective, if it is determined to be in the best interest of the State. 

 

6.6.2 Updating Information and Amending a Qualified Vendor Application.  

 

6.6.2.1 The Qualified Vendor shall update in QVADS the general information section of 

the vendor contract information component, the assurances and submittal form 

and associated submittals, the program description section of the detail 

information component, and administrative and service sites as necessary to 

ensure that the information is current and accurate.  These changes are Vendor-

initiated Application amendments.  Application amendments that require approval 

by the Division are indicated in the electronic submittal process for QVADS and 

do not become effective unless approved.   

 

6.6.2.2  The Qualified Vendor shall update all other information in QVADS as necessary 

to ensure that the information is current and accurate.   

 

6.6.2.3 If the Division finds that the information provided in the original Application or 

as an update to the application is materially inaccurate, and the Qualified Vendor 

fails to correct such information within the time specified in a notice from the 

Division, such failure may be cause for termination of the Agreement, in whole or 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-31                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

in part.  The Division may delete the information from the directory until a 

correction is provided or the Agreement is terminated.   

 

6.6.2.4 A Qualified Vendor seeking to add a service to its Agreement shall submit a 

request to the Division and if approved, the new service becomes part of the 

vendor’s Agreement.   

 

6.6.3 Subcontracts.  

 

6.6.3.1 The Qualified Vendor shall not enter into any subcontract for direct services under 

this Agreement without advance notice to the Division.   

 

6.6.3.2 Prior to adding a subcontractor to the Agreement, the Qualified Vendor shall 

submit a formal, written statement to the Contracts Manager.  The statement shall: 

 

6.6.3.2.1 Be on the Qualified Vendor’s company letterhead; 

 

6.6.3.2.2 Be signed by an authorized signatory of the Qualified Vendor; and 

 

6.6.3.2.3 Contain the following information: 

 

a. The subcontractor’s name, address, phone number, e-mail address, and 

primary point of contact; 

 

 b.  The certifications required of the subcontractor (if any); 

 

 c.  The type of services to be provided by the subcontractor; 

 

d.  The amount of time or effort (as a percent of the total Agreement performance) 

that the subcontractor will perform in relation to total performance of the 

Agreement’s requirements; and 

 

e.  A description of the quality assurance measures that the Qualified Vendor 

shall use to monitor the subcontractor’s performance. 

 

6.6.3.3  The State reserves the right to request additional information deemed necessary 

about any proposed subcontractor, and the right to require the Qualified Vendor to 

delay performance of the subcontract until the State determines that the 

subcontracting relationship is consistent with the requirements of this Agreement 

 

6.6.3.4 The subcontract shall incorporate by reference the entirety of this Agreement and 

the AHCCCS Minimum Subcontract Provisions; for information regarding those 

provisions, see www.azahcccs.gov/commercial/default.aspx. 

 

http://www.azahcccs.gov/commercial/default.aspx


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-32                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.6.3.5 The Qualified Vendor shall provide copies of each subcontract with a 

subcontractor relating to the provision of Agreement services to the Division 

within five (5) business days of the request.   

 

6.6.3.6 The Qualified Vendor shall be legally responsible for Agreement performance 

whether or not subcontractors are used.   

 

6.6.3.7 No subcontract may operate to terminate or limit the legal responsibility of the 

Qualified Vendor to assure that all activities carried out by any subcontractor 

conform to the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

6.6.4 Assignment and Delegation.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall not assign any right nor delegate any duty under this 

Agreement.  

 

6.7 Risk and Liability  

 

6.7.1 General Indemnification. 

  

 The Qualified Vendor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the State 

of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, universities and its 

officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) 

from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or 

expenses (including court costs, attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, 

investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as “Claims”) for bodily injury 

or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible 

property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or 

willful acts or omissions of Qualified Vendor or any of its owners, officers, 

directors, agents, employees or subcontractors. This indemnity includes any claim 

or amount arising out of or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or 

arising out of the failure of such Qualified Vendor to conform to any federal, state 

or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the specific 

intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for 

Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the 

Indemnitee, be indemnified by Qualified Vendor from and against any and all 

claims.  It is agreed that Qualified Vendor will be responsible for primary loss 

investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is 

applicable.  In consideration of the award of this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor 

agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the State of Arizona, its officers, 

officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the 

Qualified Vendor for the State of Arizona. 

 

6.7.1.1 This indemnity shall not apply if the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor(s) is/are 

an agency, board, commission or university of the State of Arizona. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-33                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.7.2 Indemnification - Patent and Copyright.  

 

 To the extent permitted by A.R.S. §§ 41-621 and 35-154, the Qualified Vendor 

shall indemnify and hold harmless the State against any liability, including costs 

and expenses, for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out 

of Agreement performance or use by the State of materials furnished or work 

performed under this Agreement. The State will notify the Qualified Vendor of 

any claim for which it may be liable under this section. 

 

6.7.3 Force Majeure. 

 

6.7.3.1 Except for payment of sums due for services rendered in accordance with the 

terms of the Agreement, neither party shall be liable to the other nor deemed in 

default under this Agreement if and to the extent that such party’s performance of 

this Agreement is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force 

majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and 

occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without limiting the foregoing, force 

majeure includes acts of God, acts of the public enemy, war, riots, strikes, 

mobilization, labor disputes, civil disorders, fire, flood, lockouts, injunctions-

intervention-acts, failures or refusals to act by government authority and other 

similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force majeure which 

such party is unable to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence. 

 

6.7.3.2 Force majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 

 

6.7.3.2.1 Late delivery of equipment or materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s 

plant or elsewhere, or an oversold condition of the market; 

 

6.7.3.2.2 Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure 

occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition; or  

 

6.7.3.2.3 Inability of either the Qualified Vendor or any subcontractor to acquire or 

maintain any required insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 

 

6.7.3.3 If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, 

the delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is 

practicable and no later than the following business day, of the commencement 

thereof and shall specify the causes of such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall 

be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and shall make a specific reference 

to this section, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party shall cause 

such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in 

writing when it has done so.  The time of completion shall be extended by 

Agreement amendment for a period of time equal to the time that results or effects 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-34                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

of such delay prevent the delayed party from performing in accordance with this 

Agreement. 

 

6.7.3.4 Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute 

default hereunder or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated 

profits if, and to the extent that such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

 

6.7.4 Third Party Antitrust Violations.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor assigns to the State any claim for overcharges resulting 

from antitrust violations to the extent that those violations concern materials or 

services supplied by third parties to the Qualified Vendor toward fulfillment of 

this Agreement. 

 

6.7.5 Predecessor and Successor Agreements.   

 

 The execution or termination of this Agreement, in whole or in part shall not be 

considered a waiver by the Department of any rights it may have for damages 

suffered through a breach of this Agreement or a prior Agreement with the 

Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.7.6 Insurance.  

 

6.7.6.1 Insurance Requirements 

 

6.7.6.1.1 Qualified Vendor and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their 

obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this 

Agreement, are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage 

to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the 

work hereunder by the Qualified Vendor, his agents, representatives, employees or 

subcontractors.   

 

6.7.6.1.2 The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Agreement 

and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement.  The 

State of Arizona in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are 

sufficient to protect the Qualified Vendor from liabilities that might arise out of 

the performance of the work under this Agreement by the Qualified Vendor, its 

agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors, and Qualified Vendor is free 

to purchase additional insurance.   

 

6.7.6.1.3 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance: Qualified Vendor shall provide 

coverage with limits of liability not less than those stated below: 

 

6.7.6.1.3.1 Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-35                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, personal and advertising 

injury and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 

a. For Qualified Vendors of Occupational, Physical or Speech Therapy services: 

 

 Coverage  Minimum Limits 

 General Aggregate        $2,000,000   

 Personal and Advertising Injury      $1,000,000 

 Blanket Contractual Liability – Written and Oral    $1,000,000 

 Fire Legal Liability (Damage to Rented Premises)      $   50,000 

 Each Occurrence        $1,000,000 
 

1. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 

language:  “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 

Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 

arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the Qualified 

Vendor”.  Such additional insured shall be covered to the full limits of 

liability purchased by the Qualified Vendor, even if those limits of liability 

are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 

 

2.  The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of 

the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor. 

 

3. Commercial General Liability may be satisfied if the Commercial General 

Liability policy is combined with the Professional Liability policy (item 

6.7.6.2.3.4 below), provided that the Commercial General Liability 

coverage is written on an occurrence basis, and certified with the required 

coverage, limits and endorsements required for Section 6.7.6.2.3.1.  If 

written with the Professional Liability policy, the Commercial General 

Liability section shall have separate limits from the Professional Liability. 

 

b.  For all other Qualified Vendors: 

 

  Coverage        Minimum Limits 

 General Aggregate         

$2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate     $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury       $1,000,000 

 Blanket Contractual Liability – Written and Oral     $1,000,000 

 Fire Legal Liability (Damage to Rented Premises)     $     50,000 

 Each Occurrence         $1,000,000 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-36                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

1.  The policy shall include coverage for Sexual Abuse and Molestation.  This 

coverage may be sub-limited to no less than $500,000.  The limits may be 

included within the General Liability limit or provided by separate 

endorsement with its own limits or provided as separate coverage included 

with the Professional Liability.   

 

2. The Qualified Vendor must provide the following statement on their 

certificate(s) of insurance: Sexual Abuse/Molestation Coverage in 

included. 

 

3.  The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 

language:  “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 

Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 

arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the Qualified 

Vendor”.  Such additional insured shall be covered to the full limits of 

liability purchased by the Qualified Vendor, even if those limits of liability 

are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 

 

4.  The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement if favor the 

State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.7.6.1.3.2 Business Automobile Liability 

 

 Bodily Injury and Property Damage for any owned, hired, and/or non-owned 

vehicles used in the performance of this Agreement. 

 

 a. Combined Single Limit (CSL)  $1,000,000 

 

1.  The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured 

language:  “The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic 

Security shall be named as additional insureds with respect to liability 

arising out of the activities performed by or on behalf of the Qualified 

Vendor, involving automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 

Qualified Vendor”.   Such additional insured shall be covered to the full 

limits of liability purchased by the contractor, even if those limits of 

liability are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 

 

2. The policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of 

the State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor.  

 

3. Policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-37                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

4. This section, Business Automobile Liability, shall not be applicable in 

the event the Qualified Vendor (or its Subcontractors) does not utilize a 

vehicle in any manner in the performance of the Agreement or if the 

utilization is only for commuting purposes.  The term “commuting 

purposes” means a vehicle is used to travel from the Qualified Vendor’s 

home to its principal place of business or to one designated location.  The 

Qualified Vendor electing to utilize their vehicle solely for commuting 

purposes shall submit a request to the Division for a Business Automobile 

Liability Waiver.  In the event the Qualified Vendor (or its Subcontractors) 

subsequently utilizes the vehicle in the performance of the Agreement or it 

utilizes it for other than commuting purposes under the Agreement, this 

paragraph, Business Automobile Liability, shall be fully applicable, 

effective the date the utilization changed.   

 

6.7.6.1.3.3 Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ Liability 

 

 a. Worker’s Compensation  Statutory 

 

 b. Employer’s Liability   

 

  Coverage       Minimum Limits 

  Each Accident  $   500,000 

  Disease – Each Employee  $   500,000 

  Disease – Policy Limit  $1,000,000 

 

i.    Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of the 

State of Arizona, its departments, agencies, boards, commissions, 

universities and its officers, officials, agents, and employees for losses 

arising from work performed by or on behalf of the Qualified Vendor. 

 

ii.   This requirement shall not apply to the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor 

exempt from the provisions of A.R.S. § 23-901. To claim this exemption, 

the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor shall submit a request to the 

Division for the appropriate waiver (Sole Proprietor Waiver or 

Independent Contractor Agreement) form.  

 

6.7.6.1.3.4 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 

  Basis                  Minimum Limits 

  Each Claim     $1,000,000 

  Annual Aggregate     $2,000,000 

 

a.  In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this 

Agreement is written on a claims-made basis, the Qualified Vendor warrants 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-38                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

that any retroactive date under the policy shall precede the effective date of 

this Agreement; and that either continuous coverage will be maintained or an 

extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years 

beginning at the time work under this Agreement is completed. 

 

b.  The policy shall cover professional misconduct or wrongful acts for those 

positions defined in the Scope of Work of this Agreement.  

 

6.7.6.1.4 For assistance, a Qualified Vendor may contact the Department of Insurance 

Market Assist hotline at 602-364-3100.  The Qualified Vendor may obtain 

assistance with sources for Business Automobile Liability to comply with this 

Agreement and should specify the limit required as well as the Qualified Vendor’s 

status with the Division. 

 

6.7.6.1.5 Additional Insurance Requirements  

  

6.7.6.1.5.1 The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the following provisions:  

The State of Arizona and the Department of Economic Security wherever 

additional insured status is required such additional insured shall be covered to 

the full limits of liability purchased by the Qualified Vendor, even if those limits of 

liability are in excess of those required by this Agreement as provided by A.R.S. § 

41-621 (E). 

 

6.7.6.1.5.2 The Qualified Vendor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with 

respect to all other available sources. 

 

6.7.6.1.5.3 Coverage provided by the Qualified Vendor shall not be limited to the liability 

assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 

 

6.7.6.1.6 Notice of Cancellation:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance 

provisions of this Agreement shall provide the required coverage and shall not be 

suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty 

(30) days prior written notice has been given to the State of Arizona.  Such notice 

shall be sent directly to Contract Management Unit, Business Operations, Site 

Code 791A, Division of Developmental Disabilities, Arizona Department of 

Economic Security, P.O. Box 6123, Phoenix, AZ, 85005-6123, and shall be sent 

by certified mail, return receipt requested.   

 

6.7.6.1.7 Acceptability of Insurers: Insurance shall be placed with duly licensed or 

approved non-admitted status on the Arizona Department of Insurance List of 

Qualified Unauthorized Insurers.   Insurers shall have an “A.M. Best” rating of not 

less than A-VII or dually authorized to transact insurance in the State of Arizona.  

The State of Arizona in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer 

rating is sufficient to protect the Qualified Vendor from potential insurer 

insolvency.   



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-39                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

 If the social services program utilizes the Social Service Contractors Indemnity 

Pool (“SSCIP”) or other approved insurance pool for insurance coverage, SSCIP 

or the other approved insurance pool is exempt from the A.M. Best's rating 

requirements listed in this Agreement.  If the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor 

chooses to use SSCIP or another approved insurance pool as its insurance 

provider, the contract/subcontract would be considered in full compliance with 

insurance requirements relating to the A.M. Best rating requirements. 

 

6.7.6.1.8 Verification of Coverage  

 

6.7.6.1.8.1 The Qualified Vendor shall furnish the State of Arizona with certificates of 

insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the State of Arizona) as 

required by this Agreement.  The certificates for each insurance policy are to be 

signed by a person authorized by that insurer on its behalf. 

 

6.7.6.1.8.2  All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the State of 

Arizona before work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this 

Agreement must be in effect at or prior to commencement of Agreement services 

under this Agreement and remain in effect for the duration of the Agreement.  

Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Agreement, or to 

provide evidence of renewal, is a material breach of the Agreement. 

 

6.7.6.1.8.3  All certificates required by this Agreement shall be sent directly to:  

 

   

  Contract Management Unit 

  Business Operations – Site Code 791A 

  Arizona Department of Economic Security  

  Division of Developmental Disabilities 

  P.O. Box 6123 

  Phoenix, Arizona 85007  

  

 The State of Arizona Project/Agreement number (the Qualified Vendor 

Application and Agreement Award Number) and Project Description (“RFQVA 

DDD 710000”) shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The State of 

Arizona reserves the right to require complete, copies of all insurance policies 

required by this Agreement at any time.  DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES OF 

INSURANCE TO THE STATE OF ARIZONA’S RISK MANAGEMENT 

SECTION OR TO THE DES OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT.  

 

6.7.6.1.9 Subcontractors:  Qualified Vendors’ certificate(s) shall submit a listing of all 

subcontractors performing member direct services and include all subcontractors 

as insured under its policies or Qualified Vendors shall furnish/submit to the State 

of Arizona separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-40                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

associated with the Agreement award.  All insurance coverage for subcontractors 

shall be subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 

 

6.7.6.1.9.1  Qualified Vendors that utilize subcontractors to provide Developmental Home 

services will be exempt from providing separate certificates and endorsements if 

the Qualified Vendor enters into a separate Agreement between the Qualified 

Vendor, the Developmental Home subcontractor and the Division.  Such 

Agreement shall provide for the Developmental Home subcontractor to be 

covered under the Provider Indemnity Program (“PIP”).  A sample format for the 

Agreement may be found on the Division’s website at 

https://www.azdes.gov/ddd/. 

 

6.7.6.1.10 Approval:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this 

Agreement shall be made by the contracting agency in consultation with the 

Department of Administration, Risk Management Division.  Such action will not 

require a formal Agreement amendment, but may be made by administrative 

action. 

 

6.7.6.1.11 Exceptions:  In the event the Qualified Vendor or subcontractor(s) is/are a public 

entity, then the Insurance Requirements shall not apply.  Such public entity shall 

provide a Certificate of Self-Insurance.  If the Qualified Vendor or 

subcontractor(s) is/are a State of Arizona agency, board, commission, or 

university, none of the above shall apply. 

 

 In the event that the Qualified Vendor determines that it may not be able to 

comply fully with the insurance requirements set forth above in Section 6.7.6 

above, the Qualified Vendor may request that the insurance requirements be 

modified pursuant to Section 6.7.6.1.10 provided that such request be delivered in 

writing to the Department as early as possible but in no event not less than ten 

(10) days prior to Agreement execution.  The Qualified Vendor shall include with 

such request Qualified Vendor’s justification for the modification with supporting 

documentation.   

 

 As provided in Section 6.7.6.1.10, the Department of Administration, Risk 

Management Section, shall decide whether such modification may be permitted.  

If the Department of Administration, Risk Management, decides to grant 

permission, the Department of Economic Security’s Chief Procurement Officer 

shall then decide whether to approve the modification.   

 

 Modifications that are approved are done so on a case-by-case basis and shall not 

affect the insurance requirements for other Qualified Vendors for whom the 

modifications have not been approved.  If a Qualified Vendor’s request has not 

been approved or the Qualified Vendor fails to deliver its request prior the 

applicable deadline, then the Qualified Vendor shall be required to comply fully 

with the insurance requirements set forth in Section 6.7.6 above. 

https://www.azdes.gov/ddd/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-41                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.8 Warranties  

 

6.8.1 Year 2000. 

 

6.8.1.1 Notwithstanding any other warranty or disclaimer of warranty in this Agreement, 

the Qualified Vendor warrants that all products delivered and all services rendered 

under this Agreement shall comply in all respects to performance and delivery 

requirements of the specifications and shall not be adversely affected by any date-

related data Year 2000 issues.  This warranty shall survive the expiration or 

termination of this Agreement.  In addition, the defense of force majeure shall not 

apply to the Qualified Vendor’s failure to perform specification requirements as a 

result of any date-related data Year 2000 issues. 

 

6.8.1.2 Additionally, notwithstanding any other warranty or disclaimer of warranty in this 

Agreement, the Qualified Vendor warrants that each hardware, software, and 

firmware product delivered under this Agreement shall be able to accurately 

process date/time data (including but not limited to calculation, comparing, and 

sequencing) from, into, and between the twentieth and twenty-first centuries, and 

the years 1999 and 2000 and leap year calculations, to the extent that other 

information technology utilized by the State in combination with the information 

technology being acquired under this Agreement properly exchanges date-time 

data with it.  If this Agreement requires that the information technology products 

being acquired perform as a system, or that the information technology products 

being acquired perform as a system in combination with other State information 

technology, then this warranty shall apply to the acquired products as a system.  

The remedies available to the State for breach of this warranty shall include, but 

shall not be limited to, repair and replacement of the information technology 

products delivered under this Agreement. In addition, the defense of force 

majeure shall not apply to the failure of the Qualified Vendor to perform any 

specification requirements as a result of any date-related data Year 2000 issues.  

 

6.8.1.3 The Qualified Vendor warrants that all services provided under this Agreement 

shall conform to the requirements stated herein and any amendments hereto.  The 

Department's acceptance of services provided by the Qualified Vendor shall not 

relieve the Qualified Vendor from its obligations under this warranty.  In addition 

to its other remedies, the Department Procurement Officer may, at the Qualified 

Vendor's expense, require prompt correction of any services failing to meet the 

Qualified Vendor’s warranty herein.  Services corrected by the Qualified Vendor 

shall be subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement in the manner and to the 

same extent as the services originally furnished. 

 

6.8.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws.   

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-42                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.8.2.1 The materials and services supplied under this Agreement shall comply with all 

applicable Federal, State and local laws, and the Qualified Vendor shall maintain 

all applicable licenses and permit requirements. 

 

6.8.2.2 In accordance with A.R.S. § 36-557 (Purchase of community developmental 

disabilities services; application; Agreements; limitation), as applicable, all 

members who receive Agreement services shall have all of the same specified 

rights as they would have if enrolled in a service program operated directly by the 

State.  

 

6.8.2.3 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements related to reporting to a 

peace officer or child protective services incidents of crimes against children as 

specified in A.R.S. §13-3620 (as may be amended).  

 

6.8.2.4 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements in A.R.S. § 46-454 

related to reporting to a peace office or to a protective services worker any reason 

to believe that abuse, neglect, or exploitation of a vulnerable adult has occurred. 

 

6.8.2.5 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with P.L. 101-121, Section 319 (21 U.S.C. 

Section 1352) (as may be amended) and 29 C.F.R. Part 93 (as may be amended) 

which prohibit the use of Federal funds for lobbying and which state, in part: 

Except with the express authorization of Congress, the Qualified Vendor, its 

employees or agents, shall not utilize any Federal funds under the terms of this 

Agreement to solicit or influence, or to attempt to solicit or influence, directly or 

indirectly, any member of Congress regarding pending or prospective legislation. 

Indian tribes, tribal organizations and any other Indian organizations are exempt 

from these lobbying restrictions with respect to expenditures that are specifically 

permitted by other Federal law.  

 

6.8.2.6 The Qualified Vendor shall cooperate with all Division investigations, including 

investigations pursuant to A.R.S. § 36-557(G)(3) that involve danger to the health 

and safety of a Division member.  This includes notification to the Division of all 

complaints involving a member.   

 

6.8.2.7 The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall comply with all applicable 

Federal laws, rules, regulations and policies, including Title XIX of the Social 

Security Act, the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 (P.L. 97-35), Title 

42 of the C.F.R., and Title 45 C.F.R., Parts 74 and 96.  If the Qualified Vendor 

receives Title XX funds, the Qualified Vendor shall comply with The Arizona 

Title XX Social Services Plan and Section 2352, Title XX Block Grants, of the 

Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981.  

 

6.8.2.8 The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall comply with all applicable 

licensure, certification, and registration standards established by the Department, 

the Division, and AHCCCS.  The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-43                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

comply with all applicable Arizona law and applicable Department, Division, or 

AHCCCS administrative rules, policies, procedures, service standards and 

guidelines of their profession/occupation, including, but not limited to:  

 

6.8.2.8.1 Hiring of ex-offenders;  

 

6.8.2.8.2 Fingerprinting of Qualified Vendor’s and any subcontractor’s staff;  

 

6.8.2.8.3 Completing of Fire Risk Profile requirements; 

 

6.8.2.8.4 Reporting of unusual incidents involving children and/or adults;  

 

6.8.2.8.5 Implementing program audit implementation plans;  

 

6.8.2.8.6 Participating as a member of the planning (e.g., ISP) team;  

 

6.8.2.8.7 Complying with all policies, procedures and instructions regarding planning 

documents (e.g., ISPs);  

 

6.8.2.8.8 Submitting to the Division’s Support Coordinators copies of the planning 

document (e.g., ISP) strategies and other required documentation;  

 

6.8.2.8.9 Providing copies of member records, including evaluations and progress reports; 

and 

 

6.8.2.8.10 Ensuring that all movement of Division members, except in emergency need 

situations, is coordinated through the planning (e.g., ISP) team.  If a member is 

receiving Title XIX funded services, no member movement shall take place unless 

it is part of the member’s planning document (e.g., ISP).  

 

6.8.2.9 The Qualified Vendor and any subcontractor shall comply with the Occupational 

Safety and Health Administration (“OSHA”) regulations regarding blood borne 

pathogens, 29 C.F.R. 1910.1030.  

 

6.8.2.10 The terms of this Agreement shall be subject to the terms of the intergovernmental 

Agreement between the Department and AHCCCS for the provision of services to 

ALTCS members.  The Qualified Vendor accepts and agrees to perform the duties 

and requirements applicable to a provider of services to ALTCS members, 

including but not limited to performance of the Provider Participation Agreement 

between AHCCCS and the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.8.2.11 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements of the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (P. L. 104-191) and all applicable 

implementing Federal regulations.  The Qualified Vendor shall notify the Division 

no later than one-hundred twenty (120) days prior to any required compliance date 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-44                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

if the Qualified Vendor is unwilling to or anticipates that it will be unable to 

comply with any of the requirements of this section.  Receipt by the Division of a 

notice of anticipated inability or unwillingness to comply as required by this 

section constitutes grounds for the termination of this Agreement.  

 

6.8.2.12 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with any changes to Federal laws, regulations, 

or policies, to Arizona law, to Department, Division, or AHCCCS administrative 

rules, policies, or procedures, or to the intergovernmental agreement between the 

Department and AHCCCS.    

 

6.8.2.13    By entering into this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor warrants compliance with 

the federal Immigration and Nationality Act (“INA”) and all other state and 

federal immigration laws and regulations related to the immigration status of its 

employees.  The Qualified Vendor shall obtain statements from its subcontractors 

certifying compliance and shall furnish the statements to the Division upon 

request.  These warranties shall remain in effect through the term of the 

Agreement.  The Qualified Vendor and its subcontractors shall also maintain 

Employment Eligibility Verification forms (“I-9”) as required by the U.S. 

Department of Labor's Immigration and Control Act, for all employees performing 

work under the Agreement.  I-9 forms are available for download at 

www.uscis.gov.  The Division may request verification of compliance for any 

Qualified Vendor or subcontractor performing work under the Agreement.  

Should the Division suspect or find that the Qualified Vendor or any of its 

subcontractors are not in compliance, the Division may pursue any and all 

remedies allowed by law, including, but not limited to: suspension of work, 

termination of the Agreement for default, and suspension and/or debarment of the 

Qualified Vendor. All costs necessary to verify compliance are the responsibility 

of the Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.8.2.14 By entering into this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor warrants compliance with 

the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (P.L. 109-171).  Any Qualified Vendor that 

receives at least $5,000,000 (five million dollars) in Medicaid payments annually 

shall establish written policies for all employees (including management), and for 

all employees of any Qualified Vendor or agent of the Qualified Vendor, 

providing detailed information about false claims, false statements, and 

whistleblower protections under applicable Federal and State fraud and abuse 

laws.  These written policies must include a specific discussion of the foregoing 

laws and detailed information regarding the Qualified Vendor’s policies and 

procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, waste and abuse, as well as the 

rights of employees to be protected as whistleblowers.  In addition, the Qualified 

Vendor must establish a process for training, and train, existing staff and new 

hires on false claims, false statements, and whistleblower protections under 

applicable Federal and State fraud and abuse laws and the Qualified Vendor’s 

policies and procedures for detecting and preventing fraud, waste and abuse, and 

http://www.uscis.gov/


 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-45                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

the rights of employees to be protected as whistleblowers.  All training must be 

conducted in such a manner that can be verified by the Division. 

 

6.8.2.15 The Qualified Vendor warrants compliance with all Federal immigration laws and 

regulations relating to employees and warrants its compliance with A.R.S. § 23-

214, subsection A.  (That subsection reads:  “After December 31, 2007, every 

employer, after hiring an employee, shall verify the employment eligibility of the 

employee through the E-Verify program.”)  A breach of a warrant regarding 

compliance with immigration laws and regulations shall be deemed a material 

breach of the Agreement and the Qualified Vendor may be subject to penalties up 

to and including termination of the Agreement.  Failure to comply with a State 

audit process to randomly verify the employment records of Qualified Vendors 

and subcontractors shall be deemed a material breach of the contract and the 

Qualified Vendor may be subject to penalties up to and including termination of 

the Agreement.  The Department retains the legal right to inspect the papers of 

any employee who works on the Agreement to ensure that the Qualified Vendor or 

subcontractor is complying with the warranty under this paragraph. 

 

6.8.2.16 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with all applicable state and federal statutes 

and regulations.  This shall include A.R.S. § 23-722.01 (as may be amended) 

relating to new hire reporting, A.R.S. § 23-722.02 (as may be amended) relating to 

wage assignment orders to provide child support, and A.R.S. § 25-535 (as may be 

amended) relating to administrative or court-ordered health insurance coverage for 

children. 

 

6.8.3 Advance Directives.  

 

 As appropriate, the Qualified Vendor shall comply with Federal and State law on 

advance directives for adult members.  Requirements include:  

 

6.8.3.1 Maintaining written policies for adult individuals receiving care through the 

Qualified Vendor regarding the member’s right to make decisions about medical 

care, including the right to accept or refuse medical care and the right to execute 

an advance directive.  If the Qualified Vendor has a conscientious objection to 

carrying out an advance directive, it must be explained in policies.  [A Qualified 

Vendor is not prohibited from making objection when made pursuant to A.R.S. § 

36-3205(C)(1).] 

 

6.8.3.2 Providing written information to adult members regarding a member’s right under 

State law to make decisions regarding medical care and the Qualified Vendor’s 

written policies concerning advance directives (including any conscientious 

objections). 

 

6.8.3.3 Documenting in the member’s medical record as to whether the adult member has 

been provided the information and whether an advance directive has been created. 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-46                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

 

6.8.3.4 Not discriminating against a member because of his or her decision to execute or 

not execute an advance directive, and not making it a condition for the provision 

of care. 

 

6.8.3.5 Provide education for staff on issues concerning advance directives including 

notification of direct care providers of services of any advanced directives 

executed by members to whom they are assigned to provide care. 

 

6.8.4 Advising or Advocating on Behalf of a Member.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall comply with the requirements under 42 C.F.R. § 

438.102 and the intergovernmental Agreement between the Division and 

AHCCCS.  The Division may not prohibit, or otherwise restrict, a provider acting 

within the lawful scope of practice, from advising or advocating on behalf of a 

member who is authorized to receive services from the provider for the following: 

•  The member’s health status, medical care, or treatment options including any 

alternative treatment that may be self-administered.  

•  Any information the member needs in order to decide among all relevant 

treatment options.  

•  The risks, benefits, and consequences of treatment or no treatment.  

•  The member’s right to participate in decisions regarding his or her health care, 

including the right to refuse treatment, and to express preferences about future 

treatment decisions. 

 

6.8.4.1 A Qualified Vendor may provide a member with factual information, but is 

prohibited from recommending or steering a member in the member’s selection of 

a Qualified Vendor agency or Independent Provider. 

 

6.8.5 Limited English Proficiency. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall ensure that all services provided are culturally 

relevant and linguistically appropriate to the population to be served following 

Department Policy, Limited English Proficiency, DES 1-01-34 and any 

subsequent revisions. 

 

6.8.6 Service Process for Wards of the State.  

 

 In the event that an individual calls or appears at a physical location of the 

Qualified Vendor seeking to render service of process (summons and complaint, 

petition or subpoena, etc.) upon a minor who is in the physical custody of the 

Qualified Vendor but is a ward of the State of Arizona, Department of Economic 

Security, Qualified Vendor agrees not to accept service of that/those document(s) 

and to refer the individual to the child’s Support Coordinator.  If, by error, 

Qualified Vendor or its agent accepts any service of process, a copy shall 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-47                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

immediately be forwarded to the child’s Support Coordinator and shall also 

contain a transmittal memorandum that indicates the date the legal document was 

received, the person receiving it and the place of service, as well as the child to 

whom it refers.  

 

6.8.7 Suspension or Debarment.   

 

6.8.7.1 The State may, by written notice to the Qualified Vendor, immediately terminate 

this Agreement if the State determines that the Qualified Vendor has been 

debarred, suspended or otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any 

public procurement activity, including but not limited to, being disapproved as a 

subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.  This 

prohibition extends to any entity which employs, consults, subcontracts with or 

otherwise reimburses for services any person substantially involved in the 

management of another entity which is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded 

from Federal procurement activity. Submittal of an offer or execution of an 

Agreement shall attest that the Qualified Vendor is not currently suspended or 

debarred.  If the Qualified Vendor becomes suspended or debarred, the Qualified 

Vendor shall immediately notify the State.    

 

6.8.7.2 The Qualified Vendor shall not be debarred, suspended, or otherwise lawfully 

prohibited from participating in any public procurement activity.   

 

6.8.7.3 The Qualified Vendor shall not employ, consult, subcontract or otherwise 

reimburse for services any person or entity that is debarred, suspended or 

otherwise excluded from public procurement activity.  This prohibition extends to 

any person or entity that employs, consults, subcontracts with or otherwise 

reimburses for services any person or entity substantially involved in the 

management of another entity that is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded 

from public procurement activity. 

 

6.8.7.4 The Qualified Vendor shall not retain as a director, officer, partner or owner of 

five (5) percent or more of the Qualified Vendor, any person, or affiliate of such a 

person, who is debarred, suspended or otherwise excluded from public 

procurement activity.  

 

6.8.8 Survival of Rights and Obligations after Agreement Expiration or Termination. 

 

 All representations and warranties made by the Qualified Vendor under this 

Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination hereof.  In addition, the 

parties hereto acknowledge that pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-510 (as may be amended) 

except as provided in A.R.S. § 12-529 (as may be amended), the State is not 

subject to or barred by any limitations of actions prescribed in A.R.S., Title 12, 

Chapter 5 (as may be amended). 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-48                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.8.9 Certification of Compliance – Anti-Kickback. 

 

 By signing this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor certifies that it has not engaged 

in any violation of the Medicare Anti-Kickback statute (42 U.S.C. §§ 1320a-7b) 

or the “Stark I” and “Stark II” laws governing related-entity referrals (P.L. 101-

239 and P.L. 101-432) and compensation there from. 

 

6.8.10 Warranty of Services. 

 

 The Qualified Vendor, by execution of this Agreement, warrants that it has the 

ability, authority, skill, expertise, and capacity to perform the services specified in 

the Agreement. 

 

6.8.11 Certification of Truthfulness of Representation. 

 

 By signing this Agreement, the Qualified Vendor certifies the following: 

 

6.8.11.1 That all representations set forth herein are true to the best of its knowledge; and 

 

6.8.11.2 That it will maintain all representations, comply with all covenants, and perform 

all duties throughout the term of the Agreement.  

 

6.9                  State’s Contractual Remedies 

 

6.9.1 Right to Assurance.  

 

 The Procurement Officer may, at any time, demand in writing that the Qualified 

Vendor give a written assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Qualified 

Vendor to provide written assurance within the number of days specified in the 

demand may, at the State’s option, be the basis for terminating the Agreement 

under these Terms and Conditions or other rights and remedies available by law or 

provided by the Agreement.  If the Qualified Vendor, at any time believes that it 

may potentially no longer be able to perform under this Agreement in the 

immediate future or at any time up to six (6) months into the future, the Qualified 

Vendor shall provide written notice to the Division informing the Division of the 

Qualified Vendor’s potential inability to perform under this Agreement along with 

a detailed explanation as to why the Qualified Vendor believes it may not be able 

to complete performance. 

 

6.9.2 Stop Work Order.  

 

6.9.2.1 The State may, at any time, by written order to the Qualified Vendor, require the 

Qualified Vendor to stop all or any part of the work called for by this Agreement 

for a period(s) of days indicated by the State after the order is delivered to the 

Qualified Vendor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree.  The 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-49                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued under this clause.  

Upon receipt of the order, the Qualified Vendor shall immediately comply with its 

terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable 

to the work covered by the order during the period of work stoppage. 

 

6.9.2.2 If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period of the order 

or any extension expires, the Qualified Vendor shall resume work.  The 

Procurement Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the authorization 

schedule or Agreement price, or both, and the Agreement shall be amended in 

writing accordingly. 

 

6.9.3 Non-Exclusive Remedies.  

 

 The rights and the remedies of the State set out in this Agreement are not 

exclusive. 

 

6.9.4 Nonconforming Tender.  

 

 Reports or other documents supplied under this Agreement shall fully comply 

with the Agreement and all applicable law.  The delivery of reports or other 

documents or a portion of the reports or other documents in an installment that do 

not fully comply with the Agreement and all applicable law constitutes a breach of 

Agreement.  On delivery of nonconforming reports or other documents, the State 

may terminate the Agreement for default as defined in Section 6.10.6, 

Termination for Default, exercise any of its rights and remedies under the 

Uniform Commercial Code, or pursue any other right or remedy available to it. 

 

6.9.5 Right of Offset.  

 

 The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the Qualified Vendor, 

any expenses or costs incurred by the State, or damages assessed by the State 

concerning the Qualified Vendor’s non-conforming performance or failure to 

perform the Agreement, including expenses, costs and damages described in the 

Agreement Terms and Conditions. 

 

6.9.6 Provisions for Default.  

 

6.9.6.1 In addition to any other remedies available to the Division, if the Qualified 

Vendor fails to comply with any term of the Agreement, the Division may take 

one (1) or more of the following actions:  

 

6.9.6.1.1 Withhold payment, in whole or in part;  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-50                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.9.6.1.2 Suspend enrollment, which includes (i) suspending new members from 

enrollment in any services provided by the Qualified Vendor, and (ii) suspending 

any new services for members currently served by the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.9.6.1.3 Suspend the Agreement, in whole or in part, by (i) suspending the authority to 

request addition of new services to the Agreement; (ii) suspending the authority to 

request modification to current services, (iii) deleting the Qualified Vendor from 

the Qualified Vendor List; or (iv) enrolling members with another provider. 

 

6.10 Agreement Termination  

 

6.10.1 Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  

 

 Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel this Agreement within three (3) 

years after Agreement execution without penalty or further obligation if any 

person significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or 

creating the Agreement on behalf of the State is or becomes at any time while the 

Agreement or an extension of the Agreement is in effect an employee of or a 

consultant to any other party to this Agreement with respect to the subject matter 

of the Agreement.  The cancellation shall be effective when the Qualified Vendor 

receives written notice of the cancellation unless the notice specifies a later time.  

If the Qualified Vendor is a political subdivision of the State, it may also cancel 

this Agreement as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 

6.10.2 Gratuities.  

 

 The State may, by written notice, terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, if 

the State determines that employment or a gratuity was offered or made by the 

Qualified Vendor or a representative of the Qualified Vendor to any officer or 

employee of the State for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the 

procurement or securing the Agreement, an amendment to the Agreement, or 

favorable treatment concerning the Agreement, including the making of any 

determination or decision about Agreement performance. The State, in addition to 

any other rights or remedies, shall be entitled to recover exemplary damages in the 

amount of three (3) times the value of the gratuity offered by the Qualified 

Vendor. 

 

6.10.3 Termination for Convenience.  

 

 The State reserves the right, with written notice, to terminate the Agreement, in 

whole or in part at any time, when in the best interests of the State without penalty 

or recourse.  Upon receipt of the written notice, the Qualified Vendor shall 

immediately stop all work, as directed in the notice, notify all subcontractors of 

the effective date of the termination and minimize all further costs to the State.  In 

the event of termination under this paragraph, all documents, data and reports 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-51                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

prepared by the Qualified Vendor under the Agreement shall become the property 

of and be delivered to the State.  The Qualified Vendor shall be entitled to receive 

just and equitable compensation for work in progress, work completed and 

materials accepted before the effective date of the termination.  

 

6.10.4 Termination upon Request of the Qualified Vendor.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor may request termination of the Agreement, in whole or in 

part, at any time.  The Qualified Vendor shall not terminate performance of this 

Agreement without the prior written consent of the Division.  The Qualified 

Vendor shall provide at least sixty (60) days written notice to the Division setting 

forth the reasons for requesting termination.  Upon determination that termination 

is appropriate, the Division shall provide written notice of acceptance of such 

termination and the termination date.  Upon termination, all goods, materials, 

documents, data and reports prepared by the Qualified Vendor under the 

Agreement shall become the property of and be delivered to the State on demand.  

The State may, upon termination, procure, on terms and in the manner that it 

deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under this Agreement.  

The Qualified Vendor shall be liable to the State for any excess costs incurred by 

the State in procuring materials or services in substitution for those due from the 

Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.10.5 Termination for Default.   

 

6.10.5.1 In addition to the rights reserved in the Agreement, the State may terminate the 

Agreement, in whole or in part, due to the failure of the Qualified Vendor to 

comply with any term or condition of the Agreement, to acquire and maintain all 

required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory 

progress in performing the Agreement.  The Procurement Officer shall provide 

written notice of the termination and the reasons for it to the Qualified Vendor.  

The Department may immediately terminate this Agreement if the Department 

determines that the health or welfare or safety of service recipients is endangered. 

 

6.10.5.2 The State reserves the right to terminate the Agreement, in whole or in part, when 

a Qualified Vendor no longer meets the criteria defined in the RFQVA; for non-

compliance with the Agreement requirements; or for failure to maintain a valid 

license, AHCCCS registration or Division certification, as appropriate.  The 

Division shall provide written notice of the termination and the reasons for it to 

the Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.10.5.3 Upon termination under this section, all goods, materials, documents, data and 

reports prepared by the Qualified Vendor under the Agreement shall become the 

property of and be delivered to the State on demand. 

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-52                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.10.5.4 The State may, upon termination of this Agreement, procure, on terms and in the 

manner that it deems appropriate, materials or services to replace those under this 

Agreement.  The Qualified Vendor shall be liable to the State for any excess costs 

incurred by the State in procuring materials or services in substitution for those 

due from the Qualified Vendor unless the Agreement is terminated solely for the 

convenience of the State. 

 

6.10.5.5 This Agreement may immediately be terminated if the Department determines that 

the health or welfare or safety of members is endangered.  

 

6.10.6 Continuation of Performance through Termination.  

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall continue to perform, in accordance with the 

requirements of the Agreement, up to or beyond the date of termination, in whole 

or in part, as directed in the termination notice or as provided in Section 6.10.7.3 

below. 

 

6.10.7 Termination for Any Reason.  

 

6.10.7.1 In the event of termination or suspension of the Agreement by the Department, in 

whole or in part, such termination or suspension shall not affect the obligation of 

the Qualified Vendor to indemnify the Department and the State for any claim by 

any other party against the Department and/or the State arising from the Qualified 

Vendor’s performance of this Agreement and for which the Qualified Vendor 

would otherwise be liable under this Agreement.  To the extent such 

indemnification is excluded by A.R.S. § 41-621 et seq. or an obligation is 

unauthorized under A.R.S. § 35-154 (as may be amended), the provisions of this 

paragraph shall not apply.  

 

6.10.7.2 In the event of early termination, any funds advanced to the Qualified Vendor 

shall be returned to the Department within ten (10) days after the date of 

termination or upon receipt of notice of termination of the Agreement, whichever 

is earlier.  

 

6.10.7.3 In the event the Agreement is terminated, in whole or in part, with or without 

cause, or expires, the Qualified Vendor shall assist the Division in the transition of 

members to other Qualified Vendors in accordance with applicable rules and 

policies. Such assistance and coordination shall include but shall not be limited to: 

 

6.10.7.3.1 Forwarding program and other records as may be necessary to assure the 

smoothest possible transition and continuity of services.  The cost of reproducing 

and forwarding such records shall be borne by the Qualified Vendor.  

 

6.10.7.3.2 Notifying of subcontractors and members.   

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-53                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.10.7.3.3 Facilitating and scheduling medically necessary appointments for care and 

services. 

 

6.10.7.3.4 Providing all reports set forth in this Agreement. 

 

6.10.7.3.5 Making provisions for continuing all management/administrative services until 

the transition of members is completed and all other requirements of this 

Agreement are satisfied. 

 

6.10.7.3.6 If required by the Division, extending performance until suitable arrangements are 

made by the Division for a replacement Qualified Vendor. 

 

6.10.7.3.7 If required by the Division, at the Qualified Vendor’s own expense, assisting in 

the training of personnel. 

 

6.10.7.3.8 Paying all outstanding obligations for care rendered to members. 

 

6.10.7.3.9 Providing the following financial reports to the Division until the Division is 

satisfied that the Qualified Vendor has paid all such obligations: (a) a monthly 

claims aging report by provider/creditor including Incurred But Not Reported 

(IBNR) amounts; (b) a monthly summary of cash disbursements; and (c) copies of 

all bank statements received by the Qualified Vendor in the preceding month for 

Qualified Vendor’s bank accounts.  All reports in this section shall be due on the 

fifteenth (15
th

) day of each succeeding month for the prior month.    

 

6.10.7.4 In the event the Agreement is terminated in part, the Qualified Vendor shall 

continue the performance of the Agreement to the extent not terminated.  

 

6.10.8 Voidability of Agreement.   

 

This Agreement is voidable and may be immediately terminated by the 

Department upon the Qualified Vendor becoming insolvent or filing proceedings 

in bankruptcy or reorganization, or upon assignment or delegation of the 

Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.   

 

 6.11                Agreement Claims and Controversies 
 

 Other than protests and claims covered by A.A.C. R6-6-2115 and R6-6-2116, any 

other claims or controversies under this Agreement shall be resolved according to 

A.A.C. R6-6-2117.  

 

6.12 Contingency Planning 

 

 The Qualified Vendor shall have a contingency plan that addresses the 

requirements of (1) a Business Continuity Plan (“BCP”), and (2) a Pandemic 

Performance Plan, as stipulated in Section 6.12.1 and 6.12.2.  The Contingency 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-54                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

Plan is subject to the approval of the Division.  The Qualified Vendor shall submit 

any amendment to the plan to the Division within ten (10) business days.  The 

State may require a copy of the plan at any time prior to or post award of an 

Agreement. 

 

6.12.1 Business Continuity. 

 

6.12.1.1 Each Qualified Vendor shall establish a written BCP that illustrates how the 

Qualified Vendor shall provide contracted service(s) pursuant to the Agreement in 

the event of a natural or man-made disaster (e.g., earthquake, flood, catastrophic 

accident, fire, explosion, gas leak) or any other emergency event which may 

disrupt routine service delivery (e.g., power outage, disruption of essential 

utilities, evacuation by authorities).  The BCP shall, at a minimum, include the 

following: 

a.   Internal emergency notification call-trees, organizational chart, and orders of 

succession. 

b.   Checklists to contact and coordinate with police, fire, medical, and other 

community emergency responders. 

c.   The Qualified Vendor’s emergency points of contact(s) information, 

communication and reporting protocols with the Division. 

d.   Plans to respond, restore, and resume business operations as soon as practical 

and also protecting the life, health, and safety of members and the Qualified 

Vendor’s staff.   

 

6.12.1.2          In addition, the Qualified Vendor shall have contingencies for: 

a. The loss of facilities/sites. 

b. Electronic/telephone failure at primary place of business. 

c. Loss of computer systems/records. 

d. A facility evacuation plan that assures the successful evacuation of members 

and staff. 

e. A self-sheltering (i.e., shelter in place) plan which maintains adequate staffing 

levels, food, water, prescribed medications and equipment that meet the needs 

of members for the duration of the emergency/disaster event. 

 

6.12.1.3 The BCP shall be specific for each of its Arizona facilities and reference 

community emergency resources as described in Section 6.12.1.1.  

 

6.12.1.4 The Qualified Vendor shall provide annual BCP training for all staff members. 

 

6.12.1.5 The Qualified Vendor shall conduct BCP exercises, annually. 

 

6.12.1.6       The Qualified Vendor shall review its BCP(s) as needed, amend the plan as 

required, and train all staff members on any changes to the plan.  

 



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-55                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

6.12.1.7 In the event of a local disaster declaration, an emergency declared by the 

Governor of Arizona, the President of the United States, or the World Health 

Organization which makes the performance of any term of this Agreement 

impossible or impracticable, the Division shall have the authority to: 

a. Temporarily void the Agreement(s), in whole or in part, if the Qualified 

Vendor cannot perform to the standards agreed upon in the initial terms. 

b. Implement emergency procurements as authorized by the Director of the 

Arizona Department of Administration pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-2537 of the 

Arizona Procurement Code.  

c. Reinstate the voided Agreement(s) if the Qualified Vendor can demonstrate 

ability to resume performance of the Agreement(s).  

 

6.12.1.8        As a result of the provisions contained in Section 6.12.1.7 and subsections (a), (b), 

or (c) the Division shall not incur any liability with a Qualified Vendor during a 

disaster or emergency event. 

 

6.12.2 Pandemic Contractual Performance. 

 

6.12.2.1      The State shall require a written Pandemic Performance Plan that illustrates how 

the Qualified Vendor shall perform up to the Agreement standards in the event of 

a pandemic (e.g., influenza).  At a minimum, the Pandemic Performance Plan 

shall include: 

a. Key succession and performance planning if there is a sudden significant 

decrease in Qualified Vendor’s workforce. 

b. Alternative methods to ensure there are services or products in the supply 

chain. 

c. An up to date list of company contacts and organizational chart. 

 

6.12.2.2       The Qualified Vendor shall provide annual training on the Pandemic Performance 

Plan for all staff members. 

 

6.12.2.3 The Qualified Vendor shall review its Pandemic Performance Plan as needed, 

amend the plan as required, and train all staff members on any changes to the 

plan. 

     

6.12.2.4 In the event of a pandemic, as declared by the Governor of Arizona, U.S. 

Government or the World Health Organization, which makes performance of any 

term under this Agreement impossible or impracticable, the State shall have the 

following rights: 

a.   After the official declaration of a pandemic, the State may temporally void the 

Agreement(s) in whole or specific sections if the Qualifies Vendor cannot 

perform to the standards agreed upon.  

b.  The State shall not incur any liability if a pandemic is declared and emergency 

procurements are authorized by the Director of the Arizona Department of 

Administration per A.R.S. § 41-2537 of the Arizona Procurement Code.  



 

   RFQVA # DDD 710000                                            6-56                                                  Effective 09-01-2014 

 

c.  Once the pandemic is officially declared over and/or the Qualified Vendor can 

demonstrate the ability to perform, the State, at its sole discretion may 

reinstate the temporarily voided Agreement(s). 

 

6.13                Certifications 

 

6.13.1              Lobbying. 

 

        The Qualified Vendor shall submit the Certification Regarding Lobbying form, 

and by so doing, agrees to compliance with 49 C.F.R. Part 20.  The Certification 

Regarding Lobbying form may be found in Section 9 as “Attachment C”. 

 

6.13.2             Suspension or Debarment. 

 

          In addition to the terms and conditions in Section 6, the Qualified Vendor shall 

submit the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Voluntary 

Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions form, which may be found in Section 

9 as “Attachment D”. 

 

6.13.3             Inclusive Qualified Vendor. 

 

        The Qualified Vendor is encouraged to make every effort to utilize subcontractors 

that are small, women-owned and/or minority owned business enterprises.  This 

could include subcontractors for a percentage of the administrative or direct 

service being proposed.  The Qualified Vendor who is committing a portion of its 

work to such subcontractors shall do so by identifying the type of service and 

work to be performed by providing detail concerning the Qualified Vendor’s 

utilization of small, women-owned and/or minority business enterprises.  

Emphasis should be placed on specific areas that are subcontracted and percentage 

of Agreement utilization and how this effort will be administered and managed, 

including reporting requirements. 

 

 

 

6.13.4 Data Sharing. 

 

 When determined by the Department that sharing of confidential data will occur 

with the Qualified Vendor, the Qualified Vendor shall complete the ADES Data 

Sharing Request Agreement and submit the completed Agreement to the DES 

Program Designated Staff prior to any work commencing or data shared.  A 

separate Data Sharing Request Agreement shall be required between the Qualified 

Vendor and each DES Program sharing confidential data.   The Data Sharing 

Request Agreement form may be found in Section 9 as “Attachment E”. 

 



   
ARF-4268   Consent Agenda Item     4. E.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal, Director 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Appointments of  Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican
Party

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statute §16-821 (B) states, "The board of supervisors
upon the recommendation of the county chairman, or the
recommendation of a committee designated in the bylaws of the
county committee for that purpose, shall determine when a vacancy
exists in the office of precinct committeeman. If a vacancy exists, the
vacancy shall be filled by the board of supervisors from a list of
names submitted by the county chairman of the appropriate political
party. Only a precinct committeeman elected at the primary election
prior to the date of a state or county committee organizing meeting
shall be permitted to vote at such meeting. The criteria used to
establish when a vacancy exists in the office of precinct committeeman
shall be as established in section 38-291."

Evaluation
The Gila County Republican Committee Chairman, Gary Morris, has
submitted Bernard George Wohlforth for appointment to the office of
precinct committeeman in the Globe #2 precinct; Greg Barsness for
appointment to the office of precinct committeeman in the Globe
#4 precinct; and Jim Muhr for appointment to the office of precinct
committeeman in the Payson #3 precinct.  Per statute, the Board of
Supervisors has the authority to make these appointments.

Conclusion
The Gila County Republican Committee Chairman, Gary Morris, has



The Gila County Republican Committee Chairman, Gary Morris, has
submitted Bernard George Wohlforth - Globe #2 precinct, Greg Barsness -
Globe #4 precinct, and Jim Muhr - Payson #3 precinct for appointment by
the Board of Supervisors to serve as Precinct Committeemen.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
the appointments as submitted by Gary Morris, Gila County Republican
Committee Chairman.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the following precinct committeemen appointments as
submitted by Gila County Republican Committee Chairman Gary Morris: 
Bernard George Wohlforth - Globe #2 precinct; Greg Barsness - Globe #4
precinct; and Jim Muhr - Payson #3 precinct.

Attachments
Bernard George Wohlforth Precinct Committeeman Appointment
Greg Barsness Precinct Committeeman Appointment
Jim Muhr Precinct Committeeman Appointment
Arizona Revised Statute 16-821











   
ARF-4280   Consent Agenda Item     4. F.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
March 2017

Submitted For: Tony McDaniel, Payson Regional Constable 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2017

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
March 2017





















   
ARF-4285   Consent Agenda Item     4. G.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Reporting
Period:

March 2017

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for March 2017.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerks Report for March 2017



















   
ARF-4292   Consent Agenda Item     4. H.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for March 2017

Submitted For: Ruben Mancha, Globe Regional Constable 

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2017.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly departmental activity report
submitted by the Globe Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
March Monthly Report























   
ARF-4298   Consent Agenda Item     4. I.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly Report for March 2017

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger, Justice of the Peace-Globe Region 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr.

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office Monthly Report for March
2017

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the March 2017 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Monthly report for March 2017









   
ARF-4258   Consent Agenda Item     4. J.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Monthly financial and statisical reports for February
2017

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Information
Subject
Payson's Regional Justice of the Peace statistical and financial reports for
February 2017

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the February 2017 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
February 2017 report













   
ARF-4287   Consent Agenda Item     4. K.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Reporting
Period:

March 28, 2017 and April 4, 2017

Submitted By: Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk

Information
Subject
March 28, and April 4, 2017, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the March 28, and April 4, 2017, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

Attachments
03-28-17 Minutes
04-04-17 Minutes



Page 1 of 9 

 

  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  March 28, 2017 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY  By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                            Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE                                                  Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin; Chairman (via ITV); Tim R. Humphrey, Vice-
Chairman; Woody Cline, Member; John Nelson, County Manager; Jefferson R. 

Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian E. Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman Martin called the work session to order at 10:00 a.m. this date in the 

Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Cheryl Sluyter led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

 
Chairman Martin advised that agenda item number 2C, presentation of the 
results of a staffing study conducted by the Gila County Sheriff’s Office, would 

be addressed as the last Regular Agenda item. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 17-03-01 

authorizing the renewal of Gila County's membership in the Arizona Local 
Government Employee Benefit Trust (AZLGEBT) for the period 
commencing July 1, 2017, and terminating on June 30, 2020; and 

appointing John Nelson, Trustee, and Jacque Sanders, Alternate Trustee, 
to serve on the Board of Directors of AZLGEBT from July 1, 2017, until 

the appointment of a duly-qualified successor.  
 
Jacque Sanders, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, introduced Erin Collins 

of Erin Collins and Associates.  Mr. Collins advised that his company is the 
administrator for AZLGEBT, which provides medical/RXs, dental, vision, 
disability, life insurance and wellness program benefits to over 4,000 

employees and dependents throughout Arizona.  AZLGEBT was formed in 1994 
at which time Graham, Greenlee and Santa Cruz counties became members.  



Page 2 of 9 

 

La Paz County joined in 1998 and Apache and Gila counties joined in 1999. 
Mr. Collins explained that one of AZLGEBT’s guiding principles is to give 

control to counties rather than insurance companies. He stated that AZLGEBT 
uses the data from claims and then targets those areas of which preventive 

screenings need to be provided.  He explained that Gila County previously had 
many cancer claims, particularly breast cancer, and there were also many 
cases of diabetes. At one point years ago, Gila County was instructed to “get 

better or get out” of AZLGEBT because there was such a high number of 
claims.  It was at that time that efforts were made to provide more information, 
screenings, etc. through the Wellness Program, whereby Gila County’s claims 

dropped dramatically over a 3-year period.  He complimented Ms. Sanders’ 
efforts with regard to the success of the Wellness Program.   

 
Mr. Collins advised that Gila County’s 3-year membership will expire on June 
30, 2017, which is the reason the resolution is being presented for Board 

action.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor 
Cline, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No. 17-03-01.  (A copy of 

the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office 
and is attached to these minutes.) 
 

B.  Information/Discussion regarding Pinal/Gila Council for Senior 
Citizens' funding challenges in order to provide continued services for 
senior citizens in Gila County and Pinal County.  

 
Olivia Guerrero, President/Chief Executive Officer of Pinal/Gila Council for 

Senior Citizens (PGCSC), explained that PGCSC is the designated Area Agency 
on Aging for Region V, which encompasses all of Pinal County and Gila County.  
PGCSC is charged with planning for Older American Act funded aging services 

at the local level.  PGCSC is a not-for-profit organization which has served Gila 
County and Pinal County for 42 years.  She introduced several members of the 
PGCSC Board of Directors who were present at the meeting.  Ms. Guerrero 

advised that PGCSC receives less than 6% of total funding in the state.  Of the 
approximate $7M that was allocated to the State, PGCSC received about $45K.  

She stated, “The state and federal government is not keeping up with 
supporting our seniors, and you can quote me on that.”  She reviewed the 
services provided by PGCSC and bar charts showing PGCSC’s revenue from 

2010 to 2015 to illustrate the declining revenue sources.  According to the 
2010 Census, of the 53,597 residents in Gila County, 16,961 or 32% were over 

the age of 60.  PGCSC conducted a survey in 2017 as part of its 2018-2021 
Area Plan. The survey was distributed to 2,758 residents of Gila County and 
Pinal County, and 1,011 were completed.  The ten services identified as being 

most needed in order of priority are:  1) home-delivered meals (Meals-on-
Wheels); 2) transportation for medical appointments, pharmacies, etc.; 3) 
exercise, health and fitness programs for seniors; 4) assistive devices for 

walking, hearing, eating, speaking, etc.; 5) in-home respite (short-term care 
and supervision for clients); 6) access to medical care (doctors and specialists); 



Page 3 of 9 

 

7) financial help with dentures, glasses and hearing aids; 8) home care 
(housekeeping, home health/nursing, personal care, and attendant care); 9) 

affordable dental care; and 10) managing chronic illnesses (diabetes, 
depression, hypertension, arthritis, etc.).  Pinal County receives 75% of the 

funding allocation and Gila County receives 25%; however, it is subject to 
change.  Ms. Guerrero explained that PGCSC appreciates the funding provided 
by the local cities, towns and counties; however, it is not enough to cover for 

the continued provision of critical services. 
 
Anna Medina, PGCSC Chief Operating Officer, presented the fiscal year (FY) 

2016 Gila County Senior Centers Service Report, which outlined the number of 
congregate meals, home-delivered meals and transportation that was provided 

in Globe, Hayden, Miami and Payson.   
 
The following individuals also presented information regarding the services 

provided by their respective senior center:  Joanne Conlin, Board Chairperson 
for the Payson Senior Center; Tamara Guerin, Supervisor for the Globe Active 

Adult Center; Kristy Regalado, Director of the Miami Senior Center; and Anita 
Hinojos, Center Coordinator for the Hayden Senior Center . 
 

Supervisor Cline explained that soon after being elected as Gila County District  
Three Supervisor, he began receiving requests for support from various senior 
centers and realized there were issues that needed to be addressed, so that is 

the reason he wanted this topic to be discussed during a work session.  He 
thanked the presenters and offered his support for all of the services provided 

by the senior centers.  Supervisor Cline advised that the County historically 
has given approximately $150K of funding annually to the various senior 
centers of which most of the funding has been taken from the Supervisors’ 

individual constituent funds.  He proposed adding $150K of funding as a line 
item in the County’s annual budget. Vice-Chairman Humphrey inquired of Ms. 
Guerrero regarding the methodology used by the federal and state government 

for the reduction in funding.  Ms. Guerrero replied that it is her belief that the 
cuts are made to balance the federal and state budgets; they are not based on 

the needs of the senior centers.  She thanked the Board members for the 
opportunity to present this information.  Vice-Chairman Humphrey requested 
“as much information as I can get” from Ms. Guerrero because he intends on 

writing letters to various legislators.  Chairman Martin and Supervisor Cline 
also requested this information to which Ms. Guerrero agreed. 

 
C.  Information/Discussion regarding the results of a staffing study 
conducted by the Gila County Sheriff's Office.  See below for a summary of 

this agenda item following agenda item 2E. 
 
D.  Information/Discussion regarding options for the collection of 

delinquent fines and fees as prescribed by the Board of Supervisors.  
 



Page 4 of 9 

 

James Menlove, Finance Director, stated that certain County functions, such 
as animal control and code enforcement allow for the assessment of fines and 

fees.  The assessment of a fine for violation of a County ordinance is intended 
to both recover the cost of enforcing the ordinance and serve as a deterrent to 

violations.  The Clean and Lien Ordinance (Ordinance No. 08-02) requires Code 
Enforcement to provide an estimate of costs, fees and penalties, including 
incidental costs and the costs of additional inspections to be incurred by Gila 

County if the violation is not removed or abated by a certain date.  If the 
property owner, lessee, or occupant does not take action within 30 calendar 
days of mailing or personal service of an Order to Abate, the Board may, at the 

expense of the owner, lessee or occupant, remove or abate the hazard or cause 
it to be removed or abated.  The costs assessed for removal or abatement shall 

not exceed actual costs and incidental expenses (including collection fees up to 
25%).  Mr. Menlove explained that the current Code Enforcement collections 
process includes sending a letter to the property owner, lessee or occupant.  If 

no response is received, Code Enforcement may record a lien against the 
property.  No other collection efforts are pursued.  An Animal Control hearing 

officer conducts hearings and levies fines.  The hearing officer is paid $50 per 
hearing conducted, regardless of any fines assessed or collected.  Animal 
Control mails a copy of the hearing officer’s judgment to the responsible party.  

If not paid after the first copy of the judgment is sent, a second copy is sent via 
certified U.S. mail.  No other collection efforts are pursued.  Mr. Menlove 
advised that without collection efforts, there is no consequence for unpaid fines 

and the deterrent to violations is negated.  Furthermore, the County absorbs 
the unpaid costs of services rendered and Code Enforcement.   

 
From 2014 to present, the Gila County Community Development 
Division/Code Enforcement assessed fines in the amount of $110,681 and 

allowed reductions in the amount of $13,950.  Of the $96,731 of fines that 
were billed, only $4,199 or 4% of the fines have been collected leaving an 
amount of $92,532 or 96% of uncollected fines.  

 
From 2014-2016, Gila County Animal Control levied fines in the amount of 

$5,350, and $1,850 or 35% have been collected leaving $3,500 or 65% of 
outstanding fines.  There were 91 hearings conducted during that time period 
at a cost of $50 per hearing for a total cost of $4,550. 

 
Mr. Menlove reviewed the proposed options, as follows:  1) Take no action.  

Fines and fees will continue to be billed, but minimal effort at collection of 
past-due amounts; 2) establish an internal collection function; or 3) contract 
with an external collection agency to handle collection of past-due amounts. He 

mentioned that many other counties, cities and towns utilize the services of 
outside collection agencies for recovery of bad debt.   
 

After the presentation, Mr. Menlove and the Board members entered into a 
discussion.  Chairman Martin advised that years ago, the County contracted 



Page 5 of 9 

 

for hearing officer services and those individuals were not County employees.  
It was agreed that the County may have to offer a little more than $50 per 

hearing.  Mr. Menlove mentioned that he met with the City of Globe Mayor 
regarding the cleanup of blighted properties.  The City wants to attract more 

people to the area in coordination with County ordinances. Chairman Martin 
advised that there are more homeowners’ associations in northern Gila County, 
so issues pertaining to blighted properties are handled by those associations.  

Chairman Martin called on John Nelson, County Manager, for his comments.  
Mr. Nelson advised that the Justice of the Peace works through a collection 
agency, so this process could be handed over to the court system; however, 

utilizing the courts would be more expensive than hiring a hearing officer.  Mr. 
Nelson recommended that the County utilize an independent hearing officer 

and collection agency, with an option to utilize the court system.  Mr. Nelson 
stated, “This is not to squeeze the last dime out of our citizens; it is more to get 
a person to obey our ordinances – not to get more revenue, but to get more 

enforcement of our ordinances.”  Chairman Martin suggested scheduling a 
work session to discuss the role and responsibilities of a hearing officer.  Vice-

Chairman Humphrey thanked County staff for the amount of work that has 
been done thus far on this topic. Supervisor Cline agreed that the County 
should contract with an independent hearing officer.  He stressed the 

importance of ensuring that the adopted ordinances are correct so that they 
can be fully enforced.  In ending the discussion, Mr. Menlove complimented 
Olivia Todd for her efforts on this presentation. 

 
Chairman Martin recessed the meeting at 11:49 a.m. for a quick break and 

reconvened the meeting at 11:56 a.m. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion regarding the Delegation Agreement between 

the Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila County Health 
Department and the application of Arizona Revised Statutes Title 36 
(Public Health & Safety) to property maintenance.  

 
Michael O’Driscoll, Health and Emergency Management Division Director, 

advised that Vice-Chairman Humphrey contacted him to explore new and 
creative ways to address blighted properties.  He stated that many of these 
properties become blighted due to ownership issues.  When a property owner 

dies, family members choose to not go through the probate process because of 
the costs.  Mr. O’Driscoll stated that the Health Department currently applies 

Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.) Title 36 (Public Health and Safety) through its 
Delegation Agreement with the Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) 
to property maintenance issues.  It is used to abate public health nuisances on 

private property.  He proceeded to review all of the uses of Title 36 such as 
inspections to include food served in restaurants; pools, spas, and bathing 
places; public school sanitation; hotel and motel sanitation; public health 

nuisances; infestation or harborage; and storage of garbage.  He added that if 
there is a public health nuisance under Title 36, the Health Department staff 



Page 6 of 9 

 

asks the property owner to clean up the property.  If that is not done, a notice 
of violation is issued and the case may end up in Superior Court.  There is a 

follow-up conducted and the complaint is closed.  Fines can be assessed from 
$750 to $10K.  Title 36 outlines 9 or 10 considerations that the hearing officer 

or county attorney can consider when issuing fines.   
 
Mr. O’Driscoll stated that he was unsure how to handle those properties that 

have been deeded to the State of Arizona and in care of the Board of 
Supervisors, and those properties in which the owner has died.  He cited some 
examples of how Title 36 is utilized by other Arizona counties.  He added that 

none of the counties that he cited use hearing officers.  Mr. O’Driscoll stated 
that most of the counties that he cited have adopted ordinances in accordance 

with the rules and regulations under Title 36.  Chairman Martin thanked Mr. 
O’Driscoll for the information that he provided and she requested that he 
compile all of the information into one document that she could share with 

other counties’ officials.  Vice-Chairman Humphrey also thanked Mr. O’Driscoll 
for his efforts regarding this issue. 

 
C.  Information/Discussion regarding the results of a staffing study 
conducted by the Gila County Sheriff's Office.   

 
Sheriff Adam Shepherd advised that he wanted to present the results of a 
recent staffing study conducted by his Office; however, he was not asking for 

any Board action today.  He stated that reduced staff increases the amount of 
liability upon a county and it causes a higher safety risk to the public and 

staff.  He first addressed high overtime costs for officers and explained that 
when an officer takes a call, it is many times better to have that officer remain 
with the call until it is finished rather than bringing in a new officer, who may 

not understand the total situation.  Supervisor Cline inquired as to the amount 
funded in the Sheriff’s budget for overtime to which the Sheriff replied that it is 
about $110K annually. Supervisor Cline commented that if the Sheriff’s Office 

was sufficiently staffed, would overtime costs be reduced to zero?  Sheriff 
Shepherd replied that overtime costs would never be zero.  He mentioned that 

other counties’ data was not used for this study and the focus of this study was 
to determine what it would take to provide 24/7 coverage.  A significant and 
ongoing problem is that it takes 1-2 years to replace an employee due to the 

amount of required training.  The Sheriff’s Office strategy is to provide 
incentives to retain employees.  Another concern is that it is difficult to provide 

coverage when an employee takes comp time.   
 
A PowerPoint presentation was provided at this time.  The 2010 Census 

information was reviewed.  Gila County’s population at that time was 53,597 
and 22,723 residents lived in unincorporated Gila County, which is covered by 
the Sheriff’s Office.  The remaining population of 30,874 is covered by city, 

town and reservation police agencies.  Sheriff Shepherd advised that there are 
mutual aid agreements in place with some of the agencies.   



Page 7 of 9 

 

 
Justin Solberg, Detention Commander, presented a detailed overview of the 

Detention Bureau, which includes the Globe and Payson jails.  The issue of 
understaffing, inadequate design of the jails, staffing requirements resulting 

from a 1998 Department of Justice lawsuit against Gila County, and Prison 
Rape Elimination Act standards were addressed.  Currently, the Detention 
Bureau has 60.5 full-time employees and 70 employees would be the optimum 

number to sufficiently staff the Detention Bureau. 
 
Note for the record – Jefferson Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil 

Bureau Chief, left the meeting at 12:55 p.m. 
 

Debra Williams, 911 Coordinator, presented information on agencies that are 
provided dispatch services by Gila County, minimum staffing requirements for 
dispatchers, specific responsibilities, workload summary, etc.  She advised that 

the Sheriff’s Office Communications Center currently provides dispatch 
services to Gila County, Tri-City Fire Department, Tonto Basin Fire 

Department, City of Globe Police Department and City of Globe Fire 
Department.  At present, there are 3 dispatch supervisors and 21 dispatchers.  
APCO (Association of Public-Safety Communications Officials) recommends 3 

dispatch supervisors, 25 dispatchers and 8 lead dispatchers.  Supervisor Cline 
entered into a brief conversation with Ms. Williams regarding the requirements 
to become a dispatcher and the problem of retaining them due to the high 

amount of stress on the job.  Ms. Williams commented that there is a 33% 
turnover rate and she added that the County’s dispatchers are classified as 

administrative assistants, so it is her belief that they are underpaid in 
comparison to other agencies’ dispatchers.   
 

Timothy Scott, Patrol Commander Lieutenant, presented information on patrol 
services.  Approximately 765 miles of roadway is patrolled by Gila County 
Sheriff’s deputies, which includes about 500 miles of national forest roadways.  

Patrol is also provided at Roosevelt Lake to include campgrounds and search 
and rescue efforts.  In 2016, 18,663 calls were handled by Sheriff’s deputies; 

636,108 miles were patrolled; and 825 civil papers were served.  The response 
time for priority 1 and 2 calls (assault, domestic, burglary and fight) was on 
average 13 minutes. The Sheriff’s Office has had its patrol positions cut 

causing sub-station closures (Tonto Basin and Hayden); squads assigned to 
various areas; increased use of resident deputies; changes in the rank of 

Captains and Majors; use of civil deputies in northern Gila County; and a cost 
of $4,330.25 in overtime hours.  Currently, there are 31 Deputy Sheriff 
positions and 7 Deputy Sheriff Sergeant positions.  The FBI (Federal Bureau of 

Investigations) reported that the United States county law enforcement staffing 
levels are 2.7 officers per 1,000 inhabitants.  With the assumption of having 
2.5 officers per 1,000 inhabitants, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office minimum 

staffing level for patrol positions should be 56 deputies.  In conclusion, if there 
was an increase in patrol deputies, there would be more time for deputies to 



Page 8 of 9 

 

investigate calls and handle self-initiated activities; quicker response times; 
sergeants would be able to supervise; there would be an ability to be proactive 

rather than reactive; overtime costs would decrease; and there would be better 
traffic enforcement.  Supervisor Cline inquired if a staffing level of 46-48 

employees would be sufficient to cover all of the required areas of responsibility 
for patrol services to which Sheriff Shepherd replied that it would certainly 
help, but it would take time to know if all areas were adequately being covered.  

Chairman Martin inquired if utilizing improved technology would be helpful.  
Sheriff Shepherd replied that the Board of Supervisors has been gracious in 
approving requests for the implementation of updated technology, which has 

improved operations in some areas.  He added that overtime costs are 
quantifiable and a great concern is that those costs continue to increase each 

year.   
 
Travis Baxley, Task Force Commander, addressed the Sheriff’s Office Criminal 

Investigations Bureau (CIB).  He advised that there is no systematic method to 
determine staffing levels for detectives in the United States.  Internal best 

practices are based on the hours spent per case.  Staffing on caseloads for 
detectives vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction, and the number of detectives 
will vary depending on how much time officers/deputies are expected to spend 

on preliminary investigations.  Currently, there is one CIB Commander 
position, 1 CIB Sergeant position, and 5 CIB Detective positions (3 in Payson 
and 2 in Globe).  He reviewed the factors that contribute to solving crimes and 

the emergence of “cold case” investigations due to increased forensic 
technology through crime labs of which there are approximately 50 active cold 

cases.  In 2016, the CIB case load was 900.  Of that total, there were 531 cases 
for crimes against persons; 364 cases for crimes against property; and 5 
miscellaneous investigations.  The average time per investigation for person 

crimes is 20 hours and the average time per investigation for property crimes 
and miscellaneous crimes is 10 hours.  There were a total of 547.75 of overtime 
hours for the CIB.  Commander Baxley advised that based on the results of the 

staffing study, the current staffing level is not adequate to maintain effective 
and thorough investigations.  Commander Baxley stated that it would take an 

increase of 4 additional CIB Detective positions to handle the current case load.   
 
At the conclusion of the presentation, Sheriff Shepherd publicly acknowledged 

those staff members that contributed to the study and the presentation to the 
Board of Supervisors.  Vice-Chairman Humphrey inquired if there was any way 

that the County could utilize the community college to attract youth to this 
profession.  Sheriff Shepherd replied that it is problematic to attract potential 
employees that have a clean criminal record and use of drugs is also a 

problem.  With regard to providing a college course, Sheriff Shepherd stated 
that getting enough enrollments to be able to offer a class is challenging.   
 

The Board members thanked Sheriff Shepherd and his staff for the 
presentation.  



Page 9 of 9 

 

 
Item 3 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 

benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 

may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 

of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 

future date. 
 

There weren’t any comments from the public. 
 
Item 4 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-

431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 

on information presented. 
 
Vice-Chairman Humphrey, Supervisor Cline and Chairman Martin presented a 

summary of current events.  John Nelson, County Manager, did not have 
anything to report at this time. 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 2:11 p.m. 

 
APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 12 

 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETING MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  April 4, 2017 

 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 

 
TIM R. HUMPHREY  By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman                                                            Clerk of the Board 

 
WOODY CLINE                                                  Gila County Courthouse 

Member         Globe, Arizona                        
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

PRESENT:  Tommie C. Martin; Chairman (via ITV); Tim R. Humphrey, Vice-
Chairman; Woody Cline, Member; John Nelson, County Manager; Jefferson R. 

Dalton, Deputy Gila County Attorney, Civil Bureau Chief; Marian E. Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Melissa Henderson, Deputy Clerk. 
 

Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION 
 
Chairman Martin called the regular session to order at 10:02 a.m. this date in 

the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Adam Shepherd led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Pastor Phillip Lindsay from the Expedition Church in Payson 

delivered the Invocation. 
 
Item 2 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2017-02 
proclaiming April 2017 as National County Government Month in Gila 

County with this year's theme of "Brilliant Ideas At Work" and to 
encourage all Gila County officials, employees, schools and residents to 

participate in county government celebration activities. 
 
Chairman Martin announced the activities that are scheduled to take place in 

Gila County in recognition of County Government Month and she asked the 
Board for a motion to adopt the proclamation.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 

Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously adopted 
Proclamation No. 2017-02.  (A copy of the Proclamation is on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2017-03 
proclaiming April 4, 2017, as Recognition Day for Volunteer Service in 

Gila County, and recognize those groups who volunteer their time to 
provide a direct service to Gila County residents. 



Page 2 of 12 

 

Chairman Martin advised that April 4th is Recognition Day for Volunteer 
Service, so it was an appropriate time to recognize the 200 volunteers who 

collectively volunteer approximately 30,000 hours of time annually to provide a 
direct service to Gila County residents, as follows:  

 Gila County CASA (Court Appointed Special Advocates), Superior Court 

 Northern Gila County CERT (Certified Emergency Response Team), Sheriff’s 
Office 

 Southern Gila County CERT, Emergency Management 

 RACES (Radio Amateur Civil Emergency Service), Emergency Management 
 Globe Search & Rescue, Sheriff’s Office 
 Tonto Rim Search & Rescue, Sheriff's Office 

 Gila County Sheriff’s Reserve Posse Payson, Sheriff’s Office 
 Gila County Sheriff’s Reserve Posse Globe, Sheriff's Office  

 Gila County Sheriff's Office Dive Team, Sheriff's Office 
 VITA (Volunteer Income Tax Assistance) volunteer, Community Services 

Vice-Chairman Humphrey and Supervisor Cline thanked the volunteers for 
their time, effort and service.  Chairman Martin announced that she would 

mute her audio for a few minutes so that certificates of recognition could be 
presented simultaneously to the volunteer groups in Payson and Globe.  At 

approximately 10:15 a.m., Chairman Martin reconnected the audio in Payson 
and she asked for a motion to adopt the proclamation.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board 

unanimously adopted Proclamation No. 2017-03. (A copy of the Proclamation 
is on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 

 
At this time, Chairman Martin asked for a motion for the Board of Supervisors 
to convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors in order to 

address the following two agenda items.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously adjourned 
as the Board of Supervisors and convened as the Gila County Library District 

Board of Directors. 
 

C.  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors)  
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the renewal of Grantee 

Agreement No. FY 18 GRA-RC029-16-0761-01-Y3 between the San Carlos 
Apache Regional Partnership Council, First Things First, and the Gila 
County Library District, which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in 

the amount of $70,000 for the period July 1, 2017, through June 30, 
2018.  

 
Jacque Sanders, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, advised that this 
Grantee Agreement is for a period of 3 years of which this request is to renew 

the grant for one additional year, which will complete the 3-year grant cycle.  



Page 3 of 12 

 

Next year, an application for grant funds will be submitted for a new 3-year 
cycle.  She proceeded to talk about the annual survey and the efforts to reach 

out to parents regarding the importance of reading to their child.  The Board 
members entered into a discussion with Ms. Sanders regarding the indicators 

used to determine the success of the program.  Ms. Sanders advised that this 
program offers monthly books to children from birth to age 5 in the San Carlos 
region.  In fiscal year 2013, 502 children graduated from the program.  At 

present, there are 633 children who have signed up for the program and the 
Library District’s goal is to sign up 750 children.  She added that when a child 
graduates from the program, they will receive a monthly magazine.  Ms. 

Sanders added that there is a high correlation between vocabulary in first 
grade and high school graduation.  Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded 

by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously approved the renewal 
of Grantee Agreement No. FY 18 GRA-RC029-16-0761-01-Y3 between the San 
Carlos Apache Regional Partnership Council, First Things First, and the Gila 

County Library District. 
 

D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Grantee Agreement FY 18 
Renewal GRA-RC004-17-0838-01-Y2 between the Gila Regional 
Partnership Council, Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health 

Board (First Things First) and Gila County Library District in the amount 
of $60,000 for fiscal year July 1, 2017, through June 30, 2018.  (Motion 
to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors, and 

reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors).  
 

Ms. Sanders advised that this grant renewal is basically for the same program 
as explained in the previous agenda item; however, under this particular grant, 
the monthly magazine is not offered to those children that graduate from the 

program.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor 
Cline, the Board unanimously approved Grantee Agreement FY 18 Renewal 
GRA-RC004-17-0838-01-Y2 between the Gila Regional Partnership Council, 

Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health Board (First Things First) 
and Gila County Library District.   

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Library District Board of 

Directors and reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

E.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 17-04-01 revoking 
the authority of the Canyon River Ranch Domestic Water Improvement 
District (CRRDWID) Board of Directors; and naming the Gila County of 

Supervisors as the Board of Directors for the CRRDWID.  
 
Eric Mariscal, Elections Director, advised that the CRRDWID was established 

on June 19, 2007. In mid-2014, the current owners lost the property, which 
made them ineligible to serve as members of the CRRDWID Board of Directors 



Page 4 of 12 

 

(BOD).  He further advised that the proposed resolution would revoke the 
authority of the CRRDWID BOD and the Board of Supervisors (BOS) would be 

named as the CRRDWID BOD per Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) § 48-1016 
and § 48-908.  Chairman Martin inquired if the BOS were to be named as the 

CRRDWID BOD, is there anyone that lives in this district?  Mr. Mariscal replied 
that Canyon River Ranch is comprised of 2 parcels of land which are not 
contiguous; one parcel is known as Symington Flat and the other is known as 

Doll Baby Ranch.  The Doll Baby Ranch reverted to the original owners, and 
Symington Flat is under ownership of Cottage Capital and it is vacant land.  
Mr. Mariscal stated that Jeff Dalton, Deputy County Attorney and Civil Bureau 

Chief, requested to address this issue.   
 

Mr. Dalton cited A.R.S. §48-1012 (C) which states, “If a vacancy in the district 
board occurs due to death or disability or any other cause other than resignation, 
the board of directors of the district shall appoint a qualified elector of the district 
to fill the office for the remaining portion of that term. If there is a vacancy in the 
district board due to resignation, the district board shall accept the resignation 
and appoint a qualified elector to fill the remaining portion of that term of office. If 
the district board lacks a quorum for any reason for more than thirty days, the 
county board of supervisors may revoke the authority of the appointed or elected 
board of directors pursuant to section 48-1016.”  Mr. Dalton does not believe the 
BOS has the authority to be named as the BOD because there are no residents 

living in Canyon River Ranch.  The Board entered into further discussion with 
Mr. Dalton regarding the situation and it was agreed by all that the BOS 
should table this agenda item up to 30 days so that Mr. Mariscal could confer 

with someone who has expertise with special taxing districts after which he 
would report those findings at an upcoming BOS meeting.   

 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously tabled taking action on this agenda item up to 30 days at 

which time it will be scheduled on an upcoming Board meeting agenda. 
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the use of State of Arizona 

Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO13-054359 with Blackstone 
Security Services, Inc. whereby the contractor will provide armed security 

manpower for the safety of the public and employees at the Payson 
Courthouse in the amount of $83,081 for the period of April 2, 2017, to 
April 1, 2018.  

 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Director, advised that the contract with 

Blackstone Security Services, Inc, is about to expire.  This request is to renew 
the contract for one additional year.  Chairman Martin inquired as to the 
reason that the County is not using the Sheriff’s deputies to perform this work 

and she asked if there is a “better or cheaper way to do it.”  Mr. Sanders replied 
that he previously talked to the Sheriff about performing this service; however, 
the previous County Manager was not in favor of County employees providing 



Page 5 of 12 

 

the security.  Supervisor Cline requested that Mr. Sanders explore all options 
and to report them to the Board at a future meeting to which the other Board 

members agreed.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by 
Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously tabled taking action on this agenda 

item up to 30 days at which time it will be scheduled on an upcoming Board 
meeting agenda. 
 

G.  Information/Discussion/Action to direct the Deputy County Manager 
and or the Public Works Director to: 1) prepare and to subsequently 
circulate a Request for Qualifications (RFQ), which pertains to the future 

County space and infrastructure needs in northern Gila County, to 
architectural, engineering and space planning firms with expertise in 

designing needs assessment studies for future space needs of 
governmental organizations; 2) rank the order of the responses; 3) 
negotiate with the successful respondent; and 4) return to the Board as 

soon as is practicable to seek authorization from the Board to prepare an 
agreement for the delivery of the services that will meet the objectives 

that the County deems appropriate. 
 
Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager, advised that on February 14, 2017, 

the Board met in a work session at which time there was an in-depth 
discussion on the need for a comprehensive study to determine the future (20 
plus years) County infrastructure needs in the Payson area.  He proceeded to 

provide information on the items as listed above.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the Board unanimously 

approved all of the tasks outlined in the agenda item as stated above. 
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to direct the Deputy County Manager 

to: 1) make contact with certain organizations and to offer seats to those 
organizations to sit on a Citizen's Advisory Committee that will address 
and identify County space and infrastructure needs in northern Gila 

County; and 2) convene the first meeting of the Committee as soon as is 
practicable. 

 
Mr. Scannell advised that he is in support of the Board establishing a citizen’s 
committee as it is important to obtain input from those familiar with the 

Payson area and the County’s infrastructure needs.  Mr. Scannell spoke with 
John Nelson, County Manager, and Mr. Nelson suggested that the committee 

be comprised of 9 members with the following representation:  1 – Gila County 
Planning and Zoning Department; 1 – Industrial Development Authority of Gila 
County; 1- northern Gila County realtors’ group; 2-Payson Regional Chamber 

of Commerce; 1-Strawberry Planning Committee; 1-Tonto Apache Tribe; 1-
Town of Payson; and 1-Town of Star Valley.  It is anticipated that the 
committee would meet for 6-9 months to address all of the goals as outlined in 

the agenda item, and then a formal presentation of the committee’s 
recommendations would be made to the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-



Page 6 of 12 

 

Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the Board unanimously 
approved this agenda item as stated above. 

 
Item 3 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 

Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  

 
A.  Approval to accept an application from Arizona Water Company to 
renew its franchise with Gila County for an additional 25 years, and set a 

public hearing date of Tuesday, May 9, 2017, at 10:00 a.m. at which time 
the Board will consider granting said franchise.  

 
B.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 
032216-1 with Susan Kay Byrum to extend the contract term for an 

additional one-year period, from April 1, 2017 to March 31, 2018, and to 
increase the contract amount by an additional $22,900 for an amended 

contract amount of $70,900 to cover the contract term from April 1, 
2016, to March 31, 2017.  
 

C.  Acknowledgment of Kurtis Knauss's resignation from the Gila County 
Planning and Zoning Commission and approval to appoint Bill Marshall to 
fulfill Mr. Knauss's unexpired term of office from April 4, 2017, through 

December 31, 2018.  
 

D.  Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of 
March 7, 2017, March 14, 2017, March 21, 2017, and March 28, 2017. 
 

MARCH 7, 2017 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Donna Krah – Probation – Surveillance Officer – 02/26/17 – General 

(.50)/Adult Probation Service Fees (.50) Funds – DOH 10/26/15 

2. Cynthia Gonzales – Public Works – Custodian Lead – 03/03/17 – Facilities 

Management Fund – DOH 02/16/12 

3. Manuel Rodriguez – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 02/27/17 

– General Fund – DOH 11/21/16 

4. Ryan Holguin – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 02/27/17 – 

General Fund – DOH 12/12/16 

NEW HIRES: 

5. Danniel Shephard – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/13/17 – General 

Fund – Replacing Christy Buchanan  

6. Ashley Harter – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 03/13/17 – General Fund 

– Replacing James Rottnek  



Page 7 of 12 

 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

7. Therese Berumen – Community Development – Administrative Assistant – 

03/12/17 – General Fund 

8. Bruce Tanner – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 

Supervisor – 03/19/17 – Public Works Fund 

9. Manuel Orcasitas – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior 

– 03/19/17 – Facilities Management Fund 

10. Brian Rogers – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 

03/19/17 – Facilities Management Fund 

11. Larry Dooly – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – 

03/19/17 – Facilities Management Fund 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

12. Shealene Loya – Recorder’s Office – From Voter Registration Coordinator – 

To Recorder’s Office Supervisor – 02/22/17 – General Fund – Replacing 

Charlotte Williams 

13. Robert Deck – Probation – From Surveillance Officer – To Deputy Probation 

Officer 1 – 03/06/17 – From General (.50)/Adult Probation Service Fees (.50) 

Funds – To General Fund – Replacing Marcos Diaz 

OTHER ACTIONS: 

14. Marcos Diaz – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 03/06/17 – From 

General Fund – To State Aid Enhancement Fund – Change in fund codes 

15. Lisa Foster – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 03/06/17 – From 

Juvenile Standards Probation Fund – To Diversion Intake (.50)/Juvenile 

Intensive Probation Supervision (.50) Funds – Change in fund codes 

16. Larry Pontel – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 03/06/17 – From 

Juvenile Intensive Probation Supervision Fund – To Juvenile Standards 

Probation Fund – Change in fund code 

REQUEST TO POST: 

17. Public Works – Recycling and Landfill Operations Worker Senior – Vacated 

by Thomas Dando 

18. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic Senior – Vacated by 

Bruce Tanner 

19. Probation – Surveillance Officer – Vacated by Donna Krah 

 

MARCH 14, 2017 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Michelle Duarte – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 

02/24/17 – General Fund – DOH 03/28/11 

2. Michael Lorka – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer (.48) – 03/10/17 – 

General Fund – DOH 04/13/15 



Page 8 of 12 

 

3. Margarita Chapman – Community Development – Code Enforcement 

Supervisor – 03/24/17 – General Fund – DOH 02/13/02 

NEW HIRES: 

4. Brian Tackett – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 

03/27/17 – Facilities Management Fund – Replacing Manuel Orcasitas 

5. Matthew Garcia – Community Services – Community Services Worker – 

03/20/17 – GEST Fund – Replacing Jenny Valenzuela 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

6. Erika Pisano – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer IV – 02/24/17 – JPSF 

Treatment Fund  

REQUEST TO POST: 

7. Public Works – Custodian Lead – Vacated by Cynthia Gonzales 

8. Public Works – Survey Supervisor – Vacated by Kenneth Doss 

9. Board of Supervisors – County Manager – Vacated by John Nelson 

10.  Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – Vacated by 

Michelle Duarte 

11. Probation – Surveillance Officer – Vacated by Robert Deck 

12. Community Development – Code Enforcement Supervisor – Vacated by 

Margarita Chapman 

13. Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer (.48) – Vacated by Eric Dawson and 

Michael Lorka 

 

MARCH 21, 2017 

DEPARTURES: 

1. Jessica Pringle – Globe Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 04/07/17 – 

General Fund – DOH 04/20/15 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

2. Griselda Ruiz – Globe Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 08/10/16 – 

General Fund 

3. Christian Leos – County Attorney’s Office – Legal Secretary Senior – 

04/16/17 – Diversion Program Fund  

4. Daniel Benjamin – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 

04/30/17 – Drug Prosecution Grant Fund 

5. Bradley Soos – County Attorney’s Office – Chief Deputy County Attorney – 

04/03/17 – General Fund 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

6. Yolanda Spurgeon – From Probation – To Clerk of Superior Court – From 

Juvenile Detention Officer – To Court Clerk  – 03/27/17 – General Fund – 

Replacing Amber Dean 

OTHER ACTIONS: 



Page 9 of 12 

 

7. Edwiges Guadiana – Globe Justice Court – From Justice Court Clerk 

Associate (.60) – To Justice Court Clerk – 03/20/17 – General Fund – 

Reclassification 

8. Rita Lewis – Globe Justice Court – From Justice Court Clerk Associate (.60) – 

To Justice Court Clerk – 03/20/17 – General Fund – Reclassification  

9. Jessica Pringle – Globe Justice Court – From Justice Court Clerk Associate – 

To Justice Court Clerk – 03/20/17 – General Fund – Reclassification  

10. Leonard Kerszykowski – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 03/14/17 – From 

General (.925)/Drug Gang Violent Crime Control (.075) Funds – To Drug Gang 

Violent Crime Control Fund – Change in fund code 

11. Oulono Folau – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 03/14/17 – From General 

Fund – To Drug Gang Violent Crime Control Fund – Temporary change in fund 

code 

12. Celena Cates – Health and Emergency Services – Executive Administrative 

Assistant – 03/20/17 – From Health Service (.25)/Public Health Accreditation 

(.75) Funds – To Health Service Fund – Change in fund code 

REQUEST TO POST: 

13. Globe Justice Court – Court Clerk – Vacated by Jessica Pringle 

14. Globe Justice Court – Temporary Part-Time Justice Court Clerk  

 

MARCH 28, 2017 

New HIRES: 

1.  Stacy Shephard – Public Works – Administrative Clerk Specialist – 

04/03/17 – Public Works Fund – Replacing Nicole Weaver 

TEMPORARY HIRE RO COUNTY SERVICES: 

2.  Margarita Chapman – Community Development – Temporary Code 

Enforcement Supervisor – 04/05/17 – General Fund 

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 

3. Rebecca Parker – Assessor’s Office – Provisional Appraiser – 04/24/17 – 

General Fund  

4. Reina Gardner – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/28/17 – General 

Fund 

5. Christopher Powell – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/21/17 – 

General Fund 

6. John Gonzales Jr. – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 03/28/17 – General 

Fund 

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

7. Steven Seaman – Public Works – From Road Maintenance and Equipment 

Operator – To Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 04/03/17 – 

Public Works Fund – Replacing Porter Wilbanks 



Page 10 of 12 

 

8. Zackery Andrade – Public Works – From Road Maintenance and Equipment 

Operator – To Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 04/03/17 – 

Public Works Fund – Replacing John Griffin 

9. Stephen Cline – Public Works – From Road Maintenance and Equipment 

Operator – To Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator Senior – 04/03/17 – 

Public Works Fund – Replacing Brian Jennings 

10. Megan Miller – Clerk of Superior Court – From Court Clerk – To Courtroom 

Clerk Technician – 04/03/17 – General Fund – Replacing Michelle Duarte 

11. Danny McKeen – Superior Court – From CASA Coordinator – To Court Case 

Management Systems Trainer – 04/03/17 – From CASA Fund – To Field 

Trainer Fund – Replacing Patricia England 

OTHER ACTIONS: 

12. Emily Leverance – From Probation – To Superior Court – CASA Coordinator 

– 07/01/16 – CASA Fund – Department change 

13. Danny McKeen – From Probation – To Superior Court – CASA Coordinator – 

07/01/16 – CASA Fund – Department change 

14. Patti Dremler – From Probation – To Superior Court – Administrative Clerk 

Senior – 07/01/16 – CASA (.50)/Court improvement Project (.50) Funds – 

Department change 

REQUEST TO POST: 

15. Public Works – Custodian (.48) – Vacated by Rebecca Taylor 

16. Clerk of Superior Court – Court Clerk – Vacated by Megan Miller 

17. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Mechanic – Vacated by Merle Ray 

18. Superior Court – CASA Coordinator – Vacated by Danny McKeen 

 
E.  Approval of the March 21, 2017, Board of Supervisors' meeting 

minutes.  
 
F.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for February 27, 2017, 

to March 28, 2017.  
 

Approve demands and budget amendments for operating transfers.  Warrant 

numbers 282281 through 282528, 282530 through 282765, and 282767 

through 282859, totaling $3,527,568.37 for the period 2-27-17 through 3-28-

17.  

 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §11-217(C), the published minutes shall include all 

demands and warrants approved by the Board in excess of one thousand 

dollars except that multiple demands and warrants from a single supplier or 

individual under one thousand dollars whose cumulative total exceeds one 



Page 11 of 12 

 

thousand dollars in a single reporting period shall also be published.  (A 

listing of issued warrants and voided warrants are permanently attached 

to these minutes.) 

 
G.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 

approved by the County Manager for the week of February 27, 2017, 
through March 03, 2017; and March 06, 2017, through March 10, 2017.  
 

Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action items 3A through 3G. 

 
Item 4 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 

issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 

Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 

addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 

 
There weren’t any comments from the public. 

 
Item 5 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 

may present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken 
on information presented. 

 
Each Supervisor presented a summary of current events.  Mr. Nelson advised 
that he did not have anything to report at this time. 

 
Upon motion by Supervisor Cline, seconded by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, the 
Board unanimously voted to go into executive session to address agenda items 

6A and 6B at 11:27 a.m.   
 

Item 6 – EXECUTIVE SESSION ITEMS:  (The Board of Supervisors may 
vote to go into executive session on one or all of the items listed in this 
section.  No action will be taken by the Board while in executive session.) 

 
Chairman Martin reconvened the meeting at 12:32 p.m. and she asked for a 

motion on agenda item 6A. 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session to 

receive legal advice from its attorney regarding its position in the United 



Page 12 of 12 

 

States of America V.  ASARCO Consent Decree No. CV-15-2206-PHX-JZB, 
and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-

431.03(A)(3)-(4). If the Board does go into executive session, the County 
Attorney’s Office suggests that after the Regular Meeting has been 

reconvened, the Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to 
proceed as directed in executive session.  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously instructed the County Attorney’s Office to proceed as 
directed in executive session on item 6A. 

 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session 

pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03 (A)(3) and §38-431.03(A)(4) to receive legal 
advice from the Board of Supervisors' attorney regarding participation of 
Gila County in the filing of an amicus brief in Humphrey, et al. v. State of 

Arizona, Court of Appeals No. 1 CA-CV 16-0570; consider its position in 

the lawsuit; and, after the regular meeting has been reconvened, move to 

direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as discussed in the 
executive session regarding the agenda item.  
 

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Humphrey, seconded by Supervisor Cline, the 
Board unanimously instructed the County Attorney’s Office to proceed as 
directed in the executive session on item 6B. 

 
Chairman Martin advised that she would briefly like to readdress agenda item 

number 5, to which the other Board members agreed.  She presented some 
additional information on current events. 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Martin adjourned the meeting at 12:36 p.m. 
 

APPROVED: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Tommie C. Martin, Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 

_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 



   
ARF-4277   Consent Agenda Item     4. L.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for Weeks Ending 03-17-17 and 03-31-17.

Submitted For: James Menlove, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Betty Hurst, Contracts Administrator

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 03-17-17 and 03-31-17.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of March 13, 2017, through March
17, 2017; and March 27, 2017, through March 31, 2017.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50K Weeks
Ending 3-17-17 through 3-31-17
Amendment No. 7 to Lease Agreement with Payson Place LLC
Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Contract No. 080913-1
Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 012815
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 011615
Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 030714
Amendment No. 5 to Service Agreement No. 080913-2
Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 020317
Lease Agreement No. 031617 with Alhambra MHP
Service Agreement No. 032117 with Mountain Retreat Builders
Service Agreement No. 032117-1 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
March 13, 2017 thru March 17, 2017 

 Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
2  

Payson Place 
 

 

 
Amendment No. 7 to the 

Lease Agreement 
 

County Attorney’s Office 
Space-Payson 

 
$ 4,925.76 

 
04-01-17 to 09-30-17 

 
03-15-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 7 to the Lease Agreement 
with Payson Place. Extension to lease 
agreement for County Attorney’s office in 
Payson, AZ.  Term will run through September 
30, 2017. 
 

3  
Lori Martinez, LPC 

 

 
Amendment No. 5 to 
Professional Services 

Contract No. 080913-1 
 

Extend contract term for 
one additional year. 

 

 
$2,000.00 

 

 
04-01-17 to 03-31-18 

 
03-15-17 

 
Option to renew 

 
Amendment No. 5 will serve to extend the 
contract term for from April 01, 2017 to March 
31, 2018.  Contractor will provide HIV Care and 
Services for the Payson area. 
 

4  
Holyoak’s Equipment 

Repair & Welding 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 

Service Agreement No. 
012815 

 
Extend contract term for 

one additional year. 

 

 
$4,450.00 

 

 
03-18-17 to 03-17-18 

 
03-15-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 3 will serve to extend the 
term of the contract from March 18, 2017 to 
March 17, 2018. Contractor will perform 
equipment repair and welding on heavy 
equipment, as and when, requested from the 
Gila County Public Works Department. 

  



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

March 13, 2017 thru March 17, 2017 

 Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
5  

High Country 
Plumbing, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
011615 

 
Extend Contract for an 

additional one year 
period. 

 

 
$1,900.00 

 
03-11-17 to 03-10-18 

 
03-15-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 2 will serve to extend the 
term of the agreement from March 11, 2017 to 
March 10, 2018. Contractor will provide 
annual inspections, testing and repairs as 
needed at 6 County Facilities in Northern Gila 
County. 

6  
Laboratory 

Corporation of 
America 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 030714 

 
Extend contract for and 

additional one year 
period. 

 

 
$7,000.00 

 

 
04-01-17 to 03-31-18 

 
03-015-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 3 to extend contract 030714 
from April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018. 
Contractor will provide laboratory testing for 
HIV Care and Services.  

  



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

March 27, 2017 thru March 31, 2017 

 Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
7  

Barbara Stone, MSW, 
BSN, RN, MSN, FNP-C, 

PMHNP-C 
 

 

 
Amendment No. 5 to 
Professional Services 

Contract No. 080913-2 
 

HIV Care Services 

 
$ 2,500.00 for 

a new total 
contract 

amount of 
$8,500.00 

 
04-01-17 to 03-31-18 

 
03-27-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
Amendment No. 5 has been issued to extend 
the term of the contract from April 01, 2017 to 
March 31, 2018; and to increase the contract 
amount by $2,500.00 due to the change in 
clientele in area of service. Contractor will 
provide HIV Care and Services for the Payson 
area.  Contract expires on 03-31-18. 

8  
Mountain Retreat 

Builders 

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
020317 

 
Increase dollar amount 

of contract 

 

 
$200.00 for a 
new contract 

amount of 
$11,950.00 

 

 
02-16-17 to 06-30-17 

 
03-27-17 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase the 
contract amount by $200.00. The purpose of 
this contract is, but not limited weather-strip 
doors, replace glass, air seal windows, repair 
wood siding, seal fire place, air seal ductwork, 
insulate floor. 
 

9  
Alhambra MHP 

 

 
Lease Agreement No. 

031617 
 

County Attorney’s 
storage units. 

 

 
$5,712.00 

 

 
03-01-17 to 02-28-18 

 
03-27-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
The Globe County Attorney’s office rents 
storage space at Alhambra Mobile Home Park 
& Storage in Globe. The lease agreement 
covers the following storage Units: S107, S109, 
S110 and S115. The term of the Lease 
Agreement is for one year from March 01, 
2017 to February 28, 2018 

10  
Mountain Retreat 

Builders 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

032117 
 

Weatherization Project 
HH#3351. 

 

 
$9,617.00 

 

 
03-27-17 to 06-30-17 

 
03-27-17 

 
Expires 

 
The purpose of this contract is, but not limited, 
replace old furnace/evap. with GAS Pack, seal 
duct work, blow cellulose in open attic, seal 
windows. 

11  
Rodriguez 

Constructions, Inc. 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

032117-1 
 

Weatherization Project 
HH#10950 

 

 
$11,850.00 

 

 
03-27-17 to 06-30-17 

 
03-27-17 

 
Option to Renew 

 
The purpose of this Weatherization contract is, 
but not limited to, repair tin, replace furnace 
with split system, add combustion sir, 
fiberglass insulation in floor, blow fiberglass in 
room, reduce infiltration. 

 







































































   
ARF-4281   Executive Session Item     7. A.     
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 04/18/2017  
Submitted For: Michael Scannell, Deputy County Manager 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Consideration of United States of America V.  ASARCO Consent Decree
No. CV-15-2206-PHX-JZB.

Background Information
On April 4, 2017, the Board of Supervisors voted to go into executive
session to obtain legal advice from its attorney regarding United States of
America V.  ASARCO Consent Decree No. CV-15-2206-PHX-JZB. After
the Board of Supervisors' Regular Meeting was reconvened on April 4th,
the Board instructed the County Attorney's office to proceed as directed in
the executive session.  

The Consent Decree identifies a Lead-Based Paint Abatement Project as
one Environmental Mitigation Project listed in the settlement. Appendix A
on page 93 of the Consent Decree describes in detail the Environmental
Mitigation Projects listed in the agreement including, the Lead-Based
Paint Abatement Project. The consent decree specifies that the Gila
County Environmental Health Services program will receive $2,000,000 to
perform Lead-Based Paint testing and abatement activities in
Hayden/Winkelman once a Lead-Based Paint Abatement plan submitted
by ASARCO has been approved by the EPA.

Evaluation
The Board of Supervisors needs the advice and direction of the County
Attorney's Office with regard to future possible actions that pertain to the
Consent Decree.

Conclusion
The County Attorney’s Office recommends that the Board should vote to



The County Attorney’s Office recommends that the Board should vote to
go into executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney, consider
its position in the United States of America V.  ASARCO Consent Decree
No. CV-15-2206-PHX-JZB, and instruct its attorney how to proceed
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).

Recommendation
The County Attorney’s Office recommends that the Board should vote to
go into executive session to receive legal advice from its attorney, consider
its position in the United States of America V.  ASARCO Consent Decree
No. CV-15-2206-PHX-JZB, and instruct its attorney how to proceed
pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3)-(4).

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to vote to go into executive session to
receive legal advice from its attorney regarding its position in the United
States of America V.  ASARCO Consent Decree No. CV-15-2206-PHX-JZB,
and instruct its attorney how to proceed pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3)-(4). If the Board does go into executive session, the
County Attorney’s Office suggests that after the Regular Meeting has been
reconvened, the Board vote to instruct the County Attorney’s Office to
proceed as directed in executive session.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Liquor License Application
	Att1_Board Recommendation to State
	Att2_Affidavit of Posting - Signed
	Att3_Community Development Approval
	Att4_Health and Emergency Department Approval
	Att5_Treasurer's Approval
	Att6_Bandits Restaurant Liquor Licenses Application
	 Item 3.A. - Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2017-01 between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the National Park Service 
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement No. 2017-01
	 Item 3.B. - Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 092815- Document Scan Conversion for the Gila County Recorder's Office
	Att1_US Imaging Amendment No. 1
	Att2_Contract No. 092815-US Imaging, Inc.
	 Item 3.C. - Adoption of Proclamation No. 2017-04 proclaiming April as Fair Housing Month in Gila County
	Att1_Proclamation No. 2017-04
	 Item 3.D. - Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444 with Pinal Gila Council For Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V
	Att1_Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 014-0444
	Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 014-0444
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444
	Att4_Contract No. 014-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging
	 Item 3.E. - Accept or reject a Citizen_s Petition to begin the process to designate Forest Service Road 54A (lower Cherry Creek) as a Primitive Road.
	Att1_Citizen's Petition
	Att2_Map 54A Road
	 Item 3.F. - Award Contract No. 020917-Forest Service Road No. 512  Asphalt Patching Project
	Att1_Invitation for Bids No. 020917 - Forest Service Road No. 512 Asphalt Patching Project
	FS512 Patching Appendix.pdf
	Appendix A - cover sheet
	FS512 Patching Locations Exhibit
	Sheet1

	Appendix B - cover sheet
	FS512 Patching


	Att2_Plan Holder List
	Att3_Addendum No. 1
	Att4_As Read Bid Results
	Att5_Contract No. 020917-InterMountain West Civil Constructors, Inc.
	Att6_Cactus Asphalt-Sealed Bid
	Att7_Hatch Construction-Sealed Bid
	Att8_Magnum Civil Constructors-Sealed Bid
	Att9_Pima Paving-Sealed Bid
	Att10_Roy Haught Excavating-Sealed Bid
	 Item 3.G. - Appoint members to the Gila County Fair and Racing Commission to serve as lead governance structure at the Gila County Fairgrounds
	Att1_GC Fair and Racing Commission-List of Board of Directors
	 Item 3.H. - Establish employee contribution rates and benefit changes for Gila County for FY2018 for Arizona Local Government Employee Benefit Trust plans
	Att1_Schedule A.
	Att2_AZLGEBT Plan changes FY18
	 Item 3.I. - Gila County's Purchase of State-owned Tax Parcel Number 102-13-032-F 
	Att1_Quit Claim Deed-Parcel No. 102-13-032-F
	Att2_Information for Parcel No. 102-13-032-F
	 Item 4.A. - Order No. LL-14-05-RTR-Trident Winery-Series 19 Remote Tasting Room Application
	Att1_Order No. LL-14-05-RTR
	Att2_Trident Winery - CDD Approval
	Att3_Trident Winery - HandEMD Approval
	Att4_Trident Winery - Gila County Planner Approval
	Att5_Trident Winery Application
	Att6_Additional Information
	 Item 4.B. - Mi Familia Mexican Food Application for a Temporary Extension of Premises_Patio Permit
	Att1_Community Approval - Mi Familia
	Att2_Mi Familia Application
	 Item 4.C. - Amendment No. 3 to Funding Agreement No. 203-16 with the Arizona Department of Housing for the Weatherization Assistance Program
	Att1_Amendment No. 3 to Agreement No. 203-16
	Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Agreement No. 203-16
	Att3_Amendment No. 1 to Agreement No. 203-16
	Att4_Agreement No. 203-16
	 Item 4.D. - Amendment No. 2 to ADHS Request for Qualified Vendor Agreement No. DDD 710000
	Att1_Amendment No. 2 to RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	Att2_DDD Approved Amendment Application 10-21-14
	Att3_DDD Amendment Application 10-6-14
	Att4_DDD Approved Application 9-16-14
	Att5_Approved Data Sharing Request
	Att6_Amendment to Extend Terms
	Att7_RFQVA No. DDD 710000
	 Item 4.E. - Appointments of  Precinct Committeemen to the Gila County Republican Party
	Att1_Bernard George Wohlforth Precinct Committeeman Appointment
	Att2_Greg Barsness Precinct Committeeman Appointment
	Att3_Jim Muhr Precinct Committeeman Appointment
	Att4_Arizona Revised Statute 16-821
	 Item 4.F. - Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for March 2017
	Att1_March 2017
	 Item 4.G. - March 2017
	Att1_Clerks Report for March 2017
	 Item 4.H. - Globe Regional Constable Monthly Report for March 2017
	Att1_March Monthly Report
	 Item 4.I. - Monthly Report for March 2017
	Att1_Monthly report for March 2017
	 Item 4.J. - Monthly financial and statisical reports for February 2017
	Att1_February 2017 report
	2017 Feb jp treas.pdf
	2017 jp 0404 feb

	 Item 4.K. - March 28, 2017 and April 4, 2017
	Att1_03-28-17 Minutes
	Att2_04-04-17 Minutes
	 Item 4.L. - Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 03-17-17 and 03-31-17.
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50K Weeks Ending 3-17-17 through 3-31-17
	Att2_Amendment No. 7 to Lease Agreement with Payson Place LLC
	Att3_Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Contract No. 080913-1
	Att4_Amendment No. 3 to Service Agreement No. 012815
	Att5_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 011615
	Att6_Amendment No. 3 to Professional Services Contract No. 030714
	Att7_Amendment No. 5 to Service Agreement No. 080913-2
	Att8_Amendment No. 1 to Service Agreement No. 020317
	Att9_Lease Agreement No. 031617 with Alhambra MHP
	Att10_Service Agreement No. 032117 with Mountain Retreat Builders
	Att11_Service Agreement No. 032117-1 with Rodriguez Constructions, Inc.
	 Item 7.A. - Executive Session ASARCO_EPA Consent Decree

